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2009 M Wrk, Comp, LEXIS 12, *; 9 IWCC Q011
FLOYD FOX, PETITIONER, v. KETTERMAN COMMUNICATIONS, RESPONDENT.
NO: 03 W 32185
LLINGIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINGIS, COUNTY OF ARBAMS
2009 1, Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 12; § IWCC 0011
January 5, 200¢

CORE TERMS: pain, recommended, leg, arbitrator, lumbar, fracture, spine, crulch, ankle, temporary, walking, surgery, x-stop, foot,
heet, ight duty, discrepancy, subtalar, stenosts, boot, moon, partial disability, injection, calcaneus, sagittal, epidural, ladder,
temgorary total disability, causally, commancing

JUDGES: Barbara A. Sherman; Yolaine Dauphin; Kevin W, Lamborn
OPINION: [*1]
DECISICON AND CPINION ON REVIEW

Tinely Petition for Réview under § 19(b) having been filed by the Respondent hereln and notice given Lo all parties, the Commission,
after considaring the issues of whether Petitioner's present condition of iil-being is causaliy related te the injury, the reasonableness
or necessity of medical, surgical or hospital bills or services, and the amount of compensation due for temporary total disability, and
being advised of the facts and law, modifies the Decision of she'Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts the
Becision of the Arbitrator, which Is attached hereto and made a part hereof. The Comraission further remands this case to the
Arbitrator for further proceedings for a determination of & further amount of temporary total compensation or of compensation for
permanent disability, if any, pursuant Lo Thormas v, Industrlal Commission,. 78 11,26 327, 399, M.E.2d 1322, 35 ill.Dec. 794.(1980).

In s0 finding, the Commission notes the following facts.

petitioner worked for Respondent as a satellite dish Installer, As a sateliite dish instalier, Petitioner earned $ 20,451.20 [#2] a year,
and the parties stipulated that his average weekly wage was § 585.60. On February 28, 2003, while at a job site, Petitioner fell from
a Aftean-foot ladder onto a brick patlo, 1anding on hig laft ankie. AS a resuit of the fali, Petitioner suffered a left calcaneus fracture,

Respondent sent Petitloner to see Dr. Bansal at Corporate Hezlth Solutions in Springfield, lifinols on Mareh 3, 2003, Dr. Bansal
subsequently referred Petitioner to Dr. Idusuyl et Southern Iiinois University Schaol of Medicine. On March 17, 2003, Dr. Idusuyi
opted to treat Petitioner's injury non-operatively.

Respondent's Seclion 12 examiner, Dr. David Fetcher, noted on July 24, 2003, that Petitioner could return to work fight duty, and
that he might have permanent restrictions. Dr. Fletcher aiso recommended thal Petitloner underge 2 subtalar fusion, and referred
petitioner to Dr, Clayton Perry.

On July 27, 2003, Petitioner returned £o work light duty as a dispatcher. This fob involved answering phanes, transcribing information,
and working on the computer, As a dispatcher, Petitioner earned $ 6.00 per hour and worked forty hours a week.

patitioner underwent a subtalar fusion, performed by Dr. Clayton [¥33 Perry, on September 9, 2003, Petitioner remained off work
from Septernber 9, 2003, until December 22, 2003, when he returned to light duty work as a dispatcher.

Dr. Perry noted that Petitloner reached maximum medical improvemment with respect to his foot and ankie on March 27, 2004, Dr.
perry placed Petitioner on permanent work restrictions of no walking on uneven surfaces, no cl imbing ladders; and rio carrying
welghts while watking.

On Septernber 1, 2005, Dr, Bansal noled that Petitioner's Jeft leg was one-half inch shorter than his right. He noted that petitioner
developed considerable back pain that radiated down both legs to his feet with intermittent numbness and tingling in December 2003
due to his profenged use of crutches. Dr. Bansal noted that bending forward, sitting, and standing aggravated Petitioner's low back
pain. Dr. Bansal noted, "It Is my opinion that the patient's low back pain complaints are resultant from his prolonged use of the
crutches following his foot surgery that was exacerbated by his leg length discrepancy.” Dr, Bansal took Petitioner off work completely
as of February 22, 2006. As of the date of the September 5, 2007, hearing before Arbitrator Tobin, Petitioner [*#4] had notreturned
Lo work,

Based on the foregoing, the. Commission hereby medifies the Arbitrator's decision with respect to the award for tempeorary partial

disabitty benefits, Contrary to the Arbitrator's findings, the Cornmisston finds that Petitionar s not entitled to temporary partial
disability beneflts. Instead, pursuant to Section 8(d}1 of the Act, the Commission finds that Petitloner is entitled Lo temporary total
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disability benefits of $ 390,40 per week for the periods during which he was totally disabled from working, Fetitioner was totally
disabled for a perlod of 111-6/7 Weeks, commencing on March 1, 2003, and ending on Juhe 26, 2003, commencing on $eptember 9,
2003, and ending on December 21, 2603; and comm encing on February 22, 2006, through Sept 5, 2007,

The Commission further finds that Patitioner Is entitied to maintenance benefits for the period of time during which he worked tight
duty for Respendent. Petitioner's light duty work contributed to his physical, mentat, and vocalional rehabilitation from his injury.
Further, Petitioner earned significantly less in his light duty capacity as a dispatcher than he did as a satelilte installer. Respondant is
obligated to [*5] pay maintenance benefits In an amount equal to two-thirds of the difference between Petitioner's light duty wage
and his average weekly wage, or $ 230.40 per wesak,

We find that Patitioner is entiiied to maintenance benefits during the period when his condition had not stabilized, Although Petiticner
reached maximum medical improvement with respect to his ankle as of March 27, 2004, Petitioner's condition of Itl being as i relates
to his lower back had not yet stabilized, Petitioner is thersfore entitled to maintenance benefits in the amount of & 230.40 a week for
8 period of 123-5/7 weeks commencing on June 27, 2003, and ending on September 8, 2003; and commencing on December 22,
2003, and ending on February 21, 20086,

IT 1S THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Arbitrator's decision be modifled with respect to the award for temporary
partial disabliity benefits.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION thal Respondent shali pay to the Petitioner the sum of § 390.40 per waek for a peried
of 111-6/7 weeks, that being the period of temporary total Incapacity for work under §8(Db), and that as provided in 519(b) of the Act,
this award in ne instance shall be a bar to a further hearing [*6] and determination of a further amount of temporary total
compensation or of compensation for permanent disabillty, if any,

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shail pay to the Petitioner maintenance benefits in the sum of §
230.40 per week for & pertod of 123-5/7 weeks, and that as provided in §19(b) of the Act, this award in no Instance shall be a bar to
a further hearing and determination of a further amount of temporary total compensation or of compensation for permanent
disability, if any.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitiener the sum of § 53,770.74 for medical expenses
undar §8(a) of the Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent authorize and pay for the "x-stop” surgary as recommended by Dr.
Pencek, pursuant to the medical fee schedule.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanded to the Arbltrator for further proceedings cansistent with
this Decision, but only after the latter of expiration of the time for fHiing a written request for Summons to the Circuit Coutt has
expired without the filing of such a written request, or after the time of compl etion of any judicial proceedings, [#7] if such a written
request has been filed.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 18(n) of the Act, if any,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credit for all amounts pald, If any, to ot on behalf of
petitioner on account of sald accidental injury.

Bond for the removal of this cause o the Cireult Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 75,000.00. The probable cost of
the record to be filed as return to Summons is the sum of § 35.00, payable to the Illincis Workers' Com pensation Commigsion in the
form of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: JAN § 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLYINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 19(b) ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was flied in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Jeffery Tohin, Arbitrator of the Commission, in the Clty of Quincy, on September 5, 2007, After reviewing
all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes the findings on the disputed issues checkad below [*8] and attaches
those findings to this document.

DISPUTED ISSUES

E. Is the petitioner's present condition of Hi-being causally refated to the injtiry?

4. Were the medical services that were provided to the petitioner reasonable and necessary?

M. Should penalties or fees be imposaed upon respondent?

0. Other- Prospective medical under 8(a), Temporary partial disability

FINDINGS

. On February 28, 2003, the respondent Ketterman Communications was operating under and subject to the
provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent,

. On this date, the pelitioner did sustain injuries that arese out of and In the course of employment.

. Timely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitioner sarned § 30,451.20; the average weekly wage was $ 585.60.
. AL the time of injury, the petitioner was 45 years of age, matried with 1 child under 18,
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. Necessary medical services have not been provided by the respondent.
. To date, $ 0 has been pald by the respondent for Temporary Partial Disability.

ORDER

. 1%¥81 The respondent shall pay the petitioner temparary partial disability benefits of $ 230.40 /week for 24- 6/7
weeks, from une 27, 2063 through September 9, 2003; December 22, 2003 through March 15, 2004, and §
390.40/week from August 20, 2007 throtgh September 5, 2007 which is the period of terporary total disability for
which compensation Is payable,

. The respondent shali pay the petitioner compensation that has accrued from Eebruary 28, 2003 through September
5, 2007, and shall pay the remainder of the award, if any, in weekiy payments,

. The raspondent shall pay the further sum of § 53,770.74 for necessary medical services as provided in Section 8(a}) of
the Act. The Respondent shall approve and pay for the 'X-Stop' surgery recommended by Dr. Pencek pursuant Lo the
medicat fee schedule. The Respondent Is to have credit for any related medical expenses paid pursuant to Section 8(j) of
the Act and shall provide payment information to Petitioner relative to any credit due.

. In no stance shall this award be & bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of temperary
total disability, medical benefits, or compensation for [*10} a permanent digablility, IT any.

. The respondent shafi pay $ 0 In penalties, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act,

. The respondent shall pay ¢ 0 in penalties, as provided in Section 19(1) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay § 0 in attorneys' fees, as provided in Sectlon 16 of the Act.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review Ir accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shail be entered as the decigion of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST If the Commission reviews this award, interest of 3.99% shall accrue from the dale fisted below to the
day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal resuits in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest
shall not acorue, .

Signature of arbitrator

10724707

Date

OCT 29 2007

‘The Arbitrator finds the following facts regarding all disputed issues:

The Petitioner was employed as & sateliite dish installer for the Respondent on February 28, 2003, Petitioner had been employed by
the Respendent for the previous four months but had worked for the Respondant previously. Petitioner described that his

general [¥11] duties included installing satellite dishes on the roofs of customers' homes. Petitioner was provided a company truck,
hand tools and a ladder in order to accomplish his job.

On-February 28, 2003 the Petitioner was at a customer's house In $t. Charles, Missour! installing & satellite dish. The Petitioner
climbed a ladder to the roof of the customer's house and wag tucking a cable behind some soffit when the {adder slipped back causing
the Petitioner to fall to a brick patio below. Petitioner estimated that he was approximately 15 feet off the ground and landed on his
left ankle and lef side of his body. Petitioner noticed the immediate onset of pain in his feft foot and ankle, and noted that when he
tried to stand up he felt iike his left heel was detached.

petitioner crawled into the customer's home, who had left momentarily on an errand, and called the Respondent's office and spoke
with Jessica Robertson, Respondent's dispatch supervisor, Petitioner’s telephone call was transferred to Linda Meesa, Respondent's
Human Resources Diractor, Petitioner nolifled the Respondent of the incident and another technician was dispatched to help the
petitioner drive to the hospital. Petitioner [#12] was taken to St. Joseph's Hospl tal in St. Charles, Missouri. (P.X. 2)

X-rays of the Petitioner's left foct revealed a comminuted fracture of the calcaneus with moderate disptecement of the fraciure
fragments, extending to the subtalar jolnt. (P.X. 2) The Respondent was contacted by St Joseph's Health Center staff and advised
that the Petitioner wanted to return o the Quincy, Winois srea for treatment. (P X. 2) A return telephorie from the Respondent's
workers' compensation carrier Indicated that the Peiftioner would be referrad to Dr. Sunil Bansal, {P.X. 2) Pelitioner was nstructed to
remain off work, (P.X. 2)

oOn March 3, 2003 the Petitioner was seen by Dr. Sunii Bansat at the reguest of the Respondent. (P.X. 10) Dr. Bansal diagnosed the
petitioner with & left celcaneal fracture and referred him to Dr. Osaretin Idusuyi, an orthepedic surgeon. {P.X. 10)

On March 3, 2003 Dr. Tdusuy! saw the Petitioner in his clinic and noted the work accident and the calcaneal fracture, (P.X, 9) Dr.
Idusuyi also noted the Petitloner had diabetes mellitus, and indeed Petitioner testified that he was an lasutin dependent disbetle, (P.X.
9) Or. Idusuyi recommended a CAT scan of his left calcaneus with [¥13] coronal and axial cuts to assess the amount of
displacement and felt the Petitioner was very likely In need of an open reduction, internal fixation of the fracture. {(P.X, 9) Pelitioner
returned to Dr. Idusuyi on March 17, 2003 where it was noted that the Petitioner’s caicaneus fracture was highly comminuted but
relatively aligned. (P.X. 9 Dr. Idusuyi recemmended at this point to treat the fracture non-operatively and placed the Patitidner In a
Bledsoe brace due to the history of cigarette smoking and the chance for significant wound complications following hig fracture. (P.X.
9

Patitioner was sent te Dr. David Fistcher by Respondent for a Section 12 medical evaluation on April 25, 2003, (P.X. 13) Dr. Fletcher
concurred with the diagnosis and suggested pool therapy for the Petitioner, (P.X. 13) Pr. Idusuyi ordered the pool therapy for the
Petitioner on May 8, 2003 but continued to indicale a hesitancy to procesd with surgery.(P.X.9) Physicat therapy was recommended
and begun at Tl Community Hospital in Pittsfieid, IL. On June 18, 2003 the petitloner returned to Dr. Idusuyi who also
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recommended & UCBL brace for the Petitioner, {P.X. 9)

On July 23, 2603 the Petitioner returned [#14] to Dr. Tdusuyi noting persistent left heel pain and Dr. Idusuyl recommended a left,
Gale subtalar fusion with iliac crest bone grafting. (P.X.9) On July 24, 2003 the Petitioner returned to Dr. Fletcher for a repeat
Section 12 evaluation and recommended that the Petitioner have a second opinion with a Dr. Clayton Perry (P.X.13)

On August 14, 2007 the Petitioner saw Dr, Clayton Perry at the request of the Respondent. {(P.X.12) Dr, Perry recommended a fusion
with a bone graft and indicated the Petitioner would be In a cast or & moon boot for about & month, (P.X.12)

etitioner testified that he was told by a Responde nt's case manager that he would have to have the surgery dene by Dr. Clayton
Perry, and that if he wanted to have Dr. Idusuyi perform the surgery the Petitioner would have to walit a year, Petitioner testified that
because he was In so much pain he elected to have Dr. Perry perform the procedure.

On September 9, 2003 the Petitloner underwent an iliac crest bone gréft%ng of the subtalar and fusion of the subtalar jeint, (P.X.15)

Petitioner testified that after s surgery he was placed in a large ‘moon boot’ which was braced with steel and weighed approximately
20 pounds. {P.X, [*¥35] 12) Petitioner was aiso placed on crutches which he used for about 12 weeks,(P.X, 12} Petitioner noted that
after surgery the length of his foot changed and the left leg was 1/2 Lo 5/8 inches shorter, Pelitioner noted that he had to drag hisleg
with the ‘moon boot' along with him and that the ‘'moon oot actually made him talier on the feft than on the right. Petitioner noted
that when he wag in the 'moeon boot' he would be tilted over leaning to the right.

On December 10, 2003 the Petitioner had stopped using his crutches but continued to waik with his moon boot, The Petitioner began
o notice that he was experiencing low back pain, Petitioner's wife, Anne Fox, aiso testified that It was at the Decernber 10, 2003 visit
that the low back pain was flrst described to Dr. Perry, though Dr, Perry's records do not record the complaint. {P.X.15)

On February 27, 2004 the Petitioner saw Dr. Perry in foliow up. (P.X.185) Dr. Perry noted the Petitioner was at that point in an ankle
boot, compiaining of pain anterforly over his ankie in atignnyent with the ankle folnt and roting that he had trouble walking over
uneven ground or slanted surfaces. {P.X.15) Dr, Peyry steted the Petitioner was af maximum [*167 medical improvement and
released him from his care. Restrictions inciuded no walking on uneven or slanted surfaces, no ciimbing ladders or carrying weights
while he was walking. (P.X.15)

petitioner contlnued to catl Dr. Perry regarding his low back pain though Dr. Perry's records do not record such calls. Howaver, @
Quincy Medical Group report of October 26, 2004 with 1, Pete Little, P.T.M.5, indicates Dr, Perry referred the Petitioner to Quincy
Medicat Group for complaints of problems with his back and for the testing for orthotles. {P.X.14) Physical therapist Pete Little was to
cagt orthotics that would Incorporate a heel wedge to make up leg length discrepancy as well as support the foot with a semi-rigid
orthatic, Measurameants of the Petitloner's legs Indicated that the Petitioner's left leg was & quarter of an Inch shorter than the right
leg. (P.X.14) Petitioner was glven two prosthetics and he felt like he was walking downhill and worsenad his back pain.

On March 21, 2005 the Petiioner returned to Dr. Osaratln Idusuy! for low back psin, radiating down the posterior aspect of his
buttock and thigh ali the way to the lavel of his knee, right worse than left. (P.X.33) Petitioner [#177 noted that his pain was
relieved by walking in @ bent position, which Dr. Tdusuyl noted was a positive “shopping cart” sign. (P.X.19) Dr, ldusuy! noted the
Petitioner walked with an antalgic gait with a left slide, splinting lirp. On examination Dr, Idusuy! noted tenderness over the
jumbosacral spine and into the sciatic notch, (P.X,18) Dr. Iduslyi diagnosed low back pain with spinaj stenosls ahd referred the
Petitioner to Dr, Freitay for evaluation and treatment of the low back. {P.X. 19)

Dr. Freitag required an MRI prior fo seeing the Petitioner, Petitioner went to his farally doctor, Dr. Korhan Raif of the Quincy Medical
Group for the purpose of ohtaining an MRI. (7., 14} The Petitioner notad that he had seen Dr. Raif previously but had not complained
to him about his low back pain because others were treating his work related injuries. Dr. Ralf ordered, and Petittoner underwent, an
MRI of his lumbar spine on Jupe 30, 2005 which indlcated desiccation of the L4/8 disc with some bulging In the midline, no spinal
stenosis and no discrete focal dise herniatlon. (P.X. 8}

After the MRI the Petitionar returned to Dr. Sunil Bansal for continued care of his lumbar spine. (P.X.10)

petitioner [*18] first returned to Dr. Bansal on September 1, 2005, Dr. Bansal reviewed the Petitioner's work accident and medical
treatment subsequent to the work accident. {P.X.10) {r. Bansal noted the Petiticner's complaint that his left leg was a haif an.Inch
shorter than his right and that he had a jong rehabilltation course, with use of crutches, and developed back path in December of
2003, (P.X.10) Or, Bangs! dlagnosed the Petitioner with low back pain which he felt was resuliing from his proionged use of crutches
following his foot surgery and exacerbated by his leg length discrepancy, (P.X,10) Dr, Bansa! recommended physical therapy, Physical
therapy was performed at the Progressive Weliness Center, (P.X.10) Petitioner returned to Dr. Bansai on October 28, 2005 noting
some improverent with physical therapy but continued low back pain. (F.X.10) Pelltioner testified that he asked If he could obtain
chiropractic treatinent and was referred to a chiropractor in Pittsfield, IL. (P.X.10, 21)

Petiticner received chiropractic treatment with Dr. Mark Meleskl from December 21, 20035 through February 24, 2006 without
significant improvement, (P.X.21)

Thereafter Dr. Bansal referred the Petitioner to Dr. [*197 Babu Prasad for epidural steroid injections and for an EMG of his
tumbosacral spine, The Petitioner saw Dr. Prasad for the first time on January 24, 2006. Dr. Prasad recommended lumbar epidural
steroid injections and referral to Dr. Joshua Warsch for an EMG and pain medications. (P.X.22) Dr. Prasad performed a transforaminat
jumbar epldural steroid injection with fucroscoplc guidance on January 24, 2006. (P.X.23)

An EMG of the Petitioner's spine taken January 30, 2006 revealed bilateral LS radiculopathies. (P.X.22)

On February 8, 2006 Dr. Prasad performed & translaminar lJumbar epldural sterold injection. (P.X.23) On March 3, 2006 Dr. Prasad
performed a translaminar lumbar epidural steroid injection. (P.X.23}

On Cctober 11, 2005 the Petitioner was sent for a Sectlon 12 evaluation by the Respondent. (P.X.20) The Petitioner was seen by Dr.,
Robert Martin and 2 complets history on the Petitioner's left ankie and heel fracture and treatment was recordad. Dr. Martin noted the
Petitioner underwant a bone graft on the left ankte and screw in September of 2003 and that thereafler he was in a “moeen boot" for
12 to 14 weeks and on crutches. (£.X.20) Dr. Martin noted tha Petitioner began to complain [ *¥207 of low back paln thereafier and
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that Dr. Pervy indicated that It would just teke time, Dr. Martin also noted the Petitioner had lifts made for his shoes because the teft
{eg was shiorter. Or. Martin noted that the Petitioner complained that the lifts just made his fow back paln worse and caused his left
ankle o swall, {P.X. 20} At the time of the examination, the Petitloner complained of a constant dull pain in the center of his back,
extending to both sides of the low back and down the buttock. Petitioner also had sharp. pain in the back of both thighs to the knees,
Dr. Martin aiee noted the Petitioner had increasing low back pain with prolonged sitting, riding In a car, standihg, walking and
bending. (P.X.20)

Br. Martin noted that the Petitioner's pelvis and hips were not quite jevel, petitioner had tenderngss from L4 Lo X directly over the
vertabral column itself, tenderness across the sacrum, poor ismbar rounding on the forward flexion maneuver, positive straight ieg
ralsing test at 60 degrees bilaterally, and & leg length measurement showling anterior superior (lac crest Lo the mediat mallecius as
peing 93 centimeters on the right and 92 centimeters on the feft, (P.X.20} Dr, [#24] Martin dizgnosed the Petitioher with a
comminuted fracture of the lefi caicaneus, post-trawmatic arthritls of the subtatar area as a result of the fracture of the calcaneus, left
teg shortening as cornpared to right as a result of the calcaneal fracture and low back pain. (£.X.20) Dr. Rebert Martin stated that
these diagnoses were caugally refated to his fali at work, (P.X.20) Dr. Martin recommended continved physical therapy.

Dr. Martin further stated that it was his oplnion that the reai problem was coming from his uncorrected feg length problem combined
with his abaormal metion of the left anide. {P.X.20) Dr. Martin looked at the orthotlcs that had been made for the Petitioner and
noted that the full length arch supports were 1.2 centimeters lift on the left heel, overcorracting the discrepancy in his left leg length.
{P.X,20} Dr. Martin indicated that under the circumstances It was not unusual that this over-correction would worsen his problem. Dr.
Martin recommended a change in his heel lift but that he would aiways have intermittent low back pain. (P.X.20)

Or. Sunil Bansal referred the Petitioner to Dr, Doug Rankingon for lumbar decompression procedures. {P.X.10,25) Peiitioner [¥22]
restified that the decompressions provided some retlef but that It did not last for long.

Hr. Robert Martin exa mined the Petitioner for a second Uime on May 5, 2006 where he stated his opinion that the treatment for the
Petitioner's low back pain, including the epidural injections and chiropractic care was ‘excessive’ (R, X, 16) The Arbitrator notes that
the trestments helped the Petitioner temporarily and the Petitioner did not continue his chiropractic care when it failed to relieve his
low back patn. Dr. Martin was of the opinlon that the Petitioner's low back patn was not caused by his lumbar bulging disk, but by his
lea tength discrepancy. (R.X. 16)

On July 28, 2006 the Petitioner returned to Dr. Bansal complalning of severe low back pain with stgnlficant paln down the right leg to
the foot with intermittent nurmbness and tingling, (P.X.10} Dr. Bansal recommended a repeat MRI and referred the Petitioner to Dr.
Terente Pencek, {P.X.1G}

The Petitioner was seen by Dr. Terence Pencek on O ctober 10, 2006, Dr. pencek reviewed the Petitioner's work accldent and his
previous medical treatment, and the MRI of the Petitioner's lumbar spine. D, Pencek was of the oplinlon that the Petitioner %233
had congenital stenosis at L4/5 which may have been worsened with the abnormal walking pattern he developed after his fitting,
{P.X.27) Dr. Pencek felt the Petitioner probably changed his sagittal balance of his lumbar spine. {P.X.27} The Arbitrator notes that
pr. Robert Martn, Respondent’s Section 12 axaminer, also noted a change in the Petitioner’s pelivic balance. Dr. Pencel
recorrmended an 'X-Stop' procedure at L4/5 to open up his spinal canal, {P.X.27)

Or. Pencek testified that sagittal balance means that there is a certain alignment of the spine where If you hung a string with a weight
2t the bottom of It starting at €2 it shouid tand at just about L4/5 on a line, (P.X. 28, page N

Dr, Pancek explained that when you change your sagittal palante it changes how the vertebral bodies lay on the discs and the
snnulus and can change the alignment of the discs. (#.X. 29, page 9-1G) Dr, Pencek said that such a change in alignment coutd put
more weight on the back of the disc. {P.X, 29, page 10) Dr. Pencek described than at *-Stop' procedure opens up the spinal canal by
separating the spinous processas and ingreasing the angle of the spinous processes hetween L3/4 or L4/5, (P.X. 29, [*24] page 10}
or. Pencek described that this was a new procedure and he perform ed the A-Stop' now, for spinal stenosis and that it was a much
tess invasive way of opentng the spinal canal and not fusing a patient. (P.X. 29, page 10-11}

Or. Pancek testified that the procedure would be designed to treat hoth the stenosis and the sagittal imbalance, {P.X. 29, page 11)
Dr. Pencek described that the procedure would Involve implanting a device which is made out of titanium, and placed between the 1,4
and LS spincus processes, to open u p the region at the back of the spine, {P.X. 29, page 14-15) Dr. Pencek falt that the X-stop
procedure was a reasonable course of treatment for the Petitioner's condition, (P.X. 29, page 13) Or. Pencel felt thet the Petitioner's
dise buige was not the cause of the Petitioner's provlem. (8.X. 28, page 15-16) It was Dy, Pencek's oplnion to a reasonable degree of
surgical certainty that the Petitioner's feg and foot Injury, his use of crutches, the shortening of his leg length and the affect that
those things had on his walking and hlg balance coneributed to the condition of sagittal imbalance and his need for surgery. (P.X. 29,
page 16-17)

petitioner was examined [*25] by @ third Seclion 12 physician, Dr. Marc Soriane, a neurosurgeon. Dr. Sorlano felt the Petitioner’s
low back paln and Mindings were net causally refated to the accident &t lssue.(R.X. p. 27) Dr. Sorianc was of the opinien that the
petitioner needed no further medical care for his back. (R.X, p. 28} Dr. Soriano felt that Or. Pencek's opi rion that the bulging disk was
un-related to the Petitioner's problem was Ingorrect and the bulge did contribute to the stenosis {R.X. p. 35) Or, Soriano felt that the
work accident could have temporarily aggravated a soft tissue Injury, or a pre-existing degenerative condition but this condition would
have resolved within a four to s1x week time pariod.{R, X. p. 37-38} Dr. Soriang doubted the accident caused any permanent
aggravation of the lumbar spine because Dr. Perry did not record low back complaints.(R.X, p, 38) Dr. Soriano also did not believe
rhat there wes a relationship between Petitioner's crutch use and his fow back pain, since the use of crutches did not involve the use
of the back. {R.X%. p. 40) Dr, Soriano agaln based hig opinten on Dr, Perry not recording any back complaints.(R.X, p. 41) Dr. Sortano
felt the theory of Petitioner's ieg [¥26] length discrepancy as the, cause of the Petitioner's low back pain was 3 reasonabie theory,
(R.X. p.43)

Or. Sortano was familiar with the 'X-Stop' procedure but did not use it personally (R.X. p. 45} Dr. Soriano did not believe the
petitioner needed the 'X-Stop’ procedure (R.X. p. 47) Dr. Soriano admitted that the K-Stop' procedurs was FDA approved. (R.X. p.
62)

On cross-examination Dr. Soriano admitted that spina! stenosls can remain asymptomatic and can be aggravated by traums. (R.X. p.

48) Dr, Soriano wag somewhat evasive when questioned as to the number of times that fie has examined individuals at the request of
Respondent's counsel in the past. (R.X. p. 54-55) Dr. Soriano has been retained as a madical withess in Illincis, Wisconisin, California,
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Conneclicut, Washington, 1.C., Maryland, and Indianz {R.X. p, 57) Dr, Sorlano does not tiave an office In Wisgensin but performs
independent medical exams ten months out of the year, a couple imes a month there.{R.X. p. 58-59) Dr. Soriano performs
independent medical evaluations for PMRY and Corvel Corporation. (R.X. p. 59) He travels to Bloomington, Illincis to perform
independent medical evaluations every six to elght weeks and examines [¥27] four to five patients, and examined the Petitioner in
Bloomington, Iliinois.(R.X. p. 9) Dr. Sorlane charges § 950 per IME.(R.X, p. 60) Dr. Sorleno chargas $ 1,100 for his testimony. {R.X.
p. 61) ' '

The Arbitrator concludes as follows:

5. The Petitioners left heel fracture, and lumbal spine condition of sagittal imbalance making the "K-Btop’ procedure
necassary, are causaily related to the sceldent of February 28, 2003: The Arbitrator finds persuasive the opinions of Dr.
Sunii Bansal, Dr. Terrence Pencek and the Section 12 physician, Dr. Robert Martin, that the injury to the Petitioner’s left
heel, and hig subsequent use of crutches, antalglc gait and leg length discrepancy, caused the petitioner's low back paln
and lumbar spine condition. '

2. The 'X-Stop® procedure recommendad by Dr. Terrence Pencek is reasonable and necessary and orders the Respendent
to authorize and pay for the procedure.

3. The Patitionar is entitled to a temporary partial disability benefit of $ 230.40 from June 27, 2003 through September
g, 2003 and then again from December 22, 2003 through March 15, 2004,

4. The bill for an unknown amount for Clinical Radictogists for treatment from 3/03/03 through 3/06/03 [*¥28] isnet
awarded. The remaining medical expenses submitted were reasonable and necessary ($ 53,770.74}) and the Respondent
is ordered to pay the medical expenses submitted In Petitioner's Exhibit 17 in accordance with Section B{a} and the newly
adopted medical fee schedule for any services rendered after 2/01/06. Respondent is entitled to credit for any actual
payments it made towards the swarded medical bills,

5. Petiioner is entitled to temporary total disability benefits from August 22, 2007 through September 5, 2007,

&, The Arbitrator finds that the Respondent's defense of this claim had a good faith basis and no penalties are awarded.
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2009 It Wrk, Comp. LEXIS 179, *; 9 IWCC 0116
RALPH GRUN DEMAN, PETITIONER NAME, PETITIONER, v. USF HOLLAND INC,, RESPONDENT NAME, RESPONDENT,
NO: 06 W 10293
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF COCK
2009 I, wrk, Comp. LEXIS 179; 8 IWCC 0116
February 4, 2009
CORE TERMS: arbitrator, shoulder, bilateral, rotator, cuff, diagnosed, tendonitls, claimant, cervical, paln, loss of use, iImpingement,
neck, arm, partial disabllity, accidental injury, right arm, radicuiopathy, prescribed, permanency, temporary, underwent, sping, tear,
course of employtnent, disputed issues, right shoulder, fee schedule, medical care, total amount
JUDGES: Mario Basurto; James F. DeMunng; David L, Gore
ORINION: [*1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review having been filed by the Petitioner hereln and notice given to all parties, the Commission, after considering
the issues of causalion, necessity of medical expenses and the nature and extent of the permanent disability and being advised of the
facts and law, miodifies the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts the Decision of the Arbitrator,
which is attached hereto and made a part hereof,
The Commission increases the arbitrator's permanency award under Section 8(d)2 from 2% man as 2 whole award (o 5% man as a
whole. The Commission finds that the Arbitrator incorrectly listed the total emount of weeks for &l of the permanency awards as
35,30 weeks when the correct amount was 33.50 weeks. The Commission finds that with the medification of the Section B(d)2 award

on Review the total amount of weeks for all of the permanency awards is now 48,50 weeks.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner the surn of $ 119.88 per week for a perlod of
25-4/7 weeks, that being the period of temporary partial disabliity benefits under §8{a) of the Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED [#2]1 BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitloner the sum of § 4,868,50 for medical expenses
under §8(a) of the Act.

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Responden| pay to Petitioner the sum of § 509,14 per week for a period of 48.5
waeks, as provided in 88(d)2 and §8(e) of the Act, for the reason that the injuries sustained caused the 5% loss of a man ag & whole,
& 5% loss of the left arm and 8 5% loss of a right arm,

IT IS FURTHER GRDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petilioner interest under § 19(n) of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shali have credit of § 180.00 for all amounts paid to or on beh alf of
Petitioner on account of sald accidental injury.

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Clrouit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 32,500.00. The probable cost of
the record to be filed as reburn to Summons is the sum of $ 35.00, payable to the Iilinols Workers' Compengation Commigsion in the
form of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: FEB 4 2009

ATTACHMENT:

TLLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

[*#31 An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed In this matter, and a Notice of Mearing was mailed to each party. The matter
was heard by the Honorable Githerto Galicia, arbitrator of the Industriai Commission, in the city of Chicago, on 11/14/2007. After
reviewing all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues,

DISPUTED ISSUES

F. Is the petitioner's present condition of ill-belng causally related to the injury?

3. Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary?
L. What Is the nature and extent of the injury?
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FEMDINGS

. On 12/12/2005, the respondant USF Holland Inc. was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Adt.
. On this date, an ernployee-employer refationship did exist between the petitioner ahd respondent

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain Injuries that arose out of and in the course of empicyment

. Timely notice of this accident was glven to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the Injury, the petitioner earned ¢ 44,125.12; the average weekly wage was § 848.56,

. At the time of injury, the petitiongr was 53 years of [*4] age, married with ~0- children under 18,

. Necessary medical services have, in patt, been provided by the respondent.

. To date, § -180- has been paid by the respondent for TTD and/or maintenance benefils.

ORDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary partial disability benefits of$ 119.88/week for 25 4/7weeks, from 12/14/2005
through 6/ 1172006, which is the period of temporary total disabiilty which compensation is payable,

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner the sura of § 509, 14/week for a furt her period of 35.30 weeks, as provided in Sectlon 8(d} 2
& of the Act, because the Injuries sustained caused 2% loss 8(d) 10 of use of & person, 5% loss of use of the left arm and 5% loss of
uge of the right arm.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that has accrued from 12/12/2003 through 11/14/2007, and shall pay the
remainder of the award, if any, in weekly payments.

. The respondent shall pay the further sum of § 4,868.50, or whatever is approved by the fee schedule, Tor necessary medical
services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act, and respondent is entitled to a credit for whatever amounts they may have already
paid,.

. The respondent [*5] shall pay § -0- in penallles, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act.

. The respondent shali pay § -0- in penalties, as provided In Section 19(1) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ -0~ in attorneys’ fees, as provided in Section 16 of the Act.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition far Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Commisston,

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Comvmission reviews this award, interest of 3.28% shall accrue from the date listed below to
the day before the date of payment however, if an empioyee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, Interest
shali not accrue.

Signature of arbitrator
12.21.07

Date

DEC 24 2007
FINDINGS OF FACTS

These parties do not dispute Petitioner was an employee of Respondent and suffered an accidental injury when he fell backward onte
fis hands walking down stalrg at work on December 12, 2005, Petitioner first sought medical treatment on December 15, 2005 at
Northwest Community Hospital. He complained of bilateral upper arm pain only and was diagnosed [*6] with a bilateral arm strain,
petitioner was prescribed Motrin 00 mg Noreo an d was discharged on December 15 with light duty restrictions for the faliowing
seven days.

The Arbitrater notes claimant jost no time from work for the duration of all medical care, as he was accommmodated in a light duty
position.

petitioner followed up with David Schafer, M.D. on December 18, 2005 and was condlitionatly diagnosed with a feft shoulder partial
thickness rotator euff tear with impingement. Dr. Schafer did nol have any diagnostic testing to conflrm that diagnosis at the time but
ordered diagnostic testing.

petitioner underwent a right shoulder MRI on December 23, 2005, the results of which revealed bursitis with an otherwise intact
shoulder/rotator cuff, On that same Jdate Petitioner underwent a teft shoulder MRI, the results of which revesled minimal
supraspinatus tendinopathy.

On Januaty 3, 2006 Petitioner followed up with Dr. Schafer who found full range of motion of the neck and theracolumbar sping, o
evidence of paraspinal muscle spasm, and {ull range of motion of the bllateral upper extremities. Dr. Schafer noted mild retator cuff
weakness secondary Lo pain, worse on the right than the [¥7] left. He diagnosed petiticner with bilateral shoulder impingement and
rotator cuff tendonitis, :
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On February 16, 2006 Petitioner followed up with Dr, Schafer. Dr. Schafer again diagnosed Petitioner with bilateral rotator cuff
Lendonitis with what he felt was & small tear of the left rotator cuff, The Arbitrator notes there was no confirmation of Dr. Schafer's
diagnosis In the left shoulder MRI of December 29, 2005. Dr. Sehafer again recorded an assessment of "bifateral rotator cuff
tendonitls and impingement.”

On March 20, 2006 Dr. Schafer diagnosed Petlticher with bilateral shoulder rotator cuff tendcm'ltls. He prescribed and
performed one cortisone injection into each shoulder.

o Aprit 3, 2006 D, Schafer again diagnosed Petitloner with bilateral shouldar tendonitis and prascribed a Medrol Dosepak.
On Aprit 24, 2006, Dr, Schafer referred Petitioner for a Functional Capacity Evatuation (FCE).

petitioner underwent the FCE on May 22, 2006, The results of this evaluation revealed a consistent effort by Petitioner. The results of
the examination also document Petitioner was able to perform work in the "heavy” category. It was noted Petitioner's work activities
for Respondent fell into [*81 the less physically demanding "medium® category. Petitioner was thereby cleared to return to full duty
for Respondent,

On June 8, 2006 Petitioner treated with Matthew Ross, M.D ., for new complaints of cervical radiculopathy. Dr. Ross recommended
Petiticner obtain a cervical spine MRE and released hirn to continue working at full duty.

Three months tater, Petitioner followed up with Dr. Ross on September 3, 20086 and was dlagnosed with "resolution of his cervical
radicuiopathy,” The Arbitrator notes claimant sppears to have been at maximum medical improvement from any problems with his
cervical spine.

Petitioner followed up with Dr. Schafer on March 9, 2007 for his left shoulder. Dr. Schafer diagnosed Petitloner with a left shoulder
partial~thickness rotater cuff tear, During examination Dr, Schafer noted Petitioner suffered from no creplius in the range of motion,
no pain to palpitation of the AC jolnt, no pain to paipitation of the proximal biceps, and no sweiling in the shoutder, Dr. Schafer noted
Petitioner was able to continue working full time full duty for Respondent pursuant Lo his FCE.

On June 7, 2007, petitioner followed up with Dr, Schafer and wag diagnosed with right rotater [*8] cuff tendonitis. Dr. Schafer once
again released Petidoner to return to his regular duties. It would appear clatmant was at MMI for any shoulder complaints after June
7, 2007, ‘

on July §, 2007 petitionier saw Prasant Atluri, M.D. for an Independent medical Evatuation (IME) at the request of Respondent, Or,
Abiuri interpreted Petitioner's left shoulder MRI to reveal mild degenerative joint disease of the AC joint with minimal supraspinatus
tendinopatiy. Dr. Atluri interpreted the right shoulder MRI to reveal burgitic with an otherwise Intact shoulder and rotator cuff. Dr,
Atlurl interpreted Petitionar's cervical MRI from August 26, 2006 to reveal degenerative changes with slight stenosts. Dr. Athurl
dizgnosed Petitioner with acromioclavicuiar joint arthritls, bilateral shoulders, possible bilateral shoulder impingement syndrome, and
possitle right cervical radiculopathy which had resolved. Dr. Atluri Found "no specific restrictions are Indicated.”

Petitioner treated with no additional physicians with regard to his bilaterat shoulder or neck pain. He has not seen Dr. Schafer since
June 7, 2007 and has not seen Dr. Ross since September 5, 2008,

Petitioner is taking no prescription medications. [¥10] FPetitioner has baan working full tme, full duty since his full duty release on
May 22, 2006, and is earning more now than he was prior to his Injury.

The Arbitrator notes claimant voiced complainks consistent with this soft-tissue bitsteral shoutder strain.
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

E, IN SUPPORT OF ITEM (F), WHETHER PETITIONER'S CONDITION OF ILL-BEING IS CAUSALLY RELATED TO THE
INIURY, THE ARBITRATOR CONCLUDES THE FOLLOWING!

On Monday, December 12, 2605 Petitioner slipped and fell backwards onto his outstretched hands descending wet stalrs,
Uncontradicted testimony established this slip and fall accurted while Petitioner was engaged in his dutles and responsibilities 25 an
employee of Respondent, This is clearly a compensable accidental injury to hig shoulders that arese out of and occurred in the course
of employment.

The Arbitrator further notes the injury was not significantly acute or traumatic, as no first aid, emergency or other madical care was
provided to Petltioner on the date of loss, The incident occurred on Monday, December 12, 2005 and Petitioner worked without
medical attention unti! Thursday, December 15, 2005,

The Arbitrator also notes claimant did not complain [¥11] of nor was he treated for nack pain until June 2006, about six months
after this undisputed event.

While Petitioner dld work light work for a short time, Petitioner fost no time from work and worked without restriction at heavy work
from December 22, 20085 to the date of the hearing.

The Arbitrator notes Petitioner's two prior workers' compensation claims, 88WC002121 and 91WCHI5071. The Arbitrator further notes
in the earlier filed ciaim Petitioner alleged and injury to his neck and back on September 9, 1987,

Having considered all evidence of record, the Arbltrator finds by 2 preponderance of evidence that Pelitioner's injury of December 12,
2005 constitutes & causative factor in his current condition of ili-belng.
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L. WITH REGARD TO ITEM (L), WHAT IS THE NATURE AND EXTENT OF PETITIONER'S INJURIES, AND STIPULATED TTD,
THE ARBITRATOR CONCLUDES THE FOLLOWING .

Having considered the entire record inciuding testimony of claimant and all madical exhibits, the Arbitrator finds Respendent shall pay
Petitioner the sum of $ 509.14 per week for a further period of 12.65 weeks as provided in Saction 8{e) of the Act because the
injuries sustained caused & loss of use of Patitioner's right arm [*127 o the extent of 5% thereof,

The Arbitrator further finds Respondent shall pay Petitioner the sum of $ 50%.14 per week for a period of 12.65 weeks as provided tn
Section 8(e) of the Act because the Injuries sustained caused a loss of use of Petitioner's 1aft arm to the extent of 5% thereof,

Finally, the Arbltrator finds Respondent shall pay Petitloner the sum of § 509,14 per week for 2 period of 10 weaks as provided in
Section 8{d)¢2) of the Act because the injuries sustalned caused a loss of use of Petitioner's parson as & whole to the extent of 2%
theraof.

Finally, Petitioner worked in the employer's Temporary Modifled Work Program from December 15, 2005 through June 11, 20086, He
was paid at 85% of unicn scale during this period, The diference in pay totals § 3,065.52 in unpaid temporaty partial disability
penefits for which Respondent is liable.

O, WITH REGARD TO ITEM (0), RESPONDENT'S LIABILITY FOR UNPALD MEDICAL. BILLS, THE ARBITRATOR CONCLUDES
THE FOLLOWING:

The Arbitrator incorporates and adopts the above-referenced findings as pertinent, Petitioner alleged § 4,868.50 in the following
reasonable, related and necessary medical bills, as follows:

. ¢ 436,50 to Dr. Schafer [¥13] for service dates 4-3-06 through 3-9-07;
. ¢ 85.00 to Dr. Ross for service date 6-8-08;

. $ 2,947.00 to HealthSouth;

. $ 1,400.00 to Parkside MRI for service date §-26-06.

Mo evidentiary exhibits were admitted upon the concluston of tral in support of the reasonableness, relatedness or necessity of these
bilts. I addition, no evidence was presented to show these bills in fact remain unpald.

Having carefully reviewed the bills and compared them to evidence of record, the Arbitrator finds Respondent shall pay all of such bills
as required by the respective [Hinois medical fee schedule and the Act. Respondent Is entitied to full credil for alt amounts already
paid loward the above referenced bills.
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2009 i Wri. Comp. LEXIS 196, *; 9 IWCC 0133
HECTOR BAUTISTA, JR., PETITIONER, v. TARLE 52, RESPONDENT.
NO: 07 W 40347
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF COOK
2009 3. Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 186; 9 IWCC 0133

February 6, 2008
CORE TEAMS: arbltrator, temporary, partial disabllity, thumb, preponderance, garning, proven, lemporary tota} disabllity, dominant
right, pay period, temporarity, totally disabled, full perfermance, parties agree, medical care, light duty, slicing, accrue, minus, dish,
E:ﬁgnt condition, trigger finger, permanent loss, gross amount, net earmings, restaurant, diminished, two-thirds, dimensions, 1ii-
JUDGES: David L. Gore; James F, DeMunno; Mario Basurto
OPINTON: [*1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review having been filed by the Respondent herein and netice given to all parties, the Commission, after
considering the issue(s) of permanent partial disability and being advised of the facts and law, affirms and adopts the Decislon of the

Arbitrator, which I attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Iris LFHEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Declsion of the Arbitrator filed June 6, 2008 is hereby affirmed and
adopted.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondant pay to Petitloner interest under §19(n) of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent shalt have credit for all amounts paid, if any, to or on behalf of
the Petitionar on account of said accidentat injury.

Bond for removal of this cause to the Clrcuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 6,000.00, The probabile cost of the
record to be Filed as return to Summons is the sum of § 35,00, payable to the Iiincis Workers' Compensation Commission In the form
of cagh, check or monay order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: FEB 6 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS' {%¥2} COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

REGARD ING THE NATURE AND EXTENT OF THE INJURY

Chicago, arbitrator Jutila

An Appllcation for Adiustment of Clalm was filed in this matier, and a Nolice of Hearing was mailed to each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Gerald Jutila, arbitrator of the Commlission, in the city of Chicage, on March 7, 2008,

The only disputed issues are the nature and extent of the injury and temporary partial disability. By stipuiation, the parties agree
on the following ltems:

. On August 27, 2007, the respondent Table 52 was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.
. On this date, the relationship of employee and employer did exist between the petitioner angd respondent.

. On this date, the petitioner sustained accldentat injuries that arose out of and in the course of employment.

. Timely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.

. In the vear precading the injury, the petitioner earned $ 22,464.00, and the average weekly wage was $ 432.00.
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. At the time of injury, the petitionar was 30 years of age, single with no children under 18,

. Respondent [*3] s Hable for any of petitioner's unpaid bilis for medical services at the Lineoln Park Hospital and Hammand Clinic
up to the sum of & 1,916, 20 as per the medical fee schedule.

. To date, nothing has been pald for temporary partial, temporary totat disabliity, or maintenance benefits.

Alter reviewing all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings regarding the nature and extent of the injury, and
altaches the findings to this document.

ORDER
. The respondent shall pay the petltioner temporary partial disabllity benefits in the amount of $ 540.13.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner the sum of $ 259.20 /week for a further period of 13.3 weeks, as provided in Section 8{e}1
of the Act, because the injuries sustained caused the permanent loss of use of petiticner's dominant right thumb to the
extent of 17.5% .

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that has accrued from August 28, 2007 through March 7, 2008 and shall
pay the remainder of the award, if any, in weekly payments.

. The respondent shall pay $ £,916.20 for medical services, as provided in Section B{a) of the Act. Respondent is hereby {*4]
granted a credit for all sums it has previously paid for medical services.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS: Uniess a Petition for Review is filed within 30 days after receipt of this declsion, and a review is
perfected in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shail be enterad as the declsion of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE: If this award is reviewed by the Commission, interest of 1,95% shall accrue from the date fisted
below to the day before the date of payment; however, if sn employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this
award, interest shall not accrue.

Gerald D, Jutila, arbitrator
June 4, 2008

Date

JUN 6 2008

Finding of facts

Petitioner was emploved by the respondent restaurant as a dish washer and food preparer. On occasion he was also assigned to clean
and run errands, On August 29, 2007 petitioner was slicing potatoes. The guard on the sticing device malfunictioned with the resuit
that petiticner ended up slicing the thumb of his dominant right hand. The partias agree that this was an accident that arose out of
and in the course of petitionar's employment by the respondent, (AX1).

Petitioner received medical care [*5] at the Lincoln Park Hospltal on the evening of the acgident where the avulsion laceration wound
was treated by removing the fiap, (PX2). Petitioner testified he was instructed not Lo uge the right hand,

On September 1, 2007 petitioner received follow-up care at the Hammend Clinie near his home. Those records were recelved in
evidenca as PX3. He was released to return to work light duty with instructions to keep the wound clean and dry aveld dish washing
and polishes, On September 4 and 11, 2007 the Clinic advised him to continue to kegp the hand dry and avoid forceful or repetitive
gripping. On September 18, 2007 he was released to work without restrictions but to wear a thumb guard as needed. {NB: The
records also reflect petitioner was diagnosed with a right thumb trigger finger. Petiticner is not claiming that condition was caused by
the accident of August 28, 2007.)

The parties agree that petitioner's average gross weelkly wage prior to the injury was § 432.00 or $ B64.00 gross per every two week
pay period, (AX1). He worked six days per week, sight hours per day, st an hourly wage of § 9.00. Petitioner testified that as a result
of the restrictions placed on him by the physicians [*6] at the Hammond Clinic there was less work avaliable for him at the
restaurant resulting in his working fewer hours than normal. Therefore, he argues he is eatitled to temporary partial disabitity
benefits,

Pettioner earned a nat § 394.22 for the pay period from August 26, 20607 to {sic) September 8, 2007, (PX1). Petitioner earned a net
$ 307.74 for the pay period from September 9, 2007 to (sic) September 22, 2007, (PX1). {(NB: The srbitrator notes that the common
defipitlon of the ward "to™ when used to describe time dimensions is! "to the beginning of. . .” Cohversely, the common definition of
the word "through” when used to describe time dimensions is: "to the end of . . . ". However, it is obvious that the authors of the
petitioner's earnings statements included the last day mentioned in the pay perted. Although they used the word "to", they meant
“through.™

Petitioner testified that he left the employ of the respondent in November 2007, He now works at a job where he installs outdoor
satellite dishes. He presently experiences difficulty In holding hand tools, pens for writing, and his guitar plc. The quality of his writing
and his mugic has been diminished, The tip of his dominant {477 thumb is tender and sensation is diminished.

Conclusions

Is the petitioner's present condition of ill-being causally related to the injury?

The arbitrator concludes that the petitioner hag proven by a preponderance of the evidence that his present condition of ll-being
refative to his left thumb, with the exception of his left thumb: trigger finger, is causally related to the injury on August 29, 2007, This
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conclusion is based upon the eredible testimony of the petitioner, & review of the corroborating evidence in his medical records, and
the absence of avidence of prior or subsequent injuries Lo petitioner's deminant right thuamb.

What amount of comp ensation Is due, if any, for temporary total or temporary partial disability?

petigonar does not make any claim for ternporary total disability benefits Inasmuch as the period of temporary total disabllity was fof
a period of three days and payment of compen sation does not accrue until the fourth day of temporary total disability.

However, petitioner does ¢laim he is entitled to temporary partial disabllity benefits. Section 8(a) of the Act as amended provides
tiat when an employee is working light duty and earns tess [#8] than he would be sarning if employad in the full capacity of the
job, then the employee shall be entitled to temporary partial disability benefits equal to two-thirds of the difference between the
average armount he would be 2ble to earnin the full perfermance of his duties and the net amount he is earning in the modified job.
The arbitrator concludas that petitioner has proven by & breponderance of the evidence that on account of his light duty status and
the restrictions imposed on his physical activities by his physicians he earned less than he would have earned if he was able to
perform all the duties of his job. :

petitioner's attorney argues that the calculation of temporary partial disabiflty benefits should be made by sublracting the
petitioner's net pay on his earnings statements from the gross amount he would have earnad In the full performance of his duties,
i.e., $ 864,00, multiplied by two-thirds. The respondent simply denles petitloner is entitled to temporary partial disability benefits
and does not make any argument on the method of calcuating the benefit,

Thic is a case of first impression for the arbitrator, However, as to the first earnings peried, i.e,, August [*9} 26, 2007 through
September 8, 2007, the arbltrator concludes that the three days petitioner was temporarily totally disabled, August 30, 31, and
September 1, 2007, should be deduclted from the gross amount petltioner would have earned in the fuli performance of his duties
during this pertod on account of the exclusion contalned in Section 8(b) of the Act, Addlitionally, it cannot be argued that petitioner
was tempararlly partially disabled during those three days when he was clearly temporarily totally disabled during those three days.

Therafore, the arbitrator conctudes that the temporary partial digabiiity beneflt should he calculated as follows:

For the period of August 26, 2007 through September 8, 2007 $ 864.00 {petitioner's average gross pay for a two waek period prior to
the tnjury), minus § 218.00 {petitioner's gross pay Far the three days he was temporarily totally disabled), equals $ 648.00, minus §
394.22 {petitioner's sctual net earnings), equals $ 253,78, imes two thirds, equals $ 169,19,

For the period of September 9, 2007 through Septamber 22, 2007 $ $64.00 {petitioner's average gross pay for a two week peried
prior to the injury), minus $ 307.74 (petitioner's (%101 actual net earnings), equals § 556.26, tmes two thirds, equais § 370.84.

The arbitrator concludes that petitloner has proven by a preponderence of the evidance that ha is entitled to temporary partial
disablilty benefits in the total amount of $ 54003,

Were the medical services that were provided to petiﬁioner reasonable and necessary?

The petitioner ciaims that the respondent is llable for Mis medical biills for services provided to him at the Lincoln park Hospital in the
amount of § 1,512.20 and the Hammond CHnic in the amount of 4 404.00, {AXL, PX 2 & 3). Respondent admits it is Hable for same
and belleves it has paid the bills, but was unable to provide proof of payment at the trial of this cause, Pelitioner claims he is being
dunned for payment by the providers of medi cal care. The arbitrator conciudes that petitioner has praven by a preponderance of the
evidence that the bills represent charges for necessary medical care reasonably required te cure or relief him from the effects of his
iniury. Therefore, the bills are the responsi bility of respondent. However, it shal have a credit for same for all sums it previously patd
for medical services. .

What is the {#11] hature and extent of the injury?

Thne arbitrator concludes that petitioner has proven by a preponderance of the evidence that he has sustained a permanent loss of use
of hig dominant right thumb to the extent of 17.5%. This conciusion 1s based upon a review of the meadical records In evidence, the
credible testimony of the petitioner and the arbitrator's ohservation of the petitloner’s thumb.
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LYNN BOGGESS, PETITIONER, v. MCLANE MIDWEST, RESPONDENT.
NG 42 WC 26488
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLIROIS, COUN;TY OF VERMILLION
2009 Il Wik, Comp. LEXIS 273
March 6, 2009

CORE TERMS: pain, symptom, spine, exam, arbltrator, neck, degenerative, cervical, lumber, deposition, disease, smoking,
temporaty total disability, testing, magnification, subjective, strain, skill, truck, nerve, restrictions fmposed, non-physiologic,
overstatement, cross-exam, contusion, decreased, tingling, permanent disability, questionnaire, merchandise

JUDGES: David L. Gore; James F. DeMunno; Mario Basurto
OPINTON: [¥*1]
DECISION AND OPINION CM REVIEW

Timely Petition for Review having been flied by the Petitiener herein and notice given to ali parties, the Commission, after considering
the issues of causal connection, temporary total disabliity, partial permanent disabliity and medicat expenses, and being advised of
the facts and law, modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopls the Declsion of the
Arbiteator, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof,

The Arbitrator terminated temnporary total digabillty benefits as of 3/19/02, the date that Respondent’s first Section 12 Medical
Examiner, Dr. Stil, found Petitioner at maximum medical improvement and refeased bim to full duty, The Commission notes that he
continued to be treated and stayed off work up to a second S ection 12 medical examination by Dr. Player on 12/6/06, who also found
him to be at MMI and released him to full duty, The Commission atso notes that while Dr, Still is an "occupational internal medicine”
specialist, Or. Player is & board-certifiad orthopedic surgeon. The Commission finds Dr. Player's opinion persuasive and extends
temporary total disabiiity benefits to the date of his [*2] Section 12 medical exarination.

1T 15 THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondant pay to Petitioner the sum of § 557.60 per waek for a period of 43
1/7 weeks, that being the period of temporary total incapacity for work under §8(b) of the Act.

IT IS FURTHER OROERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner the sum of § 504,84 per week for a period of 37.5
weeks, as provided in §8(2)d of the Act, for the reason that the injuries sustained caused the loss of 7.5% use of the person as a
whole,

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitloner interest under § 19(n} of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credit for all amounts pald, if any, to or on behalf of
Petitioner on account of said accidental injury.

Bond for the remaval of this cause to the Clroult Court by Respondent Is hereby fixed at the sum of § 53,000.00. The probahle cost of
the record to be filed as return Lo Summons is the sum of § 35.00, payable to the 1linols Workers' Com pensation Commission in the
form of cash, check or monay grder therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secratary of the Commission.

ATTACHMENT:
ILLINOIS [#2] WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adfustment of Claim was filed In this matter, and a Notice of Hea ring was mailed to each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Arbitrator White arbitrator of the Commission, (n the city of Danville, on 07/16/2007. After reviewing all of
the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues circled balow, and attaches those findings to this
document,

DISPUTED ISSUES .

F. Is the petitioner's present condition of jli-being causally refated to the infury?

1, Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary?
K What amount of compensaltion is due for temporary total disability?

L What is the nature and extent of the injury?
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FINDINGS

. On 09/20/2001, the respondent Mclane Midwest was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act. l

, On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between the pelitioner and respondent.

. On this date, the petitionar did sustain injuries that arose out of and in the course of employment..

. Tienely notice of this accident was glven to the respondent.

{*4] Inthe yvear preceding the injury, the petitioner earned $ 43,492.80; the average weakly wage was § §36.40.
. AL the time of injury, the petitioner was 54 years of age, married, with ¢ children under 18,

. Necessary madical services have In part been provided by the respendent.

.To date ¢ 3 000.00 has been paid by the respondent for TTD.

ORBER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary total disabillty benefits of $ 557.60/week for § 3/7ths weeks, from 2/08/2002
through 3/19/2002, which is the period of temporary total disability for which compensation is payable,

. The respondent shali pay the petitioner the sum of § 501.84/week for a further period of 37.5 weeks, as provided in Section 8(dX2)
of the Act, because the injuries sustained caused permanent disability to the extent of 7.5% of 2 man as a whole.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that has accrued from 9/20/2003 through 7/16/2007 and shali pay the
remalnder of the award, if any, in weekly payments.

. The respandent shall pay the further sum of § 0.00 for necessary medical services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act.

RULES REGARDING ARPEALS Unless a party files 2 Petition [*B] for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and
perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered the decision of the Commisston.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, Interest of 4.13 shall accrue from the date listed beiow to
the day before the date of payment, however, If an employee's appeal results in gither no change or a decrease In this award, interest
shall not accrue,

Signature of arbitrator

September 14, 2007

Date

SER 18, 2007

The Arbitrator finds the followings facts:

petitioner was emploved by Respondent as 2 truck diiver. His job duties required him Lo deliver merchandise Lo various Sam's stores,
but ha was not required to foad or unlead his truck,

On 9/20/2001, Petitioner opened the back-door of his truck, and several boxes of merchandise Tell out striiding petitioner. Petitioner
rastified he was knocked backwa rds onto his rear and hands, He further testified he experienced pain in his neck, back, legs and
2rmMs.

petitioner completed his route the following day at about 3:00 p.m. When he returned to Danville, he was immed|ately sent to the
Emnergency Room and to the Occupational Medicine [#6] Divislon of Proven United Samaritans Medical Center.

The record from Dr. Chen dated 8/21/2001 includes a history provided by Petitioner of having aching pain in his upper nack area and
the jower back, He also complained of tingting in the iittle finger of the right hand. X-rays of the cervical spine and lumbar spine
reveated only mild degenerative changes. Or. Chen diagnosed Petitioner with muitiple contusions, with a jumbar and cervical strain,

Petitionar returned to work in a full-duty capacity untll 10/24/2001. Petitioner testifiad his symptoms were worsaning. On
1072472001, Dr. Chen set forth restrictions on Petitionet's activities.

Petitioner testified Respondent accommodated the restrictions bul at 2 lesser rate of pay. The Arbitrator notes temporary partial
disability benefits were not available under the Workers' Compensation Act at that time,

Pursuant to Respondent's policles, Hght-duty work was provided for a limited time period, and effective 2/08/2002, Respondent no
longer accommodated Petitioner's restrictions, Respondent began paylng TTD baneflts effective 2/08/2002.

petitioner was aise examined by Dr, Ronald Michael. The history provided to Dr. Michael on 11/15/2001 [*7] suggests Petitloner
may have lost consciousness s a result of the accident, but this history is inconsistent with the history provided to Dr. Chen the day
after the accident and Is ingonsistent with Petitionar’s testimony at trial, Dr. Michael ordered an MRI of the lumbar spine, An MRI of
the cervical spine had been previously performed 11/01/72001. It revealed mild central disc protrusions at C3-4-and C4-5 with no
encroachment of the neurcforamina. The MRI of the Jumbar spine was performed 12/18/2001, It reveated mild degeneratlve changes
at L1-2 and L2-3.

On 1/14/2002, Dr. Michael interpreted the MRI studies to show disc osteophyte cornplexes at C5-6 and C6-7 with & disc herniation at
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C4-5. He thought the MRI of the iumbar spine was unremarkable, He recornmended cervical epidural steroid injections.

At the request of Respondent, Petitioner was examined by Dr, Noah St 3/19/2002. Dr. Still testified by way of evidence deposition
13/20/2002, He described Petitioner's symptoms and findings as being extremely vague and Inconsistent with respect to the
description a these symptoms and the locations of the symptoms. (Rx. 1 page 7), br. $till also noted Petitioner complained of neck
pain [#8] during shouldar range of motion testing, but the shouider was isolated so there was no stress being placed on the neck or
spine. Simitarly, Petitioner complained of low back pafn when knee tests were being performed which did not strain the lower back,
Dr, StHl slgo noted Petitioner's responses with hip flexion testing Were Inconsistent with an expected responsa. (Rx. 1 page 9)

Or. St also noted inconsistencies between Petitioner's move maents and his claimad symptoms as well as non physiologic upper and
lower back pain and extremity pain, (Rx. 1 pages $-12, 18}

Dr, Gtill dlagnosed Petitioner with a possible contusion or some type of straln. He noted that since Palitioner is @ smoker, it may take
{onger for the conditions to resolve, but it should not exceed 90 days. (Rx. 1 pages 19-20) Dr. Stlll also testified Petitioner's
symptoms were not consistent with any pathology noted on the diagnostic studies. (Rx. 1 page 22) Dr. Stili concluded Petitioner did
not need any additional medical treatment as of the time of his exam, and ne restrictions needed to be imposed on Petitioner's
activities, {(Rx. 1 page 28)

Patitioner next saw Dr. Harms 4/16/2002. Foliowlng an exam, Or. Harms dlagnosed £*9] Petitioner with degenerative disc diseass
with inflammation or irritation going out into the nerves rather than there being pressure on the nerves. He also noted a history of 2
neck steain, Dr. Harms did not recommend surgery, Dr. Harms also indicated the degenerative disc disease In Petitioner's neck was
aggravated by the work accident. He noted degenerative disc disease in the lumbar spine, but he was not examining Pelitioner for his
lower back.

AL the request of Dr. Harms, Petitioner began treating with Dr. Victoria Johnson. On 6/20/2002, Dr. Johnsen made several
recommendations including work restrictions, medications and an aquatics program. She also rendered an opipion that there was a
causal relationship between Petitioner's symptoms and the work accident.

Petitioner treated with Dr. Johnson for the next several years, Petitioner also attended additienal IME's at the request of Respondent
with Dr. Player, Dr. Johnson and Or, Player testified by way of evidence deposition on two occasions each,

Dr. Johnson's first depasition was conducted 11/08/2002, She indicated the history provided by Petitioner was that a pallet with 400
w 500 pounds of merchandise fell out of 2 truck fanding [*10] on top of him causing back and neck discomfort. (Px, 6 page 7) On
axam, Dr. Johnson noted reduced range of motion in the cervical spine and lumbar spine. (Px. 6 page 8)

or. Johnson rendered an opinioh the work accident aggravated Petitioner's pre-existing degenerative disc disease causing it to
become symptomatic. However, she also testified it was hard to determine the mechanism of the aggravation, She stated it was
unknown if there was a physiological or mechanical change, or whether the condition was biochemical so inflammatory substances
were created as Petitioner's bedy was reacting to trauma. (Px. 6 pages 11-12}

e, Johnson rendered an opinion that Petitioner was at maximum medical improvement as of 8/12/2002 {Fx. & page 15). She
wmposed restrictions inciuding 2 10 -pound limit on Hfting, pulling and pushing. She also thought Petitioner should avoid bending,
twisting at the neck, back and waist, and he showld alternate sitfing and standing every 15 minutes. Dr. Johnson did not beliave
petitioner was capable of returning to his truck driver duties. (Px. & page 16)

on crogs-exam, Dr, Jehnson acknowledged Petitioner's smoking may be inhibiting his recovery and was certainly slowing [*11} or
impacting his recovery, {Px. 6 pages 35-36)

with respect to the restriction she imposed on Petitioner's activities, Dr. Johnson testified the resfrictions were an educated guess
based upon Petitioner's subjective complaints and her assessment of Petitioner. {Px. 6 page 37}

Dr. Johnson did riot believe it was safe for Petitioner {o be driving a truck because of his decreased cervical range of motion, but she
did not reveoke his D.O.T. certificate to drive trucks, and she did not contact the Secretary of State to have any restrictions Imposed
upon his driver's Heense. S$he also inditated Pelitioner was capablie of driving a regular passenger vehicie. (Px. 6 pages 4647)

Dr. Player gave his first evidence deposition 5/056/2001 His testimony was based upon his exam of Petitioner on 12/06/2002.

petitioner told Dr. Player his Initial pain was In his neck and it radiated into his shoulder with tingling in all of the digits of gach hand.
He also noted his low back pain was above his beit and radiated down the backs of gach leg to the knees. (Rx. 2 page 8) Petitioner
further complained of decreasad sensation (r his right hand which Dr. Player described as glove dysesthesla. Dr. Player

described [#12} the hand symptoms as being a non-physioiegic finding. (Rx. 2 page 11}

Dr. Player aiso commented that Petitioner exhibited inappropriate behavior Including laughing and giggling as well as pain behaviors
such as grunting and groaning. (Rx, 2 page 12} He further commentad Petitioner's wife stated their family ignores Petitioner’s grunts
and groans. (RX. 12 pages 12-13) Dr. Player explained the grunting and groaning exbibited by Petitioner is assoclated with symptom
magnification and an cverstatement of pain. He further explained Pelitioner marked a pain diagram showing symptoms all over his
body in & symmetrical fashion Indicative of a total body paln syndrome which is non-physiologic and indicates symptom magnification
and an overstatement of pain. (. 2 pages 13-14) Dr, Piayer defined a non-physictogic finding as being something that cannot be
explained anatormicaily or physiolegically. {Rx. 2 page 15)

Dr. Player also administered written pain guestionnaires which agsin revealed symplom magnification and an overstatement of pain

on the part of Petitioner. (Rx. 2 pages 15-17) Whan conducting an exam for the lower back, Dr, Player performed Waddel['s tests in

an effort to determine [*13] whether Petitioner was magnifying his symptoms. Each of the Waddell's findings were positive. (Rx. 2
pages 18-19)

After conducting his exam and reviewing the diagnostic studies, Dr. Player concluded there was no objeclive evidence to explain
Petitioner's subjective complaints. He further testified Petitioner did not need any, additional treatment for his neck or lower back as a
resuit of the 9/20/2001 accident, {Rx. 2 pages 22-23) Dr, Player further commented upon Petitioner's smoking, He testified smoking
causes changes in microcircuiation of il of the organs Including discs. He noted a high correlation between smoking and degenerative
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disc disease as well as a correlation betwesn smoking and an increasad likelihood of aches and pains. {Rx. 2 pages 23-24).
Dr. Player ultimately concluded Petitioner was capable of performing his regular job duties. (Rx, 2 pages 25-26)

On cross-exam, Dr. Player acknowledged Petitioner could have sustained a contuslon as & result of the accldent, and he couid have
strained a muscle, He also Indicated if Petitioner sustained a strained muscie, it shouid have resolved within 3 weeks. He also noted a
contusion or strain would not explain the numbness in [*14] Petitioner's fingers. (Rx. 2 pages 44-45]

Dr. Plaver also indicated Petitioner was taking antihypertensive medications, and they were known to cause upper extremity
paresthesias. (R, 2 pages 45-46}

Or. Player testified for the second time on 4/28/2005, He examined Petitioner a second time on 11/12/2004. (Rx. 3 page 7}
pelitioner's complaints al tie time of the second exam were reportedly worse than before. His primary comptalng was pain in the
neck, arms, back, buttocks and feet. However, Petitioner laughed when describing his pain which Dr. Player interpreted to be
inappropriate, {Rx. 3 pages 8-9)

Dr. Player again discussed Petitioner's smoking which was between 2 and 3 packs of cigarette per day for the previous 40 years. Dr.
Player explained smoking correlated with a higher incidence of symptom atic degenerative disc disease in both the cervical spine and
lumbar sping, and the correlation has been decumented in the medical litersture, (Rx, 3 page 10) Petitioner was aiso taking high
bicod presstre medications which are known to cause peripheral or extremity numbness and tingling. Those types of complaints are
indistinguishable from numbness and tingling from nerve conditions or T¥15] peripheral neuropathies.’ Dr. Player explained those
symptoms would affect afl dlgits of the hands or feet as complalned of by Petitioner. (Rx. 3 pages 10-11;

During his exam of petitioner, Br. Player noted a negative fibromyalgia screen, Petitioner's cervical range of motion was decreased
from normal but was the same as durlng Dr. Player's first exam of Petitioner, No atrophy was noted, and Pelitioner had normal
strength for each motor group tested. (Rx. 3 pages 13-17)

During the exam, Petitionar complained of low back pain when Dr, Player was testing the muiscles Involving the anide. Dr. Player
tastified the motor groups being tested did not involve the recruitment or function of the back. (RX. 3 pages 18-20)

The decreased sensalion reported averywhere was a non-physiological response. Dr., Player expiained if there was nerve damage
caused by disc disease or peripheral neuropathy, you would expect dullness In a specific nerve pattern or specific dermatomal
pattern. (Rx. 3 pages 2 0-21) On a wiitten pain diagram; Petitioner marked the entire back of his body In a symmelrical manner, but
he only marked the back side. This was foted to be an abnormat and non-physiolegic complaint. Dr. [*16] Player explained pain
does, not affect onty the front half or back half Of a person. (Rx. 3 pages 21-22).

As with his first exam, Dr. Player administered written pain disability guestionnaires, The different inventories taken togather
mantfested a propensity for symptom magnification and an overstatement of pain. Also simifar to the first exam, all Waddell's testing
was positive which Dr. Player again interpreted to show a propensily to magnify symptoms. Dr Player summarized by noting the pain
Inventories indicated Petitioner had a propensity to magnify his symptoms, and the symptom magnification was confirmed with
physical testing. (Rx. 3 pages 23-26)

Br. Player concluded Pelitioner's subjective complaints in the lumbar spine and cervical spine were not substantiated with objective

findings. Me dig not believe any additional treatment was necessary and he did not believe Petitioner nesded any restrictions on his
activities. His opinlons were based upon a lack of positive objective neurclegic findings in the medical records as wel) as based upon
his two exams of Petitioner and his review of Pelitioner's medical records. Dr. Player does not beligve Petitioner has any disability of
[*17] any kind. (Rx. 3 pages 26-31) . .

Dr. Johinson’s second deposi tion was corducted 5/31/2005, Her diagnosis of Petitioner remained the same which wag degenerative
disc disease. (Px. 7 pages 4-5) :

Dr. Johnson's opinioh concerning Petitioner's level of disabllity changed In that she believed Petitioner to be totally disabled, (Px. 7
page 6) [r. Johnson expiained she did not bellave there was & market for Petitioher's services because of an inability to do any sort of
gainful activity. (Px. 7 pages 8-9)

On cross-exam, Or, Jehnson acknowledged she does not perform Wadell's testing during her exams of patients; and she doas not
administer any type of pain questionnaire, (Px. 7 pages 12-14)

Or. Johhson did acknowiedge smokers have more problems with thelr necks and backs. However, she changed her testimony with
respect to her Arst deposition in that she stated she coutd not render an opinion as to whether Petitioner’s smoking was impacting his
recovery. (Px. 7 page 13}

With respect to causation, Dr. Johnson testifled thare was no way of knowing whether the work-refated aggravation was stili the
cause of Petitioner's probiem, (Px, 7 page 19) She further testified she was not able to say whether [*18] the degenerative
changes now were any different on the day of the accident, (Px. 7 page 24)

Ag with her first deposition, Dr. Johnson testified the rastrictions she imposed were an educated guess as to what Petitioner's
capabilities were, (Px. 7 page 21)

Foliowing the completion of the depositions, Petitioner underwent addltional MRI studles of the lumbar spine and cervical spine. Each
MRI was performed 8/04/05.

The MR of the lumbar spine was read to be normal, The MRI of the cervical spine showed a small disc protrusion at Ca-5 which the
radiologist interpreted to be within normat limits, ’

During her second deposi tion, Dr. Johnson testified her opinion cencerning Petitioner's capabilities could change depending upon

peliticner's demonstrated activities. Dr. Johnson examined Petitioner 3/13/2006. Petitioner asked for a moterized whaelchair due to
complainis of difficulty walking. However, Dr. Johmson observed Petitioner ambulating down the hall with minimal difficulty. (PR, 5)
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At trial, Petitioner testified he has continued treating with his family physiclan, Dr, Karinattu. The records of Dr. Karinattu were
offerad In evidence by Respondent. Those records fail to docuraent any ongeing [¥18] treatment for the neck or lower back. {RX, &)

respondent alse offered a surveillance video demonstrating Petitioner’s activities 6/04/2008. (Rx. 8) The vidao depicts petitioner
moving items at what appears to be a sale of soime kind. Petltioner testified his wife was having a rummace sale, but Petitioner also
acknowledged placing & sign indicating a store was going out of business.

While Petitioner is not observed per forming exceptionally strenuous activities, he does not appear to be limitad by pain or any other
Sympioms. .

petitioner presented the testimony of Becky Robinson in an effort to dem onstrate there is nd reasonably stable labor market for a
person with Petitioner's capabilities and limitations, Ms. Rebinscn is a rehabilitation counselor for the State of llinols, Division of
Rehabilitation Services, {Px. 15 page 3) She testified that based upon the restrictions imposed by Dr. Johnson, there was ne reguiar
employment available to Petitioner. [Px. 15 page 10)

On cross-exam, Ms. Robinson indicated Petitioner has a good work ethic and in today's labor market, just being sbie to be on time Is
a highly demanded transferrable skili. She also noted Petitioner has good peopie skifls, [*20]1 good supervisory skillg, and has ewned
nis own business. (Px. 15 pages 10-11) Ms. Robinson acknowledged Petitioner's supervisory skilis and people skills coutd lead to a
less physically demanding position.

petitioner testified he attended about 15 meetings at the Department of Rehabilitation Services, but Ms, Robinson testified he
attended 4, 501 & wark support groups. {Px. 15 page 12)

with respect to Petitioner’s physical limitations, Ms. Rabinson refied upon the restrictions imposed by Dr. Johnson. She did not receive
any medical records or reports from Dr. Stl, Dr. Player, the occupational heaith facility, Dr, Tilton, Dr. Michael, or Dr. Harms. (Px. 15
page 14}

Ms. Robinson testified, Petitioner's condition was such that the Departroent of Rehabilitation, Services believed they could assist
petitioner In finding competitive employment (Px. 15 pages 17-18) The Department of Rehabititation Services closed their file noting
Petitioner was not interested m finding employment {Px. 15 pages 18-19) Ms, Robinson further siated she never reached a conclugion

Petitionar was hot capable of returning te work In some capacity, {Px. 15 page 23}
FINDINGS AS TO DISPUTED ISSUES

In support [*213 of the Arbitrator's Decisien refating to F., Is the petitioner's present condition of ill-being causally related
to the injury?, the Arbitrator finds the following facts:

Al of the doctors essentially, agree Petitioner has degenerative disc disease in his neck and lower back, There are considerable
disputes, concerning the legitimacy of Petiticner’s subjective complaints. Since Dy, Still and Or. Player actually performed testing
durlng their exams which assessed the legitimacy of Petitioner's complaints, and Dr. Johnson failed to do 5o, the opinions rendered by
Dr. Sl and Dy, Player carry more weight on that issue.

When the opinions concerning Petitioner's symptom magnification are viewed in light of the surveillance video which showed
Petitioner to be active and not sufferling from any apparent symptoms, Petitioner's testimony at teial concerning hig symptorns lacked
credibility,

Furthermore, If Petitioner's degenerative disc disease was aggravated by the work accident, and if Petitioner's symptoms have
worsenad ever the past several years, it would be reasonable to conciude the levei of degeneration in the neck and lower back has
also progressed. However, the MRI studies [*22] from 8/04/2005 suggest the degenerative findings are benign.

The Arbitrator finds Pelitionar's current condition of Hi-being is not causally related to the 9/20/2001 work accident.

In support of the Arbitrator's Decision relating to 1., Were the medical sarvices that were provided o petitioner reasonable
and necessary?, the Arbitrator finds the foliowing facts:

Baged upon the findings set forth above, the Arbitrator conciudes vetitioner reached a state of maximom medical improvement with
respect to his work Injuries as of the tme of the exam performed by Dr. SUH 3/19/2002. Consequently, Petitioner's daim for the
payment of medicat bilis incurred after that time is denied.

In support of the Arbitrator's Decision relating to, K., What amount of compensation is due for temporary total disabHity?, the
Arbltrator finds the following facls:

Based upon the findings set forth above, Pelitioner is entitled to TTD benefits from the time Respondent stopped accomm cdating his
Hoht-duty restrictions until the time Dr. Still rendered an opinion petitioner was capable of working without restriction. The tfime
period for which Petitioner is entitied to TTD benefits is 2/08/20602 1#231 - 3/19/2002. Respondent shall recelve credit for TYD
payments previcusly made.

petitioner has alzo demanded maintenance benefits, but in light of a full-duty refease 3/19/2002, maintenance benefits ara not
appropriate.

In support, of the Arbitrator's Dedision relating to L., What is the nature and exteat o the infury?, the Arbitrator finds the
foliowing facts:

The vast majority of the evidence consists of Petitioner's subjective complaints coupled with relatively benign objective findings.
Petitioner's subjective complaints have been brought inte question by the exams performed by Di. Still and Dr. Player. Petitioner's
primary treating physiclan, Dr, Johnson, simply took Petitiener at fhis word without performing any to assess the legitimacy of
patitioner's comptaints.

petitionar is claiming he is permanently totally disabled due to the restrictions imposed by Dr. Johnson and due to his inabtlity to fnd

https://www lexis.com/research/retrieve7ec=&pushme=1 &tmpFBSel=all&totaldocs=&tag... 1/21/2010



Search - 105 Results - "temporary partial” Page 6 of 6

ernpioyment within those restrictions. The Arbitrator finds Petitioner's job search consisted of applying to aboul LE employers gver a
two-year perlod followed by & short period of time with the Depariment of Rehabititation Services, The records from the Department
of Rehabifitation [*24] Services refiect Petitioner stopped working with them because he was not interestad in finding employment,

The Arbitrator doas fihd Petitioner sustained permanent disability as a result of the work accident to the extant of 7.5% of man as &
whole,
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2009 M. Wrk, Comp. LEXIS 373, *; 9 IWCC 0361
KATHLEEN SANBORN, PETITIONER, v, BARRINGTON ORTHOPEDIC ASSQCIATES, RESPONDENT.
NO: 07 WC 27046
TLLINGIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF COOK
2000 15, wrk. Comp. LEXIS 373; @ IWCC 0361
Aprli 14, 2008
CORE TERMS: pain, arbitrator, surgery, temporary, medication, symptoms, temporary total disability, partial disabitity, workers'
compensation, lumbar, fusion, amount of cormpen satlon, recommended, deposition, leg, causat connection, permanent, present
condition, written request, lob dutles, left leq, degenerative, experienced, aggravation, posterior, co-worker, extremity, iit-being,
causation, causally
JUDGES: David L. Gore; James F. DeMunnso; Mario Bastato
OPINION: [*1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review under §19b having been filed by the Respondent hereln and notice given to all parties, the Commission,
after considering the issua(s) of accident, temporary total disability, causal connection, medical expenses and being advised of the
facts and law, affirms and adopts the Decislon of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, The Commission
further remands this case Lo the Arbitrator for further proceedings for a determination of 2 further amount of temporary total
compensation or of compansation for permanent disability, if any, pursuant to Thomas.v. Industriat Commission. 78 Ul.26.327.339
N.E.2d.1.322, 35.L.0DeC. 734 (1980).

IT 1S THEREFORE ORDERED Y THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the Arbitrator filed September 16, 2008 Is hereby affirmed and
adopled.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case is remandad to the Arbitrator for further procesdings consistent with
this Decision, but only after the fater of expiration of the time for filing a written request for Summons to the Circuit Court has explred
without the Ring [*21 of such a written request, or after the time of completion of any judicial proceedings, f such & written request
has been filed.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner Interest under § 19(n) of tha Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credit for all amounts paid, if any, to or on behalf of
Petitioner on sccount of sald accidental injury,

Bond for the rermoval of this cause to the Clrcult Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 75,000.00, The probable cost of
the record to be filed as return te Summons is the sum of § 35,00, payable to the llinois Workers' Com pensation Commission in the
form of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: APR 14 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 19{b) ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adiustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and & Notice of Hearing was maiied 1o each party. The matter was
hieard by the Honorable Milton Black, arbitrator of the Commission, in the City of Chicage, on G/23/08, 6/30/08, and 8/15/08,
After reviewing all of the [*3] evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and
attaches those findings to this decument.

DISPUTED ISSUES

C. Did an accident occur that avose out of and in the course of the petiticnar's employrnent by the respondent?

E. Is the petitioner's present condition of lli-being causally related to the injury?

1. Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary?
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K. What amount of compansation is dus for te mporary total disability?
N. Other: What amount of compen satlon Is due for temporary partial disability?
FINDINGS

. On 11717720086, the respondent Barrington Orthopedic Specialties was operating under and subject to the provisions of the
Act,

. On this date, an employee-emplover relationship did exist between the petitioner and respende nt.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain injuries that arose out of and in the course of amployment.

. Timely notice of this accldent was given {o the respondent,

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitionar earned § 30 375.80; the average waekiy wage was § 584.15.

. At the time of injury, the [*4] petitioner was 45 years of age, married with 0 chiidren under 18.

. Necessary medical services have not been provided by the raspondent.

. To date, $ 3,170.99 has been paid by the respondent for TTD andfor maintenance benefits,

ORDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary total disability benefits of § 389.43 fweek for 23 3/7th weeks, from 11/18/06
through 4726 /07 as provided in Section 8(b) of the Act, because the injuries sustained caused the disabling condition of the
petitioner, the disabling condition is temporary and has not yet reached 2 permanent condition, pursusnt to Section 19(b) of the AcL.
. The respondent shall pay § 148 560.43 for medicaf services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act.

. The respondent shail pay $ 0 in penalties, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act,

. The respondent shall pay § 0 in penaities, as provided in Section 190} of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ @ In attorneys' fees, as provided in Section 16 of the Act.

. The petitioner's clalm for temporary partial disabliity benefits is denied.

. In no instance shall this award be a bar (o subsequent hearing [*51 and determination of an additional amount of temporary total
disability, medical benefits, or compensation for a perm anent disabllity, If any,

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfecis &
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Comrnission,

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of
Arbitrator shal! accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal resulls in
zither np change or & decrease i this award, Interest shal not accrue.

Milkkon Black

Signature of arbitrator

September 15, 2008

Date

SEP 16 2008

STATEMENT OF FACTS

petitioner testified at the hearing. She began working for Respondent on August 3, 2006 as a personal injury and workers'
compensation intake coardinator. She initially worked 8 hours per day for 40 hours per week. Her duties Included fielding calls from
for patlents, verifying insurance information, and scheduling appointments. Petitioner spent 80% to 85% [*6] a%a work station
using sither the telephone or computer. She would move around when items needed to be taken to the doctors and when she wouid
go up and down the stairs, as the elevator was too slow. Petitioner worked ovartime in October and Nevember while covering for a
co-worker, who was dut sick.

Petitioner had sporadic low back pain, triggered by actlvity, betwaen 2000 and 2005, Petiticner saw a chirgpractor about once every
couple of months for an adjustment, but took no pain medications, Petitioner’s job durlng that period was as an office manager, and
she had had no problem performing her job duties. )
In May of 2005, Petitioner injured her back when landscaping white carrying a bag of soil. She sought treatment with Dr. Yapor, who
referrad her to Or. Butier. She ultimately underwent a surgical decompression of the L4-L5 nerve root, which was performed by Dr.
Butler and Dr. Yapor on December $, 2005, Her symptoms persisted, and Dr, Butier referred her to Dr. Konowitz for pain
management (PX1).

Dr. Konowitz diagnosed low back pai n and left radiculopathy, and he began Petitioner an a course of pain management, inciuding
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physical therapy. She had a caudat epidural sterold injection [%71 on April 25, 2006 and at the L4-L5 nerve root on May 30, 2006,
However, she still had fow back pain and symptoms down the left lower extremity {FX2).

On June 27, 2006, Petitioner was standing in the ocean in Florida, when she was knocked Forward by 8 wave, Petitioner testified she
twisted her lower back and fell over. Petitloner experlenced an immediate increase of low back paln with a return of the symptoms
down her feft jower extremity, Petitioner testified she then had symptoms of pain radiating down her right lower extremity. Thareafter
Dr. Konowitz recommended a repeat MRI and a re-evaluation by Dr. Butler {PX2).

when seen by Dr. Butler for follow-up on August 2, 2006, Petitioner reported she continued o experience left teg discomfort,
unchanged since before the surgery, 2nd now had & new onset of right leg pain to the posterior aspect of the knee. On examination,
pelitioner demonstrated diffuse tenderness about the lumbar spine, decreased flexion and extension, secondary to pain, 2 negative
stralght leg raise, and a grossiy intact neurovascutar exam. Or. Butler diagnostic Impression was lumbar spinal stenosis and lumbar
disc disease. He recommended a posterior spimal fusion [*8} at L4-15. The surgery was to be scheduled at Petitioner’s convenlence
(PX1).

. petitloner was starting & new job as of August 3, 2006, working for a new employer, the Regpondent. Pelitioner returned to Dr.
Konowitz. He recommended continued pain management with medications, a TENS unlt, and a caudal epidural sterotd Injection, which
was administerad on September 26, 2006 {PX2).

Between August 2, 2006 and the end of September her bacik pain was improving, but she continued to have paln when she was
overtired or had been sitling for too long. Petitioner testified her ieft leg pain was localized, while her right leg pain was completely
gone. She testified she was doing home physical therapy exercises and swimming three times 3 weaek. She testified to no difficulty
doing her job for Respondent. There ware days when she felt the pain more than others. She did not take pain medication untli the
end of the day, as she could neither work ner drive after taking the medications. Petitioner testified ghie would tie down when sha got
home from work and then Lake the pain medications. .

patitioner testified that she was working for Respendent on November 17, 2006, As she was returning to her desk with [¥8] Teddy,
a co-worker, Petitioner caught her left foot on the edge of the cement and started to fail to her left, Petitioner quickly terked har body
to the right, did not fall, and felt a pop in her low back followed by o sharp pain and spasms, The pain was different than before, as it
was grinding, raw, bone on bone, and very intense. Petitioner (st experienced this typa of pain followlng her injury in 2005,

Nancy Farrand, Petitioner's co-worker and a workers' compensation intake coordinator for Respondent testified on behalf of
respondent. Ms. Farrand testified that Petitloner performed all aspects of her job duties and that Petitioner mantioned back pain and
back surgery. Petitionar told her she was trying to delay the surgery for as long as possibie and oply took the pain medication at the
end of the day, #s she would not work while on the medication. Ms. Fatrand was experiencing her own health problems, and the two
ate lunch together every day,

In rebuttal Petitioner testified the two occasionally had lunch together and would talk in passing about their respective health issues.

petitioner returned to Dr. Konowltz on November 20, 2006 and reported the incident of November 17, 2006. [*10] She was having
difficuity working, was having increased low back pain, and was having left anterior radicutar lateral leg pain. She reported no new
weakness of the left leg. Or. Konowilz recommended continued pain managernent, a repeat MRI study, and a refurn to Dy, Butler
(PX2). Another MRI study was obtained on November 20, 2006 and was compared to the MRI study of July 14, 2006, According to
the radiologist, there were no significant changes, as the same degenerative changas were st evident at the L4-15 and L5-51 levels
{PX1).

Petitioner was seen by Dr. Butler on November 22, 2006, complaining of pain down the feft leg, which Dr. Butler was noted as
essentizlly unchanged. Dr. Butler noted that if anything the numbness in the medial and laterat calf on the left side had Intensifled.
Dr. Butler noted Pelilioner had more pain and had some haw anterlor thigh pain on the right that radiated down to the knea, On
physical examination, she had a straight spine, limited extension, forward flexion to the knees with increased pain, positive stralght
leg raise on the right, and significant paragpinat spasm. Strength wise she. was intact, and her sengory exam showed 3 decrease in
the L4 and I*113 L5 dermatomes on the left. Dr, Butler reviewed the November Z0th MRI scan, noting i reconfirmed degenerative
disc disease ab L4-L5 and L3-$1 without avidence of new disc herniation. His impression was a re-aggravation of lumbar disc
degenaration due to 2 silp and twisting Injury at work. In his recommendations he charted as fellows:

“While the patient has a significant preexisting condition and was likely to require surgery even without this work incident,
it does appear that the work incident has at feast temporarily aggravated the situation. We wili continue to treat her
cohservatively and If over the next one of two weeks her symptoms have not abated and her neurolegical aggravation
persists, she should strengly consider the surgical treatment, As far as causality is Concernad, It does appear that the
work incident has become an aggravation and it is vet to be dete rmined whether this is a temporary o permanent
aggravation.” (PX1),

patitioner's condition did not improve. On February 13, 2007 Dr. Buller performed a lumbar faminectomy and forammotomy at 14-1.5
and posterfor spinal fusion at L4 to $1, She was off work from November 18, 2006 to April 29, 2006, Thereafter she [¥12] began
working elsewhere as & biliing clerk for 20 to 30 hours per week, ’

Or. Butier testified In an evidence deposition on March 12, 2008, Dr. Butler testifled there was a causal connection between the
deterioration of Petitloner's symptoms and the Incident of November 17, 2606. Dr. Buller testified that before November 17, 2008,
Petitioner was moving away from the need for surgery, as she was participating In medicat pain management for her degenerative
disc disease and was functioning. Dr, Bubler testifled Petitioner deteriorated after the Incldent and was neurclogically worse after the
incident. Dr. Butler opined the fusion surgery was indicated as a result of the November 17, 2006 incident (PX5, pp52-53). Dr. Butier
testified that Petitioner would have required surgery, regardless of whether the November 17, 2006 incident had occurred (PX5, p6l).

Dr. Julie Wehner testified in an evidence deposition on Aprii 36, 2008, She examined Petitioner at Respondent's request on January 3,

2007. Dr. Welmer reviewed medical records and studies. Dr. Welmer oplned that between August 2, 2006 and November 17, 2006,
petitionar was moving away from the heed for surgery, as epposed to toward surgery. [*13] She testifled Petitioner experiencad the
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anticipated temporary reilef with the pain management care, but was not cured, and would not experience permanent retief of her
symptoms. $he disagreed with Dr. Butler's assessme nt of 3 neurclogical deterioration after the November 17, 2006 incident (RX1,
ppid-15). Dr. Wehner testified there was no causal cannection between the incident to November 17, 2008 and the fusion surgery
petitioner undetwent In January, 2007, Dr, Wahner testified Petitioner's pain complalnts pre-existed the incident, the radiographic
findings pre-existed the incident with ne change acute or otherwise between the July and November studies, the recommendation for
the fusion surgery had already been made to Petitioner and the incident of Novem ber 17, 2006 was very low energy and would not
have caused the need for surgery (RX1, pi7).

On cross examination Dr. Wehner testified that she performs from 230 to 460 independent medical evaluations per year, usually at a
rate of § 1000.00 per exam and report and that some may be re-gvaluations at haif charge. Dr. Wehner testified that 99% of the
independent medical evaluations are referred by [nsurance companies or respondents [*143 in workers' compensation cases. For
depositions she charges $ 800.00 per hour with a 2 hour mihimum, and she does 2 to 3 depositions par month {RX1, pp20-22}. Dr.
Welner further testified that she did not put in her report that in an October 26, 2006 chart note the Petitionar had reported being
50% pain free, had no difflcuity sleeping, and continued the homa exercise program. Dr. Wehner further testified that she did not
know that at that point Petitioner had been working for Respondent 40 to 50 hours per week (RX1, p38).

On redirect examination Dr. Wehner testified that it would be an incentive o have surgery under the workers' compensation system
{RX1, ppd8-49),

On re cross examination Dr. Wehner testified that it would not matter if the Petitioner had group health insurance, she did not know if
Patitioner had group health insurance, the Petitioner would still be better off financially under the workers' compen sation system, and
she never asked whether the Petitionat was able to parform all of her job duties as requested by her employer without difficuity (RX1,
pp51-54),

in support of the Arbitrater’s Decision refating to C, did an accident socur that arose out of and in the [¥15] course of
Petitioner's employment by Respondent, the Arbitrator finds the following:

Respondent's defense on this ssue s based on causation. The November 17, 2006 slip and twlst incident was witnessed, medically
correhorated, and unrebutted, Therefore the Arbitrator finds that an accident occurred that arose out of and in the course of
Petitioner’s employmeant by Responde nt. .

In support of the Arbitrator's Decision relating to F, whether petitioner's present condition of ili-being is causally
related to the injury, the Arbitrator finds the following:

petitioner was credible in her testimony. Nancy Farrand was well meaning but not entirely helpful in her testimony. Dr, Butler was
convincing and credible in his testimony. Dr. Welmer was advocating for the Respondent and was not credible in har testimony.

The evidence, as viewed by the Arbitrator is that the Petitioner was improving before her accident. We will never know if or when
petitioner would have had the surgery if there were no accident on November 17, 2006. However the medical records corroborate
that the accident accelerated the need for surgery.

Based upon the foregoing, the Arbitrator finds that and the Petittoner's [*16] present condition of iil-being Is caussity related to the
injury.

in support of the Arbitratec’s Decision relating te 3, were the medical services provided to Petitioner reasonable and
necessary, the Arbitrator finds the foliowing:

Respondent's defense on this issue is besed on causation. Therefore the Arbitrator finds that the clalmed medical bilis shalj be
awarded.

in support of the 'Arbitrater's Decision relating te K what amount of comp ensation is due for temporary total disahllity,
the Arbitrator finds the following:

Respondent's defense on these issues Is based on causation. Accordingly, based upon the stiputated average weekly wage and
stipulated TTD pariod, the Arbitrator finds that the claimed temporary total disability of benefits shall be awarded.

In support of the Arbitrator’s Decision relating to N what amount of compensation is due for temporary partial
disability, the Arbitrator finds the following:

The documentary gvidence of temporary partial disability benefits conststs essentially of subpognaed, but unexplained, payrot
records {PX8). petitioner's counsel has not explained exactly what these records puraort to prove. There is no basis from the
dorumentary [*17] record to determine the amount of temporary partial disability benefits, If any. On this record atane, such an
award would be speculative. Therefore the claim for temporary partial disability benefits is denijed,
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2009 4. Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 397, *; 9 IWCC 0386
ANTHONY OLSON, PETITIONER, v. T & M PLATING, INC,, RESPONDENT.
NO: 07 WC 37657
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO
2009 I, Wrk, Comp. LEXIS 397; 9 TWCC 0386
April 21, 2009

CORE TERMS: pain, arbitrator, siimulator, foot, dorsal, column, return to work, burn, video, medication, symptora, block, leg,
survelliance, extremity, syndrome, regicnal, temporary total disability, sympathetic, Injection, doctor, returned to work, catheter,
epidural, walking, left foot, administered, recommended, diagnosts, dystrephy

JUDGES: David L. Gore; James De Munno; Maric Basurto
OPINION: [*i]
DECISION AND OFINION ON REVIEW

Timely Petition for Review under § 19 having been filed by the Petitioner herein and notlce given fo ail parties, the Commission, after
consldering the issues of causal cohnection, tempaorary total disabliity, medical expenses, and prospective medical and being advised
of the facts and law, modifies the Decision of the Arblirator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts the Decision of the
Arbitrator, which Is attached hereto and made a part hereof. The Commission further remands this case to the Arbitrator for further
proceedings for a detarmination of a further amount of temporary total compensation or of compensation for permanent disabitity, If
any, pursuant to Thomas.yv. Industrial Commission,. 78 1124 327, 399 JL.E.24 1322, 35 1l.Dec, 294 (1880},

FINDINGS OF FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS AT LAW

1. Petitioner was a, 24 year old employee of Respondent, who described his job as & maintenance worker fixing machlnes.
As of the date of the accident, Petitioner had worked for Respondent for about a year. Petitioner also welded, fabricated
things, did efectrical and plumbing and pretty [*2] much all maintenance aspacts, Frior to the accident, Fetitioner was
not subject to any physical restrictions of Emitations that would Impact on his abilities fo perform his work duties. He was
not under medical care before for any physical problems or ailments. He had no prior Injuries to his legs or feet that had
required medical treztment. On the date of accident, August 4, 2007, Petitioner testified he was working in the basement
puiting up lighting and there was somathing on his shoee or the Jadder and when he was coming down he slipped off the
ladder and his leff foot went Inte a 5 gallon bucket of 100% acetlc acid that was on a skid. Petitioner stated that it
splashed the adld all over his lower half of his hody from the waist down. Petitioner Identified photos of his left leg that
was burned; Petitioner had taken the photos. His left leg/foot sustained the most burhs. He had also burned his right lag
and his private parts. :

2. Petitioner came under the care of Dr. Harisough (dermatoiogist) and iast saw her about November 8, 2007, Petitioner
stated he had gone to the emergency room a couple of times and his treatment was painkiliers and more cream
{Silvadine) that he was told [*3} to put on with gauze twice par day. Dr. Hartsough did the same thing and she provided
Benhzovt cream to help with healing, Petltioner stated his foot would get black and she did not know why; Dr. Hartsough
had claimed it was the nerves rejuvenating, Petitloner testified that he returned te work 3bout October 23, 2007 under
Dr. Hartsough's direction under limited hours and Himited activity. He did work 8 hours per day and It was sedentary,
making boxes and other light jobs sitting, Petitioner stated that he had continued deing that work for about Z months,
petitioner testified that he then came off work agaln about January 23, 2008 and Dr. Hartseugh recommenided Patitioner
be evaluated by a neurologist and possibly a pain specialist, Petitioner stated that he saw his primary doctor, Dr. Gary
who then referred Petltioner to Dr. Gahl, a pain speclalist, Petitioner indicated that he had returned to work and had
continued to work until about January 23, 2008 and just before he came off of work agaln, he stated that his pain was
increasing and his left foot felt iike it was in a freezer, Petitlonar stated it would stay cold afl the time and It would bum
and change colors and it would send [*4] shooting pains up his leg te his knee. He stated It was harder to walk and
harder to pretty much do ali his reguiar activities. Petitioner stated that his right leg was not bad; it did hurt from time to
time but not like the left lag. He indicated that the burns and trauma to the other areas of his body had healed up falrly
well,

3. Petitioner had been referred to Dr. Gah! about December 14, 2007 and he had been under his care at that time,
Jentary 2008, wheh he was experienging the left leg symptoms, Petitioner testifled that from January 2008 until hearing,
his left leg symptoms had never completely resolved and gone away, Petitioner testified that when he had returned to
work (October 2007-lanuary 2008} his left leg problems had gotten worse, During the latter part of Decernber 2007 and
early January 2008, Dr. Gahl had performed various blocks, while Petitioner had been working. Around January 23, 2008,
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Dr, Gahl had Inserted a continuous epidural catheter and affer the precedure Pelitioner had home heaith care and Dr.
Gahl removed Petitioner from work at that time. Petitioner testifiad that he had not returned fo work from then through
daete of hearing and neither Dr, Gahl nor any [*5] other Wreating doctor released him to return to work in any way.
Petitioner Lestifled that the catheter was ultimately removed and Petitioner had various injections since that removal,
patitioner also had a stimulator at home and he had the blocks and catheter and he had physical therapy. During his
treatment he had been prescribed medication by Dr. Gary and Dr. Gahl.

4, petitioner Indicated the records showed he last saw Dr. Gabl about May 23, 2008 and he was referred to Dr. Dahiberg
for evaluation for possible placement of a dorsal column stimulator, Petitioner desired to undergo the stimulator treatment
to address his problems. Petitioner testified regarding his left leg/foot that his symptoms had not resolved in any respect.
He still experienced the pain in his Foot/leq; every day and every night. He barely sleeps. He stated it Is worse when a
storm is coming, but it is bad all the time. He stated that the pain shoots up past his knee to his thigh now and he still
nad color changes and everything. He still had the pain In ali the areas that were burned. The pain Is more as he does not
have the medications that had helped before. He had been taking medication prescribed by Dr. {%6] Gary and Or, Gahl;
tie still took Gabapentin, Nerco, and MS-Contin.T.

5, petitioner saw Dr. Konowltz at Respendent’s request March 2008 and he understood Dr, Kenowitz recormmended
petitioner take certatn medications but not others, Petitloner indicated that he did not continue the medications prescribed
by his doctors that Dr. Konowitz disagreed with. Petitioner Identified Petitloner's exhibit 7 as charges for medication
preseriptions ha had purchased that he still takes on a daily basis, Petitioner indicated he still experiences swelling in his
foot/ankle along with the pain. He stated that his fook and whole ankle area swells and a little of the arch part. He stated
it swells pretty badly and sometires in his lower leg. Petitioner identified Petitioner's exhibit § as photos he had tzken of
his foot, at the doctor's office the last time he was with Dr. Gahi and 2 were about 2 month before hearing, The swelling is
quite often, 3-4 times per week, and it does not go away at ali, Petitioner testified he would cbserve a difference in color
of his foot/leg. He stated it would be a bright red and sometimes it wili go ali the way black and then it would travel up hs
fag to his knee area. [*7} It would be either real red or black; other times lighter or real darl; 1t depended, He stated
that he would be 1ying in bed and it would be black and while sitting around it would turn golor or walking too meuch; it did
not really matter. Petitioner testified that it doas affect his ability to walk; the pain Increased; sometimes just by taking a
shower. Any normal activities, he cannot do too much of them. He stated the medications help alleviate symptoms but he
is pever really pain free campletely/symptom free; he stated that It seemed that it was getting worse, He can watk with
the leg, but not normally, He cannot just get up and walk everywhere or do activities like he used to; he can waik about
10 minutes, if that long, Petitioner takes the meadication and uses the stimulator to shock when there is a (ot of pain;
sometimes 6-7-10 times in a day; it varied. He Indicated his symptoms change daily. Sometimes it takes him a long time
to fall asleep and other times he does not sleep for a week; when the pain is 5o severe, he cannot get comfortable. Other
then the dorsal column stimulator propoesed by Dr, Gary and Dr, Gahl, Petitioner was not aware of other alternative
trealment, he stated [*8] be had tried everything they had thrown at him and did everything they had wanted him to
do.

6. Dr. Gahl testified that he is a pain management specialist, board certified, His base specialty is anesthesiology, He
treats different pain problems, including reflex sympathetic dystrophy (RSD). He stated it sometimes involves dorsal
column stimulators or morphine pumps. Patients are referred to him for pain management. Dr. Gahl stated that Petitioner
had initially been treated by Dr. Gale and Dr. Hartsough and was referred to him by Dr. Gele on December 12, 2007, Dr,
Gaht stated that Petitioner had acid burns on his left foot and had painful neuropathy. He first saw Petitioner December
14, 2007 and had dlagnosed probable post-traumatic RSD (CRPS) on the left foot. He descrived the different symptorms
that were variable. Petitioner had relayed the history of the actident and stepping into the acid that splashed onto his leg
and he had sustained the burns, which were essentisily healaed when he first saw Petitioner. He stated the diagnosic was
initiaily "probable” as it takes a while and a faw tests (o be able Lo be rather certain of what it is. He stated that he had
Petitioner go through {#9] various tests. The initial procedure was a lumbar sympathetic block. He stated it was difficult
mechanically to get the flow right so he had not been able to Interprat if it had been an adeguate block; he felt It had not
gone in the proper place and he then tried 2 different technique and accomplished & little more. On December 28, 2007
he had performed an epidural steroid injection under fluoroscope. He stated that sympathelic blocks are diagnostic and
therapeutic, He stated that besides Petitioner's response to the biocks and epidural injection he noted hypersensitivity to
light touch te the fimb that pointed strongly to R$D. Dr, Gahl noted the coldness of the extremity, especially the first
time. He noted Petiticner had almoest a totally blue foct end ankle and lower shin when he first saw him and those were
strong factors to make the diagnesis. He stated that the objective symptoems/factors can change {wax and wane). Dr.
Gahl saw Petitioner May 23, 2008 and he had noted Petitioner's toas were coldl and the foot was blue and the forefoot was
somewhat swollen. Petitioner was doing refatively poorly and he was paying for the medications and couid not get all, Dr.
Gahl stated that he {1071 is very hesitant to prescribe invasive technlques in younger people but in this case, he
prescribed a dorsal column stimulator. He stated it is wel) proven and he had an excellent chance of getting the telp he
needed; he was not getting belter with the biocks and not getting better with medications and he was not able to work
and it was delayed due o insurance Issues. Dr. Gahi stated that at that time Petitloner saw one of his partners (Dr.
Dahlberg) and had a test of dorsal column stimulater; Dr, Gah! testified that as of May 23, 2008, he had pretty much
exhausted different methods and forms of treatments to offer Petitioner, He stated typically a trlal basls stimulator Is
inserted first to see If effective. Dr. Gahi stated you want to make sure it wil work before implantation. Dr, Gahl stated he
had worked with Petitioner for 6 months or more and It did not fook as if he would return to work standing (if untreated).
He stated Petitioner was depressed. Me stated if untreated, it would probably expand to involve a [arger amount of the teg
with time. Dr, Gahi stated it was rare for RSD to resolve after being present for the time, His recommendation regarding
no work or limitation [¥11] was based on his evaluations of Petitioner. As of May 23, 2008, he felt Petitioner unabie to
work

The Commission finds Petitioner has met the burden of proving entitlement to the temporary total disabllity benefits and the proposed
medical benefits. Petitioner clearly suffered an injury causally related to work, the issue was the extent {of TTD and treatment with
both Petitioner's treating doctors and Respondent's §12 examiner indicating there is RSD also related to the acctdent).

The Commission notes that a Petitionar must prove that he did not work and also that he was unable Lo work to be entitled to TTD

benefits, There Is no doubt that Petitionar had remained off work since January 23, 2008, It is also clear that he had been authorized
off work by Dr. Gahl for the period through hearing. Respondent's §12 examinar, Dr, Koniwitz, however, opined that Petitioner was
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capable te return to work with restrictions on a graduated basis to get to full work. Petitioner testified that he was aware of Dr.
Konowitz opinion regardiag return to work as was Dr. Gahl. Dr. Gahi still felt Petitioner was not currently capable and a3 such,
petitioner Histenad to his treating doctor and did not F¥32] attempt to return to work in any lashion after March 18, 2008, Contrary
to the Arbitrator finding ne basis for Petitioner to remain off work, cbviously the basis is the treating doctor's (Dr. Gahl) opinion that
he should be off. Respondent had previousty accommeodated Petitioner's restrictions and would appear that they would accornmodate
return to work per Dr, Konowitz. Dr. Gahl stated there was a differing opinion regarding Pelitioner’s abiiity to returh 1o work; D,
Konowltz had felt he wae ready. Dr. Gahl did not feel Petitioner could do & job on his feet all day. He indicated if pain was brought
under control something sedentary might be indicated. Then Petitioner would ot be focusing on the pain and could focus on the job.
Dr. Gahl had noted that Petitioner had been written up prior to coming off work January 2008 as he had been having difficully with
the pain and had not been doing his work adequately; this would draw guestion 1 Petitioner's ability to perform satisfactorily without
focusing on the paln after March 18, 2008 if he had returnad to work per Dr, Konowitz, Dr. Gah! stated that Petitioner had trouble
even wearing 3 shoe so It was dIfflcult for him to be on his feet [¥13] for any period. He stated it would behoove him to get a
functionatl capacity evaluation (FCE) and put him through objective tesling to see what he was reaily capable of. The FCE would
determine physical capabilities; he does recomim end such tests. He stated that his objective throughout was Lo try to fix the pain
proplern, onge fixed, you may siill need to see what he Is capable of deing. Dr. Gahi believed that Petltioner was capable of walking 2
black, When he saw Petitioner, he wag usually not even wearing a shoe, Dr. Xonowitz had apparently viewed some video of Pelitioner
¢from March) which was not introduced into evidence nor were any reports entered for that period. Part of Dr. Konowltz's opinion
regarding return to work i3 based on this surveiliance and does draw some questions. Also even the video and reports admiited into
avidence is for only about 15 minutes, Of note in the reports it states early footage showing Petifioner walking (deing lawn work)
apparently normally ang iater foctage described in the report as Petitioner walking with a limp and another later date noted severe,
exaggerated limp. This would dearly more support Petitioner's and Dr. Gahi's testimony that Petitioner [*14} could be on his feet for
short times and then it would gel worse. It is also a part of RSD per Dr. Gahl that there can be somewhat of a waxing and waning,
again this supports Petitioner's testimony, There is mention of Petitioner having coping problems and depression however there is ng
evidence this was his normal prior accident state, but regardless, an employer takes the employee as they ave. The testimony finds
that Petiticner did not work, The evidence and credibie testimony further finds that after March 18, 2008, Petitioner had been
authorized stiil off work by Dr . Gahl (and could not work) and Dr. Dahlberg had been walting to proceed with the dorsal column
stimuiator trial, The evidence and credible Yestimony does find that Petitioner did meet the burden of proving not only the period of
TTD awarded but also the TM March 19, 2008 through date of hearing. The oplnion of Dr. Gahl belng found more credible then the
Respondent's §12 IME opinion of Dr. Konowltz who saw Petitioner ohe time and later viewed some unknown video, as well as the
admitted video. The Commission affirms and adopts the Arbitrator's awarded total temporary disabllity and swards further modifying
to include [*18] TTD March 19, 2008 through date of hearing. {August 5, 2007 through October 23, 2007 & January 23, 2008
through August 22, 2008; 41-4/7 weeks at $ 326.48 per week [total TFD =% 13,572.24; Respondent being entitled Lo credit for TTD
previcusly paid]).

The Commission finds Dr. Gahl, Dr. Dahiberg and Respondent’s §12, Dr. Konowitz agreed Petitionsr had RED/CRPS, Dr. Konowitz
epined it as mild and opined Petitioner was at MMI and that the dorsal column stimulator was not in order {at the time of s
examination March 2008}, Dr, Konwotz In his later March 11, 2008, letter to Respondent insurance noted that he had reviewed video
{{from March-~no report or video admitted for that period-not known as to time or langth of survelllance) and noted antalgic gait
intermittently and able to walk significant distances and stated patient reported he was not able to ambutate as well as seen
throughout video and opines better then Petitioner reported, Dr, Gahl had been seeing Petitioner over an extended period of time and
had testified of the relationship with Petitioner and the validity of his symptoms. On January 4, 2008 he noted difficulty In providing
epidural and lumbar sympathetic biocks [*16] probably due Lo anatomic variability and pain was still 9/10; he had noted 3-4 hour
reftef from prior biock; he states the left foot Igoked pinker and cooler then the prior week-(not like ice when he flrst saw patient). He
further strongly befleved Petitioner had RSD, but pretty engrained, He had provided another sympathetic block and noted after no
somatic symptoms and indeed a good pure brock with excellent warmih after; markedly improved and first then talked about possible
stimulator, Dr. Gahi's January 22, 2008 exam noted calf warm, ankle cool and foot/toes cold; the foot locked falrly white and slightly
pink and only slightly darkened; his Impression was very resistant RSD. Dr. Gahl provided an epidural catheter and {he patient’s paln
almost immediately went away and a decent increase in warmth to left foot; still cool, but raproved. Dr. Gahl's Jenuary 23, Z008 note
stated he did an injection to the continuous epidural catheter. Patitioner had noted difficulty at work due Lo pain and the catheter and
Dr. Gahl took Petitioner off work. Dr. Gahl's January 29, 2008 record noted the feot jovked better then [n past and is cool but noticy
with miner dark coloration at ankle, but it F*17] st burned. Dr, Gahl provided another Injection and afler noted fool/toes
complately warm and normal looking; noted Petitioner had a successful block. Dr. Gahl's February 8, 2008 record noted patient noted
coldness every day and burning on and off with pain 6/10, and ncted some blueness In extremity. The February 19, 2008 record
neted pain at 10710, still pain and burning and it was modestly purpte. Problems walking were noted and he further noted Petitioner
was better with the pump and further stated the next step probably as dorsai column stimulator. Dr. Gehl's April 18, 2008 record
noted Petitioner saw Or. Konowitz, Dr. Gahl neted Petitioner's foot slightly cool to touch and also noted Dr. Konowitz
recommendations and Dr. Kenowitz recomm endation against the dorsal column stimuiator with return to work on gra duated basis. Dr.
Gahl noted foot falrly pink and slightly cool tips of toes and Dr, Gahl presumed Petitioner Lo be valid with the amount of invasive
procedures he had undergone. Dr. Gahl saw no overt manipuiation and he kept Petitioner off work and again stated he thought
patitioner needed the trial dorsal column stimulator as he was running cut of options, Dr. Gahl's record [#181 of May 2, 2008 noted
petitioner's foot somewhat discolored again but not like blue when flrst seen and he found medications counterproductive and next
step to be was the dorsal column stimulator, Br, Gaht on May 23, 2008 noted pain back up to 10/10 and noted Petitioner's probiem
wearing a shoe, Dr. Gahl noted he had pretty much ran out of ideas short of dorsal cotumn stimulator and he was frustrated with the
insurance failing to cooperate. He also asked Dr. Dahlberg to evaluate Petitoner regarding the stimulater. On July 7, 2008, Dr.
ahiberg noted the referral regarding stimulator for Petitioner's severe left foot neuropathic pain/CRPS and noted the histery of
accident. Dr. Dahiberg's exam record noted slightly purplish and edematous compared to right and noted Petitioner did have
hyperalgesia along the entire plantar aspect of foot and medial half, He recorded that Petitioner was interested in getling the
stimulator and was to try to get approval far trial. On July 9, 2608 Dr, Dahlberg noted Petitioner would like te proceed with stimulater
and further stated Petitloner would make an excellent candidate, The medical records and Dr. Gahl's testimony clearly indicate that a
dorsal [%197 column stimulator is indeed reasonable and necessary given that Petitioner appeared to have the ongoing problems and
seemead to be having some increase in symptoms since the medication regimen suggested by Dr . Koniwitz had been followed without
success. Contrary to Dr. Konowitz' opinion Dr. Gahi clearly found the stimulator to be the next option and that is supporied by Dr.
Dahiberg, White br, Gahl indicated the dlagnesis was a little "muddy", Petitioner's RSD condition is also apparently compticated with
the residual somatic foot pain and the stimuiator is evidenced as the next reasonabie and necessary option te “fix” the RED situalion.
The evidence and credible testimony finds that Petitloner did meet the burden of proving entitlement to the recommendad stinmuiator
by both Dr. Gahl and Dr. Pahiberg-{finding him a good candldate}. The Commission therefore reverses the Arbitrater's decision and
hereby aveards the prospective medical (dorsal column stimuiator.) as recommended by Dr. Gahl.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to the Petitioner the sum of § 326.48 per week for a
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period of 41-4/7 weeks, that being the period of temporary total incapacity for [¥20] work under §8{(b), and that as provided in §8
()/§ 19(b) of the Act, this award in no instance shall be & bar to a further hearing and determination of a further amount of
temporary total compensation or of compensation for permanent disabllity, if any.

IT IS FURTHER DRDERED BY THE COMMISSICN that Respondent shall authorize and pay to for the proposed medical carg suggested
by Dr. Gahl as reasonable and necessary prospact! ve medical care under §8(a) of the Act and asgociated temporary total disabiity
refated to such treatment.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanded to the Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with
this Decision, but only after the latter of expiration of the time for filing a written request for Summeons to the Circult Court has
expired without the filing of such a written request, or after the time of completion of sny judiclal proceedings, if such a written
reqdest has been filed. :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitloner interest under § 19{n} of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shail hava credit for all amounts pald, if any, to or on behalf of
petitioner [*#21] on account of said accidental injury. .

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Circuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of $ 12,000,00. The probable cost of
the record to be filed s return to Summons is the sum of $ 35,00, payable to the litinols Workers' Com pansation Conunission in the
form of cash, check or money order therefor and depositad with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: APR 21 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 19(b} ARBITRATION DECISION

AR Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this mattér, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Pater Akemann, arbitrator of the Commisgsion, in the city of Rockford, on August 22, 2008, After reviewing all
of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hersby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches these findings to
this document,

DISPUTED ISSUES

. Is the petitioner's present condition of Hl-being causally related to the injury?

1. Were the madical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary?

K. what amount of compensation is due for temporary totat disability?

N, Other [#221 Prospective Medica!

FINDINGS OF THE ARBITRATOR

. On August 4, 2007, the respondent J & M Plating was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On tivis date, an employee-gmployer relationship existed between the petitioner and respondent.

. On this date, the petitioner sustained injuries that arose out of and in the course of employment.

. Timely notice of this accldent was glven to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitionar earned § 25,465.44; the average weekly wage was § 489.72

. At the time of injury, the petitioner was 24 years of age, single with no children under 18,

. Necessary medical services have not been provided by the respondent.

. To date, £ 6,965.53 has been paid by the respondent for TTD and/or maintenance benefits.

DRDERS OF THE ARBITRATOR

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary total disabllity benefits of § 326,48 per week for 19.2 weeks, from 8/5/2007
through 10/23/2007 and agaln from 1/23/2008 through 3/18/2008, as provided In Section 8(b) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ -0- for medical services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act.
. The respondent shall pay $ 0 In [*23] penaitles, as provided (n Section 19(k) of the Act.
. The respondent shall pay $ 0 in penalties, as provided in Section 19{1) of the Act,

. The respondent shali pay $ 0 In atlorneys’ fees, as provided in Section 16 of the Act

. In no Instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of temporary total
dizabllity, medical beneflts, or compansation for a permanent disability, If any.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS UNLESS a party fles a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review in accordence with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE IF the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of

Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal resulls in
either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shali pot accrue,
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peter Akemann
Arbitrator Peter Akemann

October 2, 2008
OCT 8 2008

In support of the arbitrator's findings under (F) Causal Connection; the arbitrator finds the following facts and [*24]
conclusions of law:

The petitioner, Antheny Olson: was an employee of responden t for approximately one year as of August 4, 2007, He was employed as
a maintenance worker fixing machines. On August 4, 2007, he was working in a basement on lighting. He wasg coming down & jadder
znd stepped into o bucket of acetic acid, His left foot and a portion of his lower leg went Into the bucket. The acatic scid splashed up
both lower extremities, primarily involving the left,

The petitioner was taken to the emergency reom of Swedish American Health System where he was dlagnosed with chemical burns to
the lower extremities. Examination revealed primarily first~degree burns to the right lower extremily and teft lower extremity
measuring eight percent of the total body surface arga, There was an area on the dorstim of the left foot measuring less than 1%
body surface area of second-degree burns. The petitioner was glven pain medication and Silvadene te apply to the burns. The
petitioner was authorized off of work. {Pef. Ex. 3)

On August 22, 2007, the petitioner came under the care of Dr. Nicole Hartsough for burn care. Dr, Hartsough essentially diagnosed
first and second degree burns of the lower #2587 extremities with some epidural ioss. The petitioner's burn weunds slowly healed
though the petitioner continued to report fairly signlficant pain. (Pet. Ex. 1)

Effective October 24, 2007, the petitioner was refeased to return to seated work by D1, Hartsough, The employer accomimodated the
restrictions and the petitioner returned to work effective October 24, 2007. His job involved primarily making boxes, (Pet. Ex. 1}

On or around November 8, 2097, Dr. Hartsough indicated that she was nob quailfied to ascertaln any permanent nerve damage as a
result of the Injury. She recommaended an evaluation by & neurciogist or a pain speciaiisl. The petitionar was referred to Dr. Dale
Gray. {Pel, Ex. 1)

The petitioner saw Dr. Gray on December 1, 2007, At that the, he reported some numbness in the lower extremities as well as
temperature changes in the left foot, The petitioner indicated that the foct would turn red at fimes and seemed to busn, The petitioner
reported little improvement with medication. Dr. Gray diagnosed painful neuropathy status post acid burn. He referred, the petitioner
for a possible pain management evaluation and possible nerve blocks. (Pet, €x. 2}

The petitioner first came [¥26] under the care of Dr, Frederick Gahl on December 14, 2007. The petitioner was seen by Dr. Gshl at
the requast of Dr. Dale Gray. Dr. Gzhi diagnosed probable post tra umatic reflex sympathetic dystrophy of the teft foot. He
recommended and administered & lumbar block. (Pet. Ex. 6)

By the time the patitioner saw Dr. Gahl in December of 2007, the burns wounds had healed sufficiently such that they required no
additional treatment, The petitioner had been discharged from the care of Dr. Hartsough, The petitioner was continuing to work in a
seated position. (Pel. Ex. 6)

The petitioner returned to Dr. Gahi on January 22, 20068, Dr. Gahl again opined that the petltioner had resistant reflex sympathetic
dystrophy. He recomimended an epidural catheter to keep the area sympathetically blocked on a daily basis for seven to ten days to
see if the sympathetic dystrophy could be treated, At this time, Dr. Gahi authorized the petitioner off of work compl etely, (Pet. Ex. 6)

Over roughly a five-month span, Dr. Gahl treated the petitioner with a series of Injections and prescription medication, He slso had
experimented with the epldural catheter to keep the area sympathetically blocked. During these months, {*27] Dr. Gahl continued
to authorize the petitioner off of work. {Pet. EX. 6)

By the end of May, 2008, Dr. Gahi had “run out of Ideas”. He suggested that the oniy suggestion he had would be surgery for a dorsal
column stimulator. As he did not perform that type of trea tment, the petitioner was referred to his partner, Dr, Dahiberg. {Pet. Ex. 6}

On March 11, 2008, the pelitioner was seen for a Section 12 examination at the request of the respondent by Dr. Howard Konowitz.
oir, Konowitz diagnosed possibie mitd complex regional pain syndrome as well as poor coping skilis and possible deprassion. Despite
this diagnosis, due to the fact that there was no significant allodynia of tem perature changes in the foot, Dr, Konowltz did not belisve
the petitioner, was a candidate for implantation of a dorsal column stimulator. He recommended medication that was sermewhat
different than that proposed by Dr. Gahl. (Res, Bx. 1)

With regard to work activities, Dr. Kenowitz feit the petitioner could return to work in a graduated fashion. He suggested that the
petitioner work three hours a day for two weeks then progressing to four hours a day for twoe weeks and ultimately up to eight hours
a day. (Res. Ex. [*28] 1)

In supplemental reports, Dr. Konowilz commented on his review of surveltiance video that he indicated confirmed his oplnien that the
pelitioner could certainly retum to work and was not In need of a dorsal column stimulator. (Res. £x. 1)

The Arbltrater observed surveillance video taken on two separate occasions. The Arbitrator notes with interest that, in both tepes, the
petltioner was cbserved in the parking ot of the doctor's office, The arbitrator observed the petitioner other activities including using
lawn mizintenance equipment. (Res. £x.4)

ANALYSIS

The partles are In agreement that the petitioner suffered a compensable accident at work resuiting ¥ an injury to his lower

extremities cn August 4, 2007 when his left foot stepped into a bucket of acetic acid while he was descending a ladder. The add
splashed onto his lower extremitias, primarity the left lower extremity. The acetic acid caused frst and second degre € burhs as per
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the medical recordg, The petitioner's burn wounds, per the treating doctor, essentialty healed by Novem ber of 2007 without
significant incident.

Dr. Gahl, the petitioners treating physician with regard to complex regional pain syndreme, acknowledged £#29] that the pelitionar
wag no better off despite the significant treatment and injections administered by his office. Per the petitioner's own testimony, none
of the treatment administered by Dr. Gahl provided any benefit, The petitioners pain compiaints were as significant in May ©of 2008
and August of 2008 as they were in January of 2008. Thig certainly calls into question whether or not the petitioner even has compiex
regionat pain syndrome ag Dr. Gahl suggests.

The Arbitrator notes the deposition transcript of Dr. Gaht wherein he acknowledges that the injections that he administered were
supposed 1o be both therapeutic and diagnostic. Dr. Gaht acknowledged that the tests were not diagnostic for cormplex regional pain
syndrome, Dr, Gah! also acknowladged that the petitioner had several positive Waddeli's signs, which could be suggestive of symptom
magnification or secondary gain. The Arbitrator also notes with interest that Dr. Gahl did not administer several of the medicaily
accepted tests usad to diagnose complax regienal pain syndrome/reflex sympathetic dystrophy, The Arbitrator does not Dr. Gahl's
explanations as to why those tests were not administered satisfactory.

The injections I#30]1 administered by Dr. Gahi to diagnose the Petitioners cohdition of il being, were, at best, squivocal, Al worst,
they proved 2 diagnosls of complex regional pain syndreme was not appropriate. Dr, Gahl acknowl edged that the diagnesis was
“rauddy”. He suggested the possibillty that the petitioner simply does not have complex regional pain syndrome/fireflex sympathetic
dystrophy.

The Arbitrator finds that it complex regional paln syndrome exists in this petitioner, it is not severs. This conclusion Is based In part
by the surveillance video and reports offered into evidence by the Respondent. The video and reports show that the Petitioner's
disablifty was significantly worse walking in and out of the doctor's office as compared to other times during the day. The Petiticner
was seen walking with an exaggerated fimp into and out of the doctor’s office.

At other times, during the same day(s), the Petitioner was ambulating without a limp and was seen uses lawn care equipment without
difficulty, Thus, the Arbltrator finds the Petitioners testimeny ragarding his complaints suspect,

In support of the arbitrator's findings under {3) Medical Payments: the arbitrator finds the following facts [*31} and
conclusions of law:

The parties have agreed by stipulation to preserve the issue of medical untit a later hearing. Accordingly, the Arbitrator makes no
specific findings regarding medical expenses to date. This Is not to the prejudice of either party.

In support of the arbitrator's findings under (K) Temporary Total Disabllity; the arbitrator finds the following facts and
conclusions of law:

Following the work accident, the petitioner was authorized off of work while undergoing care for his first and second degree burns. He
ramained authorized off of work primarity by Dr. Hartsough through October 23, 2007. Effective October 24, 2007, the petitioner was
released to return to work with restrictions. He was essentially restricted to sedentary work. The respondent was able to

accomm odate those restrictions and the petitioner returned to work effective Qctober 24, 2008.

Per the testimeny of the petitioner, his work was essentially sedentary in nature. He was primarily making boxes while in a seated
position. The petitioner continued to work in that capacity for approximately three months through January 22, 2008,

Effective January 23, 2008, the petitioner was autherized [*32] off of ail work by Dr. Fredeyick Gahl. The petitioner remained
authorized off of wark by Dr. Gahl through his last visit of May 23, 2008.

The petitioner was seen for 3 Section 12 examination by Dr. Konowitz on March 12, 2608, Due to the relatively sinimal findings, Dr.
Konowitz saw no reason why the petitioner could not return to worl In seme capacity. He suggested the petitioner retlarn to work in 2
graduated fashion. Consistent with the opinjons of Dr, Konowitz, light duty work was offered to the petitioner,

Desplte the job offer, the petitionar did not return to work. In fact, he did not even attempt to return to work within the restrictions
suggested by Dr, Konewitz, He did not contact the Respondent regarding the job that was availabie. He was not aware even what
would have been asked of him. He simply did nothing. ’

The petitioner received all appropriate temporary total disabitity benefits from August 5, 2007 through October 23, 20607 and again
peginning Janyuary 23, 2008 through March 18, 2008. 8eginning March 19, 2008 and continuing through. Aprit 1, 2008, the petitioner
recelved temporary partial disability benefits at & rate of § 124.08 per week, The arbltrator notes that the [%#33]1 petitioner never
returned to work or attempted a return, Effective April 2, 2008 and continuing through Aprit 15, 2008, the petitioner received
temporary partial disability benefits of $ 56.61 per week, Again, he received these benefits despite the fact that he never even
attempted a return to fight duty work,

The petitioner is seeking Lemporary total disability benefits from March 19, 2608 and centinuing through the date of hearmg‘.

The Arbitrator notes that it is the petitioners burden to prove all the elemnents of hs daim by a preponderance of cradible evidence.
To receive temporary total disability compensation, It is not enough Lo prove that the petitioner did not work, Rather, the petitioher
must prove that he could not work. The Arbltrator finds that the petitioner falied to sustain that burden ptaced upon him.

Although Dr. Gahi authorized the pelitioner completely off of work as of January 23, 2008, the Arbitrator finds no basis for that
continued tost time after March 18, 2008.

While the petitioner may have had on-golng symptoms primarlly in the left lower extremity due to mild complex regional pain
syndrome, there is nothing to suggest that the petitioner could not have {*34] returned to work at the very Jeast in a sedentary
capacity. AL the very least, the petitioner should have attempled (o retumn to work on Ma rch 19, 2008,

Tha Arbitretor finds the survelilance video and, reports dispositive on the Issue of the petitioner's abifity to return to work, 1In the
survetllance video from June of 2008, the petitioner was seen for an extended period of time performing what appeared to be ya rd
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work, lifting and carrying fawn squipment and loading the equipment onto a truck, During that time, the petitioner displayed no
outward signs of difficulty lifting, carrying, walking, standing or bending. Dr. Konowitz had the benefit of the survelliance video to
support his pesition that the petitioner could return to work in some capacity. Dr. Gahl did not have the benefit of reviewing this
surveiance video or the survelllance reports,

While the petitioner proved that he did not work subsequent to March 18, 2008, he failed to prove that he was unable fo retuin to
work. Accordingly, temnporary total disability benefits subsequent to March 19, 2008 are denied.

In support of the arbitrator’s findings under {O) Prospective Medical: the arbltrator finds the following facts [*¥35] and
conclusions of law!

br..Gahl has suggested the petitioner 13 a candidate for implantation of a dorsal column stimulator, Dr. Gahl believed the treatment
was appropriate in light of his diagnosis of complex regional pain syndrome/reflex sympathetic dystrophy . Dr, Konowitz has offered
an opposite opinion.

The Arbitrator finds Dr. Gahl's recommendation for the invasive treatment unreasonable. The Arbitrator finds It significant that the
petitioner has falled to report a single improvement in his condition despite the numerous injections administered by Dr. Gahl for the
alieged diagnosis of complex regional paln syndrome. There is ne ratjonal explanation as to why this type of treatment would be
benaficial in light of the apparent absolute faiiure of all other treatment proposed by Dr. Gahl, The infections and medication
administered through the catheter are essentially to perform the same functions of & dorsal column stirnulator. If they failed to
provide any benefit to the pelitioner, the dorsal tolumn stimulator would also fail to provide benefit.

The petitioner's findings upon physi cal examination were minimal, In fact, while the petitioner was belng seen by medical providers,
[#36] treating or evaluating, the visuai symptoms were almost non-existent, The petitioner suggested thal his foot would change
color and become almost biack on occasion. He also decumented temperature changes, color changes, and sweat pattern changes.

Mone of these were supported In the -medical records.

The Arbitrator also places significance on the survelliance video taken on two separste occasions in June and Iuly of 2008, The
survelliance shows the petitioner to be walking with a significant, almost too overstated, limp favoring his left leg. Later In the
afternocn in June of 2008, the petitioner was seen performing fairly significant work during which he displayed ne outward symptoms
of complex regional pain syndrome or dificultles with his left or right fower extremity. In the survelliance taken in July of 2008,
limited video was available. However, again, there was no outward sign of disability.

The Arbitrator finds that the petitioner failed to sustain the burden placed upon him in showing that perspective medical
care suggested by Dr. Gahl is reasonable and necessary In accordance with Section 8{ a) of the Ilinois Workers'
Compensation Act. Accordingly, authorization for same [*#37] Is denied.
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2009 . Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 411, *; 8 IWCC 0400
EDWARD KOLPACKT, PETITIONER, v. NATIONAL DECORATING SERVICE, RESPONDENT,
NO: 07WC 10039
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY GF DUPAGE
2009 1. Wrk, Comp. LEXIS 411; ¢ TWCC 0400
April 22, 2009

CORE TERMS: right shoulder, pain, Lear, weakness, partial disability, temporary, arbitrator, tendon, right arm, underwent, modified,
rotator, cuff, ceps, supraspinatus, ladder, full-thickness, permanent, temporary total disabiiity, physical therapy, return to worlk,
bone marrow, partisl-thickness, post-operative, glenchuimeral, dislocation, tendinosis, resisted, thinning, totally
JUBGES: James F. DeMunno; Mario Basurte; David L. Gore
OPINION: [¥1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review having been filed by the Respondent hereln and notice given to all parties, the Commission, after
consldering the issues of temporary total disabiiity, permanent partial disability, and belng advisad of the facts and law, modifies the
Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwisa affirms and adopts the Decision of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto

and made a part hereol.

The Commission modifies the Arbitrator's Decision, decreasing Pefitioner's permanent partial disability award from 35% to 30% ioss
of the right arm pursuant o0 Section 8(e)10 of the Act. All else is affirmed and adopted.

IT IS THEREFORE GRDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner the sum of § 894.66 per week for a period of 19
6/7 weeks, that being the period of tamporary total incepacity for work under §8(b) of the Acl.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner the sum of § 581.77 per week for a period of 75.9
weeks, as provided in §8(e)10 of the Act, for the reason that the injurtes sustained caused the permanent partial loss of use of 30%
of the right arm.

IT IS FURTHER CRDERED BY THE [*2] CCOMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to Petitioner temporary partial disability benefits
of $ 4,185.83 pursuant to §8(a) of the Act,

IT IS FURTHER QRDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Pelitioner interest under § 18(n) of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credit for alt armounts paid, If any, to or on behalf of
Petitioner on account of said accidental injury.

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Circuit Court by Respendent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 26,300.00, The probable cogt of
the record to be filed as return to Summons Is the sum of § 35.00, payable to the Illincts Workers’ Compensation Commission in the
form of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission,

DATED: APR 22 2009

© ATTACHMENT:
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION
An Application for Adivstment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed te each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Peter M. O'Malley, arbltrator of the Commission, in the city of Wheaton, on July 11, 2008, Alter reviewing
all of the evidence presented, [*3] the arbitrator hareby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches those
findings to this document.
DISPUTED ISSUES
F. Bl Is the petitioner's present condition of ili-being causally related to the injury?

L. What is the nature and extent of the injury?
0. Other: amount due for temporary partial disabiiity, if any
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AGREED FINDINGS

. On April 21, 2006, the respondent, National Decorating Service, was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act,
. On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent,

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain Injuries that arose out of and in the course of employment,

. Timely notice of this accldent was given to the respondent.

. in the year preceding the Injury, the petitioner earned 4 69,783.48; the average weekly wage was § 1,341.99.

. AL the time of injury, the petitioner was 52 years of age, marrfed with 1 chiki under 18.

. Necessary medical services have been provided by the respondent.

. To date § 17,764.20 has been paid by the reepondent for TTD and/or maintenance benefits and [*47 $ 22,866.21 has been paid
by the respondent for TPD.

CRDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary total disability beneflts of $ 894.66 per week for 19-6/7 weeks, from Anril 22,
2006 through May 15, 2006 from October 6, 2006 through December 18, 2006, and from January 30, 2007 through March
11, 2007, which is the period of temporary total disabllity for which compensation is payable.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner the sum of $ 591.77 per week for a further period of BB,55 weeks, as provided in Section 8
(2310 of the Act, because the Injuries sustalned caused the permanent partial loss of use of 35% of the right arm.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary partial disability benefits of § 4,385,83 pursuant to §8(a) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that has accrued from April 22, 20086 through July 11, 2008, and shall pay
the remainder of the award, If any, in weekly payments.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party fites a Patition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review in zccordance with the Act [#5] and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the dedslon of the Commission,

STYATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Comamission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of
Arbitrator shall acorue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal results in
slther no change or a decrgase in this award, interest shall not accrue,

Peter M. O'Malley
Signature of arbitrator
8/8/08

AUG 15 2008
STATEMENT OF FACTS:

Petitioner, @ 52 year ofd union painter, testified that he had been employed by Respondent for approximately thirty (30} years prior
to alleged date of accident.

On April 21, 2006 while performing his job duties for Respondent, Petitioner was standing on a ladder when the side rall of the ladder
broke causing the Petitioner to fali to the ground on his right side. As he feil, his right arm hit the ladder and he noted immediate pain
in his right shoulder,

Petitionel presented to the emergency room at Edwards Hospital on the date of the accident with complaints of pain about his right
shoulder and a noted deform ity to the right shoulder. X-rays were taken which disclosed an anterior [#6] shoulder dislocation and
also what appeared to be 3 small chip fracture off of the head of the humerus. Closed reduction of the right shoulder dislocation was
carried out under sedation. (PX1).

petitioner then followed up with Dr. Gregory Markarian of Qrthopedic Associates of Nape rviile on Aprlt 27, 2008, It was thought that
Petitioner might have & congurrent rotator cuff tear and an MRE performed on April 28, 2006 showed miid atrophy of the
supraspinatus ahd infraspinatus tendens with no evidence of tehdinosts or partial-thickness or full-thickness tear. There was a large
amount of fiuid distending the subacromiah-subdetteld bursa and moderate genohumeral joint effusion suggesting elther changes
related to recent trauma or capsulosynovial inflammation. It was aiso noted that there was bone marrow edema totally defined
throughout the humeral head, neck, and metaphysls with additional ares of signal Intensity representing an Impaction injury with
assoclated bone marrow edema, Petitioner underwent a course of physical thevapy and wasg eventually released to return to work with
regtrictlons on May 11, 2008. {PX3}.

Respondent did provide work withir the restrictions of Hitlag flve F*7} pounds maximum and occasionally lifting and/for carrying
srnall articles with one-handed worl, At the time of the release to restricted work on May 11, 2006, It was noted that the Petitioner
was to have an EMG on June 12, 2006 as Petitioner continued to complain of weaknass about the right shoulder. Nerve conduction
study performed on June 12, 2006 was abnormal, suggestive of a mid right median neuropathy at the wrist. (PX3).

petitioner continued working restricted duty with complaints of pain and weaknass about the right shoulder, An EMG was then

performed on August £4, 2006 which was reported as normal. An MRI arthrogram of the right shoulder was performed on August 14,
2006 which disclosed marked thinning of the supraspinatus tenden with a full-thickness tear without significant atrophy or retraction,
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tendinosis and thinning of the subscapularis tendon, the fraying of the labrum without an actuat 1abral tear, and severe hypertrophic
arthrosts of the acromioclavicular joint, On August 25, 2008, the Petitlener underwent a CT of the right shoulder with therapeutic
injection of the bicipital tendon. (PX3).

petitioner continued to have complalnis of pain and weakness about his right [#8] shoulder and on October 4, 2006 underwent
arthroscopic surgery to the right shoulder consisting of a subacromial decomprassion, biceps tenotomy, synovectomy of the
gtenohumerat joint for synovitls, and arthroscopic rotator cuff repalr with one anchor, The preoperative and post-oparative diagnosis
was the same, namely, right shoulder retator cuff tear and blceps tear. (PX2 B PX3).

Petitioner again underwent physical thefapy followlng surgery and was off of work from October 4, 2006 through December 18, 2008,

Petitioner returnad to work for Respondent on December 19, 2006 with restrictions of light sedentary work with no use of the right
arm. Petitioner worked within these restrictions for Respondent through January 29, 2007,

On January 30, 2007 Pelltioner was sgaln autherlzed totally off of work as he participated in work conditioning. He participated in
work conditioning and was released to and did return to work on March 12, 2007 with the restriction of working haif days. Again this
work was provided by Respondent. Petitioner was to return to his treating doctor three months alter working half days and on June 7,
2007 was released to and did return to worl at his regular job dutles. [*8] (PX3).

There was a notice of work status dated March &, 2067 Indicating Petitioner was released to modified duty of half days for three
months at heavy work, A subsequent notice of worlk status dated March 8, 2007 indicated that Petitioner was releasad to modified
duty of four (4) hours full duty and four (4) hours ne overhead work. (PX3).

At the reguest of his attorney Petitioner was examined by Dr, Jeffrey Coe on October 9, 2007, Upon examination, Dr. Coe noted 10

degrees loss of abduction on the right, weakness of the right shoulder girdle musculature in resisted forward etevation and stressing
of the supraspinatus, weaknass of the right upper arm In resisted flexion at the elbow, and assosiated post-operative scarring of the
right shoulder. (PX4).

At arbitration Petitioner complained of pain in his right shoulder if he reachas cut too far, a pulling sensation when reaching, an
aehing/pain in his right shoulder, and weakness and stiffness of the right shoulder.

WITH RESPECT TO ISSUE (F), I8 THE PETITIONER'S PRESENT CONPITION OF ILL-BEING CAUSALLY RELATED TO THE
INJURY, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

patitioner testified that several years prior to the accident in [*10] question he had injured his right shouider, He was x-Tayed,
treated with anti-inflammatory medlcation, Injection and some physical therapy, Petitioner testified that his right shoulder symptoms
had resolved prior to the accident of April 21, 20906, There 15 also no evidence of any subsequent or intervening accidents.

petitioner testified that on April 21, 2006, while performing his job duties for Respondent, he was standing on e ladder when the side
rail of the ladder broke causing him to fall to the ground on his right side. As he fell, his right arm hit the fadder and he noted
immediate pain in his right shoulder.

Petitloner presented to the emergency room at Edwards Hospital on the date of the accldent with compiaints of pain about his right
shoulder and a noted deform ity to the right shoulder. X-rays were taken which disclosed an anterior shouider dislocation and also
what zppeared to be a smalt chip fracture off of the head of the humerus. Closed reduction of the right shoulder dislocation was
carried out under sedation. (FX1).

Petitioner then followed up with Dr. Gregory Markarian of Orthopedic Associates of Naperville on April 27, 2008, Tt was thought that
petitioner might [*11] have a concurrent rotator cuff tear and an MRI performed on April 29, 2006 showed mild atrophy of the
supraspinatus and Infraspinatus tendons with no evidence of tendinosis or partiat-thickness or fuil-thickness tear, However, there was
a large amount of fluid distending the subacromial-subdeitoid bursa and moderate glenchumersal joint effusion suggesting either
changes related to recent trauma or capsutosynovial Inflammation. It was also noted that there was bone marrow edema totally
defined throughout the humeral head, neck, and metaphysis with additional area of signat intensity representing an impaction injury
with associated hone marrow edema. Petitioner underwent a course of physical therapy and was eventually released to return to work
with restrictions on May 11, 2006, (PX3).

petiticner continued to cormpl ain of weakness about the right shoulder, Nerve conduction study performed on June 12, 2006 was
sbhormal, suggestive of a mild right median neuropathy at the wrist. (PX3).

Petitioner continued working restricted duty with complaints of pain and weakness about the right shoulder. An EMG was then
performed on August 14, 2006 which was reported as normai. An MRI arthrogram of [¥12] the right shoulder was perfermed on
August 14, 2006 which disclosed marked thinning of the supraspinatus tendon with a fuil-thickness tear without sighificant atrophy or
retraction, tendinosis and thinning of the subscapularls tendon, the fraying of the labrum without an actual fabrat tear, and severe
nypertrophic arthrosis of the agromioclavicular joint. On August 25, 2006, the Petitioner underwent a CT of the right shoulder with
therapautic injection of the bicipital tendon. (PX3).

Petitioner continued to have complaints of pain and weakness about his right shouider and en October 4, 2006 underweant
arthroscopic surgery to the right shoulder consisting of a subacromial decompression, biceps tenotomy, synovectomy of the
glenohumeral joint for synovitis, and arthroscopic retator cuff repair with one anchor. The preoperative and post-operative diagnosis
was the same, namely, rgnht shoulder rotator cuff tear and biceps tear, (PX2 & PX3).

Based on the above, and the record taken as a wholg, including Petitioner's unrebutted testimony as well as the opinion of the
Petitionar's examining doctor, the Arbitrator Bnds that the Petiticner's current condition of ili-being refative to his [*13] right
shoulder is causally related to the work accident he sustained on Aprit 21, 2006.

WETH RESPECT TO ISSUE (L}, WHAT IS THE NATURE AND ExTENT OF THE INJURY, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS AS
FOLLOWS:

As a result of the accidental Injury of Aprll 21, 2006 Petitioner underwent conservative medical treatment until surgical intervention

https://www lexis. com/research/retrieve7ce=& pushme=1&tmpFBSel=all&totaldocs=&tag... 1/21/2010



Search - 105 Results - "temporary partial” ' Page 4 of 4

on October 4, 2006 to repair a full-thickness tear with significant partial-thickness tearing, greater than 50%, on the undersurface of
the right rotator cuff as well as partial-thickness tearing, greater than 50%, of the right biceps. (PX2 & PX3).

Petitionar continued to treat post-surgery and after working periods of modified work duties for Respondent, He was eventually
reieased to return to full duties on June 7, 2007,

At the request of his attorney Petitioner was examined by Dr, Jeffrey Coe w ho noted Petitioner's ongoing complaints of pain, stiffness,
and weakness of the right shoulder and pain in the front of the right shoulder extending ipto the right biceps made worse by puiling
with his right arm. Dr. Coe also noted post-operative scarring of tha right shouider, assoclated decreased range of motion of the right
shaulder in abduction and associated [*14] weakness of the right shoulder girdie musculature, and resisted forward elevation and
stressing of the supraspinatus with weakness of the right upper-arm in resisted flexion at the elbow. (PX4),

AL srbitration Petitioner complalned of continuing pain in his right shoulder if he reaches out too far, a pulling sensation when
resching, an ache/paln in his right shoulder ang weakness/stiffness of the right shoulder,

Based on the above, and the record taken a5 a whole, particularly the diagnosed and surgicatly repaired tears of the right rotator cuff
and right biceps tendon, as well as the Petitioner's ongeing complaints at tima of arbitration, the Arbitrator finds that Petitioner
sustained the permanent partial 1055 of use of 35% of his right arm pursuant to §8(e)10 of the Act,

WITH RESPECT TO ISSUE (0), WHAT AMOUNT OF COMPENSATION IS DUE, IF ANY, FOR TEMPORARY PARTIAL
DISABILITY, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS AS FOLLOWS! -

At various times throughout Petitioner's conservative medical treatment as wéll as post-surgicat treatment ne was released to and dld
perform modified work for Respende nt. During the periods of time fie was on modified/light work he received a paycheck from
respondent [*15] as well as a temporary partial disability check from Respondent's insurance carrler, Seabright.

The Arbitrator notes that pursuant to §8(a) of the Act, as amended, when an employee is working Hgnt duty on & part-time basis or
fuli-tima basis and earns less than he would be earning If employad In the full capactty of his job then the employee is entifled to
temporary partizl disability benefits which shall be equal to two-thirds of the difference between the average amount that the
employes would be sbie to earn in the full performance of his duties in the occupation in which he was engaged at the time of the
sccident and the net amount which he is earning in the modifled job,

petittoner introduced into evidence copies of all of his pay stubs recelved from the employer while working modified duties a5 well as
corresponding check stubs from Seabright Insurance regarding payments made for both temporary partial disability and temporary
total disatillty for those pericds of time In which Petitioner was authorized totally off of work. (PXB). Petltioner also introduced nto
evidence an analysis of the weekly pay stubs and check stubs recelved for tempotary partial disability. Acomparison [*¥16] of the
two exhlbits reveals an underpayment of § 4,185.83 for temporary partial disabiiity beneflits during the period Petitoner was
provided modified/ilght work by the Respondent: {PX6}.

Based on the above, and the record taken as a whole, the Arbitrator finds that petitioner is entitled to temporary partial disabliity
benefits In the amount of § 4,185.83 pursuant to §8(a) of the Act.
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2009 I, Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 510, * O (Wil YA
ANGELA DILLION, PETITIONER, v. NORTH LOGAN HEALYHCARE, RESPONDENT,
NO: 06 WC 13801
ILLINGIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF VERMILION
2009 11, wrk. Comp, LEXIS 510
May 20, 2009
CORE TERMS: pain, arbitrator, degenerative, causally, lifting, temporary total disability, Hi-being, scotiosis, symptoms, peund,
present condition, chiropractor, permanent, partial disability, symptomatic, deposition, diagnosed, episode, maximuin, patient,
jumbar, strain, amount of compensation, average weekly wage, accidental injury, medical treatment, returned to work, disputed
issues, falied to prove, setforth
JUDGES: Paul W. Rink; Kevin W, Lamborn
OPINION: [*1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review having been flied by the Petitioner hergln and notice given to ail parties, the Cornmission, after considering
the issues of causal connection, madical expenses, prospective madical expenses, temporary total disabliity, and permanent partial
disabllity and being advised of the facks and law, affirms and adopts the Decision of the Arbitrator, which ig attached hereto and made
a part hereof,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Declslon of the Arbitrator filed July 12, 2007 is hereby affirmad and
adopied.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to Petitloner interest under §19{n} of the Act, if any.

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent shall have credit for alt amounts paid, if any, to or on behalf of
the petitioner on account of sald accidental injury.

Bond for rernoval of this cause to the Clreult Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of $ 100.00. The probable cost of the
record to be filed as return Lo SUmmons |s the sum of § 35,00, payable (o the linols Workers' Compensation Commisston In the form
of cash, check or money crder therefor and deposited [*2] with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: MAY 20 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to each party.

The matler was heard by the Honorable Ruth White, arbitrator of the Industrial Comeission, in the City of Danville, o May 14, 2007,
After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hiereby makes findings on the disputed issues circied below, and attaches
those findings to this document,

DISPUTEDR ISSUES

F. Is the petitioner's present condition of ill-being causally refated to the injury?

1. Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary?

K. What amount of compensation is due for Temporary Total Bisability?

L. What is the nature and extent of the injury?

FINDINGS

. On February 2, 2008, the respondent was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-employer retationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain Injuries that arose out of and in [#37 the course of em pioyment.
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. Timely notice of this accident was given 1o the respendent.

. In the vear preceding the injury, the petitioner's average weekly wage was $ 363.60.

. AL the time of injury, the petitioner was 19 years of age, single with ong child under 18.

. Mecessary medical services fiave been provided by the respondent.

. To date, $ 4.758.40 has been paid by the respondent on account of this injury.

. Petitioner falled to prove that her present condition of ili-being is causally connected to the accident of February 2, 2006.

ORDER

. The respondent shali pay the petitioner Temporary Total Disahility benefits of § 242,40 /week for & weeks, from February 3, 2006
through March 16, 2006, which is the pericd of Tem porary Total Bisability for which compensation is payable. This award is subject to
benefits already paid as shown above.

. The digputed medical bills are denied,

. Claim for further compensation is denled.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Pelition for Review within 30 days after recelpt of this decisfon, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be enterad as the decision of the [*4} Comrnission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest of 4.85% shall accrue from the date listed below ta
the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award,
interest shall not accrue.

signature of arbitrator

July 9, 2007

Date

UL 12 20G7

In support of the Arbitrater's Decislon relating to F., Is the petitioner's present condition of ill-being causally related to
the injury?, and, the Arbitrator fords the foltowing facts:

Petitionar was working for Responden t, a nursing home, as a CNA 2/02/06. On that date, Petitioner was assisting & patiant, Wheh she
glanced behind her, the patient threw himself backwards cauging Petitioner to fail sideways at an awlkward angle,

petilioner testified she Immediately experienced low back paln.

petitioner's first medical care was with Dr. Alison Johes 2/03/06. Petitioner provided a consistent history of the accident, Dr: Jones
noted Petitioner's weight was 286 pounds, and foliowing her exam, she diagnesed Petitioner with an acute fumbar strain, Dr. Jones
imposed restrictions on Petitioner's activities. Respondent was unable to [*5] accommodate the restrictions, and Respondent paid
TTD benefits.

An MRL of the lumbar spine was performed 2/23/08. 1t revealed a smalt protrusion at 15-81 and a smail protruslon to the lef of 14-5.
‘The radialoglist also noted scoliosls,

At the request of Dr, Jones, Petitioner was examined by Dr, Robert Hurford 3/16/06. Petitioner complained of buttock pain as well ag
tow back pain. Dr. Hurford noted the butteck pain was referred from degen erative disc disease and back pain.

petitioner testified she returned to work for Respondent in a light-duty capacdity 3/24/08,

petitioner continued treating with Dr. Jones, and on 7/10/06, Dr. Jones indicated in her office note Petitioner was at maximum
medical Improvement with a 40-pound lifting restriction.

Both Dr. Hurford and Dr. Jones testified by way of evidence deposition. Dr. Hurford's deposition was conducted 12/19/06,

Or, Hurford is an orthopedic surgeon, and he only performs spine surgeries, Me Lestified after reviewlng the MRI fiims, he did not
think there was any type of lumbar radiculopathy. (Px. 6 page 6) He diaghosed Petitioner with back pain secondary to degen erative
disc disease or arthritis in her back, (PX. & page 7) Dr. Hurford [*6] did not believe Petitioner was a surgical candidate, and he did
not impose any restrictions on her activities. He testified he would feave the issue of restictions to the occupational medicine
physician, (Px, 6 pages 2-10}

When discussing whether Petitioner's condition was permanent, Dr. Hurford first testified he would be speculating to render such an

opinion. (Px. & page 12) He then testifled if Petiticner did not have any prior episodes of low back paln before the werk accident, then
"""""""" it was reasonable to say the {fting injury caused Petitioner to develop chronic back pain. (Px, 6 page 13)

On crogs-exam, Or. Hurford indicated that if Petitioner saw a chiropractor before the date of injury, petitioner's back pain existed prior

to the injury, and if the chiropractor treated Petitioner for low back pain, Dr, Hurford's causation opinion would be affected. (Px. 6

pages 15-16)

The office notes from Dr. Jones dated 3/20/06 Indicates Petitioner previously saw a chiropractor for back pain. At trial, Petitioner
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denied ever sesing a chiropractor. Petitioner did admit to a minor eplsode of back pain for which she underwent x-rays and ook
medications.

The deposition of Dr. Jones was taken [#7] 4/27/07, Dr, Jones practices in cccupational and environmental medicine. She testified
she Initially diagnosed Petitioner with a straln which she thought would be a temporary condition. (Rx. 4 page 8)

DF. Jones further testified Petitloner's symptoms in her lower back were affected by her weight noting increased weight was a factor
with Patiticher's degenerative back probiems and related symptoms. She afso attributed Petitioner's scoliosis Lo being a cause of
Petitioner's back pein. Furthermore, the sceliosis can be an additional complicating factor in someone as heavy as Petitioner, {(Rx 4
pages 10-11)

Or. Jones noted it was possible Petitioner's symptoms In her lower back were from a muscle straln and not from the disc pathology
noted on the disghostic studies. She pointed cut Petitioner had a negative stralght leg raising test which indicated there was no nerve
rook hiritation. (Rx. 4 pages 14-16}

Or. Jones rendered an opinion Petitioner was at maximum medical improvement ag of 7/10/06. Fetitioner was tolerating her return to
work successfui ly. Dr. Jones recommended ongeing care for the degenerative condition in Petitioner's back as well as for the scollosis,
(Rx. 4 page 19)

Dr. [¥#8] Jones aiso rendered an opinion that as of 7/10/06, Petitloner's injuties from 2/06/06 nhad resolved and any ongoing
complaints were due to Petitioner's welght and degenerative condition in her back. She further stated Petitioner's faflure to corply
with a physical therapy program slowed down her recovery, (Rx. 4 pages 19-21)

With respect to Petitioner's 40-pound restriction, Dr. Jones testified it was imposed for 2 variety of reagons including Petitioner's
degenerative back condition, Petitionar's scollosis, and Petitionet's weight, Dr. Jones did not testify to the work accident as belng a
centributing factor in the need for the 40-pound lifting restriction., {Rx. 4 pages 25-26}

Dr. Jongs atso testified Fetitioner's job duties as of August 2006 involved more extensive walking duties than at the time of the work
accident. The extensive waliking duties were aggravating Petitioner's low back condition and possibly making her symptoms worse.
(Rx. 4 page 23)

With respect to TTD benefils, Petitioner testified she returned to work for North Logan Heaith Care 3/24/05, She also testified that as
of 7/24/06, Respondent no longer accommeodated her restrictions. Howaver, as of 7/10/08, Petitioner [¥8] was working In a full-time
capacity for Provena United Samaritans Medical Center. Her dulies were those of a CNA which was the same job title as Petitioner bad
for Respondent,

Petitioner's current earnings for Provena are § 11.14 per hour which Includes & shift differential. Petitioner testified she Is working 40
hours per waek.

Based upon the testimony of Dr, Jones who was Petitfoner’s primaty treating physician following the work accident, the Arbltrator
fings Petitioner's work-related injurtes reached maximum medical Improvement ag of 7/10/08, The restrictions imposed by Dr. Jones
were not made necessary by the work accident.

The Arbitrator further concludes that based upon the testimony of Dr. Jones, Petitioner's current condition of ill-being is not causally
related to the work accident.

1n support of the Arbitrator's Decision refating to K., What amount of compensation is due for temporary total
disability?, the Arbitrator fords the following facts:

The findings of fact stated above are adopted and incorporated by reference here,

petitioner is claiming entitlement to TTD benafits from 7/24/06 through 5/14/07. Presumably, this is based upon Respondent refusing
to [*10] accommodate the 4G-pound Ifting restriction. However, Petitloner was working in & full-time capacity for a different
employer throughout the entire time period for which TTD benetits are being claimed, Furthermore, Petitioner is sarning sighificantly
more than ner average weekly wage, o temporary partial disability benefits are not appropriate. Petitioner's claim for TTD benefits
from 7/24/06 through 5/14/07 s denied. Petitioner Is entitied to TTD benefits from 2/03/06 through 3/24/06,

In support of the Arbitrator's Decision relating to J. Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner
reasonable and necessary?, the Arbitrator finds the following facts:

The Arbitrator adopts and incorporates herein the findings set forth in Sections F and K above.

Based upon the foregoing findings, the medical treatment recaived by Petitioner through the 7/ 10/06 visit with Dr. Jones was causally
retated to the work accident. However, the medical bills submitted by Petitioner as Petitioner's Exhibit 7 enly include charges incurred
after 7/10/06. Furthermore, the submitied charges include treatment entirely unrelated to the work acel dent A charge in the amount

of § 2,380.00 [*11] was submltted for a colonoscopy performed 3/07/07, This charge is clearly not related to Pefltioners lower back
complaints, Petitioner alse undarwent an upper gastro exam with a biopsy 3/17/G7 for which charges were rendered In the amount of
$ 1,700.00.

petitioner's claim for the payment of medical bills is denied,

tn support of the Arbitrator's Decislon relating to L. What /s the nafure and extent of the injury?, the Arbitrator finds the
foillowing facks: :

The Arbitrator adopts and incorporates herein the findings set forth in Sections £, J and K above. Petitioner falled to prove that her
present condition of ill-belng is causally connected Lo the accident of February 2, 2006 rendering the issue of "nature and extent”
moot,

DISSENTBY: BARBARA A, SHERMAN
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DISSENT: It appears that Petitioner had experlenced a few prior episodes of low back pain for which she received minimal medical
treatment and apparently recovered. The most recent treatrment before her accident on February 2, 2006, was in December 2003.
From that time forward she continued te perform her regular work for Responden t inciuding frequent iifting and maneuvering of
patients. There is no evidence that her back was symptomatic or [*12} required treatrrent in that period, She has been
symptorhatic and has had a Bfting restriction since the aceident, While Dr. Husford testified that knowledge of prior symptoms and
treatment might change his epinion as to causation, dlearly it would depend upen what and wheh the prior treatment was. Petitioner's
prior treatment was remote in time from this accldent, ner treatment was apparently minimal, and she apparently recovered ang was
abie to performs her regular work for two years without incident. Consistent with the testimony of D, Hurford, I would find that
petitionar was susceptible to Injury 85 & resuit of her pre-existing degenerative disease, that her condition became symptomatic as a
resuit of the accidenta! injury herein, and thal her chronic back pain since the accident represents a permanent aggravation of her
underlying condition resuiting in some degree of perranent partiai disability, I therefore dissent from the majority's decision.
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2009 I, Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 585, * o (wee Gl

KWEST HOPKINS, PETITIONER, v. HYDE PARK CO-0OP, RESPONDENT.
MO: 03 WC 30368
ILLINDIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISQION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF COO,JS\
2009 Iil. wrk. Comp. LEXIS 383 h
June 17, 2009
CORE TERMS: robbery, arbitrator, symptoms, disorder, teaching, robber, rope, return to work, counting room, neuropsychol 0gist,
claustrophobla, psychiatric, medication, traumatic, interview, diagnosis, anxlety, trauma, totally disabled, temporary total digabiiity,
claustrophobic, psychological, psychiatrist, grievance, classroom, flashbacks, emotional, demaanor, teacher, thrown
JUDGES: Barbara A. Sherman; Paul W, Rink; Kevin W. Lamborn
OPINIOMN! [*1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review having been filed by the Petitioner hereln and hotice given to all parties, the Commission, after considering
the issues of causal connection, temporary total disabllity, the nature and extent of Petitloners disabllity and being advised of the

facts and law, affirms and adopts the Dedislon of the Arbltrator, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the Arbitrator fited September 8, 2008, s hereby affirmed and
adopted.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 19(n} of the Act, if any.

T IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondant shall have credit for ali amounts pald, if any, to or on beh alf of
the Petitioner on account of sald accidental injury.

Bond for removal of this cause to the Clrcuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 11,200.00. The orchable cost of the
record Lo be filed as return to Summons s the sum of § 35.00, payabie to the Iliinois Workers' Compensation Commission in the form
of cash, check or moneay order therefor and deposited with the Office of the T*2] Secretary of the Commisslon.

DATED: JUN 17 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLIN OIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to gach party. The malter was
neard by the Honerable Gerakd Jutita, arbitrator of the Commisston, in the cily of Chicago, on June 12, 2008, After reviewing ali of
the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checkad below, and attaches those findings to
thig document.

DISPUTED ISSUES

F. 1s the petitioner's present condition of ili-being causaly related to the injury?

1. Were the medical services that were provided (o petitioner reasonable and necessary?

i€, What amount of compensation is due for temporary total disability?

L, What Is the nature and extent of the injury?

FINDINGS

. On April 18, 2003, the respondent Hyde Park Coop was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an emploves-employer relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent,

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain injurles that arose cut of and [*3] in the courge of employmaeant.

. Timely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.
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. in the year preceding the injury, the petitioner eamed $ 22,554.20; the average weekly wage wag § 433.35,
. AL the time of injury, the petitioner was B4 years of age, singfe with no chiidren under 18,

. Mecessavy medical services frave been provided by the respondent.

. To date, nothing has been paid by the respondent for TTG and/or maintenance beneflis.

CRDER

. Petitioner's ciaim for temporary total disablliity benefits is denied.

. The respondant shall pay the petitioner the sum of $ 260.01/week for a pericd of 37-1/2 weeks, as provided In Section 8{u)2 of
the Act, because the injuries sustained caused the permanent loss of use of petitionet’s whole person to the extent of 7+
1/2%.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that has accrued from April 19, 2003 through June 12, 2008, and shall pay
the remainder of the award, if any, in weekly payments.

The respondent shali pay the further sum of § 1,369,26 for necessary medical services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act,

RULES REGARDING [*4] APPEALS: Unlass a party flles a Pelition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and
perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE: If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the HNotice of Declsion of
Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed befow to the day before the date of payment; however, If an employee's appeal results in
either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not accrue.

Gerald D, Jutlia
September 7, 2008
Date

SEP & 2008
FINDING QF FACTS

pelitioner testified that on Aprii 18, 2003 he was employed at the Hyde Park Cooperative market as s part-time bagger, Al about
11:15 p.m. he was confronted by an armed robber after coming down frem the upstairs locker room at the end of his work day. The
robber was dressed entirely in black, The robber was peinting a gun at petitioner and ordered him to put his hands up and go lay on
the fioor. Petitioner was then bound at his hands and feet. Shortly therealter, the store manager was ordared to lie next 16 petitioner.

One of the robbers [¥5T put a gun to the store manager's head. Shortly thereafter, the petitioner was dragged to the counting room
at the front of the store and was thrown into the room. Minutes later, one of the security guards was thrown oh top of him. Petitioner
stated he had some difficulty breathing but was able to shift his body to atleviate the breathing obstruction. while shifting his body,
the rope on his left hand loosened. Petitioner was able to cut the rope binding hirn with a penknife he had in his pocket, Petitioner
then freed the security guard.

Next, petitioner looked out the window in the door of the counting room and did not see any of the robbers, Petitiener then ran out of
the counting room, ran out of the store and ran five blocks home. When he arrlved home, he catied 911, The dispatcher told him to
return to the Coop as poiice would be there when he arrived. Petitioner walked back to the Coop and encountered approximately 25
potice officers. Petitioner was interviewed and about two hours later was sliowed 1o return home,

Petibioner tastified that no shots we re fired during the approximately 30 minutes that he was involved in the robbery, The physical
injurles he sustained were timited [*63 Lo rope bums on this wrists and ankles, These burns have long ago healed. Petitioner couid
not sieep when he returned home ard has had problems sleeping since the Incident. In addition, petitioner said he has experienced
flashbacks of the robbery and recurrent nightmares. Petitioner said that since the robbery he has bean very vigllant including
frequently checking to make sure his doors and windows are locked. Three months after the robbery, petitioner moved four to five
blotks away from his residence at the time of the robbery because he was concerned the robbers knew who he was and whare he
lived.

Petitionar returned to work at the Coop the day after the robbery In the sare position he occupied before the robbery. Petitloner
worked steadily at the Coop through October 30, 2003 doing his regular job and working his normal part-time hours, Petitionar
initlatly did not recall why he stopped working on October 30, 2003, but on cross-examination acknowledged that he had been found
in violation of the Coop's purchasing policy and had been sugpended five days. Petitioner acknowledged that he was a union member
and there was a union steward avallable to pursue grievances on behalf of petitioner. [*7] Petitioner had filed a grievence o
recover money that was stolen from him personally during the robbery. Petitioner did not explain why he did not return 1o woirk after
the five day suspension.

Petitioner raturned to hls ist grade teaching job at the Chicago Board of Education for one day not long after the robbery and could
not complete his work day because of the claustrophabia he feit in the classroom. Petitioner hag not taught since,

Petitioner has not worked in any capacity since October 30, 2008.
Patitioner testified that he had a Bachelor of Arts In Psychology from Chicage State Unlversity that he obtained in 1972, Thereafter,
petitioner cbtained a master's degree equivalent in family therapy from Unlversity of lilinois, Chicage in 1982. In 1985, petitioner

obtained a Mastar Gardener cartificate from the University of Iliincis, Chicago, Petitioner worked for the Coop on a part-time basis
starting In May 2002. He started in the garden department. After the gardening season ended, petitloner transferred to a
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bagaing/cierk position inside the store. Petitioner worked as & Chicage public school teacher for 13 1/2 years from 1999 to 2003,
Before that, petitloner worked as a juvenile [*8] probation officer for Cook County for 17 1/2 years.

petitioner frst sought treatinent at the Korned/Homan Medical Clinic oh May 19, 2003 based on & recommendation from one of the
police officers who investigated the robbery, On sald date, petitioner saw a nurse practitioner, Nathan Jaisingh, and his complaints
included Flashbacks of seelng the robbers, poor sieep, anxiety, claustrophebia, and poor appetite. Jalsingh noted that pelitioner's was
caim, friendly, cooperative, depressed and had an organized thought process. Jaisingh assessed depressi on, general anxisty disorder,
rule out PFTSD and rule out psychosis, It was recommended that petitioner take 1 mg Risperdal at bedtime. It was noted thaton a
drug sbuse screen, the petitioner tested postlive for cannabinoid. Petitloner saw Mr. Jaisingh on three more occasions in June and July
2003, On June 2, petitionar was told to start taking Zotoft and was referred o social services for individual therapy. On July 28, 2003,
reazadone was recommended as an additlonal medication. (Pet, Ex. L.; Resp. Ex. 1)

On August 21, 2003, petitioner saw Dr. Tibbatls who, ricted that the petitioner ran out of medications but did not come in for a reflil.
[*91 Dr. Tibbetls assessment was rule out PTSD. (Pet. Ex. 2; Resp, Bx. 1) On August 26, 2003, Mr. Jaisingh filed cut o one page
"Seandard Form of Doctor's Report,” Therein, he listed & medical diagnosis of PTSD versus another diaghosis that is illegible. He
stated that it was undetermined when petitfoner could resume either reguar or light work, and checked the "yes” box following the
question: "Please state whether patient's condition is a recult of the Injury claimed,” (Pet. Ex. 3)

On February 19, 2004, Dr. Tibbetts notes that the petltioner has been off medications since August 2003, he is attending school twice
a week for several hours with 49 other people, e is riding public transportation and hig spirits are better. Dr. Tibbetts assessment
was “history of traumatic crime symptoms mproving, off meds, functicning quite weli, r/o FTSD, rfo Schizotypal Personality
Disorder.” On June 3, 2004, Dr. Tibbetts notes that petitioner's affect is stable, he looks relaxed, he is attending school, he wa nts Lo
open 3 store, he feels claustrophobic 3 times & week, he is not avoiding things, he has flashbacks of heing tied up, he is doing yoga
and mediation. {(Pet. Bx. 2; Resp, x. 1 at 4)

In Aprll f£107 18, 2008, pelitioner came under the care of psychiatrist, Dr. Roueen Rafeyen, at Michael Reese Hospital, Dr.
Rafeyen's credentials were not offered into evidence, Dr. Rafeyen noted subjective cemplaints including flaghbacks, hypervigilance,
claustrophobia, nightmares, anxiety, depression and fear of leaving his house. Dr. Refayan's behavioral observsations included
anxious, linear thought process and oriented with ne auditory or visual hallucinations or paranola. Or. Refayan diagnosed PTSD and
prescribed Seroquet and Zoloft. (Pet. Ex. 4; Resp. Ex, 1at 4) Dr. Refayan compieted the same one page "Srandard Form of Dogter's
Repot” form that was completed by Mr. Jaigingh. Therein, Dr, Rafeyen additionally checked that it was undetermined when petitioner
would be able to resume regular or light work. Me also checled the “Yes" box in responding to the quastion of whether the patient's
condition is related to the Injury daimed. (Pet. Ex. 5}

Therealter, Dr. Rafeyen saw pelitloner on six occasions between December 15, 2005 and February 1, 2007, (Pet. Ex. 43 On July 28,
2007, Dr. Rafeyen completed another "$tendard Form for Doclor's Report, " Therein, Dr. Rafeyen notes chronic post traumatic [¥11]
disorder and states that petitioner Is unable to work and again chacks the "YES" box stating that the petitioner's condilion is result of
the injury ciatmed, (Pet. Ex. 8)

Other than Dr. Rafeyen’s office notes referenced above and the twe Standard Form For DoCtor's Repotts, there was ne additional
evidence regarding Dr. Rafeyen's trgatment, such as deposition testimony or a narrative report, entered into evidence. Petitioner did
testify Lthat he last saw Dr. Rafeyen in January 2008 and was again prescribed Zoloft and a sleeping rnedication.

On Septembaer 28, 2005, petitioner was examined and tested by Gregory Malo, a neuropsychologist, at the request of the respondent.
Or. Malo noted that during psychological testing the petitioner’s "speech is goal directed with no evidence of delustons, hallucinations,
loose associations, tangentiality, circurnstantiality, pressured speech, flight of 1deas or paranotd delusions. He Is ypervigilant and
suspicious but remains polite and cooperstive throughout diagnostic interview and psychological testing. Dr. Male concluded that
*pgychelogicat testing reveals no evidence of thought disorder, Gi-polar disorder, or parancia. Mr. Hopkins presents with g [*12]
surprisingly severe and long lasting case of posttraumatic [sic] stress disorder which, although atypleal, 18 not at all impossible.” (Petl.
Ex. 7)

Thereafter, the testing results and Dr. Malo's report were reviewed by Robert Hanion, ancther neuropsychologist. Dr. Hanlon
disagreed with Dr. Malc's diagnosis of PTSD. He stated that there are no MMPI-2 scales that are definitlve with respect to PYSD and
there no MMPI-2 scales that are individually diagnostic with respect to PTSD. Dr. Hanlon was of the opinlon that petitioner had 2
Somatoform Disorder or a Conversion Disorder, (Resp. Ex, 1 at 5)

On Decernber 22, 2005, petitioner underwent a face-to-face interview with Dr. Susan Pearlson, for approximately two hours, (Resp.
Ex. 1) Dr. Pearison is a forensic psychiatrist and assistant professor in the Department of Psychiatry at The Feinberg School of
Madicine at Northwestern University. Dr. Pearlson graduated from the Mayo Medical Schoo! in Rochester, Minhesota and was a
resident In psychiatry at the Mayo Graduate School of Medicine for four years. She has been board certified in Psychiatry and
Maurology since 1994 and has been a Dipiomate in the sthspeclalty of Forensic Peychiatry since [*13] 1999, Uir, Pearlson has been
involved in leadership positions with the American Acaderny of psychlatry and Law since 2005 and has made numerous presentations
on various psychiatric topics including Post Trausmatic Stress Digorder. (Resp. Ex. 2)

Foliowing her interview with petitioner, Br. Pearison produced & compre hensive zight page report. {Resp. Ex. 1% Dr. Pearison hoted
petitioner's education and work history. She sumn marized records from Komed/Holman Health Center from May 18, 2003 through June
3, 2004, and Dr. Rafeyen's psychiatric evaluation on April 18, 2005, The test resuits and assessments from the neuropsychologists
Malo and Hanlon were noted and commented on by Dr. Pearison as follows:

"psychological testing was Interpreted differently by Dr. Malc and Dr, Hanlon. My examination supports the hypothesis.
that Mr. Hopking may suffer from mild anxiety, but not from any major psychiatric disorder that causes disability or
frizbitity to engage in a particular forim of work including teaching. There was no evidence during this examination that
#Mr. Hopkins sufferad from elther Converslion or Sematization disorder, as he did not describe any physical problems at all.
As noted above, [*247] neither are his reported symptoms congistent with a diagnosls of PTSD." {Resp. Ex. 18t 7)

The report also included a langthy discussion section on Post Traumatic Stress Disorder and Dr. Pearison's analysis as to whether the
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petitioner sufferad from PTSD. Dr, Pearison stated that the widely accepted criteria for the diagnosis of PTSD consists of 2 “traumatic
avent" that Is persistently re-experiencad; the persoh persistently avoids stimuli associated with the trauma; the person experiences
persistent symptoms of increased arousal; the disturbance lasts longer than one month; and causes significant distress or impairmant
in social, cecupational, or other important aress of functioning. (Resp. Ex. 1 at 7-8)

1]
In support of her conciusion that petitioner did not have PTSD, Dr. Peatison noted that the records frem Kemed/Holman dinic
documented that petitioner's sytnptoms resolved over several months as indicated by petitioner's ability to function without
medications, 1o attend classroom sessions, to ride puble transportation and ta return to work at the place the events occurred, She
further noted that while some of petitioner's symptoms were consistent with PTSE, others were not, Of [*15] particular significance,
Or. Pearlson stated:

"wr, Hopkins' abitity to returh to work at the Coop, the scene of the trauma, but not at school, & site removed from the
scene of the trauma, is Inconsistent with the diagnosis of PTSD. Traumatized persons have most difficulty in the location
the tfrauma occurred or in locations similar to it, Avoidance of closed spaces could follow a traumatic experience. However
one would expect a generalized avoldance, not avoidance limited to a specific classroom setting but which allowed
productive work at the focation where the trauma occurred.” (Resp, Bx. 1at 7}

The history provided by petitioner was noted in detall, and s consistent with the testimony of the pefitioner at hearing. Regarding
petitioner's employment as a teacher, Dr. Pearlson noted that petitloner said he initially stopped teaching because he felt
“claustrophobic” in the classroom and continues to feel inable to teach because he is tired of working with chiidren after 17 1/2 years
as a probation officer and 13 1/2 years as a teacher. Mr. Hopking said: "1 don't have it an ore. Since T been away from it. Teaching
adults maybe, not children.* (Resp. Ex. 1 at §)

In the "Mental [#16] Status Examination® section of her report, Dr. Pearison noted that petiticner was on time for the interview, he
was neatly dressed and well groemed, he made good eye contack and established an adequate rapport, his affect wag calm, relaxed
and full range, there was no evidence of anxiety or discomfort, he sat comfortably in his chair, his speech was normal In rate, tone
and production, he was logical and articuiate, he refated his account of the robbery in a calm, story-telliing manner without any
hesitation or emotiona! difficulty, his thought content was normal. (Resp. Ex. 1 at 5-6)

or. Pearison noted that her interview jasted approximately two hours in a small office and at no thime did the petitioner say or indicate
that he was claustrophoble, Dr, Pearlson concluded that the petitloner did not have PTSD or any other major mental disorder; he may
have experlenced a brief period of emetional distress following the robbery, but his symptoms had largely resclved and are not
disabling; there is no psychiatric contraindication to teaching and patitioner dees not have any psychiatric disorder that caused
disability or inabillty to engage in any particular form of work including teaching; [#17] and there is no clear necessity for additional
psychiatric or psychological intervention, {(Resp. Ex. 1 at 7-8)

Dr. Pearlson's description of petitioner's manner, behavior and affect, was entirely conslstent with petitioner's manner, behavior and
sffect at the hearing. Petitioner was dressed & ppropriately and well-groomed. He spoke togicaily and articulately. He was attentive. He
was animated. He fully explained what happened in 2 story-Hike manner. He was detailed as to what happened, He exhibited the same
genersl tone and demeanor throughout direct and cross examination including when talking about the gun being pointed at him, the
gun being put to the head of his manager, being dragged to the counting roerm, being thrown Into the counting room, having a co~
worker being thrown onto him, freeing himself from the rope that bound him, escaping the store, running home, calling 811,
returning to the scene and recounting his experience to the Investigating police officers. There was no hesitation or em otional
difficulty at any point during petitioner's testimony.

Petittoner testified for approximately one hour at the hearing, and ramalned in the hearing room when exhibits were

introduced [*18] into evidence. The door was closed to the hearing room guring his testimony. At no time did the petitioner ask that
the door e opened or that he be allowed to feave the room beceuse he was claustrophobic. Dr. Pearison recounts the same
experience when she interviewsd the petitioner for abaut two hours in December 2005,

petitioner did not dispute any of the statements attributed to him by Dr. Peartson Lin her report nor did he dispute any of the
descriptions of his appearance, manner and behavior contained In Dr, Pearlson’s report.

CONCLUSION
Is the petitigner's present conditien of ili-heing causally connected to the injury?

This case invalves a claimed psychal oglcal Injusy foliowing a traumatic event involving physical injury in the form of rope burns on the
wrists and hands. The rope burns resatved hot long after the incident without any restdual deficits, As set forth above, petitloner's
treating medical providers and the two neuropsychologists and the psychiatrist that were invelved in evatusting the petitioner for the
respondent reach a variety of conciusions regarding pelitioher's condition.

After reviewing the medical evidence submitted and considering the petitioner’s [¥197 testimony and demeanar at the hearing, the
opinlons of Dr. Pearlson are the most persuasive and her analysis the most compelling. The history set forth in Dr. Pearison's report is
thoreugh and entirely consistent with the petitioner’s testimony at the hearing. More importanty, her obsarvations regarding
petitioner's manner, affect and behavior were entirely consistent with how petitloner presented himself at the hearing. As stated by
Dr. Pearison: "Mr. Hopkins' demeanor revealed a refaxed, calm man at ease with himseif and his surroundings. His discussion of
eyents during the robbery was articulate, complate and had the quality of story often toid. He did not demonstrate elther the
emoticnal reactivity or the emotional numbing that would be characteristic of someone suffering from chronic symptoms of

PTSD," {Resp. Ex. 1 ak 7-8) This description equaily apolies to petitioner's demeanor and recounting of the events of the robbery at
the hearing.

In addition, Dr. Pearlson noted that petitioner did not express signs of claustrophobia while belng interviewed for two hours in her
small office. Likewise, petitiongr did not express any signs of claustrophobia while in a small hearing room {¥20] for over one hour.

Further, petitloner was abie to return to work at the Coop within a day or two of the robbery and continued to work regularly at the
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Coop until October 30, 2008, 2 period of over six maonths. He inexplicably failed to return to work atthe Coop after a five day
suspension related to violation of the Coop's purchasing policy. The medical records reveal that he was able to resume other activitles
such as using public transportation and laking classes not long after the robbery.

Finally, Dr. Pearlson’s explanation of PTSD and her application of the medical criterfa for PTSD to the facts of this case is very
persuasive. Dr. Pearlson's supertor educational background and experience fend significant credibillty to her opinions. The Arbitrator
niotes here is no elaboration of any Kind by any of petitioner's trealing doctors. As for the neuropsychologists Malo and Hanlon, they
reach different congiustons and disagree on the criteria for PTSD, The Arblirator places more weight on the optnions of Dr. Pearlsen, a
medical doctor and psychiatrist than the opinions of Malo and Hanlon, wha do not have medical degrees, but rathar Ph. D.'s in
psychology.

The Arbitrator adopts the [*21] opinions of Dr. Pearlsen and concludes that while petitioner may have experienced a brief period of
emotional distress directly foliowing the robbery, those symptoms have largely resoived,

Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary?

The Arbitrator finds that the $ 1,369.26 medical bills claimed by the patitioner were for reasonable and necessary treatment and
should be pald by respondent.

What amount of comp ensation is due for temporary total disabllity?

Petitioner claims thal he has been temporatily totally disabled from October 30, 2003 through July 26, 2007, & period of 195-1/7
weeks. The Arbitrator concludes that petitloner has failed to prove by a pre ponderance of the evidence that he was tempors rily totally
disabied, The issue Is whether the petilioner’s mental condition following the robbery preciuded him from working for any pertod of
time since the robbery. One is temporarily totally disabled when he cannot perform any services except those for which no reasonably
stable labor market exlsts. Pembie v. IQQL;striaL,qutn.f;ssfarz,.41..531‘ii?.‘..}?\a;‘o.,.us‘.d,492,_._‘3.3.5...53415,.‘aﬁ.‘.l_.349:.ml,3,54.,...1,3.0,..121,..Qegbi&ﬁ {ad
Dist. 1989), [#22] Here, the petitioner returned to his job at the Coop the day afer the robbery. He performed the same disties and
worked the same amount 6f hours per week through October 30, 2003 until he was suspended for violating the Coop’s purchasing
policy, Petitioner had ne recollection as to why he did not return to work after the suspension, He had a union steward availabie and
was famillar with the grievance process, having flled a grievance for recovery of the money that was stolen from him personally
during the robbery. There is no evidence that petitioner stopped working at the Coop because of his meintal health,

As to the petitioner's teaching position, while br. Malo eoncluded that the petitioner could not teach, he did not conclude that the
petitioner could not work in another capacdity. While Dr. Rafeyen stated the petiticner could not work on two one page reports, there
is nothing tn his records expl aining how petitioner coutd work for six plus months after the accident at the scene of the robhery, but
net work In some capacity thereafter, Dr, Pearlson concluded that there was nothing preventing the petitionar from working 25 a
teacher or in any capacity for that matter.

As an aside, [%23] the Arbitrator notes regardlass of whether the petitioner could or couid not work as a Leacher as & result of the
robbery, at the time of this accident the Workers' Compensation Act did not provide for temporary partial disability, Further,
petitioner falled to submit any payroll records to explain what portion of petitioner's average weekly wage was attributed to the
teaching job and what portion was atiributed to the Coop job.

The Arbitrator concgudes that the petitioner is not entitled to any TTD.
what Is the nature and extent of the injury?

petitioner claims that he 1s permanently and totally permanently disabled from work since July 27, 2007 as a result of the effects from
the robbery, The Arbitrator concludes that petitioner has falled to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that he {s permanentiy
and totaily disabled. Having concluded that the petitioner sustalned a brief period of emotional distress directly following the robbery,
and that his symptoms have largely resclved, and that petitioner was capabie of working in some capacity after the robbery through
the date of hearing, the Arbitrator concludes that the petitioner (s entitied to an award of 7.5% loss of [*24] use of the person as 2
whole. (See attached awards for psychelogical injuries obtained from Q-Dex during the years 2002 to 20086.)

The Arbitrator daclines to award benefits under either section 8{d)(1) or section 8(F). In this case, the petitiener is welt educated,
well-spoken, and has a varlety of job experi ences, No avidence was presented that patittoner undertock a job search, No evidence
was presented by a vocational placerment counselor stating that petitioner could not find a job given bis age, education, training and
experience, The Arbitrator agrees with Dr. Pearlson that the petitioner has been capable of working since the accident, as clearly
evidenced by his ability to work at the Coop for six plus months after the robbeary
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2009 Il Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 586, * Ok (Wl G
DEBRA ANZELMO, PETITIONER, v. GLENDALE NISSAN, INC., RESPONDENT.
NO: 06 WC 23419
ILLINOTS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF DUPAGE
2009 1i, Wrk, Comp. LEXIS 588
June 17, 2009

CORE TERMS: pain, arbitrator, chalr, tallbone, symptom, recommended, temporary total disability, injection, lumbar, time clock,
stool, physical therapy, fight leg, feet, madication, return te work, workstatlon, epidural, mid-back, leg, temporary, impression,
herpiation, deposition, underwent, horseplay, coworker, treating, shoulder, pughed

IIDGES: Barbare A, Sherman; Paul W. Rink; Kevin W. Lamborn
OPINION: [#1]
DECISION AND QPINION ON REVIEW

Timely Petition for Review under § 19(b) having been fled by the Respondent herein and notice having been glven to all partles, the
Commission, after having consicderad the Issues of accident, causal connection, medical expenses, termnporary total disabiiity benefits,
penaities and attorneys' fees, and Section B() credit, and having been advised of the facts and law, hereby modifies the Arbitrator's
decision as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts the Arbitrator's decision, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.
The Commission further remands this case to the Arbitrator for further proceedings for a determination of a further amount of
temporary total campensation or of compensation for permanent disabllity, if any, pursuant to Thomas.y. Industral_Cornmission,. /8
Hl.2d.327, 399 N.E.2d 1322, 35.10.0ec. 794 (1980;.

The Cominission affirms the Arbitrator's decision with respect to accldent, causal connection, and medical expenses. We modify the
Arbitrator's decision with respect to ternporary total disability benelits and penalties and attorneys’ fees. The Arbitrator

awarded [*21 Petitioner 88-2/7 weeks of temporary total disabillty benefits representing the periods from April 5, 2006, to February
25, 2007, and from Aprit 28, 2007, to April 22, 2008. The Commission reduces the temporary total disability award and finds that
petitioner is entitled to 60 -3/7 weeks of Lernporary total disability benefits representing the periods from April 5, 2006, through
November 1, 2006, and from Septembar 24, 2007, the date on which Petitioner returned to see Dr. DiGianfilippo again after
November 2006, through Aprli 23, 2008, the date of the arbitration hearing, On November 1, 2006, Dr. DiGlanfilippo indicated that it
was okay for Petitioner to return to work and recommended that Petitioner avoid hyperflexion and hyperextension. Although Dr.
DiGianfillppo indicated on November 13, 2006, that he recommendad that Petitioner not return to work, we find that Dr. DiGianfiippo
made such recommendation bacause he understood that Petitioner’s job duties included getting in and out of the cars a fol, On direct
examination, Petitioner d¢id not testify that one of her job duties was to getin and out of cars. On cross examination, after having
been confronted with Dr. DIGianfilippo's [¥3] record, Petitioner testified that she was required to get i and out of approximalely an
average of 40 cars per day. We find that Petitioner's testimony on cress exa mination that shie had Le get in and out of an average of
40 cars per day Is not credible, particularly because her testimony on direct examination about her jobr dulies as a service digpatcher
reveals that her job primarily involved handing out work orders to the techniclans, which we find is sedentary and involved very Hight
work, If any. Further, Robert Haill testified that Petitioner rarely had occasion to get in cars in the performance of her duties.

Another concern that the Commission has with the Issue of whether Petitioner was able to work is the fact that she did work with
another emptoyer for about eight weeks. Petitioner testified that she worked with Woody GMC full time for about eight weeks.
petitioner stated that her job with Woody GMC was that of a service advisor and that her duties were the exact same duties that she
had with Respondent, The Commisgion guestions why Petitioner was abie to perform her job at Weody GMC bt not with Respondent
if both jobs required her to parform similar duties. Respondent's [*4] witness, Joya Sanders, the human rescurces and payroll
administrator for Woody GMC, testified that there were no notes regarding any work restrictions in Petitioner's personnel file.

We alse find that Petitionars testimony as Lo why she feff her employment with Woody GMC £o be not credible. Petitioner Leslified
that she left Woody GM( because of her pain. Petitioner's personnel file with Woody GMC indicates that Petitioner feft her
empioyment there because of issues that she had with some of her coworkers. Petitioner's personnel file with Woody GMC contains
her letter of resignation, dated April 29, 2007, which clearly represents that she reslgned because of her coworkers. Har personnel file
also contains latters documenting her complaints about her coworkers. Thus, we find that Petitioner's testimony thal she left her
employment with Woody GMC becau se of her pain is not credible.

The Commission is concer ned with Petitioner's credibility also because of the charge that Petitioner filed at the Egual Employment
Opportunity Commission, Petitioner's charge at the EEOC contradicts her bestimony at arbitration completely, Petitloner and Mr, Hall
testified that there was no animosity between [*5] them. Petitioner testified that she had an amicable relationship with Mr, Hall, that
they were friendly, and that the slaps or taps on the backs were greeting gestures. In the EEOC charge, however, Petitioner described
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a different picture of her relationship with Mr. Hall, Petitloner attested in the EECC charge that Mr, Hall retaliated against her and
physicaily urt her. On redirect examination, Petitloner testified that when she signed the EEOC charge on August 14, It was her
feeling ak that tima that Robert shoved her her cheir because she had complained about his sexual harassing behavior, At trial,
howeaver, Patitioner testified that immediately aiter the Incident, she told management that It was not Mr. Hall's fauit and that she did
not want him to get in trouble, which we find are disbelleving actions of an individual who sustainad physical retribution from a
coworker. Moreover, we note that at arbltration, while Patltfoner testified thal Robert has engaged in horseplay before, she never
mentioned anything about his having made sexual comments or any of the other allegations that she made in the EEOC charge.

Given the concerns with Petitloner's crediblilly and glven the fact [*6] that Pelitioner has demonstrated that she can work ina
similar, if not the same, position as the ong she held with Respondent, the Commission reduces the award of temperary total
disability benefits to a total of 60-3/7 weeks,

Concerning the lssue of penalties and attorneys' fees, the Commission hereby reverses penzlifes and attorneys' fees awarded based
on the credibility concerns we noted above, While the Commission believes that the accident occurred and that the circumstances of
the acciden! did not involve horseplay, Petitioner's conduct after feaving Respondent's employ and her testimony at arbitration were
not wholly credibie,

The Commission alse awards Section 8(3) credit for amounts paid on account of the injury. Petitioner testified that her group
insurance company through her employment by Respondent pald some of her bills,

[T 1% THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Arbitrator's decision is modified as stated herein.

iT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to the Petitioner the sum of § 491.47 per week for a period
of 60-3/7 weeks, that having been the period of teimporary total incapacity for worlk under §8(b), and that as provided in § [*#7] 19
(b} of the Act, this award in no instance shall be a bar to a further hearing and determination of a further amount of temporary total
compensation or of compen sation for permanent disability, if any,

IT IS FURTHER CRDERED 8Y THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay te Petitioner the sum of $ 108,389.90 for medical expenses
under §8(a) of the Act, subject to the medical fee schedule in Section 8.2 of the Act. Respondent is entitled to Section 8(J) credit for
amounts i paid on account of the injury.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanded to the Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with
this Decision, but only after the latter of expiration of the time for filing @ written request for Summons to the Circuit Court has
expired without the fiing of such a written request, or after the time of compi etion of any judicial proceedings, if such a written
requast has been filed.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay 1o Petibioner inberest under § 19(n) of the Act, if any.

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSICN that Respondent shall have credit for all amounts pald, if any, to or on behalf of
Petitioner on account of said accldental injury. [*8]

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Clreuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of $ 75,000.00. The probable cost of
the record to be filed as return to Summons is the sum of § 35.60, payable ¥o the IHlincls Workers' Comnpensation Commission In the
form of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission,

DATED: JUN 17 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLEINODIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 19(h) ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was malied to each party, The matler was
heard by the Honerabie Leo Hennessy, arbitrator of the Commission, In the city of Wheaton, on 4/22 /72008, After raviewing all of
the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby rmakes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches those findings to
this document.

DISPUTEDR ISSUES

C. Did an accident occur that arese out of and in the course of the petitioner's employment by the respondent?

F. Is the petitioner's present condition of Ii-belng causally related to the injury?

). Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonaie and [*9] necessary?

K. What amount of compen satlon is due for temperary total disability?

L. Should penaities or fees be imposed upon the respondent?

M. Is the respondent due any credit?

FINDINGS

L On 47472006, the respondent Glendale Nigsan, Inc. was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act,

. On this date, an empioyee-employer relationship did exist between the petitioner and respendent.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain injuries that erose out of and in the course of employment.

. Timely notice of this accident was glven to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitioner earned $ 38.334.51; the average weeldy wage was § 737.20.

. At the time of injury, the petltioner wag 47 years of age, single with 0 chlidren under 18,

. Necessary medical servicas have not been provided by the respondent,
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. To date, § 4,263.48 has been pald by the respondent for TTD and/or maintenace benefits.
ORDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary total disabiity benefits of § 491.47 /week for 98-2/7 weeks, from 4/5/08
through 2/26/07 and 4/28/07 through [#10] 4/22/08, as provided In Section 8(b) of the Act, because the injuries sustained
caused the disabling condition of petitioner, the disabling condition is temporary and has not vet reachead a perinanent condition,
pursuant of Section 19(b) of the Act,

. The respondent shali pay § See Decision for medical services, as provided in Section 8{a) of the Act.
. The respondent shall pay § See Daclsion in penalties, as provided in Section 19k} of the Act.

. The respondant shall pay $ See Decision in panalties, as provided In Section 18{1) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay ¢ See Dedislon in atorneys’ fees, as provided in Section 16 of the Act.

. In o instance shall this award be a bar to subsguent hearing and determination of an additional amount of temporary total
disabliity, medical benefits, or compensation for a perm anent disability, if any.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a parly files a Patition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfecty a
review In accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the deciston of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest 2,35% shall [¥11] accrue from the date iisted
below Lo the day before the date of payment; however, i an employee's appeal results In either no change or a decrease in this
award, Interest shail not accrue.

Signature of arbitratior
6-17-08

Date

JUN 18 2008

FACTS

A, Accident

petiticner testified that she was emploved as & Service Writer/Dispatcher at the Respondent’s deslership on April 4, 2096, Her job as
2 Dispatcher entailed taking the job orders from the Service Writers and distributing them to the Service Technicians, Petitioner
testified that she was essentlally the middie person between the Service Writers and the Service Technicians with the responsibility of
malking sure the work orders were distributed evenly and completed in & timaly mannper, At the time of April 4, 2008, Petitioner stood
five feet and seven inches tall and welghed approximately one hundred ten pounds. Petitioner testifled that prior to Aprit 4, 2006 she
pever had any problems with her mid or lower bath nor had She ever required medical treatment in that ares,

Patitionars workstation was located in the front of the shop at the end of the center walkway, The shop as lllustrated by Petitioner's
drawing {PX1) [*12} consisted of a center walkkway with service stalls on each side of the walkway. Petitioners workstation was
positioned ak the front of the center walkway so that she could oversae the technicians. As iliustrated, the workspace had two waills, &
side wali and & back wall. (PX1) The workspace was open from the front and the opposite side. {PX1) Petitioners workspace consisted
of an elevated desk standing five feet tali, an adjustable swivel stool chair, & file cabinet, flie wall cabinets and the dealership time
clock. Petitioner presented a drawing of her workstation which iustrated the position of the objects in her workspace, (PX2} Petitioner
algo introduced and identified a catalog picture of the stool chair that she used. (PX3} As pictured, the stool chalr sat on five wheels
and had a round metal ring towards the botlom to rest her feet, {PX3) Petitioner testified that her stool chair was rgised to four feet
to meet her desk, At that height her feet couid rot touch the ground. The time clock was situated directly behind the Petitioner if she
was facing townrds her desk, Petitioner testified that when she was sitting In the stool chair, the space between the back of her stool
chair [*13] and the time clock was approximately two feet. Petitionar stated that ali of the employees of the deslership except the
sales people used the time clock to punhch in and out. Pelitioner stated that the employees were able to access the time clock without
interfering with her at her workstatlon except for one employee, Robert Hall, Petitioner stated that Mr, Hall was a large gentleman
approximately gix feet tall and three hundred pounds and because of his size she would have to move her stool chalr to accommodate
Rim. Mr. Hali indicated during his testlmony that he was actually six feet four inches and welghed approximately thrae hundred fifty
pounds at the time of accident.

On April 4, 20086, Pelitioner testifled that she wes seated at her desk facing the shop floor, Petitioner saw Mr. Hall enter the shop ficor
from the back, Mr. Hall then walked down the center walkway towards her workstation to punch into the tme clock. As Mr. Hall
approached, Petitioner testified that she pushed her stool chalr away from her desk and situsted herself with her back against the file
cabinets to make more room for Mr.Hall. Petitioner stated that she was sitting on the front portion of the cushion with [*14] her feel
on the round rung of the stool. As Mr. Hall went towards the time clock, Petitioner reached out with her hand, patted him oh the
shoulder and sai¢ "what's up Lump". Petitioner clarifled that “tump" was Mr. Hali's nickname. Mr. Hall then turned and proceeded to
move tow ards her to push Petitioner back. Petitloner testified that she warned hlm not to push her because she couid fall off the
chair. Petitioner stated that the next thing she knew she felt a push and her chair fell out from under her and she fell backwards.
petitioner's back hit against the file cabinets and she landed on the floor right on her tallbone. Petitioner indicated that she felt
Immediate pain in her tailbone and back.

After the fall, Petitioner was helped by the Service Manager, Len Cegielski, Petitioner informed Mr. Ceglelski of what cccurred. Len
Cegielski testified that he did not witness the incident, but Petitioner teld him a sirallar account of the injury 2s she testified, Mr.
Cegielskl also prepared a statemeant which he jdentified at hearing. {P¥3) During his testimony Mr, Cegielski confirmed the detalls of
petitioner's workstation as described by Petitioner.,
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Respondent presented as a witness, Keith {*15} Narozny, the dealership's general manager. Mr. Narozny testifled that after
petitionars fatt he came downstairs to inquire what ocourred and was given a similar account of circumstances of the injury.

Raspondent alse presented Robert Hall, Mr. Hall testified that when he went to punch into the time clock, Petitioner was turned
toward him and “lapped” him in a fiendly manner on the shoulder and sald ™what's up Lump". Mr. Hall stated that petitioner was
gtanding on the bottomn rung of her chair and he then similarly "tapped” Petitioner on the shoulder and said “what's up Deb". Mr. Hall
stated rhat Petitioner then warned her not to push her because she could fali off her chalr. Mr. Hall stated that without teuching her,
petitionar fell off har chair as described.

B, Medical Treatment

After the accident, paramedics were called. Petitioner was then transported by para medics to Glen Oaks Hospital. Petilioner stated
that the paramedics injected her with patn medication to relieve her pain. .

AL Glen Oaks Hospital, Petitioner refated complaints of tatlbone paln, (PX7) The emergency roem physiclan diagnesed her with a
sacrococcyx cantusicn and discharged her home with Instructions [*16] to follow up with her primary care physiclan and with 2
prescription for Motrin and Vicodin, (PX7)

petitioner Lestified that she followed up with her primary physiclan, Dr. Shah on April 6, 2006 and then subseguently saw an
orthopedic physician, Bruce Montella, M., on April 8, 2006, On Petitioner's initisl vislt with Dr. Monteila, Pelitioner gave Dr. Mohtella
a history of belng pushed off her chair and refated ongolng difficulties with activity refated back pain and tailbone pain into her hips.
(PX8Y After examining Petitioner, Dr, Montelia assessed that Petitioner's back pain was consistent with a lumbar disc injury and
radiculltis. (PXB) Dr. Montela recommended non-operative management Including activity modification, anti-inflammatories, physical
therapy and chiropractic care. (PX8) Dr. Montelia also prescribed a Jumbar MRT and indicated that Petitioner was not to participate in
work In anyway, (PX8)

petitioner began physical therapy with Midwest Physical Therapy on April 18, 2006, On April 19, 2006, Petitioner underwent an MRI o
her fower back. The radlelogist's impression was degenerative disc disease most notable at the T12-L1 ievel with considerable disc
bulglng, probably [#£77] herniation causing spinal stengsis and compression of the thecal sac. (PX8).

On May 3, 2006, Petitioner followad up with Dr. Montelia, On that visit, Petitioner continued to report a lot of difflcuities with her back
and radiating leg paln consistent with lumbar disc herniation and radiculits. (PX8) Dr. Monlella again indicated that non-gperative
management was appropriate. (PX8) ’

At tie request of the Respondent, Petitionar was seen by its hired examiner, Jay Levin, M.D. Fetitioner refated to Dr, Lavin &
consistent history of her injury. {RX3,dep.ex.2) Petitioner reported pain shooling down both legs to her toes, painin both sides of her
buttocks and tow back bain. (RX3,dep.ex.2) Dr. Levin examined Petitioner and reviewed her MRI films, It was Dr. Levin's impression
that Petitioner had degenerative changes at T12-11 which were unrelated to her complaints. {RX3,dep.ex,2} Dr, tevin also Indicated
that Petitioner's injury was a lower lumbar contusion which could be treated with physical therapy and be resolved with nine sesslons
of physical therapy. (RX3,dep.ex.2) Dr. Levin Indicated that she was to be off of work until she completed treatment. (RX3,dep.ex,2)

petitioner followad up [*18] with Dr. Montella on May 25, 2006, Dr. Monteila felt that Petitioners exam was unchanged from
previous visits. (PX8) Dr. Montella felt that it was unreasonable for Pelitioner to return to work in any way. (PX8) Petitioner was
advised to continue with physical therapy and medications. (FX8).

On June 3, 2006, Respondent sent 3 letter to Petiioner indicating that she was expected to return to work per the opinions of their
examining physiclan, Dr. Levin, (RX1}. Petitioner testified that she did not return to work and that hetr workers' compensation benefits
wera terminated,

Petitloner contlnued to treat with Dr, Montelia. On June 9, 2006, Petitioner still reported severe symptoms, Dr, Montella
recommended the same non-operative care and also recommended that Petitioner proceed with epidural steroid injections, (PX8) Or.
Montetla further stated that Pelitioner was to be off of work. (PX8)

petitioner underwent a lumbar epidurat injection at T12-L1 on June 30, 2008, (PX17) Petitioner was seen on July 7, 2008 by Dr.
MonteHia. Petitloner symptoms appeared to be without change on that visit. (PX8) Dr. MonteHa recommended the same medical care
plan, (PX8)

On July 12, 2006, Dr. Levin re-examined [*18] Petitioner, Petitioner reported no relief from the epldural injection and was wailing to
have a second injection. (RX3,dep.ex.3) Petitioner informed Dr. Levin that she had sharp pain in her imid and lower back, bilateral
butlocks pain and right leg pain to the foot. (RX3,dep.ex.3) Dr. Levin indicated that he stood by his previous diagnosis of a lower
tumbar contusion and that her continued subjective complaints were not supported by objective imaging studies. (RX3,dep.ex.3}

On July 25, 2006, Petitioner underwent a lumbar epidural steroid injectlon at right L4-5 space. Petitloner followed up with Dr.
Montelia on August 3, 2006, Again, Dr. Montella indicated that Petitioner was Lo remaln off of work and continue with narcotic pain
medication ang another epidural sterold Injection. (PX8) Gn August B, 2006, Dr, Montella administered a lumbar epldural to both the
right 51 trensforaminal space and to the left Si transforaminal space. {PX8)

Petitioner continued with the non-operatlve management recommended by Dr. Montella, She was seen on August 31, 2006 at which
time Dr. Montellz continued the same recommendations. {PX8) On Petitfoner's next visit with Dr. Montelia on September 28, 2006,
[+20] Dr. Montella Indicated that he was referring Petitioner for 8 neurosurgical consuitation, (PX8)

On October 23, 2006, Petitioner was sean by a Anthony DiGianfilfipo, M.D., 2 neurosurgeon. Her main complaints were back pain and
pain down the right leg mainly to about the knee. (PX9) Dr. DiGianfiilipc examined Petitioner and reviewed her MRI, It was Dr,
DiGlanfiliipo's impression that Petltioner had a lumbar radicuiopathy, (PX9) br. DiGianfillipo was concerned with the S1 ares and the
Tiz-L1 area. (PX9) Dr. DiGIanfillipo recommended that Petitioner underge a myelogram. (PX9) The myelogram CV scan was
performed on October 26, 2006 revealed a broad based posterior disc protrusion at T12-11 with accompanying endplate osteophyte,
compression of the thecal sa¢ with moderate narrowing at the central canal and the thecal sac. (PX9)
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Or, DiGianfillipo reviewed the myelogram with Petitioner on November 13, 2006. Dr. OiGianfillipo seemed Lo express uncartainty asto
the involvement of the T12-L1 disc. (PX9) Dr. DiGianfillipo did not think Petitioner was a surgicat candidate and advised Petitioner that
she could resurme therapy or even another injection, (PX9) Dr. DiGlanfillipo did not think Petitioner [*21F could return to her Jine of
work. (FX9)

after consulting with Dr. DiGlanfilipo, Petitioner continued with the course of care recommended by Dr, Montelia. Petitioner tastifled
that she took the prescribed medications and followad up with Dr. Montelia oi a monthly basis, Petitioner was seen on Novemnber 22,
2006, January 3, 2007, January 31, 2007, March 17, 2007 and Aprll 19, 2007, On each of those visits Dr. Monteila’s
recommendations remained the same. {(PX8)

On May 14, 2007, Petitioner sought another opinion for nerself with Babak Lami, M.D,, an orthopedic surgeon. Petitioner gave a
history of the incrdent and related her symptoms of back and sacral pain. (PX15) Dr, Lami examined Patitioner angd reviewed the MRI
and myelegram, {PX15) It was Dr. Lami's impression that petitioner had low back pain with no deficit and cocoyodynla. (PX15) Dr.
Lami recommended a trigger point injection to the sacrum area. (PX15) Dr. Lauri also recommended that Petitioner be seen by a paid
specialist. (PFU15)

On May 17, 2007, Petitioner was seen by $onal Patel, M.D., 2 pain specialist at St. Alexius Medical Center, On that visit, Dr. Patal
examined Petitioner and diagnosed Petitioner with Coccygodynla locatized {#22] paln gecondary to the trauma to the coceygeal area.
(PX12) Dr. Patel administerad a trigger point injection to the coceygeal areal. {(PX12) Petitioner paln increased after the injection
which necessitated her o visit the emergency room aL St. Alexius Medical Center on May 21, 2007. (PX13) Petitioner visited with Dr.
Patel on May 22, 2007, Dr. Patel discontinued the injections and continued treating with her medications, (PX12).

petitioner was seen by Dr. Anifa Rac of the St. Alexian Medical Center on August 2, 2007, Petitioner reported continued pain in the
mid-back and coccyx with radiating pain to the lateral aspect of her right foot {(PX12) Petltioner indicated that her pain wag
aggravated with physical activity and prolonged sitting and that the medications were nat significantly helping her pain, (PX12) Dr.
Rao recommended that Petitioner undergo a lumbasacral MRI, (PX12) MR’s were performed on August 8, 2007 at $t, Alexius Medical
Center to both Petitioner's lumbar and thoracic spine. The MRIs revealed a large central disc herniation 2t T12-L1 with effacement of
the ventral CSF, moderate spinal stenosis and posterior displacement of the conus medutlarls, (PX12) Petitioner also [*23]
underwent an MRI of the pelvis area on August 16, 2007, The MRI of the pelvis revealed Tarlov cysts at the $1-52 level. (PX12) On
August 22, 2007, Dr. Rao examined the Palitioner. Dr. Rao felt that the maiority of her tailbone pain was tikely related to the fall onte
her coceyx which likely produced or aggravated the Tarlev cysts. {PX12) With regard to her mid-thoracic pain, Dr. Rao administered
an epidural sterold injection at T12-L1, (PX12}

petitioner saw Dr. Lami again on September 5, 2007, Petitioner still related tallbone pain. Dr. lL.ami suggested that Petilicner try a
trigger point injection to the tailbone, (PX15) Dr. tami Indicated that there really no ntervention for taitbone pain other than
rodatities and anti-inflammatories. {PX15)

On September 24, 2007, Petitionar consulted again with Dr. DiGtanfilllpo Petitioner reported significant discomfort in her tallbone,
mid-back and right leg including her groin area. (PX9) Dr. DiGiandillipe reviewed the new MRI studies, (PX9). It was Dr. Glanfillipo's
impression that Tarlov cysts were more of a normat finding, (PX9} Dr. Glanfillipo, however, was concerned with the T12-11 disc. Br.
Gianfillipo indicated that her symptoms could [*24] be radiating down form that disc, but was not certain at that tirme, (PX9) Dr.
DiGianfillipo felt that it was appropriate to perform surgery to the Ti2-11 disc.

On October 16, 2007, Petitioner underwent a T12-L1 laminectomy with bilateral foraminotomy and decom pression of the spinal canal
and nerve roots st Alexian Brother Medical Center. {PX9)(PX13) Dr. DiGlanfillipo opined that during the surgery he found the Ti2-L1

disc was more compressed than thought. (PX11,p.24) Petitioner was an inpatient at Alexian Brothers Medlcal Center and discharged

on October 231, 2007, (PX13)

On or about November 1, 2007, fetitioner was notified by the Respondent thal the health insurance she still had from the Respondent
was stopped.

petitionar foflowed up with Dr. DiGianfillipo on Novemnber 5, 2007, On that visit, Petitioner reported she was dolng well, (PX9)
Petitioner indicated that she still had probiems with the spastns down the right feg, but she did not have the teilbone pain that she
had prior to surgery. (PX9) Dr. DiGlanfilippe recommended that she try to increase her activity and probably start a therapy program
in @ month. (PX9) On deposition, Dr, DiGianfillipe felt that there was a correlation f*25] with the surgical decompression of the T12-
L1 disk and the relief of Petitioner's tailbone pain. (PX11,p.25)

On November 26, 2007, Petitioner was seen by Dr. DiGianfillippo. Petitioner related that she had significant pain more down her left
leg and left buttock area, (PX9) Dr. DiGianfillipo felt that her symptoms were fairly common postoperatively, but was concerned about
the intensity of her pain, {PX$) Dr. DiGianfillipo discussed a pain center evaiuation as well as physical therapy and a repeat MRI scan,
(PX9) Due to Petitioner's Insurance issues, D, DiGlantiflipo could only prescribe medications, {PX11,p.29)

Petitioner testified that due to her health insurance being stoppad by the Respondent she could not get herself immediately into
physical therapy. Petitioner stated that she was finally able to work cut an arrangernent with her physical therapist and was able to
begin & physical therapy program on January 10, 2008 at Midwest Physical Therapy. {PX14}

petitoner foliowed up with Dr. DiGlanfillipo on February 4, 2008, On that visit she stated that was doing better. (PX10) She stated
that she stilt had spasms in her legs, but her tzilbone paln was nonexistent since surgery. (PX10} [*26] petitioner reported that she
could not sit more than 15 minutes and her spasms could be gither side. (PX10) Dr. DiGianfillipe recommended that she continue with
physical therapy and the prescribed medications. (PX10)

On deposition, Dr. DiGianfitipo identifled Petitloner's reported symatoms In three specific ateas, the mid-back pain, tumbar pain and
right leg pain, (PX11,p.38) With regard to Petitioner's right leg pain, Dr. DiGianfllipo indicated that he was unable to find a source of
her gain, but believed that the accident may or couid have caused her clinical symptoms. {PX11,p,38)Dr. DiGianfillipo indicated that
the objective tests of an MRI and myelogram did not show a 51 radiculopathy, but on clinical exam Petitioner did evidence a absent
right ankle jerk reflex which is indicative of a 53 radiculopathy, (PX11,p.84) Dr. Levin also noted an absent right ankle jerk refiex oh
Mg July 12, 2008 examination. (RX3,p.40; dep.ex.3) As to causation, Dr. DiGianfiflpo indicated that there was a relationship between
petitioner's right teg pain and the work refated injury based on the onset of her symptoms immediately sfter the sccident (RX3,p.40;
dep.ex.3)
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As to the taiibone pain, Dr. [*27] DiGianfilipo pointed to the TiZ-L1 disc and pointed out the fack that the decompression raliaved
her discomfors, (PX11,0.42) Dr. DiGlanfilipo indicated that the fall of the chalr could have aggravated a pre-existing herniation,
(PX11,p.42} Dr. DiGianfillipo presented 2 similar opirdon 85 L0 patitioners mid-back pain indicating that was a combination of stenosis
at T12-L1 and some muscutar or myofascal component. (PX1%,p.42)

AL deposition, both Dr, DiGianfillipe and Dr. Levin were presented the report of CT scan of Petitioner's abdomen dated February 25,
2004 showing that Petitioner had evidence of a herniation at T12-L1 at that time. Both doctors acknowiedged that the finding on the
CT scan was just an Incidental finding. (RX3,p.35.36 }{PX11,p. 85,86).

Dr. CaGianfilipe testified that as of the date of deposition, Petitloner was unabie to return to work, (FX11,p.88)
FINDINGS

With regard to {(C) Did an accident ocour that arose out of and in the course of Petitioner's employment with the
Respondent, the Arbitrator finds the following:

Petitioner presented a detalled account of her warkstation and the droumstances of her injury, Additional testimony with regard to
the [*28] detais of the incident were provided by the other person involved, Robert Hall, Though a few details of the incident differ,
wihat s evident from all of the accounts is that Petitioner fell from her stool chalr while she was performing the duties of her job. The
petitloner sat in an elevated stool chair ralsed to four feet. Petitioner's feet could not touch the floor. In order to accommodate Mr.
Hali's girth so that he could access the tme clock Petitioner moved herself away from her desk and agalnst the wail. When Petitioner
and Mr, Hall grestad each other, Petitioner was leaned forward on her seat cushion and standing on the lower rung of the chair,
petitioner then greeted Mr. Mall with a small pat of tap on the shoulder which the Arblgrator finds was not out of the ordinary nor did
it any way deviate from normal conduct i the workplace. Thereafter, Petitioner elther was pushed off the chair by Mr. Hali as
Petitionar contends or somehow 105t her balance as Mr. Hall claims, If Pelitioner was pushed, the Arbitrator cannot find anything
within Petitioners conduct that would congtitute an act of horseplay to provoke a response of being pushed off a chair. From all
accounts, it appears [¥29] that Petitioner was a diligent worker and had no history of horseplay on the job. Mr, Hall, on the other
hand, appeaars to sometimes engage in horseplay with his co-workers that could be outside the scope of empioyment IF there was any
horseplay involved in Petitioner's accident i would have been on the part of Mr. Hail bagsed on his actions after baing warned not to
push the Petitioner.

i peritiones's fall occurred nct because she was pushed but somehow fost her balance, the Arbitrator can certainly ook to Petitloner's
actions of moving out of Mr. Hall's way and the awkward way she was situated in her chalr to expiain her fall. These actions were afi
done to accommodate a coworker so that he could punch into the time clock.

Regardless of whose account of the injury is true, it Is the Arbitrators finding that petitoners fall did arise out of and In the course of
Petitioner's employment. The Arbitrator relies on the fact that Petitloner chalr was somewhat unstable based on the helght of
elevation, the small distance between Petitioner's chair and the time clock, the fact that she had to mave herself to accommodate, Mr.
Hall, the awkward way that she had sat in the chair at the time, [*30] and the fact that she merely greeted Mr. Hall with a paton
the shouider which as discussed was not out of the ordinary.

With regard to (F) Is the Petitioner present condition of ill-belng causally reiated to the injury, the Arbitrator finds the
following:

Prior to the injury, Petitioner had no history of back problems. After the injury, petitioner reported immediate pain in her Laiibone
pain. Thereafter, Petitioner consistently reported ongolng pain in her tailbone and back throughout her course of treatment,

Early on, Respondent had Petitioner examined by Jay Levin, M.D. After performing his clinical evatuation and reviewing the iumbar
MRI, br. Levin Opihed that he could not find objective evidence to support a diagnosis to Petitioner’s radieting leg pain:
(PX11,p.20,21) Dr, Levin stated that the pain In both sides of her buttocks couid be conslstent with a lumbar strain. (PX11,p.20,21} 1t
was D, Levin's impression that Petitioner had degenerative Changes at Ti2-11 which were unrelzted to her com plaints.
(R¥3,dep.ex.2) Overall, Or. Levin feit that Petltioner had symptom magnlflcation based on & lack of correfation belween her
subjective complaints, the objective findings, [¥31] and the mechanism of injury, (PX11,p.22) On re-examination on July 12, 2008,
Dr. Levin, after conducting another exam, reafiirmed the same conclusions and stated that he did not belleve Petitioner requirad any
further medical care and could work fuli duty. (PX11,p.27) On ¢cross-examination, Dr. Levin acknowiedged an absent right ankie
reflex. (PX11,p.38,39) He also testified that he does approximately two fundred medical exams annuaily of which ninety-five percent
of them are done on behalf of employers, {PX11,p.42,44)

Petitloner was Under the course of care of Dr. Bruce Montella from April 8, 2006 through April 19, 2007. Throughout the entire period
Fetitioner treated with Dr. Montelia, she consistently reported back and leg pain. (PX8} It was Dr. Montella's oplnion that the WOrK
refated injury caused her pre-existing degenerative condition to become symplomatic, (PX8,1/3/07 office note) Dr. Montelia made
note that she was working fuil duty prior to the fall without any format treatment to her disc. {PX8, 1/3/07 office note) it was Dr.
Montelia's opinion on each of his office visits with the Petitioner that it was unreasonable for hey to participate in work in anyway.
(PX8) In Dr. [%32} Montelia’s last Work Restriction Order dated April 19, 2087, he did permit Petitioner to work light duty with
significant restrictions. (PXE)

Dr. DiGlanfilipe wrote a narrative report and gave his deposition as to this matter, It was his opinion from a clinical standpeint that
Petitioner’s symptoms were refated to her fall off the chair. (PX1i,dep.ex.2,p.5) Dr, DiGlanfilippo expounded his opinions during the
deposition to state that he believed that Petitlonar's right eg pain, tailbene pain and mid-back pain were all associated with the fall.
{PX11,0.40-42) Cr. DiGianfilipo attibuted the tailbone pain and mid-back pain to the herniated Ti2-11 disc which he believed
became symptomatic after the fall. (PX11,p.42) With regard to Petitioners right leg pain, Dr. DiGianfililpo expiained that he had
difficuity assesstng he source of the right feg pain, but believed that her leg pain was related to the fall given that he had no other
history of problems beforehand, (PX11,p.40,41)

The Arbitrator has Laken into consideration the opinions of the treating physicians and Respondent's hired examiner and finds that the
opinions of the treating physicians, Dr. Montella and Dr. DiGlanflliipe [*33] to be more persuasive. The medical records show an

immediate onset of tailbone symptoms from the morent she fell off the chair. Her other symploms with regard to leg paln and upper
back pain followed shortly thereafter evidenced by Dr. Montella's first examination of the Petitioner on April 8, 2006, (PX8}. From that
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time and on, Petitioner's symptoms never subsided urtil she aventually had surgery on Cetober 16, 2007, Al that time, Petitioner
underwent a decompression of the T12-11 disc which provided her Immediate relief to her talibone pain. The very fact that
patitioner's talibone pain disappeared post-surgery provides to the Arbitrator clear evidence that the Ti2-11 disc was the source of
Patitioner's taitbone and mid-back symptoms all along, Although it was estabiishad that the herplation at the T12-L1 level was present
as early as February of 2004 based on an indldent finding of a CT scan of the abdomen, there Is ne gvidence that Petitioner had any
symptoms of any kind before the accident that resembled the symptoms she developed immediately thereafter, It is apparent that
the falh against the metal cabinets and onto the Hoor aggravated a previously asymptomatic condition. For [*347 the reasons stated,
the Arbitrator finds that the Petitioner's present medical condition is causally related to {ncident that occurred on April 4, 2006.

With regard to (J) Were the medical services that were provided to Petitioner reasonable and necessary, the Arbitrator
finds the following:

Tha Petitioner identified medical blils that she incurred during the course of time she trested for her work related injuries. (PX4) The
medical bills all correspon d to reasonable and necessary medical treatment or prescriptions that Petitionar received from her treating
physicians. The Arbitrator has reviewed the medical bills and finds that the Respondent is to pay the Petitioner the medical charges
submitted as Petitioner's Group Exhiblt 4 subject to the medical fee schedule established by Section 8 of the Illinols Workers'
Compensation Act.

With regard to (K), What amount of cotmpensation is due for temporary total disability, the Arbitrator finds the
followina:

Beginning on the date of injury, Petitioner was disabled from work, Dr. Mentelta congistently indicated that he did not believe that
petitioner was to work in any way beginning with his first appointment on Aprit 8, [*35] 2006 up untl his fast visit on April 19, 2007
wherein he permitied the Patitloner to work with restrictions. {PX8) Specifically, Dr. Montella indicated that Petitioner could work light
duty with no excessive twisting, turning, bending, sitting or standing. Furthermore, no stair climbing, kneeling, squatting, pushing,
pulling, overhead fifting and no HIfting greater than ten to fifteen pounds. (PX8) Respondent Initially paid termporary total disabiiity but
discontinued them on June 3, 20086, based on the refiance of ILs hired medical examiner, Jay Levin, M.D,

petittoner acknow!edged that due to her lack of finances and upon the advice of her first legal counse! she attempted to work between
the period of February 27, 2007 and April 27, 2007, Patitioner testified that she worked as Service Writer at Woody BPG, Inc.
According to Petitioner and Respondent’s witness, Joya Sanders, she earned § 500.00 per week plus & 2,000.00 in monthly
commissions. {RX8) Petitloner testified that she was in a lot of pain during the time period she worked and that Is one of the primary
reasons why she had to resign her position. It slso apparent from Petitioners personnel file at Woody BPG thal she had some {*#36]
issues with some of her coworkers behavior which contributed to hetr decigion to resign, {RX8)

After Petitioner's unsuccessful attempt to work, Petitioner remained off of worlc thereafter. Petitloner discontinued treating with Dr,
Montella and treated with Dr. Lami, Dr, Patel and Dr, Rao, and Dr. DiGianfillipo.

Based on the medical records and the opinions of the treating physicians, the Arbltrator finds that the Petitioner was temporary totally
disabled from April 5, 2006 to February 25, 2007 and from April 28, 2007 to the date of hearing, Aprli 22, 2008. The Petitioner is not
entitled to any tempeorary partial disability for the time perted she attempted to work since her earnings at Woody B PG exceaded
her average weakly wage that she earned for Respondent, Accerdingly, the Arbitrator orders the Respondent to pay to Pefitioner
temporary total disability benefits at the rate of § 491.47 per week for 98 2/7 weeks or $ 48,304.48 less Respondent's credit of §
4,263,48 or § 44,0641.00.

With regard to (L), Should penalties or fees be imposed upon the Respondent, the Arbitrator finds the following!:

Respondents has presented two defenses Lo Peti Honer's ¢laim, The first was that It contended [*37] that Petitioner's injury did not
arige In the course of employment and second that it was justified in stopping benefits based on the opinion of its hired examiner, Jay
Levin, M.0.

As 1o its defense that an accident did not arlse out of the course of employment, it is obvious that theory had no support, especially in
light of the fact that Mr, Hall acknowledged the fact that Petitioner merely tapped him on the shoulder with 2 cordiat greeting.
Respondent's own general managear indicated that he was provided that history by both Petitioner and Mr. Hall immadfately after the
injury. For Respondent to contend that its stoppage of benefits was justified based on the theory that Petitioner accident did not arlse
oul of the course of employment was inconsistent with the evidence presentad in this matter.

The second defense that Respondent presents is that its examiner presented an orthopedic opinion indicating that Petitloner could
return back to work full duty, However, a considerable amount of evidence was presented in this matter by various doctors, clearly
suggesting that the Petitioner digd suffer a condition of lil-being as consequence of her falling off the chair at her place of employment.
[#*38] The Arbitrater further notes that while Dr. Levip is a respacted examiner in this Kind of matiter, his findings and opinions
concerning the Petitioner are not acceptable. Unfortunately, Respondent relying solely on Dr. Levin's assessment without considering
patitioner's own treating physician, Dr. Montella, stopped her benefils.

n this case it was clear that Petitioner sustalned a serlous incident. In this case, i was clear that Petitloner sustained a serfous
incident. Petitioner exhibited clear and consistent symptoms thereaffer, Dr, Levin examined Petitioner on May 10, 2006 and
speculated without seaing her again, that she could return to work after nine physical therapy sessions. (RX3,dep.ex.2)

Tha Arbitrater finds the basis of Respondents denial to be unpersuasive. Respondents defense in denying benefits was frivelous and
its actions justify the imposition of penalties pursuant to Sections 19(k) and 19(I} and attorneys fees under Section 16. Pursuant Lo
Section 19(1), the Arbitrator awards Petitioner the sum of § 10,000.00, which is the maximum allowed under the statute.

With regard to Section 19(k) penalties, the Arbitrator awards 50% of the owed temporary total disability or [*38] § 22,020.50. The
Arbitrator also awards to Petitioner 50% of the unpaid medical bills after they are reduced by the medical fee schedule.

Lastly with regard to $ection 18 attorneys fees, the Arbitrator orders the Respondent to pay to Pefitioner's attornay, 20% of the total
unpaid TTD,

with regard to (M), 15 the Respondent due any credit, the Arbitrater finds the following:
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respondent hag indicated that It claims a Section B(3) credit as to alf the bills paid by the group medical pian, but has hot intreduced
any evidence or testimony to reflect the amount of its claimed credit. Accordingly, the Arbitrator is unable to extend Regpendent its
clalimed credit.
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G IWCC 621; 2009 HI. Wrk. Comp, LEXIE 594, *
JESSICA RICHARDSON, PETITIONER, v, VERMILION MANOR NURSING HOME, RESPONDENT.
NO: 06W(C29G68
ILLINOIS WORKERS® COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF JLLINOIS, COUNTY OF VERMILION
9 IWCC &21; 2009 1L wrk. Comp, LEXIS 594
June 18, 2009

CORE TERMS: arbitrator, temporary total disabllity, worker's compensation, group health, carrier, covering, finger, mileage, little
finger, maximum, date of service, termination, {erminated, functional, fracture, partial, amount of compensation, partial disability,
g;ll\,;riitcai therapy, disptited issues, return to work, loss of use, left hand, Intermittently, medication, steadily, cardiag, surgery, notice,
JUDGES: Nancy Lindsay; Yolaine Dauphin
OPINION: [*1]
DECISION AMD OPINION CN REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review having been filed by Petitioner herein and notice given o all parties, the Commission, alter considering the
Issues of causal connection, temperary total disabllity, and medical expenses, and belng advised of the facts and law, afflrms and

adopts the Decislon of the Arbitrator, which is attached herelo and made a part hereof.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Dacision of the Arbitrator filed May 20, 2008 is hereby affirmed and
adopted.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respendent pay to Petitioner interest under §19(n) of the Act, if any.

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent shali have credit for ail amounts paid, If any, to or on behalf of
the Petitioner on account of said accidental injury.

Bond for removal of this cause to the Circuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 5,800.00. The probalbte cost of the
record to be filed as return to Summons is the sum of $ 35.00, payable Lo the Tilinois Workers' Compensation Commission in the form
of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: JUN [*2] 18 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adiustment of Clalm was filed in this matter, and a Nofice of Hearing was mailed to each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Ruth White, arbitrator of the Commission, in the city of Danville, on April 21, 2008, Alter reviewing ali of
the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches those findings to
this decunent.

DISPUTED ISSUES

1. Were the medical services that were provided (o petitioner reasonable and necessary?

K. What amount of compensation Is due for temporary total disability?

l.. What is the nature and extent of the injury?

Q. Other mileage

FINDINGS

. On §/722/08, the respondenk Jessica Richardsoh was operating under and subject to the provislons of the Act,

. On this date, an employee~employer relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondant.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustaln injuries that arose out of and in the course of employment,

. Timely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.
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. Inthe [¥3] year preceding the injury, the petitloner earned § 18,581.16; the average weekly wage was $ 387.33.

. AL the time of Infury, the petitioner was 21 years of age, single with 0 children under 18.

. Necessary medical services have been provided by the respondent,

. To date $ 11,872.21 has been paid by the respendent for both TTD and maintenance beneflts and an advance against permanency.
ORDER

. The respondent has paid the petitioner temporary total disability benefits of $ 238.22/week intermittently from 7725706 through

12/2/06. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary totat disabiity benefits of 238,22 /week for a further period of 8 and
2/7 weeks from and inciuding 12/3/06 through 2/8/07 which 1s the period of temporary total disability for which compensation is
payabie. Cialm for further temporary total disability benefits is denied,

. The respondent shali pay the petitioner the sum of $ 214.40/week for 3 further period of 30.75 weaks, as provided in Section &(e)
(9) of the Act, because the injuries sustained caused loss of use of the left hand to the extent of 15% thereof,

.The [*41 respondent shaill pay the petitioner compensation that has accrued from 5/22/06 through 4/21/08, and shall pay the
remainder of the award, if any, in weekly payments.

. The respondent shall pay the further sum of § 8,734.29 for necessary medical services, as provided in Sectlon 8(a) of the Act.
, The respondent shall pay $ N/A in penaities, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ N/A in penslties, as provided in Section 12(1) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ N/A in attorneys' fees, as provided in Sectlon 16 of the Act,

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petiffon for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Ruies, then this decision shali be entered as the decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest of 1.88% shall accrue from the date listed bejow to the day
beforg the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal results In sither no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall
not accrue.

Signature of Arbitrator
May 15, 2008

Date

MAY 20 2008

In support of the Arbitrator’s [*5]} decision relating to (L) what is the nature and extent of the injury, the Arbitrator
finds as foliows:

The Petitioner was in the course of her usual empioyment for the Respondent when she fell to the floor while dealing with a
troubiesome resident, striking her left smalt finger, She was diagnosed with a fracture of the little finger, and received extensive
treatment in the form of physical therapy and medication from varieus physicians at Carle Clinic, including Dr. Sobeskl, an orthopedic
surgeon, Uttimately it was decided that she needed a compiex surgery on the finger, which, according to the records and the
petitioner's testimony, the physicians at Cade did not feel they were qualified to perform. Consequently, she was referred by Dr.
Sobeski to the Indiana Hand Center where she was treated by Dr. Kaplan.

Dr. Kaplan parformed surgery on the Petitioner’s left littie finger to repair the fracture on September 25, 2006, Thereafter, the
Peritioner saw Dr. Kaplan several times in follow-up. According to Dr. Keplan's last note {Respondent's Exhiblt 8, also contained in
Petitiohel's Exhibit 7) dated February 8, 2007, the Petitioner declined further treatment. Dr. Kaplan then declared [#6] she was al
maximum medical improvemeant and could return Lo work without restrictions.

In the meantime, the Petitioner had been working light duty for the Respendent during which time she was paid a partial temporary
disability benefit as decumented on Petitioner's Exhibit 17. Petitioner was terminated by letter dated December 18, 2006 from her
employment on the grounds of insubordination (Respondent's Exhiblt 4). At trial, the Petitioner acknowladged the termination, but
denied that she had been Insubordinate. Respondent's Exhibit 4, the termination letter frem Joan C. Dan, Administrator, is not
entirely inconsistent with Petitioner's Exhibit 15, a letter of recommendation from Karen Malone, Sehedule Coordinator, which
describes only performance of duties.

AL trial, the Petitioner displayed the left little finger, which was in a fiexed position, The Patitioner testified she has & lirnited range of
motion In the finger and, demonstrated that range for the Arbitrator, Petitioner testified the finger hurts when it hits anything,
sometimes sending sensations up her arm, She also alleged she is limitad in her abitity to pick up heavy objects with the left hand. As
of the time of trial Petitioner [*7] had not seen any physician for a period of approxi mately ong year. She was taking no prescription
medications but did occagionally take over the counter ibuprofen for pain.

As of the trial, the Petitioner was unempioyed although she testified that she was in an active job search. She did not produce any
documentation of a job search, Her testimony on this point was vague and she did not identify specific businesses Lo which she had
applied.

The Arbitrator finds the Petitioner's injury is limited to the fracture to her left small finger; however, that Injury has Impaired her
hand. Paetitioner testified that she is right handed and the ieft is her non-dominate hand, The Arbitrator finds the Petitioner sustained
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aloss of use of the left hand to the extent of 10% thereof.

In support of the Arbitrator's decision relating to {(K) what amount of comp ensation is due for temporary total disability,
the Arbitrator finds as follows:

The Arbitrator finds the facts as Indicatad in the section above.

It was agreed that the Petitioner began Josing time on July 25, 2006 according to Petitioner's Exhibit 17, which the parties agree is a
partial record of payments made by the Respondent’s handling [¥8] agency. She was pald TTD steadily from that dste through
September 4, 2006 and then was on temporary partial disability through September 23, 2006, and back on temporary total
disabitity effective September 24, 20086. She was paid the TTD steadlly through November 25, 2008, when she went back on partial
remporary disability beginning on November 28, 2006 through Decemper 2, 2006 and her termination of employmant. At that time
she was stilf under the care of Dr. Kaplan and was released at maxhimum medical improvement on February 8, 2007,

Following her release by the treating specialist, Dr. Sobeski issued one note dated Aprit 23, 2007, {Petitioner's Exhiblt 1) Dr, Sobesk
does not note any change in the Petitioner's condition as cormparad to when she had been released by Dr. Kaplan over two and haif
months earfler, Although Dr. Sobeskd mentions a functlonal capadity evaluation, no such report was included in the Petitioner's
exhibits, Dr. Sobeski referred the Patitioher to Dr. Kaplan as the expert on this type of injury. The arbitratoer finds Dr. Kaplan's release
of the Petitioner to be determinative.

petitioner is awardad TTD and maintenance intermittently beginning July 25, 2006 through [#9] December 2, 2006 when she was
terminated. The peried in dispute is from the date of termination, December 2, 2006, through the date of arbitration. When Petitioner
wag terminzted she had not reached maximum medical improvement, Dr. Kaplan released Petitioner at maxirmum medical
improvement, February 8, 2607, Petitioner is sntitied to additional temporary total disabiilty benefits from December 2, 2006 through
February 8, 2007, a perlod of @ and /7 weeks. This period is awarded in addition to the period of intermittent total and partial
disability from July 24 to December 2, 2006.

Al other claims for temporary total disabliity are denied,

in support of the Arbitrator's decision relating to {3} were the medical services that were provided to petitioner
reasonable and necessary, the Arbitrator finds as follows:

The Arbitrator finds the facts as indicated in the sections above,

The madical bilig the Petitioner presented at triat are contained in her Exhibits 2, 5, 7, 9, 10, 11 and 14. The following dispositions are
made:

Exhiblt 2, a bill from Carie Clinic Association date July 15, 2006 covering dates of service of May 1, 2006 1o July 12, 2006 in the total
amoeunt of § 3,266,00, is [*10} awarded in favor of the Petitioner. The Arbitrator notes this bill specifically states that it does not
sccount for payments made, Regpondent is ewarded credit for any and all payments made on this bill whether through this worker's
compensation claim or its group health carrier,

As to Exhibit 5, a bill from Cade Foundation Hospited for physical therapy services In the amount of § 521.00, with no date of service
listed, this bill is awarded. This is a balance forwarding billing not showing a date of service or record of payment, Respoendent is
awarded credit for any and all payments made on this bill whether through this worker's compensation claim or Its group health
carrier.

As to Exhibit 7, the last four pages of this Exhibit is the account record from Indiana Hand Center showlng a balance due of § 187.00.
This bill is awarded in favor of the Petitioner, Respondent is awarded credit for any and ail payments made on this bill whether
through this worker's compensation clalm or its group health carrier,

Patitioner's Exhibit 9 containg a bHI from Proven a United Sarnaritan Medical Center dated December 27, 2006 covering dates of
service from November 14, 2006 through December 14, 2006, [*11] This bill shows no balance due.

Petitioner's Exnibit 10, a bill for $ 10.99 from CVS Pharmacy for the date of service of September 29, 2606 s awarded in favor of the
petitioner, Respondent is awarded credit for any and ail paymants made on this bill whether through this worker's compensation claim
or its group he afth carrier,

Petitioner’s Exhibit 11, a bill from Provena United Samaritan Medical Center dated October 15, 20067, coverlng dates of service from
January 9, 2007 through March 30, 2007, shows no balance owing.

Petitioner's Exhibit 14, contains several hills Including three separate bills from Provena United Samaritan Medical Center, The bili
covering the admisslon date of Novem ber 25, 2006 in the amount of $ 1,020.40 is awarded in faver of the Petitioner. The bill covering
the admission date of January §, 2007 in the smount of § 1,542.10 Is awarded i favor of the Petitioner. As to both of those bills,
Respondent is awarded credit for any and all payments made on this bill whethar through this worker's compensation claim or its
group health carrier,

Petiioher's Exhibit 14 also includes a bili from FProvena United Samaritan Medical Center covering an admission on September [*12]
13, 2008, This bill Is denled, with the exception of a charge for $ 71,20 for a wrist splint and $ 167,10 for the application of safd spiint
which is awarded the Pelitioner. The basls for denal of this bill 1s that the rest of the treatment thereon is for cardiac complaints.
Petitioner presented no testimony from any physician as to how a broken little finger could cause cardiac difficulties. For the same
reason a charge contalned in Pelitioner Exhibit 14 from Iliana Emergency Physicians LLP with a service date of September 13, 2006 i3
denied,

Petitioner's Exhibit 14 also containg another bill from Illiana Emergency Physicians LLP with a service date of November 25, 2006 and
a balance or § 208,00, That bill is awarded In favor of the Petiticner. Responklent is awarded credit for any and all payments made on
this bill whether through this worker's compensation claim or its group heaith carrier.

Petitioner's Exhlbit 14 aisc contains a bill from Carle Clinic Association for x-rays taken June 15, 2006 in the amount of $ 110,00, That
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bill iz awarded in favor of the Petitioner, Respondant is awarded credit for any and all payments made on this bill whether through
this worker's compen sation [*13] claim or #ts group heaith carrier.

Petitionar's Exhibit 14 atso contains a bill from Carle Foundation Hospital for therapy services with an admisslon date of 11/03/06 in
the amount of § 1,630.50. This bil} Is awarded in faver of the Petitioner, Respondent is awarded credit for any and all payments mada
on thig bill whether thirough this worker's compensation claim or its group health carrier.

Lastly, Petitioner’s Exhibit 14 contalns & bill from Indiana Hand Center dated July 6, 2007 showing a balance of § 187.00. The
Arbitrator finds that this is the same bill contained in Petitioner's Exhibit 7, dealt with above.

in support of the Arbitrator's decision relating to (0) mileage, the Arbitrator finds as follows:
The Arbltrator finds the facts as indicated above,

petitionar's Exhiblt 13 is a mileage log kept by the Petitioner for her trigs to the Indlanapolis, Indians area for treatment by Dr.
Kaplan. This records shows a total 1,047 miles traveled. The Petitioner treated with Dr, Kaplan frorn the later part of 2006 into the
very early part of 2007, At that time, the State of Illinois reimbursement rate for mileage was 45 cents per mile.

The Arbitrator awards the Petitioner the sum [*14] of § 471.15 in mileage relmbursement.
CONCURBY: MOLLY C." MASON

DISSENTBY: MOLLY C. MASON

DISSENT: Partiad Concurrence and Dissent

I agree with all aspacts of the majority opinion other than the denial of temporary tetat disabliity benefils after February 8, 2007.
While It is true that Petitioner esked Pr. Keplan to discharge her from {reatment on February 8, 2007, it is reasonable to infer that she
did s because she needed to return to work for fi nancial reasons. Petitioner was still symptomatic as of February 8, 20067 and
obtained 2 refill of Uitracet on that date. PX 7. I would have awarded additional temporary total disabliity benefits from April 24, 2007
through December 18, 2007 (the date on which Petitioner failed Lo attend a Section 12 examination with Dr. Naam). When Petitioner
resumed care 'on April 23, 2007, she teld Dr. Scbeski that she was still having difficulty flexing and extending her finger and he
indicated she might benefit from a Fusion, He alsodmposed multiple restrictions, including no Hiting over five pounds with the left
hand, and prescribed an EMG and a functional capacity evaluation, He made Respondent aware of his restrictions and treatment
recommendations {PX 1, pp. 2-3 of 17) but [*15] Petitioner naver underwent the EMG or functional capacity evaluation. I view
Pelitloner's madical condition as unstable as of April 23, 2007, Freeman.United Coal v, Industrial Commisslon, 318 I Ape.3d 120,
JZL (! 20007,
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KAREN . BATTS, PETITIONER, v. BARNES & NOBLE, RESPONDENT.
NO: 07TWC6330
JLLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATICN COMMISSION
STATE QF ILLINCIS, COUNTY OF PEORIA
2009 1. wrk, Comp. LEXIS 685
June 29, 200%

CORE TERMS: knee, left knee, pain, therapy, physical therapy, patient, ahkle, arbitrator, reptacement, right fool, bone, surgery,
arthritis, temporary, x-rays, patelicfemoral, femur, degenerative arthritls, medical treatment, exacerbation, recommended,
mpression, peronesl, lateral, tendon, ficor, foot, l2f leg, symptoms, doctor

JUDGES: Molly C. Mason; Yolaine Dauphin; Nancy Lindsay
OPINION: [*1]
DECISION AND QPINION ON REVIEW

Timely Petition for Review under §19(b) having been filed by Petitioner and Respondent hereln and notice given to all parties, the
Commission, after considering the issues of causal connaction, medical expenses and prospective medical expenses, and being
advised of the facts and law, modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otheswise affirms and adopts the Decision of
the Arbitrator, which Is attached hereto and made & part hereof. The Commission-further rernands this case to the Arbitrator for
turther proceedings for a determination of a further amount of temporary total compensation or of compensation for parmanent
dlsability, If any, pursuant to Thomas.y. Jodustrial Commisslon, 78 024 327, 399 N.£.2d 2322, 35.11L.0Dec. 794 (19803

After considering the entire record, the Commission modifies the Arbitrator's causation findings. The Commission agrees with the
Arbitrator's denial of prospective lef knee replacement surgery but finds that the undisputed accident of September 25, 2006, in
combination with a new accident or event that occurred after Petitioner resumed [*2] working in the spring of 2007, gave rise to
the need for the consarvative left knee care that Petltioner underwent in June and July of 2007, before the knee replacement was
recemmended.

The Commission finds the Arbitrator's recitation of facts refating to Petitioner's left knee condition to be incomplete. There is no
question that Petitloner injured both her left knee end her right foot when she fell at work on September 25, 2006, There Is also no
quastion that she reported some left knee symptomss in October of 2006. She aiso claimed that these symptoms returned when she
resumaed activity aftar her January 5, 2007 right foot surgery and began therapy for her foot, She testifled that she informed her
therapist, Traci Reach, of these sympltoems. T. 18, The Arbitrator viewed (his testimony as Inconsistent with the treatment records,
While it is true that the April and May 2007 therapy records do not mention left knee complaints, Trad Reach's therapy evaluation of
June 13, 2007 reflects that Petitioner began experiencing incressed left knee pain “"after she had surgery on her right ankie and was
placing more stress through her left knee,” This evaluation aiso reflects that Petitioner had [*3] “cleaned floors at work [the
preceding] weekend on her hands and knees" and described her left knee pain as "evan worse” following this activity. PX 4. Whan
petitioner saw Dr, Merkley on June 18, 2007, she again reported that her left knee pain had increased "during therapy for her right
foot.* She also reported that she had recently resumed working four hours per day and that she was having "difficuity with kneeling,
squatiing and cleaning activities that require her to be on her hands and knees.” The doctor injected her left knee and released her to
restricted duty. On July 26, 2007, Dr. Smith noted complaints of anterior left knee paln and commiented that this pain "seems to be
simply a flare of [Petitioner's] ostecarthritis.” He released her to her normal 40-hour work week. PX 4.

The records described above wou id support an award of expenses asseciated with the conservative jeft knee care that Petitioner
underwent between June 2007 and July 28, 2007 but Petitionar did not claim or submit any bills relating to this care. Arb Exh 1.

Petitioner did cialm prospective care in the form of the left knee replacement surgery recem mended by Dr. Merkley. The Arbitrator
property relied on Respondent's [#4] examiner, Dr, Lehman, in denying this claim hut could have also relled on records and diary
entries concernlag the left knee Injury that Petitionr sustained as a child. While Petitioner tended to downplay or omit mention of this
fnjury when providing histories to varicus physicians after the work accident, her records show that she was hit by a bus at age five,
that she spent two years in a hospital after this accigent and that this accident jeft her with a chronic left knee condition. In her inttial
diary entry of September 25, 2008, Pelitioner noted that customers offered her assistance after she fell but that she preferved to use
her own methods to gat to her feet: " know how to handle my leg due to an old childhood Injury in the left knee (still remains to this
day something I have to take care of)." PX 5.

IT IS THEREFORE OROERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay te Petitioner the sum of $ 286.66 per week for & period

of 33 weeks, that being the peticd of termporary tola} incapacity for work under §8(b), and temporary partial disablity through
August 18, 2007, with Respondent receiving credit for the $ 10,980.52 in benafits it pald prior to hearing, as stipuiated to [*5] on
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the Request for Hearing form, and that as provided in §19(bj of the Act this award in no instance shali be a bar to a further hearing
and determination of a further amount of tamporary total compensation or of compensation for permanent disability, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanded to the Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with
this Decision, but only after the latter of expiration of the time for fliing a written request for Summons to the Circuit Court has
expired without the filing of such a written request, or after the time of completion of any judicial proceedings, If such & written
request has been filed.

1T 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay (o Petitioner interest under §15(n) of the Act, if any,

IT IS FURTHER ORDEREDR BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credit for &l amounts paid, if any, to or on behalf of
petitioner on account of said accidental injury.

The probabie cost of the record to be filed as return to Summons is the sum of $ 35.00, payable to the Iilinois Workers' Compe nsation
Commission in the form of cash, check or money order therefor 2nd deposited with the Gffice of the Secretary [#8] cof the
Commission.

Dated: JUN 29 2009

ATTACHMERNT:

ILLINCIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

AR Application for Adjustiment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Neva Neal, arbitrater of the Comimission, in the city of Peoria, on October 16, 2008. After reviewing all of
the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches those findings to
this document.

DISPUTED ISSUES

F. Is the petitioner's present condition of iil-being causally refated to the Injury?

O. Cther Prospective medical treatment for left feg

FINDINGS

. On September 25, 2006, the respondent Barnes & Noble was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-emplover relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent,

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain Injuries that arose out of and in the course of emplayment.

. Timely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitioner [¥7] earned $ 22,360.00; the average weelly wage was § 430.00,

, AL the time of injury, the petitioner was 57 years of age, marrfed with 0 children under 18.

. Mecessary medical services have been provided by the respondent.

. To date $ 10,980.52 has been pald by the respondent for TTI and/or maintenance benefits.

ORDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary totaf disabliity benefits of & from 09/26/2006 thr ough D5/14/2007 the
respondent Is ohligated to pay TTD benefits. Temporaty partial disability benefits were paid through 08/18/2007. All
TTD and temporary partial has been paid/weelk for nfa weeks, from n/a through n/fa, which is the pericd of temporary total
disability for which compensation is payable.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner the sum of $ n/afweek for a further perlod of nfa weeks, as provided in Section n/a of the
Ack, because the injuries sustained caused n/a.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that has accrued from 09-25-2006 through 10-16-2008, and shall pay the
remainder of the award, if any, in weekly payments,

. The respondent shall pay the further [*8] sum of § 0 for necessary medical services, as provided in Section 8{a) of the Act, Claim
for prospective medical to the left leg is hereby denied.

. The respondent shall pay $ n/a in penalties, as provided in Section 15(k) of the Act.
. fhe respondent shall pay $ n/a in penalties, as provided in Section 18{}) of the Act,
. The respondent shali pay § n/a in attorneys' fees, as provided In Section 16 of the Act.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Undess a patty files a Pelition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this deciston, and perfects a
review in accardance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shali be entered as the deciston of the Cornmigsion.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews thig award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of

Arbitrator shall accrue from the date iisted below to the day before the date of payment; however, if an empioyee’s appeal results in
sither no change or a decrease in this award, Interest shall not accrue.
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Signature of arbitrator
11/4708

Date

ROV 6 2006
STATEMENT OF FACTS

On September 25, 2006 the petitioner worked maintenance and custodial staff for Barnes & Nobte. [*#9] Asshe was performing her
job duties cleaning up dishes in the area she slipped oh a wet spot on the floor and fell forward on both of her knees. $he alse hurt
her right fool.

She was taken to OSF Medical Center on Route 91 and both of her knees were swolien and her right ankle was injured. On September
27, 2006 ghe came under the care of Dr. Terry £, Smith, X-rays were done and were unremarkable. The dlagnosis was multiple
contusions in mild sprains. She saw Dr. Smith on October 3, 2005 for left knee pain and right feot pain. On October 17, 2006 she saw
Dr. Smith again. Her left knee pain was tmproving. The joint iines were good and range of motion of the left knee was good. She was
walking with a fimp of the right fool. On Novemnber 7, 2606 she saw Dr. Smith. Right foot continued to be very painful after physical
therapy. Knees, shoulder and chest ware fasiing well, The hip and knee jooked great, Dr. Smith recommended & referral to an
orthopedic and an MRI. The petitionar was next seen on November 14, 2008. Had continuing right foot pain, The Petitioner was
referred to Dr. D'Souza. He saw the petitioner on pecember 7, 2006, An MRI was done which was consistent with significant
attenuation [*107 of the peronzal brevis tendon, Dr. b'Souza recommended surgery to the right ankle, When the petitioner first saw
Or. D'Souza she did not register any compiaints with respect to her left knee, On January 5, 2007 Dr. D'Souza performed surgery on
the right ankie. The post-operative diagnosis was:

1. Complete rupture of the right peroneal previs tendon;
2. Extensive tendonopathy of the right peroneal longus tendon;
3. Right hind foot varus;

4. Atrenuated calcaneofibular and anterior talofibular ligament.

past-operatively the petitioner underwent physical therapy. The petitioner testified that during physical therapy she had cormplaints of
laft knee pain and problems. She continued to receive perlodic care from Dy, Terry Srnith,

on or about May 5, 2007 she returned to work part time and eventually returned to work full time working a split 8 hour shift 4 hours
in the morning and 4 hours in the afternecan.

The petitioner saw Dr. Michael $, Merkley on June 18, 2007 on a referal from his partner D D'Souza. As 2 part of the referrai the
petitioner gave a history of tanding on her knees oh September 25, 2006, The petitioner received a cortisone injection and recelved
some short term [*11F reiief. She was seen on June 19th by the doctor's physician agsistant.

The petiticner then saw Dr. Leving on March 14, 2008 for problems with her left knee,

The petitioner aiso testified that after she had been back to work ful | duty on December 15, 2007 she was mopping the fioor and at
the end of the day her left knee locked vp and she went to sea Dr. Smith about the Incident. The petitioner testified ghe had had no
prior treatment to her left knee, The petitioner testified to a childhoad Injury to her feft femur, She testified she had no actual
treatment to her left knee when she was under the care of Dr. D'Souza and no therapy was given to the feft knee when she was
recovering from her right ankde injury. From late. June of 2007 until she was seen on March 14, 2008 by Or, Levine she had no
additional medical treatment to her left knee. She saw Dr. Terry Smith on January 10, 2008 after the incident of December 15, 2007
when har knee popped while she was mopping the floor at work.

The petitioner at the time of the hearing was continuing to work. She testified that she wanted to have the left knee replacement.
F, Is the petiticner's present condition of iH-being causally related [*12} to the injury?
0. Other Prospective medical treatment for left leg

On September 25, 2006 the petitioner sustalned a significant injury to the right ankie and also by way of history landed on both her
right and left knee at the time of the accident. When ghe first saw Dr. Smith on September 27, 2008 she did make complaints of pain
to the left knee and the right ankle, On October 3, 2006 when she saw Dr. Smith she still had complaints of probiems with the left
mediat aspect of the knee. On October 17, 2006 the teft knee was slightly tender on the lateral inferlor border of the pateila.
Gtherwise, the joint Hnes were good and range of motion of the left knes was good based on Dr, Smith’s examination, On November
7, 2006 Dr. Terry Smith noted the kneas, shoulder and chast were feeling well. He stated: "hip and knee look great.”

On November 14, 2006 she was walking with a cane to reduce stress on the left leg.

When she was seen on December 11, 2008 Dr. Srlth sxamined her knee and indicated: "her knee i rontender. The right fool pain
was increasing, When she saw Dr. D'Souza on December 7, 2006 the focus of medical treatment was to the right foot. There were no
complaints [#33] nor was there any examination to the left knee. {Sea Resp, Exh, # 6 and Pet. Exh. # 5). After the right knee
surgery was done on January 5, 2007 she saw Dr. D'Souza on January 18, 2007, There were no complaints of any left leg painin that
office visit.

On February 20, 2007 she saw Dr. D'Souza agaln and there were no complatnts of left knee pain.
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Dr. D'Souzs recommended that she begin physical therapy for the right foot, Physicel therapy began on February 22,2007, in the
initial therapy visit there were no complaints of problems with the left knee. The medicai note In the physical therapy visit of February
22, 2007 did indicate degenerative joint disease of the knee. Therapy notes of February 26, 2007 make no reference to complaints
with respect to the left knee.

Physical therapy notes of February 28, 2007 make no reference to any complaints with respect to the left knee,

The physical therapy note of March 2, 2007 makes no reference to any left knee complaints. The therapy note of March 6, 2007
makas no reference to the left knee complaints. The March 7, 2007 therapy note makes no reference to jeft knee problems. The
physical therapy note of March 9, 2007 malkes no reference to £*14] complaints with respect to the left knee nor does the physical
therapy note of March 12, 2007, The March 14, 2007 therapy note makee no reference to any probiems with the left knee. The March
16, 2007 therapy note makes no reference to problems with the left inee.

The physical therapy of March 19, 2007 and March 26, 2007 make no reference to any complaints with respect to the left knee,
‘the March 28, 2007 therapy note and the March 30, 2007 therapy note makes no reference to complaints with the left knee.
"The physical therapy note of April 3, 2007 and April 5, 2007 make no reference to complaints with respect to the left knee.

The physical therapy note of April 9, 2007 and April 11, 2007 make no reference to complaints with respect to the ieft knee.

The petitioner did indicate that she was on her feef & quite & bit over the Easter weekend and the therapy notes noted some
increased edema In the right ankle area. The physical therapy note of April 1.3, 2007 and April 16, 2007 make no reference to any
complaints of pain with respect to the left knee.

The physical therapy note of April 17, 2007 and April 19, 2007 make no reference to compiaints of pain in the left knee, The
petitioner [#15] then was released to work 20 hours per week progressing to fuil time as needed as April 19, 2007, On April 19,
2007 Dr. D'Souze released her to return to work with certain restrictions and was going to see her back on an as needed basls, The
petitioner was also at that time released from physical therapy.

The petitioner however went back to see the therapist on April 25, 2007 and had purchased supportive shoes. The petitioner was
referred back to physical therapy by her family physician for additional treatmant for right heel pain, On April 27, 2007, May 1, 2007,
May 3, 2007 and May 8, 2007 the petiticner continued therapy for heel pain with ao complaints of left ieg pain,

On May 10, 2007 the petitioner had returned to work for 4 hour shifts where she was standing and that increased the discomfort but
that was o the right foot.

Wwhen she was seen on May 15, 2007 and May 18, 2007 she had no complaints of left knee pain,
When the petitioner was seen on May 21, 2007 and May 23, 2007 for physical therapy there were no complaints of left knee pain.
When she was seen on May 25, 2007 and May 29, 2007 she had no complaints of left knee pain.

When she was seen on June 7, 2007 that is the first [#161 time that she registered a complaint and indicated that her family
physician Dr. Terry Smith wanted her to continue therapy for her right heel and then for her left knee. The therapist's note says:
“initiate treatment for left knee at next reatment.” On June 13, 2007 she was Inldally evaluated for left knee paln and Instability.

Dr. Markiey's deposition was Introduced Into evidence by the petitioner as Petitioner's Exhibit # 3. Dr. Merkley testified that the
petitioner was referred to kim by his partnel Dr, D'Souza, He first saw the petitioner on June 18, 2607. As 8 part of the history the
petitioner told him that she noticed increasing left knae pain during the therapy for the fool. This would be inconsistent based on the
therapy notes from February of 2007 through May of 2007, When Dr. Merkiey examined the petitioner he examined both the right
knee and the feft knee. X-rays were taken of the left knee which showed moderate lateral joint compartment degenerative changas
and severe pateliofemoral arthrosis with loss of the latera! patefiofemoral joint base. She had arthritis in her left kKnee, He gave her
injections. He advised her that given the severity of the arthritic changes [#4771 if she did not recelve relief from the injections she
wouid be refarred to Dr. Levine or Dy, Mulvey who are specialists In total joint reconstruction, Dr, Merkiey indicated he does not do
total joint reconstruction as that is outside of his subspeciafty. Dr. Merkley tastified at page 10 that it was his opinion that the.
accldent of September 25, 2006 would be an aggravation of a pre-existing condition. He defined the aggravation 2s chronicity of the
problem. He indicated that if you have symptorms more than 12 weeks after an Injury that would suggest an aggravation,

It should be noted that based on the physical therapy records and the records of Dr, Terry Smith that the petitioner’s knee based on
Dr. Smith's records was asymptomatic as of November 7, 2006, The symptomatology based on the records did not resurface until
June of 2007,

On cross examination the doctor agreed that the radiography showed toss of lateral pateliofemnoral Joint space.

He testified that that Is basically bone on bone contact of the outside of the knegcap joint when fooking at a patellofemaral kneecap
view. He indicated those findings would have been in existence prior to September 25, 2008, He also noted that [¥18] the
petitioner wag 5'6" 250ibs. and her weight would be a contributing factor to the deterloration of her left kKnege.

He also indicated the weight in and of itself could be an aggravaling factor to the knee causing the need for additicnal medlcai
treatrent to the left knee, That was based on a reasonable degree of medical certainty. (See pg. 17 of the deposition).

The doctor also indicated that at no time during the course of his treatment or the history that he took did he ever recelve any history
of an incident taking place en December 15, 2007 thal the petitioner clalmed caused her problem, Dr. Merkiey offered no opinion
testimony whatsoever In refationship to the incident of December 15, 2607 and the petitioner's feft knee condition. The respondent
introduced into evidence as Respondent's Exhibit # 4 a 5 page report from Dr. Richard C. Lehman who did 2 recerds review of ali the
rnedical records in the case and aiso examined the petitioner on July 25, 2008.
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Or. Lehman testified:

"It is my i mpression that this patient has end stage degenerative arthritis, which is fatrly severe. 1 believe the patient had
long-term degenerative arthrills that far predates her work refated injury. 1191 I have reviewed her medial records
from arbitrating physicians. I have reviewed her typed, wiitten rotes from both her ankle angd her knee injury, I have
reviewed her accident dated 12/15/07 and I have reviewed alt of her x-rays and ail of her fitms. It is my impression (¢
anawer your specific questions that the accident of 68/25/06 created a soft tissue contusion to her kneea. The patient was
in need of an arthropiasty prior to her fall. [t appears that her x-rays showed end stage degenerative arthritis early on, It
is my Impression that she has had end stage degenerative arthritis, which far predates her injury, It shouid be clear that
looking at her care and treatment including x-tays of 06/18/07 and x-rays taken today. The patient has had end stage
clegenerative arthritis In both knees with end stage pateilofemoral arthritis in both knees.”

Itis my impression that she is in fact a candidate for a total knee replacement bitateraily but I do not believe that her
0%/25/06 fall has in any way contributed to this process. I do befieve that she had a contusion. 1 do beiieve that she has
soreness In her khee. T believe that she has sorenhess and grinding in both knees. I eppears that 1%207] the patient wag a
candidate for a total knee replacement prior to her fall. I do not believe that the accidant In any way changed this course
in treatment. 1 baileve that the patient's need for a total knee replacement has to do with her obesity, has to do with the
exireme valgus in her knees, which are congenital and the fact that both knees have the exact same conformity with
severe end stage changes.

It answer to your question number two, the patient had right ankle surgery for degeneralive changes and chronic
peroneal tendon changes, as welt as what appears to be ankle instabllity.

it is my Impression that the patient's anide did not contribute to her need for arthroplasty and I do not believe thal the
patient’s and stage degenerative arthritis in her kKnees have baen caused by or exacerbated by her anlde surgery, She has
ciearly had a long-term process with anlde Instability and breakdown of her peroneal tendens but I do not believe that this
contributad to her pre-existing arthritis, 1 think that her pre-existing arthritls was long term in nature. Agaln, based on
the vaigus stress placed on her knee due o the alignment of her knee, as well as an acute exacerbalion when she [#21]
was five years old aving a fractured feraur, which also would have congenitally or progressively ¢changed the slignment
of het knee. She had a femorat traction pin through the distat portion of her femur and had care and treatment for her
femur fracture, which would have altered the alignment of her distal femur. The patient had an exacerbation of her knee
on 12/15/07. AL that lime, the patlent gave a history of being at work. She was mopping the floor. Her left knee popped
and locked. She subsequentiy had significant discornfort in her knee. T de not believe that this materially changed Ms.
Batls' knee. I belleve that the patient was already in need of & totai knee replacement st that time. T believe that she had
s manifestation of her arthritis but 1 do not believe that it was a contributing factor for the need for a total knee
replacement, I believe that the total knee replacement ig the nature of severe malalighment, as weil as an exacerbation
from her femur fracture in the leff knee when she was young. I also feel that both of the patient’s knees are the same.
Her pateliofernpral joints have bone on bone changes. ter lateral compartments have bone on bone changes. I believe
that [#22] her left knee has progressed s gnificantiy due to wear and tear and long-term malalignment. Again, I believe
that the patient has had & bone on bone process for a long period of time, T do not helieve at this juncture that either
injury has matertslty contributed to an exacerbation of arthritis. There was nothing to exacerbate. She was already bone
on bone and had absolutely no evidence of exacerbation based on the fact that her knee really could not get any worse.
She was already in need for a total knee replacement, 1 helieve that this process has taken many, many years and far
predates her fall, She Is a very sweet woman and she is in need of a total knee replacement on both sides bul again, this
is not related to har work Injury.”

The Arbitrator having considered the Petitioner's Exhibits I through 5§ and Respondent's Exhibits 1 through 8 concludes that the
petitioner's need for a total knee replacernent on the left knee is not causalty cornacted to the accident of September 25, 2006. Claim
for compensation is hereby denled.
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2009 Hl. Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 792, %
MARTIN OLIVER, PETITIONER, v. UNITED STATES STEEL CORPORATION, RESPONDENT.
NO: 05 WC 26521
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF MADISON
2009 1L wrk. Comp. LEXES 792
Juby 1, 2009

CORE TERMS: arbitrator, degenerative, knee, Hting, return to work, disease, temporary tota) disability, loss of use, temporary,
physical therapy, lefl knee, machinist, authorize, meniscus, stenosis, stooping, bending, lumbar, tear, disputed issues, light duty, left
leg, attachment, retrolisthesls, debridement, extradural, multilevel, myelogram, diagnosed, probable
JUBGES: David L. Gore; James F. DaMunno; Mario Basuito
OPINION: [*1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review having been filed by the Respondent herein and notice given to all parties, the Commission, after
consldering the issues of temporary total disability, nature and extent, and being advised of the facts and law, affirms and adopts the

Decision of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made a parl hereof.

T 1S THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the Arbitrator filed February 27, 2008 is hereby afirmed and
adopted,

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 19{n) of the Act, IFany.

{F 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent shal! have credit for all amounts paid, i any, to or on behalf of
the Pebitioner on account of said accidental injury.

Bond for removal of this cause to the Cireuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 75,600.00. The probable cost of the
vacord to be filad as return to Summons is the sum of § 35,00, payable to the Hinois Workers® Com pensation Commission In the form
of cash, chedlc or monay order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretaty of the Commission.

DATED: JUL 1 2009

ATTACHMENT: [*2]

TLLINOIS WORKERS' COMP ENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATICN DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed In this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was maiied to each party. The malter was
heard by the Honorabie Andrew Nalefskl, arbitrator of the Commission, in the city of Collinsville, on 1/29/08. After reviewing all of the
evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches these findings Lo this
docurnent.

DISPUTED IS5UES

K. What amount of compen sation |8 due Tor te mporary total disability?

L. What is the nature and extent of the injury?

FINDINGS

. On §5/25/05, the respondent United $tates Steel Corporatton was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-employer refationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain injuties that arose out of and in the course of employment,

. Timely notice of thig accident was given to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitioner earmed § 84,727.24; the average waekly wage was $ 1.629.37,
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. At the time of injury, [*31 the petitioner was 49 vears of age, marrfed with 0 children under 18.
. Necessary medical services have been provided by the respondent,

. To date, $ 60,523.55 has been paid by the respondent for TTD and/er maintenance benafits,
ORDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary total disability benefits of § 1,051.99/week for 57-4/7 weeks, from 6/22/05
through 6/131/06 and 6/22/06 through 11/12/06, which is the peried of temporary total disabllity for which compensation is payable,
Respondent shall pay Petitioner § 54.31 a day from §/12/06 through 6/21/06 for temporary partial disabliity. Respendent is entitled
to credit for amounts previously paid.

. Tha respondent shall pay the petitioner the sum of § 567.87/week for a further period of 175 weeks, as provided in Sections 8{d}(2}
and 8{e) of the Act, because the injuries sustained caused 25% loss of use to the man as a whole and 25% loss of use to the left leg.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that has acerued from 5/25/05 through 01/29/08, and shall pay the
remainder of the award, if any, in weekly payments.

. The respondent shall pay the further surm of & N/A for necessary [#4] medical services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Adt.
. The respondent shall pay $ N/A in penalties, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ N/A in penallies, as provided in Section 19(1} of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay § N/A In attorneys' fees, as provided in Seclion 16 of the Act

RULES REGARDING APFEALS Unless a party flles a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
raview in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Commission,

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest of 2.07 % shali accrue from the date listed balow
to the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal resuits in either no change or a decrease in this award,
interest shall not accrue.

Signature of arbitrator

2-25-08

Date

FEB 27 2008

The Arbitrator finds the following facls:

Petiltioner was employed by Respondent as a machinist, On 5/25/05 he stepped into & pit which was approximatety knee deep,
causing injury to hoth his left knee and his low back.

petitioner sought treatment at Respendent's clinic. [¥5] A lumbar MRI of 5/31/05 revealed a mild to moderate midline disc
protrusion at L2-3 with a suspected small annular tear and slight buiging at 1.3-4 and L4-5 with a probable smail annular tear at L4-5.
A MRI of the left knee showed a complete tear of the anterior gruclate gament from 1ts femoral attachment, prominent degenerative
signal In the posterior horn of medial meniscus and also the anterior horn of the lateral meniscus witheut evidence of tearing and
small knee jolnt effusion and & smalf popliteal cyst,

petitioner carne under the care of Dr. Richard Lehiman, an orthopedic surgeon, who performed & left knee arthroscopy on 6/22/05,
which consisted of & tre phine intercondylar notch ACL repair to address a partial spiit in the tendon; a gebridement of the
patellofemoral notch.; and a debridement of the lateral meniscus, Post-operatively, Petitioner underwent physical therapy. He was
reipased to fuil duty work as far as i concernied the knee on 8/9/05, On 10/20/05 Dr. Lelnan's records support th ere was an
excellent range of metion; outstanding stability; no swelling; very good mechanics; full flexion and extension; and the ACL was intact
with no Instability. Petltioner was released [#6] at maximum medical improvement and was to refurn to work with no restrictions as
it pertained to his knee only. Petitioner teslified that other than an intervening incident when he bumped his knee requiring two
weeks of physical therapy In March, 2008, he Is having few problems with his left knee.

Petitioner saw Dr. David Kennedy, a neurcsurgeon, for the tow back condition on 9/ 1/05. Petitioner was diagnosed with significant
degenerative changes in the lumbar spine, A lumbar myelogram on 1/27/06 revealed multievel degenerative disc disease with an
exiradural defect producing stenosts at L2-3, extradural effacement with retrolisthesis at L3-4 and miidly diminished filling of both LS
root steaves. A post-myelogram CT demonstrated multitevel degenerative disc disease and facet disease, herniation at L2-3 with
stenosis, diffuse degenerativa disc disease at Li-2 and L3-4 with mild retrolisthesis of L3 on L4, diffuse bulging disc at t4-5 extending
into the foramen and severe facet ostecarthritls at L5-S1. Surgery was not recommended. Petitoner received trigger point Injections
by Dr. Feinberg and physical therapy,

There is a dispute regarding temporary total benefits. Petitionaer ciatims [*7] entitlement to temporary total benefits from 6/22/05
through 11/12/06, Respondent agrees that Petitioner Is entitled to TTD benefits from 6/22/05 through 6/11/0¢ and 9/18/06 through
11/12/06. The basis of the dispute was whether Petitioner availed himself of light or sedentary duty which Respondent made available
1o him,

The medical records reflect that as of 5/8/08 Dr, Kennedy had continued to authorize Petltioner off work, @n 6/12/06 Respondent
contacted Dr, Kennedy and informed him that light duty work was available, Petitioner was released by to return to work with
restrictions of no lifting over 10 19s., no bending, steoping, twisting, pushing, putiing or overhead lifting and to sit 2 hours with a 10
minyte break for only a 6 hour work day. Petitioner was tendered work within these restrictlons as of that date. Petitioner did not
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attempt to return to work, He returaad to Dr, Kehnedy on 6/22/06 who took him totally off work,

petitioner was examined at Respondent's request by Dr. Robson on 7/13/06. Dr, Robson diagnosed a strain imposed on a pre-existing
degenerative disc disease with some stenosis, He propesed Petltioner return to work with a 20 pound {ifting restriction with [*8% no
repetitive bending, stooping or Hiting, Respondent offered work within those restrictions and Petitionar refused, electing to abide by
hig doctors orders.

. petitioner returned to Dr. Kennedy on 8/2/06, Dr. Kennedy acknowledged Dr. Robson's restrictions and thought they were
reasonable. However, ne continued to authorize Petitioner off work until 9/13/06.

On $/1.3/06 Dr. Kennedy suggested a myelogram and post-myelographic CT scan and continued to authorize Petitioner off work,

Petitioner was seen at Respondent's request by Dr. Robson on 9/ 14/06. He agreed with Dr, Kennedy's recom mendations both as Lo
the testing and agreed Petitioner should remain off work until the testing was compi eted, Respondent thereafter reinstated terporary
total benefits as of 9/16/06 and continued until 11/12/06.

Petitionar was released to return to work as of 18/13/06 with permanent restrictions of 20 pounds lifting and to aveid repeated
bending, kfting or stooping. Petitioner was instructed that he should be able to move about as necessary If he develops back pain
while working In one position. Petitioner returned £o work with those restrictions and has continued to work with those restrictions
as [¥91 a machinist.

At arbitration Petitioner testified thal he is having few probiems with his left knee. Regarding his jow back, he testified that heis
performing his jeb 25 a machinist. However, when e I$ on his feet for 30 to 45 minutes, he must sit for a while, He stated the
eraployer has worked with him and he is able to conduct his work activities within his restrictions. He has not recelved any additional
treatment since November 2006, He uses over-the-counter medications at work but does contl nue to use Vicodin as necessary when
he ls away from the workplace.

Therefore the Arbitrator concludes,;

1. There is no dispute that Petiioner Is entitled to TTD benefits from 8/22/05 through 8/11/06 and then from 9/16/G6 through
11/12/06. Petitioner is entitied to TTD beneflts from 622/06 through 9/15/06. During this period he was authorized off work by his
treating physician. Petitioner is not entitied te TTD benefits from 6/11/06 through 6/22/06 as he was released for light duby for 6
hours a day which Respondent could accommodate and which he refused. However, Petitioner is entitled to TPD benefits for the 2
hours missed daily (st 2/3s of the lost time) during this period.

2. Petitioner I%10} sustained injuties i his left knee and low back. Regarding his ieft knee, Petitioner has sustained 25% loss of use
to the left ieq. Regarding his low back Petiticner has sustained 25% loss of use to the body as a3 whole for the aggravation of his
underlying degenerative condition which resulted in rather significant work restrictions.
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2009 . Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 626, % of (wel 7 OL‘E)
NICOLE BERGEN, PETITIONER, v. TCF BANK, RESPONDENT. '
NO: 08 W 03838
TLLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF WINNEBAGD
2009 1l Wik, Comp, LEXIS 826
July 9, 2009
CORE TERMS: arbitrator, counselor, petitioner testifled, therapist, temporary total disabillty, return to work, depressed, session,
opired, intarpersonal, customer, diserder, recornmended, medication, counseling, scheduled, maternity, symptom, anxiety, resume,
switeh, stress, severe, tamporary, notice, counseling session, returned to work, writlen request, post-traumatic, psychological
JUDGES: Nancy Lindsay; Molly C. Mason; Yolalne Dauphin
OPINION: §*¥1]
DECISION AND OPINICN ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review under § 19(b) having been filed by Respondent herein and notice given to all parties, the Commission,
after consldering the issues of causal connection, temporary total disability, prospective medical and being advised of the facts and
lave, corrects the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwlse a#firms and adopts the Decislon of the Arbltralor, which is
attached hereto and made a part hereof, The Commigsion further remands this case to the Arbitrator for further proceedings for a
determination of a further amount of tlemporary total compensation of of compensation for perm anent disability, if any, pursuant to
Thoras.y. dndustrial Commission,. 78 11L.20.327, 389 N.£.20.1322,. 35 1L Dec., 794 (1880)..
In his Decision the Arbitrator correctly noted that Petitioner decided not to see therapist Bruce Pergon any longer, The Arbitrator
further noted that the new therapist Jenn! O'Connell had not vet seen Petitloner as the therapist was on maternity leave (Arh. Dec,, b.
) The Commission corrects this portion of the Decision as Petitioner had switched therapists [*2] prior to arbitration and was
working with Jenni O'Connell. Furtharmore, Ms. 0'Connell had seen Petitioner on at least one occasion. (PX 1) Petitloner did testify
she had not seen Ms. O'Conneli in the last couple of months prior to arbitration as Ms. O'Connell was on maternity leave. (T.A.,p. 46)
The Commission also corrects the third sentence of the fourth paragraph on page 5 of the Arbitrator's Decision by deleting the word
"weeks" and substituting the word "months” so as Lo conform to Petitioner’s testimony,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the Arbitrator filed on October 17, 2008, 1s hereby corrected
as stated herein and otherwise affirmed and adopted.

IT 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanded to the Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with
this Decision, but only after the tatter of expiration of the time for filing a written request for Summons {o the Circuit Court has
explred without the filing of such a wrltten request, or after the time of compl etion of any judicial proceedings, ¥ such a writlen
request has been flled.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § [¥3] 19(n) of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shail have credit for all amounts paid, if any, to or on behalf of
Pelitioner on account of sald accidental injury,

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Clrcuit Court by Respondent Is hereby fixed at the sum of ¢ 15,700,00. The probable cost of
the record to be filed as return to Summons (s the sum of § 35.00, pavable to the Hlinois Workers' Com pensation Commission in the
form of cash, check ot money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commisslon,

DATED: 3UL 9 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINGIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION

19(b) ARBXTRATION DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was fited in this matter, and a Notice of Hearlng was mailed to each parly. The matter was

heard by the Honorable Pater Akemann, arbitrator of the Commission, in the city of Rockford on 09/16/2008. After reviewing ail of
the evidence presentad, the arbitrabtor hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches those findings to
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this document.

DISPUTED ISSUES

E. Is the petitioners present conditlon of ifi-being causally related to the injury?

K. What [*4] amount of compansation is due for temporary total disabliity?

N. Is the petitioner entitled to perspective medical freatment?

FINDINGS OF THE ARBITRATOR:

. On 10/31/2007, the respondent; TCF Bank, was operating under and subject to the provislons of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-emplover rejationship existed between the petiticner and respondent.

. On this date, the pelitioner sustained injuries that arose out of and in the course of employment.

. Timely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the Injury, the petitioner earned § 48,000,16; the average weekly wage was $ 923.08.

. At the tme of Injury, the petitioner was 33 years of age, married with two children under i8.

. Necessary medical services have been provided by the respondent.

. To date, $ 12,572.44 has been paid by the respondent for tempotary total disabllity/maintenance benefits.

ORDERS OF THE ARBITRATOR

. The respondent shail pay the petitioner temporary total disability benefits of $ 615,39 per week for 45.6 weaks, from 151/01/2007
through 09/16/2008, as provided in Sectlon B(b) of the Act, because the injuries sustained caused the disabling condition of the [#5]
petitiorer, the disabling condition Is tempoerary and has not yet reached a permanent condition, pursuant Lo Section 19(b) of the Act.
. The respondent shall pay ¢ -0- for medical services, as provided in Section B(a) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay § -0- in penaities, as provided in Section 18{k) of the Acl.

. The respondent shall pay $ -0- in penaities, as provided in Section 18{) of the Act,

. The respondent shall pay $ -0~ in attorneys' fees, as provided In Section 16 of the Act.

. In ro instance shall this award be & bar fo subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of temporary total
disabitity, medical benefits, or compen sation for a permanent disabllity, if any.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS: Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this dedision, and perfects a
review I accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shali be entered as the decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE: If the Commission reviews this award, Interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of
Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, If an employee's [*6] appeal
results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not accrue,

Arbitrator Peter Akemann
Qeltober 14, 2608
OCT 17 2008

In support of the arbitrators findings under (F) Causal Connection AND (K} Temporary Total Disability the arbitrator
finds the following facts:

The petitioner testified that she was employed by TCF Bank as a loan officer for 3 years: Petiiioner testifled that on October 31, 2007
she was instructed by her supervisor, Tom Torossian, to accompany the branch manager, Connie Zarembski, on door-te-door
collection efforts. They were sent to an area In Rockford, Illinois located at Kishwaukee Avenue and 15th Street, where they were
Instructed €0 go to a cust omer's home to try to collect on a past due mortgage, Petitioner testified that when they were descending
the stairs of the third floor apartment they were approaches by two black men who robbed them and forced them to the ground,
Petitioner testified that she was terrified during the incident and immediately thereafter, and that she feared for her life. Petitloner
testified that foilowing the attack, her and her co-worker remained on the ground for a short while until thay arose, went [#7] to
their vehicle, and calied the police. Petitioner testified that she then met the potice at the nearby McDonalds and filed 2 police report.
She also testified that she notified My, Torossian that the incident had occurred.

The petitioner testified as a resull of the Incident she saw her primary care physician, Dr. Coates on Novem ber 3, 2007 because she
was having trouble sleeping and she was depressed. Petitioner testified Dr. Coates referred her to Dr. Marianne Gelger, 2 psychiatrist,
petitioner testified that she was seen by Dr. Geiger on November 14, 2007, Petitioner testified that Dr. Geiger recommended
treatment including cotnseling and medicatton, Petitional testified that Dr. Gelger also took her off of work from November 1, 2067
through January 22, 2008, The inltlal treatment consisted of weeldy counseling sessions and monthly, therapy sesslons with Dr,
Gelger, along with medication, (Pet, Ex. 1) December 6, 2007 medical recerds from Dr. Gelger notes that Petitioner was still suffering
from anxiety, nausea, fiashbacks, and dreams of the event, hyper vigiiance, and nervousness as & result of the incident that occurred.

The petitioner testified that as a result of the incident [*8] and her 1D being taken by the robbers, she relocated her family to a

different house temporarily. On Jenuary 23, 2008, she was seen by her counselor who noted that Petitioner felf insecure and
depressed. (Pet. Ex. 1) The counselor noted that the Petitioner was very depressed and was very teary during the sesston. It wasg
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discussed that the counselor feit there needed to be a plan Implemented fro Increased psychoth erapy sessions and adjustrments with
madication, (Pet. Ex. 1} On that date her Paxil was inereased to 50 mg. The next appointment was scheduled with Dr. Gelger for
January 29, 2008. it was also hoted that following that counseling session was the first time Petitioner was scheduled Lo return to
work,

petitioner testified that Dr. Geiger had returned her to work as of January 23, 2008 for two hours per day. Petitloner testified that she
reported to work on January 2608 after a counseling session. petitioner testifisd that she was expected to perform her regulesr wiork
dubies and have constant contact with clients, Petitioner testifled that on her first day returned to work she was extremely depressed,
anxious, and cried the entire time. Petitioner testified that she actually threw [*9} up as a result of being returned to work.
petitioner testified that despite her reaction on the 23rd, she did return to work on the 24th with a simitar reaction, Petitioner testified
that she aiso returned to work on the 25th and again on the 28th, with simllar reactions. Petitioner testified that over the weekend of
January 26th and 27th, she was extremely withdrawn, depressed, §ick, anxious, and upset at having to return to work and deal with
customers shd having to report back to work the foliowing week,

petitioner testifled that on January 28, 2008, she was contacted by Cennle Zarembski, her direct supervisor, and was informed not to
return to work. Petitloner testified that she was informed the basis for not returning to wor k was that the Respondent was
investigating 2 foan that had been generated the year prior by petitioner. Pelitioner testified that Ms. Zarembski inforimed her that
because the Respondent suspected wrongdoing-on the part of the. Peiitioner in generating the Jean, that she was likely belng fired.

The petitioner testified that the loan that was being investigated had in fad been Investigated in May of 2007, and thatin June of
2007 she recaived an email confirmation [#101 that the Respondent had completed its Investigation of her loan and found no
wrongdoing and was taking no further action on it. Petitloner restified that it was not brought up again until her return to work
following the QOctober 31, 2007 incident.

The petitioner had & follow up visit with Dr, Geiger on January 29, 2008, It was noted that her effect was tearful and mond was
anxious on thal date, {Pet, Ex. 1) Petitloner was then seen by her counselor January 30, 2008. AL that time, it was noted that
petitioner found it challenging to work. She cied and expressed anxlety. It was also noted that she was feefing loss of control,
pPetitionar continued to be on restrictions of 2 hours a day from January 23, 2008 through February 25, 2008, per Dr. Geiger. {Pet.
Ex. 1) On February 26, 2008 Dr. Geiger modified her work restrictions, In her February 26, 2008 work note, Dr, Gelger indicated "it is
ry recom mendation that she consider nol returning to the bank industry due to the high stress associated with the job dutles, She
would perform very well not having to directly interact with customers. She should start eut on a modifled work day schedule of 2
hours per day for now." (Pet. Ex. 1). Petitioner [*11] Lestified as of the date of trial she was under the same restrictions as the
February 26, 2008 work note.

The petitioner testified that on approximately February 18, 2008. She received notice of an Independent Medical Examination
schaduied for February 21, 2008, with Dr. Hartman at the request of the Respondent. petitioner testified that she received a travel
expense check by direct deposit on February 20, 2008, Petitioner testified that although she recelved notice of the IME on
approximately Febraary 18, 2007, she did not have sufficient time to arrange for day care for her children Lo attend the all day
examlnation in Chicago. Petitioner testified that had she been given notice earlier she would have been sble to arrange for day care,
Therefore, Petitioner was not able to attend the IME appointment, petitioner testified that she had been receiving temporary partial
disability benefits from January 23, 2008 through February 22, 2008, when the TPD benefits were terminated because of her failure
to attend the IME on the 2ist. Petitloner testified that the examination was rescheduled for march 19, 2008 and that she did receive
sufficient notice of the examination and was able to attend [¥12] it.

The pelitioner was examined by Dr. Hartman for an Independent Medical Examination on March 19, 2008 at the request of the
respondent, {Res. £x. 3) Dr. Hartman noted on page 3 of his report that the MMPIZ and SIMS and FBS tests all indicate that the
petitioner was nol matingering or symptom magnifying any of her symptoms or condition, Dr. Hartman noted that general cognitive
funclion tests indicated general cognitive inefficiency with complex problem solving. He also noted that persenality test resulls, or the
SRASI-4 test, suggested general personality and emotional maladjustment with dysfunctional interpersenal and emotional symptoms
predominating.

OF. Hartman noted the MMPI2 test suggested active major depression and a ruminative socially withdrawn individually and difficuities
with work reiated functioning and negative attitudes, Dr, Hartman noted the personality assessment inventory test was vaiid and had
a pattern very close to the statistical it of post-traumatic stress disorder, Dr. Hartman noted that her PAL pattern also suggests
anxiety and tension that interfare with concentration. Dr. Hartman opined that the Petitioner's post-traumatic stress disorder and
major depression [#13] likely predated the 2007 robbery that the Petitioner's post-traumatic stress disorder and acute re-
otcurrence of symptoms.” (Res, Ex. 1) He also indicalad there was a jongstanding interpersonal and emotional maladjustment, which
would be consistent with the diagnosis of mixed personality disorder. Dy, Hartman went on to note that her current psychological
presentation suggests “deprs ssion anxlety and unpaired interpersonal functioning.” Dr. Hartman recommended that, Petitioner
change counselors as she was not connecting well with her current counselor, Bruce. Petitioner testified at trial that she in fact agreed
with Dr. Martman's oplnion to change counselors and did so in April of 2008.

Dr. Hartman's original report of March 19, 2008 indicated "it is not likely from either a common sense consideration of personal safety
or psychological basis that Ms. Bergren could be persuaded to resume Mortgage collection activities. It Is recornmended thal if she
wishes to continue her carger in banking that she itially perform office duties that do not invoive interpersonal customar contact” He
went oh to indicate “vocational counseling and rapid reentry into the work place ig recommended to [#14] avoid iatrogenic effects of
isolation and loss of support from a structured work environment.” (Res. Bx, 3)

Dr, Hartman authored an addendum report, which the Arbitrater notes was admitted as Respondent's Exhibit 4. Howaver, the report
is unsigned by the doctor, In the report, Dr. Hartman opined the October 31, 2007 "event was additive to her other stressors and
more likely than not reopened PTSD related issues that were tnactive prior to the work incident." {Res. Ex. 4)

petitioner testified that subseguent to the avaluation by Dr. Hartman, she was seen at the request of her attorney for an Independent
Medical Examination by Dr. Wayne Stillings. Dr. Stlilings noted in the examination that Petitioner was distant and constricted;
detached from reality, very clinically depressed, easily distracted, and her verbat comprehension was fair at best. {Pet. Ex, 2) Dr.
Shillings diagnosed Petitioner with PTSD chronic and severe, major depressive disorder severe, and opined that her condition was 8
result of a life threatening traurma ak work on October 31, 2007. Dr. Stiliings went on to opine that “the October 31, 2007 work
Incident has caused Ms. Bergren to experience active chronic and severe [¥15] PTSD and a severe major depressive disorder which
are impairing her ability to function occupationally from a psychiatric standpoint.” I an addendum report dated june 20, 2008, Dr.
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Stillings clarified his opinion regarding her ability to return t work in stating "1 am of the opinion that Ms. Bergren is psychlatricatly
disabled from work for an indefinite period of time." {(Pel. Ex. 2}

The petitioner Lestified that she applied for unemployment benefits and began receiving those at the end of March, 2008, Petitioner
testified that she has maintained a job search and has listed resumes onling and has bean looking In newspapers for job openi ngs,
put has not yet received any job offers within the restyictions as stated by Dr. Geiger,

patitioner testified that she Is, at the time of the trial, stifl under the care of Dr. Geiger, which involves therapy sessions with Dr,
Geiger on a monthly basis and weekly counseling sessions. Petitioner testified that subsequent to Dr. Hartman's examination she
agreed thal it was in her interest to switch counselors from Bruce and she In fact did so, Petitioner festified at the time of trial, that
her new counselor wag on maternity ieave and so she had [*16] not had a counseling session for a coupl e weeks, However,
Petitioher testified that there ware no other therapists available for her to switch to and that Dr, Geiger and Petitioner felt It wouid be
counter-productive to switch to a new therapist. Again, the parties stipuiated to most issues at triaf, The only issue in dispute is
petitioners entitiernent Lo total temporary disability benefits.

ANALYSIS

The Arbitrator notes that the Petitioners treating physician, Dr. Geiger, has opined as of February 26, 2008, that Petitioner cannot
retuin to her job 1o the banking industry and that she should find other employment working only two hours a day.

The Arbitrator notes that Dr. Hartman opined that the petitioner would not likely "from either common sense constderation of
personal safety or @ psychological basis” be persuaded to resume mortgage collection activities. Dr, Hartman did opine that if
Petitioner did resume her career in banking that she initially perform activities that “do not Invelve Interpersenal custoner contact.”

Dr, Wayne Stillings opined that the Patitioner was occupationally disabled from any type of work a t the time that he saw her in May of
2008,

The Arbitrator [*17] notes that the Petitionar has searched for work since being tarminated from TCF and has not yet received any
job offers ag a result of her job search.

The arbltrator finds that the petitioner's current condition of ili-belng is causally connected to her work related injury of
October 31, 20G7

The arbitrator further finds that the petitioner is temporarily and totally disabled from work from 11/01/2007 thr ough
the date of the hearing,

In support of the arbitrator’s findings under (N) Prospective Medical; the arbitrator finds the following facts;

The Arbitrator conciudes that the petitioner has not yet reached maximum medical improvement. She is stilt in need of psychotherapy
as well as pharmacotherapy therapy and Medication for her condition. This is consistent with the opinlens of all physicians who
treated and evaluated the petitioner.

The arbitrator, while noting the petitioner is in need of these treatments, concludes that she i5 not getting them, The petitioner
testified at the ime of hearing, that she was seeing Dr, Geiger approximately every lwo to three months, She indicated that she was
not undergoing any psychotherapy as she indicated she did not wish [*18] to see Mr, Bruce Person any longer, The therapist that
the petitioner had been suggested to see after her requested switch from Mr. Bruce Persen had not yet seen her as sha was on
maternity leave, There were no scheduled appointments at the time of the hearing, No treating records from Dr. Geiger or Mr, Bruce
Person wera offered into evidence subsequent to March 16, 2008,

While the arbltrator has ordered benefits through the date of this hearing, the petitioner needs t be actively engaged in a treatmeant
regime that will return her to the workforce. Future benefits will be In jeopardy should this treatment regime, as prescribed by ail her
doctors, not ecour,
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2009 [ Wrk. Comp, LEXIS 834, * (2‘}‘70( iUJCC/ 7 l %

TWILA B. CLINE, PETITIONER, v. HONEYWELL, RESPONDENT.
NO: 05 WC 47977
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF [LLINOIS, COUNTY OF SANGAMON
2009 [, Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 834
July 20, 2009

CORE TERMS: arbitrator, pain, temporary total disability, temporary, amount of compensation, degenerative, discogram, lurmbar,
partial disability, aggravation, disease, marked, permanent, lifting, sit, temporarily, aggravated, symptom, present condition, full
release, arbitration, recommended, abdomingl, severe, pounds, parties stipulated, totaily disabled, health insurance, return to work,
confirmed

JUDGES: Barbara A. Sherman; Paul W. Rink; Kevin W. Lamborn
GPINION: [*1}
DECISTON AND GPINION OGN REVIEW

Timely Petition for Review having been filed by the Respendent hereln and notice given to all parties, the Commissicn, after
considering the [ssues of the amount of compensation due for temporaty total disability; the reasonablenass or necessity of medical,
surgicat or hospital bills or services; the amount of compensation due for temporary partial disability; and the nature and extent of
the injury, and being advised of the facts and law, modifies the Decislon of the Arbitrator with respect to the amount of compensation
due for temporary totai disability, medical expenses, and the amount of compensation due for temporary partial disability, and
otherwise affirms and adopts the Decision of the Arbitrator, which is attached hergto and made a part hereof.

The Commission hereby modifies the Arbitrator's decision with respect to the amount of compensation due for te mporary total
disability, In his decision, the Arbitrator awarded temporary total disability benefits of $ 345.60/week for a period of 8 weeks
commencing on August 22, 2005, and ending on Qctober 15, 2605, "plus additional temparary partial disability,” On the Request
for Hearing, however, [*2] the parties stipulated to a period of temporary total disabillty of 7-6/7 weeks, commencing on August
22, 2005, and ending on October 15, 2005, Because we find that Petitioner is not entitied to temporary partial disability benefits,
we therefore modify the award for tamporary total disability benefits in accordance with the period of temporary total disability to
which the parties stipulated on the Request for Hearing. reason that the injuries sustained caused the loss of use of 7.5% of the
whole person

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner the sum of § 8,376.37 for Inedica) expenses under
§ 8(a) of the Act. This amount exciudes medical expenses already paid hy Respondent. Respondent is therefore due no credit against
medical axpenses awardad harein,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 19(n) of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shali have credit for $ 3,448.78 paid to or on behalf of Petitioner on
account of said eccidental injury.

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Circuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 19,400.00. The probable [*3]
cost of the record to be filed a8 return to Summons is the sum of § 35.00, payable to the Nlinois Workars' Compensation Commission
in the form of cash, check or money order therefor and depost ted with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: JUL 10 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearlng was malled to each party. The malier was
heard by the Honorable Arbitrater Stephen Mathis, arbitrator of the Commission, in the city of Springfield, on December 7,
2007. After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and
attaches those findings to this document.

DISPUTED ISSUES
F. Is the petitioner's present condition of {li-being causally related to the injury?
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1. Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary?

K. What amount of compensation is due for te mporary total disabifity?

1., What is the nature and extent of the Injury?

©. Other Temporary Partial DisabHity

FINDINGS

. On August 22, 2005, the respondent [*#4] Honeywell was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent.

. On this date, the petitioner dfd sustain injurles that arose out of and in the course of employment.

. Timely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitioner earned § 26,956.80; the average weekly wage was % 518.40.

. At the time of injury, the petitioner was 48 vears of age, single with 8 children under 18,

. Necessary medical services have not been provided by the respondent.

. To date, $ 3,448.78 has been paid by the respondent for TTD and/or maintenance benefits,

OROER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner terporary total disability beneflts of 345,60 /weak for & weeks, from 08/22/05 through
10/ 15/ 05 plus additional temporary partial disability (see attached findings of fac1s), which is the perlod of temporary total

disability for which compensation is payable,

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner the sum of $ 311,04 /weel for a further period [*5] of 37.5 weeks, as provided in Section
8(d)2 of the Act, because the Injuries sustained caused 7.5% loss of use of the person as a whole.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that nas accrued from  through  and shall pay the remainder of the award, if
any, in weekly payments.

. The respondent shali pay the further sum of §  for necessary medical services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act.
. ‘The respondent shali pay $  In penaities, as provided ih Section 19(k) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $  in penaities, as provided in Saction 19(i} of the Act,

. The respondent shall pay §  in attorneys' feeg, as provided in Section 16 of the Act,

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Pelition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this declsion, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision ghall be entered as the decision o the Commisston.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, Interest of 2,08% shall accrue from the date listed below to
the day before the date of payment; however, if an empioyee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in [#6] this award,
interest shali not accrue,

Sigrature of arbitrator

2-1-08

Date

FEB 15 2008

ATTACHMENT F & L

Is the petitioner's present condition of i li-being causally related to the injury?

What is the nature and extent of the Injury?

In Support of the Arbitrator's decision relating to F and L, the Acbitrator finds the following facts:

Ar arbitration Petitioner testified that she had been employed by Respondent since December, 2003. Her job duties for the
Respondent involved various assembly line activities Including bullding and assembling parts and packing the finlshed products for
shipment,

petitionier Lestified that on the date of accident she was assigned to elther the, YAllison line” or the packing department. While
performing her job dutles Petitioner testified she picked up a table weighting approximately Afteen (15) pounds, Upon doing so she
noticed a stabbing pain in her jow back radiating into her butiocks. Petitioner testified she notified the plant manager, Matt Hohemier.
Mr. Hoheimer apparently took her Into a conference room so thal she could fie down and put ice on her back. She was then senrt to
D, Bansal by the plant safety director. Dr, Bansal's records [*#71 were marked and infroduced as Petitioner's Exhibit 1.

A review of Dr. Bansal's records confirms Petitioner's description of accident and enset of symptomns, Petitioner was diagnosed initially

with lumibar strain and was prescribed medication and other conservative treatment, She was placed on light duty restrictions which
apparently the Respondent was inltially unable te accommodate, Petitioner was then referred by Dr. Bansal to Dr. Smucker, Or.
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Smucker's records we re marked and introduced as Petitloner's Exhibit 3.

Petitioner was seen by Dr. Smucker for further treatment by referral from Dy. Bahsal, Based on his examination and Petitioner's
complaints, Dr. Smucker ordered a lumbar MRL. He aisc took petitionar off of work and temporarily suspended physical therapy. The
MRI performed on August 26, 2005 revealed moderate facet arthropathy without foraminal canal ar foraminal stenosis st the 1415
level and more significant degenerative change with disc bulge into the right neural foramin at the L5-S1 level, Dr. Smucker aigo
recommended a lumbar injection which was performed at that time,

On August 29, 2005 Petitioner returned to sge Dr. Smucker compiaining of intense tow back pain. With [*8] respect to her meadical
history Petitioner advised Dr, Smucker that she had a history of back problems in the past and when being treated at that time recalls
having an epidural injection which caused her pain to increase. She also advised Dr. Srucker that she had been doing weil with
respect to her Jow back for the past two to three years unili she lifted the table at work on August 22, 2005, Dr. Smucker's diagnosis
at that time was lumbar degenerative disc disease with acute exacerbation on August 21, 2005, Dr, Smucker initisted a couwrse of
tumbal epidural steroid Injections and kept Petitioner off of worlk,

On September 21, 2005 Petitloner reported to Dr. Smucker that she had been hospitaiized for abdominal pain. She also noted
improvement In her low back and buttock pain. Dr. Smucker contined to keep Petitioner off work, He also discontinued seme of the
medications which he believed may have been associated with some of Petitloner's abdominat com plaints.

At arbitration Petitioner testified that she had had a history of kidney stones. When asked to compare the pain she developed aller
fer accident on August 22, 2005 and the pain associated with Kidney stones, Petitioner restified [*9] that the location of the pain as
well as the nature of type of pain was very different. On October 14, 2005 Petitioner advised Dr. Smucker that she had continued fow
back pain radiating into her left thigh with some paln In her feft sbdemen, Dr, Smucker diagnosed palitioner with lumbar degenerative
disc diszase at L3-4, L4-5 and L5-S1, most severe at L5-S1, "where there is disc corpression.” He recommeanded a lower EMG and
physical therapy. He also allowed Petitioner to return 6 work four hours per day with & sit or stand option and no lifting, pending or
twisting at the waist. He further noted that Petitioner was belng referred by Dr. Townsend, her family physician to see Dr. Fineda.

petitioner was seen by Dr. Pineda on November 1, 2005. Petitloner testified at arbitration that she had seen Dr, Pineda in the past for
low back pain in 1999 or 2000, With regard to earlier treatment by Dr. pineda, Petitioner testifisd that after a peried of treatment she
fhad no residual back paln and was doing well from 1999 untit her date of accident of August 22, 2003. Dr. Pineda‘s office notes were
marked and introduced as Petitionar's Exhibit 7. At her office visit of November 1, 2005, Petitioner [¥10} described her current
syrmptoms 1o invelve pain in her low back radiating towards both legs, She again hotes that her previous back pain five years ago had
resolved although she reported to Dr, Pineda that there have been episodes, "where the paln has come and gone perlodically
although it has never lasted this long.” D, Pineda recommended observation. He also discussed with Petitloner the possibility that she
may require surgery in the future.

On January 20, 2006 Petitioner returned to see Dr, Pineda. Dr. Pineda recommended that she undergo a discogram. The discogram
performed oh February 13, 2006 was marked and introduced &t patitioner's Exhibit 9. The report states that af £4-5 disc
pressurization produced severe concordant low back back at moderate pressure levels, At L5-81 disc pressurization produced intense
concordant pain at modest pressure levels. The Arbitrator notes that the Information contained In the patient history form attached to
Dr. Pineda's office notes contained in Petitioner's Exhibit 3 completed by {he Petiticner is consistent with Petltioner's testimony and
inforrnation Introduced in other medical exhibits introduced at arbitration.

In his narrative report dated [*11] February 21, 2006 marked and introduced as patittoner's Exhibit 8, Dr. Pineda summarizes his
recent treatment of Petitioner and acknowledges having seen her six or seven years age, With respsct {o the retationship between her
accident of August 22, 2005 and her current condition, Dr. Pineda stated,

The difficult question obviously that exists is whether or not this aggravation is temporary or permanent. Thus far, to the
best of my knowledge the pain from this additional aggravation has persisted. in my experience individuals with
degenerative disc disease will have Intermittent aggravation of thelr pain and often times they will return to baseline.
However, over time, some of those aggravations may or can become permanent, and that surgical therapy may be
considered at that time.

In a narrative report dated April 27, 2006 from Dr. Smucker marked and Introduced as Petitioner's Exhibit 10, Or. Smucker states
that the discogram was scheduled in refation to Petitioner's injury of August 22, 2005, Dr, Smucker discusses some of Petitioner’s
treatment options including a fusion or disc replacement. He also ctarifies that at that time he did not belleve Petitioner was at
maximum medical [#12] improvement and that the treatment she was recgiving was both reasonable and necessary. He also
confirmed thal the restrictions he had ptaced on Ms. Cline, “are refated to her August 22, 2003 accident."

i his evidence depesition dated Novembper 14, 2006 marked and introduced as patitioner's Exhibit 11, Dr. Pineda confirmed that he
had treated Petitioner during two periods of time, the first being from August 1§, 1989 through Aprll, 2001 and the second beginhing
on November 1, 2005 involving Petitioner's accident of August 22, 2005, Dr. Pineda was also asked to compare a discogram that had
paen performed o tanuary 1, 2600 prlor ko Petitioner's accident and the most recent discogram performed on February 13, 2006. It
was Dr. Pineda's opinion that the previous discogram was positive 2t L4-5 and L5-51 but there had been a slight progression or
change at (he 13-4 level. Dr. Pineda confirmed that the discogram resuits were consistent with Petitioner's paln complaints in her low
back.

OF. Pineds was asked whether within a reasonable degree of medical certainty Petitioner's accident of August 22, 2005 could have
aggravated a pre-existing degenerative condition in her jJumbar spine, Dr, Pineda [*13] stated that Petitloner's accident probably
aggravated but did not cause Fetitioner's degenerative disc disease. AL to whether the aggravation was permanent or temporary, Dr.
pineda staled that assuming Petitioner continues to have pain, then the accident caused a permanent aggravation of her permanent
disc disease. On cross-axamination Dr. Pineda was unable to provide an opinion as te whether Petitloner's kidney stone ang
abdominal pain treatment may have caused or aggravated Petitionar's low back condition (p. 39-40).

petitioner was examined at the request of the Regpondent by Dr. Zelby on December 5, 2003, Dr. Zetby's office Is located in
Maywood, Iliinols, a suburb of Chicago. Petitioner lives in Springfield. It was Dr. Zeiby's conclusion that Petitioner has degenerative
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disc disease that was not aggravated or acceierated by her work aceident or injury although her work injury may have caused a
temporary exacerbation of her condition. In his evidence deposition dated December 14, 2008 Dr. Zeiby stated that Petitioner had
positive Waddeli's signs indicating symptom magnification, The Arbitrator notes however that Dr. Smucker who treated Petitioner for
nine months did not note any [ #4147 positive Waddeli's signs indicating no symptom magnification.

petitioner testified that at no time had Dr. Smucker liited the restrictions he had placed on her of no lifting greater than twenty
pounds with a sit/stand oplion. Petitioner testified however that she was told by Ralph from the Human Resources Department that in
arder for her to continue working it would be necessary for her to obtain a full release from her doctor. It appears that Petitoner felt
she had no choice but to obtain a full release from one of her doctors, She therefore approachad her family doctor, Dr, Townsend and
obtained a ful] release,

Wilh respect Lo her present condition Pelitioner testifled that she continues to experience low back and leg pain. Certain activities,
especially lifting increase her pain lavels. Petitioner aise notices pain and stiffness with prolonged standing or sitting. Petitioner she
has not ruled out the possibllity that she may ultimately need to undergo surgery for the condition of her low back.

The Arbitrator concludes that Petitionar's accident of August 22, 2005 agoravated her pre-existing degenerative disc disease in her
lumbar sping. Based on Petitioner's description of her [¥18] symptoms both before and after her accident and the testimony and
opinlons of Dr. Pineda and Dr, Smucker, the Arbitrator concludas that Petitioner's accident caused a permanent aggravation of
Petitioner's degenerative low back condition and is a contributing factor Lo her present condition. In this regard the Arbitrator has
taken Into account the opinlon of Dr. Zeiby but gives his opinion less welght than that of Dr. Smucker and Dr. Pineda who treated
Petitioner over an extended pertod of time. There is aiso no evidence that Petitioner's kddney stones or abdominal condition is an
intervening accident.

The Arbitrator further concludes that Petitloner is permanently partialiy disabied as a result of her accident of August 22, 2005 (o the
extent of 7.5% loss of use of the person as a whole, In that regard the Arbitrator notes that Dr. $Smucker had placed restrictlons on
petitioner of no lifting greater than twenty {20) pounds with & sit/stand eption. Although Petitioner testified she received a full release
from Dr. Townsend, the release was only obtalned according to Petitiones’s unrebutied testimony at the request of the Respondent's
Human Resources representative.

ATTACHMENT J [*16]
Were the medical services that were provided to Petitioner reasonable and necessary?
In support of the Arbitrator's decision refating to (33, the Arbitrator finds the following facts:

The Arbitrator has reviewed medical bills and a summary contained in Petittioner's Exhibit 12, The Arbitrator notes that payments have
beeh made toward the bills by workers compensation and health Insurance, The Arbitrator also notes that Petitioner has made
payments teward the balance on some of the bills, According to the summary the total amount of the original bills Is approximately §
22,489.70. Approximately $ 5,568 10 has been paid by workers compensation and Petitioner has patd approximately $ 217.60,
Taking into account payments made by health insurance, It appears the balance due to the medicat providers is $ 6,352.35.

The Arbitrator has reviewed the medical records associ ated with the unpaid bills, After reviewing the medical records and based on
the Arliitrator's findings pertaining to (F) above, concludes that the Bills are both reasonable and necessary and refated to Petitioner's
accident of August 22, 2005. It Is therefore the responsibifity of the Respondent to pay any of the unpaid [*17] bills and relmburse
pither the Petitioner or Patitioner’s health insurance for paym ents made toward these bills,

ATTACHMENT K & O

What amount of comp ensation is due for temporary total disability?

What amount of comp ensation is due for temporary parkial disability?

In support of the Arbitrator's decision relating to (K) and {(0), the Arbitrator fords the following facts:

The parties stipulated that Petitioner was temporarily totally disabled from Aligust 22, 2005 through October 13, 2005 representing
eight (8) weeks, The Arbitrator finds therefore that Patitioner was temporatily totally disabled for this period of time, the parties
further agree that Respendent has paid § 3,448.78 in TTD benefits.

petitioner testified that while under Dr. Smucker's care he alfowed her to return to work on a light duty basis limiting not only her
fifting and reguiring & sit/stand oplion but also limiting the number of hours she could work. The Arbitrator notes that Dr, Pineda
agreed the use of restrictions by Dr. Smucker was ah appropriate means of pain management. Petitioner testified that Dr. Smucker
allowed her to return to work as of Octobar 16, 2005 working four hours per day, no [*18] liting, no bending or twisting & the
walst, sit stand option. These restrictions, Including working only four (4) hours per day were continued untii Petitioners office viglt of
Decamber 8, 2005. At that time Ur Smucker modified those restrictions recommending that she go to an eight (8) hour day per work
schedule, maximum forty (40} hours per week. She was altowed to Hft up te twenty {20) pounds, sit/stand option.

The Arbitrator notes that on December 15, 2005 a nurse’s note in Dr. Smucker's records indicates the Petitioner was again restricted
to four (4) houts dally for one week, then six (6) hours dally for one week, then eight (8) hours per day thereafter, Petitioner was
again allowed to return eight (8) hours per day as of January 20, 2006 aceording to Dr. Smucker's records.

It also appears that Petitioner was taken off of work on February 13, 2006 and February 14, 2006 due to an onset of severe back pain
subsequent to her discogram on February 13, 2006. On February 15, 2006 the period of time off was extended untii February 20,
2006, In response to a call from Petitloner on February 22, 2006 complaining of having to leave wark early due to severe back pain,
or. Smucker excused [*19] Petltioner from work from February 21, 2006 through February 24, 2006,

The Arbitrator concludes that Petitioner was temporarily partially disabled from October 16, 2005 through December 8, 2005 and
Decerber 15, 2006 through Jaruary 20, 2006. During these perlods of time, Petitioner is entitled to temporary partial disability
henefits as defined in Section 8{a) of the Act. It also appears Petitioner was temporarily totaily disabled from February 13, 2006
through February 24, 2006,

hitps:/iwww lexis.com/research/retrieve?co=&pushme=1&impFBSel=all&totaldocs=&tag... 1/21/2010



Search - 105 Results - "temporary partial” Page 5 of 5

Legal Topics:

For retated research and practice materials, see the following legat topics: "
. Workers! Compensation & SSDI » administrative brocesdings > Claims > Filica Reqyirements S
Warkers! Compensation & S80I > Adrinistrative. Brosesdings » ?i&atﬁlgﬁ_&.aexlw;}ﬁ]
workers' Compensation & 5501 > Compensabllity > Injuries > General Overview i

Source: Legal > Slates Legal : U8, > flingis > Eind Statules. Reoulatlons, Adminisialive Malatets & Gour Rufes > It Workers® Gompensation Dotislons (1}

Terms: “temporary partial” (EdilSearch | Suasest Tewms for My Seahy
View: Full

DatefTime: Thursdey, Janvary 21, 2010 - 6:38 PM EBT

My Lexis™ | Search | Researeh Tasks | GelaRosumenl, | Shepard's® | Alens | Total Lifigator | Transaciional Advisor | Counsel Selector
Histery | Retivery Manager] Dossler | Swdish Slient | Broderences | Sign Ould Help

B e N eviee Abeutlexisexls | Terms & Conditions | Contack s
@ L@)\lSNQMS' Copyright. € 2010 LexisNexis, a division of Reed Elsevier Inc, All rights reserved.

https://www lexis.com/research/retrievefcc=& pushme=1 &tmpFBSel=all&totaldocs=&tag... 1/21/2010



Search - 105 Results - "temporary partial” Page 1 of 7

Switch Ghent | Frefarances | Sign Gut { [Fiap

exisNexis® 7o search System

Counsel s»aiecmr;ﬁ:a Dasster } tistory § 30

Terms: “temporary partlal” (EdilSearch | Susgest Teons lorMy Searh)
¥ Select for FOCUS™ or Delivery

£

2009 IWCC 746; 2009 M. Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 768, *

SUANNE PALAZZOLO, PETITIONER, v, ABSOLUTE CLEANING, REGPONDENT.
NO: 06WCH1369, 07WC10507
ILLINOIS WORKERS® COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF SANGAMON
2008 IWCC 746; 2009 . Wrk, Comp. LEXIS 768
July 17, 2009

CORE TERMS: paln, arbitrator, cervical, chiropractic, neck, splne, lumbar, arm, degenerative, disease, surgery, temporary,
herniation, symptom, temporary total disabifity, injection, docter, light duty, degeneration, posterior, partial disability, contiguous,
diskectomy, epidural, chiropractor, replacement, appointment, dlagnosed, causaily, trash
JUDGES: Molly C, Masen; Yolaine Dauphin
QPINION: {*1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review under § 19(b) having been fited by Respondent hereln and notice glven to all parties, the Commission,
after considering the issues of causal connection, temporary totat disability, medical expenses, prospective medical expenses, and
doctor choice Himitation, and being advised of the facts and faw, corrects, affirms and adopts the Decision of the Arbitrator, which is
attached hereto and made a part hereof. The Commission further remands this case to the Arbitrator for further proceedings for a

determination of & further amount of temporary total compensation or of compensation for parmanent disability, If any, pursuant to
Thormas Zdustrial Comimission, 78 HL.2¢ 327, 298 M.E.2d. 1322, 35 1. Rec. 784.{1980).

The Arbitrator addressed both of Petitioner's claims in one Dedsion. The Commission elects to do the same, After considering the
entire record, the Commission corrects ong of the Arbitrator's findings and otherwise affirms and adopts the Decision, On page 15 of
the Declsion, the Arbitrator found that “P.A. Sprinkle [sicl referred the Petitioner to or. Hertel [*2} and Dr, Pencek." The
Commlssion finds that it was Dr. Calioway who referred Petitioner to Drs. Hertel and Pencelk and that, in fact, ali of the referrals In
this case emanated from Dr. Calloway.

IT 1S THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the Arbitrator filed Octaber 20, 2008 is heraby corrected,
affirmed and adopted.

IT 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that these cases are remanded 1o the Arbitrator for furthes proceedings consistent
with this Decision, but only after the later of explration of the time for filing a written request for Summons Lo the Circuit Court has
expired without the filing of such a written request, or after the time of compietion of any judicial proceedings, If such a written
request has been filed,

IT 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 19(n} of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER GRDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondant shall have credit for all amou nts paid, if any, to or on behalf of
patitioner on account of said accidental injury.

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Circult Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of $ 34,500.00. The probable cost of
the record to be filed [*31 as return to Surnmons Is the sum of § 35,00, payable to the ingis Werkers' Compensation Com mission
in the form of cash, chieck or money order therefor and depostted with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

Dated: JUL 17 2009

ATTACHMENT:

TLLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 19(b) ARBITRATION DECISION

an Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was malied to each party. The
matter was heard by the Honorable $tephen Mathis, Arbitrator of the Commission, in the City of Springfield, on
August 5, 2008, After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes the findings on the disputed
issuss checked below ang attaches those findings to this document,
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DISPUTED ISSUES

E. Is the petitioner’s present condition of ill-being causally refated to the injury?

1. Were the medical services that were provided to the petitioner reasonable and necessary?
K. What amount of compensation s due for temporary total disability?

N. Other: Prospective Medical

FINDINGS

. On May 9, 2008 and November 6, 2006, the respondent Absolute Cleaning was operating [*4] under and subject
to the provisions of the Act.

. On these dates, an employee-employer relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent.

. On these dates, the petiticner did sustain Injurles that arose out of and in the course of employment,

. Timely notice of these accidents were given to the respondent.

. In the vear preceding the injury, the petiticner earned $ 18,101,186 the average weekly wage was 349,83,
. AL the time of imjury, the petitioner was 27 years of age, single with 2 children under 18,

. Mecessaty medical services have not been provided by the respondant.

. To date, § 7,934.04 has been pald by the respondent for TTD and temporary partial disability henefits,

ORDER

. The respondent shali pay the petitioner temporary total dissbifity benefits of § 233.22 /week for 49 & 6/7 weeks, from
November 16, 2006 through May 20, 2007 and again from Febroary 23, 2008 through the date of arbitration
August 5 2008, which is the period of temporary totai disability for which compensation Is payable, The Respondent shall
also pay to the Petitioner temporary partial disability benefits in the amount of $ 6,692, 7.

[#5] . The respondent shall pay the petitioner compensation that hag accrued from May 9, 2006 and Noevember 6,
2006 through May 8, 2008, and shall pay the remainder of the award, if any, in weekly payments.

. The respondent shail pay the further sum of $ 24,012.37 for necessary medical services as provided In Section 8(2) of
the Act. Respondent is entitled to credit for any actual related medical expenses paid by any group 8(}) health provider
and Respondent is to hold Pelitioner harmless for any clalms for reimbursement frorm said group heatth insurance provider
and shall provide payment information to Petitioner relative to any credit due. Respondent is to pay unpaid balances with
regard to said medical expenses directly to Petitioner,

. The raspondent shail authorlze the diskectomy and disk replacement sirgery recoramended by Dr. Terrence Pencel.

. In no instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of tamporary
total disabifity, medical beneflts, or compensation for a per manent digability, if any,

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Uniess 2 party files a Petition for Revlew within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and [#61
perfects a review In accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decisien of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST If the Commission reviews this award, interast of 1.10% shall acerue from the date listed below to the
day before the date of payment; however, if an employes's appeal results In either no change or 2 decrease in this award, interest
shail not accrue,

Signature of arbitrator

10-8-08

Date

OCT 20 2008

ATTACHMENT ¥

In support of the Arbitrator's findings on the issue of (F) Is the petitioner's present condition of ill-being causaliy refated to
the injury?, the Arbitrator finds the following facts:

The findings of fact stated In other parts of this decision are adopted and incorporated by reference here.

On May 9, 2006, the Petitloner was employed by the Respondent as a clegner, The Respondent operates & cleaning business that
cleans businesses and homaes. The Petitioner was assigned fo cleen the offices and shower rooms of coal mines in Elkhart and
wilizamsvilie, [thnols. Petitioner described that her duties Includaed mopping shower rooms, emplying trash, dusting, wiping and
cleaning windows in both the shower rooms [*7] for the miners and the offices above ground, She also operated a machine scrubber
that mopped the shower room floor and used high pressure water hoses. About 4 1/2 hours of her sight hour shift wouid be spent
cleaning In the shower room.
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Petitioner began working for the Respondent on September 26, 2005 and had been working consistently 40 hours per week since that
date. Petitioner testified that she might have missed a coupie of days because of hier children being sick.

On May 9, 2006 Petitioner was mopping In the smal! building at one of the minas. Petitioner testifled that it had recently rained, and
the fioor was very muddy, and she had to lift a mop bucket to empty out the water. Approximately the third time she lifted the mop
hucket she felt @ sharp pain in her neck and In her left arm and left leg, Petitioner notified her boss and sought treatment with
chiropractor Kelly Calioway. Petitloner testiffied that she had never received chiropractic treatment prior to that point,

Or. Calloway's history notes that one weelk prior the Petitioner had gone to a Dr. Wahab for mid back pain going into her efl arm.
petitioner testified that Dr. Calloway was mistaken and that she had not seen [*8] Dr. Wahab for 8 number of years. Petitioner
tesutfied credibly on this issue, Petitioner also notifled Dr. Calioway of the work accident, noting that she had been sweeping, mopping
and lifting buckets of water. {P.X.2) Petitionar aiso notified the doctor that she had previcusty heen hurt by her ex-boyfriend who had
pulied her hair and injurad her head. Dr, Calioway diagnosed the Petitioner with lumbpar, thoracic and cervical pain and began a
course of conservative chirepractic care which lasted for approximately 5 visits. Petitioner was removed from work for three days and
stopped attending chiropractic care because she had lost ber public aid medical card, (P.X.2) Petitioner testified that she did not
recelve any medical care between the date she ended her chiropractic care with Dr. Calloway and November 6, 2006. Petitioner did
state that she asked her employer for a back brace and was given a back brace. Petitioner returned to her previous occupation and
continued to pecform all of the activities mentioned above,

On November 6, 2006 the Petitionar was working at the Wiliiamsvilie Viper mine for the fRaespondent in the early morning hours.
Patitioner testified that she was lifting, [*9] trash bags from a trash barrel and that the trash bags were fllled with compou nd sand
whicly weighed approxi mately 25-30 pounds. Petltioner had picked up the bag to pulit into the ‘codedial’, a larger trash bin, at a tevel
3-4 faet off the ground when she felt a ripping pain down her neck and right arm. Petitioner stopped working and notified her
employer later that day. Petitioner again sought treatment with Dr. Kelly Calloway, a chirepractic physician,

Petitioner told Dr. Calloway of the incident 2s described during her testimony, (P.X.2) Dr. Calioway noted the Petitioner tokd her that
when she lifted the bag she feit a sharp pain In to her neck, back, in the back of her right shoulder and around her shoulder blade, Dr.
Calioway noted that the Petitioner told her that the pain did not go away and it would sheot *hen she moved, (P.X.2) Dr. Calloway
diagnosed the Petitloner with cervical radiculitis and a sprain and strain. Dr. Calioway removed the Petitioner frem work for at least a
week,

On November 8, 2006 the Petitioner asked Dr. Calioway to logk at ber lower hack because she was having pain in her jower back and
left teg. (P.X.2) Dr, Cafloway neted the Petitioner was having pain [¥20] in the feft calf and foot on the big toe since belng off from
work. Petitioner described that her pain was 0 bad she had to He down and she couid not sleep. Dr, Calloway began & course of
conservative care that included manipulations, ultrasound, ice and heat. (P.X.2} Petitioner also testified thal Dr. Calloway referred her
to her Family physician for pain medications since the chiropractor couid not provide such treatment to her

petitiorer saw her family physician, Christopher Sprinide, 3 physician's assistant for Macoupin Family Practice, on November 8, 2006.
There is a handwritien notatlon on P.A. Sprinkie’s records which indicate that authorization was received from ‘Mike' ay Absoluie
Cleaning for one vislt for an kxjectlon. (P.X.3) P.A. Sprinkle was provided with a history of the prior medical treatment in May of 2006
where the Petiloner sougnt treatment from Chiropractor Kelly. P.A. Sprinkle was provided with the same history of the work accident
of Novermnber 6, 2006 and that Petitioner had pain in her neck and the night shoulder posterior reglon and into the back, (P.X.3) R.A.
Sprinkie noted the Petitioner had been having problems with her lowar back off and on for the previcus {¥11] three months since
her previous injury. (P.X.3) P.A, Sprinkie also noted the Petitioner complained of tingling sensatlons down the arm but denied any
numbness or weakness in the arm, {P.X, 3) On examination, P.A, Sprinkle noted pain when pulling down on the head and neck,
tenderness over the left lower fumbar area and a positive stralght leg raise In the lower back and thigh bilaterally at 45 degreeas.,
(P.X.3) P.A, Sprinkle diagnosed the Petitioner with neck and low back pain and placed her on a Medrol Dose Pak and Naprosyn.(P.X.3)
P4, Sprinkle further noted that Petitioner was going Lo continue with her chiropractor appointments and follow up in a week if there
was no improvement, (#.X.3)

On November 21, 2606 Dr, S{)rinkle's records docum ent that Respondent wanted her to see Dr. Timothy VanFleet but that Dr.
VanFleet would not see her without a referral from P.A. Sprinkle. P.A. Sprinkle attempled to contact Or, VanFlest. A visit with Or,
vanfleet was never scheduled. (P.X.3)

or. Calioway continued to treat the Petitioner with chiropractic treatments and tha Petilioner continued to follow up with P.A,
Christopher Sprinkle for pain medication and continued lower back pain and neck pain. {*12] (P.X. 2 & 3)

Petitioner testified that she was advised to be seen by “a hack specialist” and was advised by her former attorney of the name of a
Or. Ronsld C. Hertel, Petitioner testified that she cound not see Dr. Hertel without authorization and rether the appointment wilh Dr.
Hertel was set up by the Respondent, Petitioner described that she was examined by Dr. Hertel and Dy, Hertel's examination report of
December 28, 2006 was offerad into evidence, The letter of December 28, 2006 is addressed Lo AIG Ciaims Services, Attention:
Robert Probst and states that the Petitioner was referred by her attorney, Scott Hasselbrock, for evaluation of symptoms and physical
findings. Dr. Hertel recorded that the Petitloner had twe injuries, one of which she could not recail the exact date, Dr. Hertel
describad the incldent of May 9, 2006 while she was picking up 8 mop bucket to empty into a dumpster and experienced pain in her
lower back, Dr. Hertel recorded that Petitioner had chiropractic care and returned to work after a three day period and continued to
do her regular Job for the next 4-5 months. Dr. Hertel also noted the Movember 6, 2006 incident. Dr. Hertel's records indicate that
the [*13] history he received was that on November 6, 2006 the Petitioner #fted a bag of "trash” with her right upper #mb and had
the onset of pain in the right shoulder and that presently her pain was present in both the right and left upper limb. Or. Hertel was of
the opinion that the Petitioner's symptoms were far in excess of what could be substantiated by any objective physical finding. The
Arbitrator notes that in making this statement, Dr. Hertel did not have the benefit of any MRI scans on the day of his exarination of
December 28, 2006. Dr. Hertel suggested that to rule out any extrinsic pressure on the cervical or fumbar spine, an MRI of the
cervical and lusnbar spine should be accomplished, Petitioner testifted that when she left Dr. Hertel's office she wag in tears and Dr.
Hertel's records confirm that the Petitioner told him that she felt that he had spent no time with her and was rude and for that reason,
Dr. Hertel refused to make any further follow up appointments.

A MRI scan of the lumbar spine was performed on January 19, 2007 at Springfield MRI and Imaging Center. The MRI revealed a

posterior disc protrusion at L3/4 causing deformity of the contiguous th ecal sag, annular [*14] tear versus posterior disc protrusion
at L4/3 causing deformity of the contiguous thecal sac, and a degenerative disc disease at L3/4 and 1L4/5. {P.X.4) An MRI of the
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petiicner's cervical spine was obtained on lanuary 26, 2007 and revealed & posterior left paracentral disc prolapse at C5/6 causing
daformity of the contiguous thecal sac and the contiguous spinai cord, posterior lefl paracentral disc protrusion at £a/8, causing
deformity of the contiguous thecal sac and the contiguous spinal cord, a posterlor centval disc protrusion at C6/7 without significant
neurai encroschment, spinal stenosis at C5/6 and degenerative disc disease at C5/6. (P.X.4)

Petitionar cohtinued to remain on light duty restrictions and receive chiropractic care from Dr., Kelly Cafloway and continued to foliow
up with physician's assistent, Christopher Sprinkle. (P.X.2, 3) Petitioner returned to work on light duty and was provided with a light
duty position. During this time period, she recelved temporary partial disability payments.

The Petltioner noted that she continued to receive chiropractic care because it provided her with temporary relief of her pain or
reduction in her pain, Petitioner testified, and [#*15} Dr. Calloway's records reftect, that Petitioner was to be referred to Dr, Per
Freitag for further treatment. Petitioner decided instead that she wanted to be treated by Dr. Terrence Pencek, Dr. Calloway referred
the Petitioner to Dr. Terrence Pencek. {P.X.12, p.7} Petitioner was first seen by Dr. Pencek on March 12, 2007 and was provided with
the history of both work accidents of May 9, 2006 and Nove mbar 6, 2008, (P.X.12, p.7-8)

Or. Pencek was deposed and stated his opinions to a reasonabie degree of neurosurgical certainty. On examination, Dr. Pencek noted
the Petitioner's range of motion in her neck was normal and the rest of her general medical examination was unremarkable except for
the musculoskeletal exam where there was tenderness over the left trapezius and over the left pasterlor neck. (P.X.12, p.8}

Whan Dr. Pencek performed a neurclogical exam of the Petitioner, he hoted weakness in Petitioner's left arm, limited by pain, and in
the left leg, limited by pain (P.X. 12, p.8-9) br, Pencek also reviewed MRI fiims which he intarpreted as showing a disc hernlation to
rhe left at C4/S and C5/6, spinal stenasls of C5/6, a black disc, meaning degenerative disc, at L4/% and L3/4 and [*16] 3
retrofisthesis at L4/5, where one vertebral bone slipped slightly on the other bone. {P.%.12, p.9) Dr. Pencek described the
retrolisthesis as belng elther congenital or one of the events that happens in women who deliver children In that the pelvis just tits a
little bit, (7.X,12, p.9-10) Dr, Pencek diagnosed the Petitioner as having disc hermiations et C5/6 and at C4/5 which he believed could
have been causing her left trapezius discomfort, and recommended physical therapy, epidural sterotds to see If he could Cut the pain
down. (P.X.12, p.10) Dr. Pencek was of the opinion that the Petitloner might require surgery at C4/5 and C5/6 because the dura was
indented and is extending to the same side, (P.X.12, p.11} Dr. Pencek did not fee! the Petltioner needed surgety in the lumbar spine
but she might need 2 myelogram in the future for that condition. (F.X.12, 1)

petitioner underwent two epidural injections Into her cervical spine and two epidural injections into her lumbar spine at Memorial
madical Center by Dr. Hyunchui Jung, (P.X.12, p.10) Petitioner returned to Or. Pencek on May 21, 2007 after undergoing epidural
steroid injections and physical therapy. (2.X.12, p.11] Petitioner [#17] had no relief from the injections in the neck but the injections
into her lumbar spine did provide her with some relief (P.X.12, p.11}

After Petitioner's epidural Injection, Petilicner continued to compiain of burning and aching in her neclk and in her shoulder biade, left
arm pain and left trapezius paln, (P.X.12, p.11) Dr. Pencek was of the opinion that Petitloner's disc hernlation at C5/6 may have been
the source of Pelitioner's paln. (P.X.12, p.11} Dr. Pencek stated that the pain In Petitioner's scapula, left arm and hand were related
v nerve roots at the C5/6 level and dermatomes at those levels, {P.X.12, p.12) Dr. Pencek fait that Petitioner showed eatly
degeneration in the lumbar and cervical spine for her age, helght and weight, (P.X,12, p.13, 38)

On October 30, 2067, Dr. Pencek re-evaluated the Petitioner and changed his recommendation from a two fevel fusion at C4/5 and
C5/6 to a C5/6 anterlor diskectorny with a total disc replacement or ah artificial disc, (P.%.12, p.13-14) Dr. Pencek was of the opirion
that parforming a diskectomy with the Implantation of an aruficial disc would be more beneficial to the Petitioner than 2 two level
fuston. (P.X.12, p.14-15) Dr, Pencek %3181 did not recommend any specific treatment to the iumbar spine at the time of his
deposition, although he previously suggested & myeleogram might be performed. {P.X.12, p.15)

Or. Pencek stated that it was more fikely true than not that the work accidents Incidents above her waist could have caused her
cervical disc herniations at C4/5 and C5/6. {P.X.12, p.15-16) Dr. Pencek was of the opinion that Pelitioner probably had pre-existing
degeneration in her lumbar spine because of the black discs he deseribed. (P.X.12, p.156-17) Dr, Pencek stated that although the
radiologlst noted the Petitioner had degensrative disc disease Dr, pencek did not feel that she did. (P.X.12, p., 17, 4G) Dr. Pencek did
not feel the Petitioner had anything more than mild degenerative disk disease in her cervical sping baged the radiologists report of the
MRIL. Dr. Pencek noted there were no osteophytes only some degeneration at C8/6, (P.X.1Z, p.17) Dr. Pencek did not feel that genetic
predisposition accelerated or made degeneration of the spine more likely at an earlier age, (P.X.12, (.42) Dr. Pencek did state
nowever that just dug to a person's bedy, degen eration of the spine cén octur at a faster pace. (P.X.12, [*18} p.42-43) Dr. Pencek
agreed that smoling can accelerate degeneration and arthritis, (P.X.12, p.43; Dr. Pencek alse acknowledged that individuals with
degenerative disc disease can develop disc herniations and spinal stenosis, (P.X.12, p.43) Dr, Pencek felt that spinal SLENGSIS Was
congenital. (2.X.12, p.44) Dr, Pencek testified that the MR did not help in determining whether the disc herniations were caused by
trauma or degeneration, {P.X,12, p.44) Dr. Pencek stated that disc prolapse and hermiation were terms that meant the same thing,
that the disc is outside ite normal anatomic space. (P.X.12, p.44-48) Dr, Pencek also agreed that engaging in everyday activities can
aggravate degenerative disc disease. (P.X,12, p.45) Dr. Pencel stated that fifling a child coutd aggravate degenerative dise disease if
her complaints changed. {P.X.12, p.46-47) Petitioner tactified that she did lift her child but that her symptoms did not change from
the symptoms she developed after her work accidents,

Or. Pencek was provided with a description of the Petitioner's pre-accident history of cervical and lumbar pain complaints, Or. Pencek
testified that any events of left arm pain 3 years prior to her work [*20% accident would have been irrelevant to her present
situation. (P.X.12, p.18) Dr. Pencek felt that Petitioner was credible and based his opinions on the Petitloner's credibility. (P.X.12,
p.16,19) Dr. Pencek testified that the Petitloner’s work aroidents could have aggravated her lumbar disc digease and black disc at
L4/5. (P.X.12, p.20-21)

or. Pencek admitted that the Petitioner did not advise him of any emergency room treatment tor back pain prior to the work accidents
nor dic the Petitioner tell O, Pencek of any assault by a boylriend. (P.X.12, p.24-25) Dr. pencek stated, however, that there were
certain things that patients won't tell thelr doctors and, certainly personal ones, and that it is at depositions that he sometimes finds
out for the first times about these things. (P.X.12, .25}

Dr. Pencek also had the opportunity to review Dr. Hertel's examination Dr. pencek alse noted that there were incensistencies between
the history contained in Dr. Hertel's report and the nistory thal the Petitioner provided to Dr, Pencek. (P.X.12, p.38) The Arbitrator
notes that Dr. Hertel is the only doctor who recorded a history different from those of all other physicians, including

respondent's [%213 1ME physician discussed below. Dr. Pencek explained that al! pain was subjective and that people reack to pain
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and experience pain differently, {P.X. 12, p.57) Dr, Pencek felt that all humans limit their activitles as the result of pain. {(FP.X. 12,
p.58) Dr. Pencek felt that the Petitioner's perfermance on grip strength testing might be impacted by her pain and cervica!
radiculopathy. (P.X.12, p.58-58). Dr. Pencek noted that Dr. Hertel made his concluslons and diagnoses prior to receiving an MRI film.
(P.X.12, p.5%-60} Dr. Pencek noted that Dr, Mertel's physical examination of the Petitioner was different firom the one he performed
and that Dr. Hertel spectfically did not test the Petitioner's strength. (P.X.1 2, p.G4-65) Dr. Pencek explained that as a neurosurgaon
he evaluates 2 patient's findings differently from an orthopedic surgeon, ke Dr. Hertel, and that he places a great deal of emphasis
on strength or weakness because Dr. Pencek's discipling deals with deficits of the nervous system starting with the brain geing out to
the peripheral nerves and not deficits of mechanical factors which an orthopedic surgeon would be looking for. (P.X.12, p.65-66}

Dr. Pencek testified that he [*22] did not believe that eiectrical studles to document the radiculopathy were necessary. {(pP.X.12,
p.52-53) Dr, Pencek does not put werk restrictions on his patients untll he performs surgery. {P.X.12, p.55-56)

Dr. Pencek stated that he did not recommend to the Petitioner that she return for chiropractic treatment because he does not know
enough sbout chiropractic to be able to determine whether it is efficaclous for an individual's compiaints and that he did not have any
expertise in that matter. (P.X.12, p.56)

fir. pencek testified that even assuming predisposing factors such as degenerative disc disease, which may have predated the
Petitioner's work accidents, siaoking, body habitues, and everyday life, it was stiii his opinion to @ reasonable degree of neurosurgical
certalnty that the Petitionar's work accidents were @ contrlbuting factor to the development of har gisc injury at C4/5 and C5/6 and
the symptoms that she experienced thereafier. (P.X.12, p.61-62) It was Dr. Pencel’s opinion to a reasonable degree of neurosurgical
certainty that the Petitioner’s need for the anterior diskectomy and disc replacement surgery at C5/6 wag the resull of an aggravation
that she experienced from [*23] one of her work accidents, notwithstanding her preexisting or predisposing factors, (P.X.12, p.62)

Respondent offered the deposition testimony of Dr, Sandra Tate, & doctor board certified in physical medicine and rehabilitation.
(R.X.11, .5 in Deposition Exhiblt 1) Ur, Tate described that the specialty of physical medicine and rehabilitation is involved with the
conservative treatment of individuals with neuromuscular and skeletal pain and is like "being a nen-operative
Orthopedist/neurclogist”. (R.X.11, p. 8) Dr. Tate also performs etectro disgnostic studies. (R.X.131, p.9) Petilionar provided Dr, Tate
with a history consistent with her testimony. (R.X.11, p.14-15)

[r, Tate was of the opinion that the Petitioner's degenerative disc disease in Lhe lumbar and cervical spine pre-dated the Petiticher's
work accidents in May of 2006 and November of 2008, (R.X.11, p.27) Dr, Tate did not believe the MRI fiims showed any evidence of
disc herniation or rerve root irrftation. (R.X.11, p.28) Dr. Tate was of the opinton that the Petitiener's mechanical back pain, or
sacroihiac joint dysfunction, could be causaily related to the November 6, 2006 injury and felt the patient would benefit from [*243
additional treatment and therapy to correct the mechanical probiems of her SI joint dysfunction. (R.X.11, p.28)

Or. Tate examined the Petitioner for a second time on July 12, 2007 and recelved additional history. (R.X.11, p.29) Dr. Tate felt that
the Petitioner's subjective complaints were not verified by her physical examination. (R.X.11, p.32-33) Dr. Tate feit the Petitloner was
a symptom maghifier based upon Waddell's testing of 3 out of 5 and 5 out of 5 (R,X.1%, p.33) Dr, Tate felt that upon her
examination of July 12, 2007 she did not document any clinical findings of cervical radicuiopathy. (R.X.11, p. 34) Dr, Tate did not
believe the Petitioner needed additional chiropractic care as of her examination of July 12, 2007. (R, X.11, p.35) br. Tate did pot
believe the surgery recommended by Dr. Pencek was needed, {R.X.11, p.36-37} Dr. Tate did believe the Petitioner should have
restrictions on her work activities including a 50 pound restriction, (R.X. 11, p.37-38) Dr. Tate did not feel that the need for the
restriction was the result of a work injury. (R.X.11, p.38}

Dr, Tate admitted that she was not a surgecn and that her area of specialty invelves the non-operative care of

muscuioskeletal F¥285] conditions, {R.X.11, p.28) Dr. Tate admitted On cross examination that the Petitioner noted occipital
headaches that began 6 months prior to Novem ber 18, 2006 which she believed corresponded (o the Petitloner's first work accident of
May 9, 2006. (R.X.11, p.29) Dr. Tate admitted that she appreciated tightness and tenderness in the upper traperius muscies {n her
examination of the Petitioher's cervical spine both on January 31, 2007 and July 12, 2007. {R.X.11, p.40) Dr. Tala acted that side
bending was reduced in ber examination of the Petitioner's cervical spine on January 31, 2007 but not July 12, 2007, (R.N.11, p.40)
Dr, Tate noted numerous hegative findings on various physical examinations but admitted that many of the negative findings were for
testing that had nothing to do with the Petitioner's cervical spine but in fact tested for thoracic outlet syndrome, Impingement
syndrome, cubital tunnel syndrome, carpal tunnel syndrome, (R.X 11, p.40) Dr. Tate admitted that the lack of posltive findings on
cubital, carpai and impingement testing confirmed merely that the Petitioner had no distal impingement, or impingement of the
nerves or tendons in her shoulder. (R.X.11, p.41}

Dr. Tate [*267] admitted that it was her opinion that the Petitioner's left sacrofliac joint dysfuncticn was causaily related to the
povember 6, 2006 Injury and that her neck and back compiaints were exacerbated by the May 2006 Injury. (R.X.11, p.46) Dr. Tate
acknowledged Lhat, by the Pelitioner's history, her condition with respect to the cervical and tumbar spine worsened after the work
accidents of May 9, 2006 and November 6, 2006, (R.X. 11, p.48) It was Dr. Taie's opinion that if surgery was to take place, a fuslon
would be more appropriate than a disc replacement. (R.X.11, p.48) However, as noted above D. Tate Is not a surgeon and the
Arbitrator places less weight on her opinion regarding the appropriateness of surgery.

The Arhitrator notes that the Respondent offered various pre-accident medical records. Respondent offered medical records from
Memorial Medical Center dated October 27, 1999 in which the Petitioner felt a twinge in her Jow back which had become constant low
back pain radiating from her left sacroitiac jolnt area down the lateral aspect of the {eft thigh to the knee. (R.X.1) A Carlinville Area
Hospltal record of January 1, 2003 documents the Petitioner complained of pain down her [*271 neck and left arm and it was sharp
and falt numb. {R.X.3) The record alsc documents the Petitioner had pain and numbness In her left ieg. (R.X.2} Petitioner was
dlagnosed with a cervical strain and Prescribed medication. Respondent also submitted the Petitioner's Midwest Rehabilitation records
s R.X.7 documenting that the Petitioner cancelled some physical therapy appointments for various reasons inciuding oversieaping,
pitking up her son frorm school, having epldural injections, and car problems.

Petitioner testifled credibly and admitted that prior te her work accldents she had problems with her lower hack and nack before. The
medical records offerad by the Respondent indicale the Petitioner did have prior complaints of neck pain, arm pain, back pain, and lefl
leg pain. The Petitioner was able ta carry out her work activities for the Respondent for eight months prior to her wori accident of
May §, 2006, The records indicate that after the May 9, 2006 work accident the Petitioner received only very minor chiropracic care
and returned to work performing all of her regular activities until November 6, 2006 at which time the symptoms in her neck and

back increased to the point where [*28] she could no longer avoid mediczl care.
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The Petitjoner credibly testified that she had severe, stabbing pain in her left arm, into her neck and occastonally inte her right arm
since the accident. Petitioner testified that her back pain and leg pain were so severe that she could not stand and had to take Norco
to relieve her pain, The Arbitrator discounts the opinions of Dr. Hertel since he did not have the benefit of any MRI studies and it was
clear that the doctor and the Petitioner did not have a good retationship. The Arbitrator further notes that Dr. Sandra Tate,
respondent's exarmining physician, testiied to a causal relationship between the Petitioner's low back paln as a resuit of the
November 6, 2006 accident and an aggravation of the Petitioner's neck pain as a resuit of the May 9, 2006 accident,

Dr. Pencek testified credibly and the Arbitrator adopts Dr. Pencek's opinfons on causation and specifically finds that the Petitioner's
work accidents of May 8, 2006 and November 8, 2006 aggravated a pre-existing lumbar degenerative disc disease and caused or
aggravated the Petitioner's cervicat dise hernlations at C4/5 and C5/6 and aggravated the Petitioner's degenerative carvical [*29]
dise digease.

ATTACHMENT J

In support of the Arbitratol's findings on the issue of (1) Were the medical services that were provided to the petitioner
reasonable and necessary?, the Arbitrater finds the following facts:

The findings of fact stated in other parts of this decision are adopted and incorporaied by reference hers.

The Arbilrator finds that the medical and chiropractic expanses submitted In Petitioner's Exhibit 11 were reascnable and necessary.
The Arbitrator finds that the Petitionar did not exceed the chain of referral from two physicians. The Arbitrator notes that Petitloner's
chiropractor advised her o seek her family physiclan for medications, and is in essence a referral {o P.A. Sprinkle. P.A, Sprinkle
referred the Petitioner to Dr. Hertel and Dr. Pencek. Dr, Pencek refetrad the Petitioner to Dr, Juny.

patitioner testified that she continuad to receive chiropractic care even after Dr, Pencek took over her care, Dr, Pencek testified that
he was not an expert in chiropractic care but would not have referred the Petitioner for continued chiropractic care, Petitioner testified
that the chiropractic care she received provided her with temporary refief from [¥307 her pain. The Arbitrator finds that Petitioner's
chiropractic care has not been excessive and has been reasonable and necessary treatment for pain relief from these injurles. All
other medical treatment to Petitloner have been reasonable and necessary to treat the condition of Hi-belng herain established. The
Arbitrator orders the Raspondent to pay the unpaid medical and chiropractic expensas directly to the Petitioner as follows:

Catloway Chiropractic, 5/16/06-4/15/08 $ 3974.62
Dr. Terrence Pencek, 3/12/07-10/30/07 $ 90.00
illincis Diagnostic Imaging, 1/19-1/26/07 $ 1100.00
Associated Anesthesiclogists, 3/20-6/27/G7 $ 3697.00
Memerial Medicat Center, /27,07 $ 150.00
5/4/G7 $ 2518.15
4117/07 $ 2518.15
4/3/07 $ 2630,90
3/20/07 % 2624.90
Memorial Medical Center 1/3/08 $ 2602.65
71477130707 $1114.60
8/1-8/14/07 $ 992,00
TOTAL; $ 24012.37

Raspondent is entitled to credit for any actual retaled medical expenses paid by any group 8(3) health provider end Respondent is to
hold Petitlonar harmiess for any claims for refmbursement from said group health insurance provider and shall provide payment
information to Petitioner reative Lo any credit due.

ATTACHMENT [*31] K

In support of the Arbitrator's findings on the issue of (K) What amount of compensation is due for Temporary Total
Disability?, the Arbitrator finds the foflowing facts:

The findings of fact stated in other parts of this decision are adopted and incorporeted by reference here,

Respondent's Exhibit 13 establishes that the Petitioner was disabled from November 16, 2006 through May 20, 2607 at which tima
the Petitioner returned to work, working 20 hours per week. Respondent disputed that it was liable for any temporary total or
temporary partial disabliity benefits for that period during which the Petitioner worked fight duty at reduced hours for the
Respondent. Petitioner and Respondent did stipulate and agree that if the Petltioner's claim is found compen sable then she would be
entitled to a total of $ 6,692.07 in temporary partial disabiity benefits from May 20, 2007 through February 23, 2008, at which
time the Petitloner was terminated from her employment. From February 23, 2008 through the date of arbitration, the Petitioner
claims entitlement to temporary tolal disabllity benefits and the Respondent denles liabllity for same.

The Petitioner has bean on work restrictlons [*32] since February 5, 2007 and, periodically, removed from work for appol ntments
with her doctor. Petitioner has continued to be on light duty restrictions, according to her testimony and Dr. Calloway's records, and
was on light duty when she was terminated by her employer on February 23, 2008, {P.X.2) There |s some dispute as to whether the
petitloner's termination was due to. an unwilingness (o accommodate her restrictions versus an economic lay-off

petitioner's un-rebutted testimony was that the Respondent totd her she was laid off because the Respondent had lost its coritracts
with the mines at which she was working at the time of her accident, Petitioner was working in Decatur for the Respondent when she
wag laid off and not at any of the mines. Petitioner's un-rebutted testimony was that the Respondent cleans numercus commercial
and residential buildings. The Respondent is stili operating its business and employs other individuals, This evidence was un-rebutted.
The parties stipulated that as of the date of arbitration the Petitioner continues to be off work pursuant to the aferementioned light
duty restrictions.
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The Arbitrator finds that the Respondent has failad to prove that [*331 the Petitioner's termination was due to an economic lay-off
and further finds that Petitioner was ternporarily and totally disabted as a result of this accident from February 23, 2008 to August §,
2008, the date of arbitration.

The Arbitrator notes the Petitioner testified that she worked for the Respondent part time and recelved a temporary wage differentlal.
The Arbitrator finds the Petitioner was temporarily and partially incapacitated from her employment from May 20, 2007 through
February 23, 20608 and the petitioner is entitied to the aforementioned stiptdated temporary partial disability benefits totaling $
6,692.07.

ATTACHMENT O
In support of the Arbitrator's findings on the issue of (0). Prospective Madical, the Arbitrator finds the following facts:
The findings of fact stated In other parts of this decision are adopted and incorporated by reference here.

Dr. Pencek testifiad that Petitioner Is a candidate for an anterior cervicai diskectomy at C5/6 with an implantation of an artificial disc.
As the only surgeon (o commeant on the appropriateness of surglcal care was Dr. Pencel(, the Arbitrator adopts the opinlons of br,
Pencek on the issue of prospective medical [*34]1 care and the need for the anterior diskectomy and disc replacement surgery and
orders the Respondent to authorize the same.

DISSENTBY: NANCY LINDSAY

DISSENT: I respactiully disagree with the Majority's Decision affirming and adopting the Arbitrator's Decision finding that Petitioner's
current condition of lil-being end need for neck surgery is causally related to her work accidents of May 9, 2006 and November G,
2006. Given certain discrepancies between Petitioner's testimony and the actual medical records, as well as dotumented evidence of
symptom magnification on multiple instances, I would have found Or. Tate's opiniong more credible than those of Dr, Pencek's and
conctuded that Petitioner reached maximum Mmedical improvemeant as a result of both accidents on July 31, 2067, when re-examined
by Dr. Tate. As a result I would have vacated the award of prospective surgery as recommended &y Dr. Pencek, vacated the award of
temporary total disability benefits in 2008, and vacated the award of any medical bills incurred after Dr. Tate's July 31, 2007,
examination. Dr. Calloway's note of May 10, 2006 Indicates that Petitioner had been seen ohe week earller by Dr, Wahab for mid-
back paln going into her left arm, [*35] Petitioner atiempted to explaln this earlier treatment but failed to Introduce Dr, Wahab's
records into evidence -- records which were clearly within her reach to obtain and which mignt have clarified exactly when and why
Petitioner had treatad with him, Instead, by thelr emission one may infer that they would not have supported her testimony and,
thus, shwe apparently was undergoing seme treatment to her mid-back and left arm a week before the accident at work. She initiatly
put her medical care through her personal insurance and stopped treating when her personal insurance ended. That was May 285,
2006, She sought no further treatment. She filed no claim for benefits. She resumed fuil-time werk. On November 6, 2006 Petiticner
returned to Dr. Cailoway complaining of shooting pain in her neck and the back of her right shoulder, golng down her right arm. There
ware no low back compl aints and no left arm complaints neted. On November 8, 2006 Dr. Calloway notes that Petitioner told her that
she had left work two weeks earlier (sometime in late Gctober) because of back pain and two weeks before that she had bean given a
back brace to wear at work (which, according to her testimony, she [*26]1 had requested). On November 10, 20086, Petitioner
sought treatment for her low back complaints, The chronolegy and completeness of this history Is Important as Dr. Pencel’s opinions
were based upon the history Pesitioner provided to him - a history which was clearly incorrect and incomplete. Dr. Tate reviewed the
records and the MRI. She examined Petitioner on two occasions, Her findings included symptom magnification. Her opinions were
weil-axplained and based upon accurate Informatlon. For these reasons, [ dissent.
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2009 I, Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 944, ¥ oa (we 409
BENJAMIN MANLEY, PETITIONER, v. CATERPILLAR, RESPONDENT.
NO: 06WC40080
ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF MACON
2009 1N, Wrk, Comp. LEXIS 944
September 10, 2009

CORE TERMS: doctor, pain, arbitrator, temporary, stimulator, symptoms, temporary total disability, partiat disability, tmplant, rehab,
leg, kip, causaily, average weekly wage, disabllity benefits, reduction, injection, implanted, non-work, assigned, causal connection,
fact stated, patient, sterckd, nerve, roct, permanent disabiity, permanent, modifies, returned to work

HIDGES: Nancy Lindsay; Yolaine Dauphin
OPINION: [#1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

Timely Petition for Review under § 18{b) having been filed by Respondent herein and notice given to all parties, the Commission,
after considering the issues of causal connection, temporary total disability, medical expenses, prospective medical expenses, § 19(k)
and § 1901} penaltles, and § 16 attorney feas, and being advised of the facts and law, modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated
pelow and otherwise affirms and adopts the Decision of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, The
Commission further remands this case to the Arbitrator for further proceedings for 3 determination of a further amount of temporary
total compensation or of compe ngation for permanent disability, If any, pursuant to Thomas.y. Jagustrial Commission, 78 L.20 327,
399 MN.E.2d.1322, 35 TIl.0ec. 794 (1980).

After considering the entire record, the Commission modifies the Decislon of the Arbltrater in several respects.

The Commission modifies the Arbitrator's award of medical expenses by noting that those expenses retating to treatment rendered on
or after February 1, 2006 are [%2] awarded subject to the medical fee schedule.

The Comsission deletes the language at the bottom of page nine of the Decislon ordering Respondent to pay tem porary total
disability benefits "until, at jeast, the Petitioner altains maximurm medical Improvement.” This order i5 inconsistent with Section 19(b).
Respondent Is only Hable for paying temporary total disability benefits through Movember 24, 2008, the date of hearing, as reflected
on the second page of the Decislon,

The Commission vacates the Arbitrator's award of temporary partial disabiiity benefits from Aprl! 18, 2007 through January 18,
2008. The record contains conflicting evidence concerning Petitionar's wark status during this perlod. The Decislon correctly reflects
that Petitioner was placed in 2 "rehab,"” or fight duty, category af work in 2006 and that Petiticner remained in this category
thereafter, with his hourly wage dropping te $ 11.75 per hour in early April 2007 (T, 49}, but the Arbitrater was apparently unaware
that Petitioner's treating physician, Dr, Furry, released Petitioner to unrestricted duty as of aprit 16, 2007, Dr. Furry continued o
treat Petitioner after April 18, 2007 and in fact came to view hlm [*3] as & candidate for a spinal cord stimulator, but did not
impose any work restrictions. It appears to the Commission that Respondent opted to keep Petltioner In the “rehab" category, despite
Dr. Furry's full-duty release, based on safety conslderations and the recommendations of its in-house physician. in the Conmission’s
view, the award of temporary partial disabifity benefits 1s at odds with Dr, Furry's full-duty release.

The Commission also vacates the Arbitrator's award of penaities and fees. The Arbitrator viewed Respondent as acting in an
objectively unreasanable manner in refusing to pay temporary partial disability benefits from Aprit 18, 2007 through January 18,
2008 and in failing to pay temporary total disablifty benefits from January 19, 2008 through November 24, 2008, the date of hearing.
The Commission views the evidence differently, noting Dr. Furry's full-duty release, Respondent's payment of group disability
benefits, the examination findings and opinions of Or, Graham and Stephen Rathnow’s rather reluctant endorsement of a stimuiator
trial,

IT 15 THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to Petitioner the sum of $ 434.00 per week for a period
of [#4] 44-3/7 weeks, that being the period of temporary totai incapacity for work under § 8(b), and that as provided In § 19(b) of
the Act, this award in no instance shall be a bar to a further hearing and determination of & further amount of temporary total
compensgation or of compensation for permanent disabitity, if any,

IT 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Arbitrator’s award of temporary partial disablity benefits of $ 120.67 per
week for 39-3/7 weeks fram April 18, 2067 through January 18, 2008 is hereby vaecated.
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{T IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Arbitrator's award of § 10k} penalties, § 19(1) penaities and § 16 attorney
fees |s hereby vacated.

IT 18 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay te Petitioner the sum of § 153,800.66 for medical expenses
under § 8(a} of the Act with those expenses relating to treatment rendered on or after February 1, 2006 awarded subject to the
medical fee schedule. Respendent is entitled to credit for any amounts paid on the awarded bills by Respondent either directly or
through a group policy that falis within the purview of Section 8(j) of the Act, To the extent that 8(j) credit exists, Respondent shatl
keep Petitioner [*5] safe and harmiess from any and all daims or liapllities that may be made against him by reasen of having
received such payments pursuant to Section B(j) of the Act.

IT 18 THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent is entitled to a credit in the amount of $ 9,883.35 under § 8(j) of
the AcL; provided that Respondent shall hold Petitioner harmless from any claims and demands by any providers of the benefits for
which Respondent Is recelving credit under this order.

IT 1§ FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanted to the Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with
this Decision, but only after the latter of expiration of the time for filing & written request for Summons to the Clreult Court has
expired without tha fHing of such a written request, or after the time of completion of any judicial proceedings, i such a writlen
request has been filed.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 19{n) of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credit for all amounts paid, if any, to or on behaif of
Petitioner on account of said accidental injury.

Bond for the removal [#6] of this cause to the Circuit Court by Respondent is heraby fixed at the sum of ¢ 75,000.00. The probable
cost of the record to be Filed as return to Summons is the sum of § 35.00, payable to the Hinois Workers® Compensation Commission
in the form of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission,

DATED: SEP 10 200¢

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 19(b) ARBITRATION DECISTON

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and 2 Notice of Hearing was malled to each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Ruth White, arbitrator of the Commission, in the City of Decatur, on November 24, 2008, Aftar reviewing all
of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches those findings te
this document,

DISPUTED ISSUES

F. is the petitioner's present cendition of lil-being causally reiated to the ijury?

K. What amount of compensalion |s due for Temporary Partial Disability and Temporary Tokal Disability?

L. Should penalties or fees be imposed upen the respondent?

FINDINGS

. On November 22, 2005, the respondent [#71 Caterpillar was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between the petiticher and respondent.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustaln injuries that arose out of and in the course of amployment.

. Tiroely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.

. Ir the year preceding the injury, the petitioner earnad $ 33,852.00; the average weekly wage was § 651.00,

. At the time of injury, the petitioner was 43 years of age, married with 2 children under 18.

. Necessary medlcal services have been provided by the respondent.

. To date, no compensation has been pald by the respondent. Respondent has paid group nonoccupational disabllity banefits in the
amount of § 9,983.36 for which Respondent is entitied to creditu pursuant to Section B(j) of the Act.

ORDER

. The respendent shall pay the petitioner Temperaty Partial Disability benefits of $ 120.67/week for 39 3/7 weeks, from April 18
2007 through January 18, 2008 and Temporary Total Disability benefits of $ 434.00 /week for 44 3/7 weeks, from January 18, 2008
through November 24, 2008, as provided [*8] In Section 8(b) of the Act, because the injuries sustained caused the disabling
condition of the petitioner, the disabling condition Is temporary and has not yet reached a permanent condttion, pursuant to Sectlon
19{b} of the Acl.

. The respendent shall pay $ 153,800.66 for medical services, as provided In Section 8(a) of the Act. Respondent is entitied Lo credi
for any amounts paid on the awarded bils by Respondent elther directly or through a group policy that falis within the purview of
Sectlon 84)) of the Act. To the extent that B{j) credt exists, Respondent shall keep Petitioner safe and harmless from any and ail
claims or labilities that may be made agalnst him by reason of having recelved such payments purstant to Section 8(3) of the Act,

. The respondent shall pay § 7,028.18 in penaities, as provided in Section 19(k)} of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay § 9,420.00 in penaities, as provided in Secticn 19{]) of the Act.
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. The respendent shalt pay § 3,289.64 In attorneys’ fees, as provided in Section 16 of the Act.

. In no instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of ternporary total
disabitity, medical benefits, [#9] or compensation for a per manent disabillty, if any.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Patition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decislion shall be entered as the decision of the Commissien,

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of
Arbitrator shall accrue from the date tisted below to the day before the date of payment; however, if an employees appeal results in
either no change or & decrease in this award, Interest shall not accrue.

Signature of arbitrator
January 22, 2009
Date

JAN 28 2009

IN SUPPORT OF THE ARBITRATOR'S DECISION RELATING TCQ (F) WHETHER PETITIONER'S PRESENT CONDITION OF 1Li~
BEING IS CAUSALLY RELATED TO THE INJURY, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS THE FOLLOWING FACTS:

On Novermber 22, 2008, the Petitioner, Benjamin Manley, was employed at the Respondent's Decatur faciiity assisting In the assembly
of heayy equipment. He was then 43 years of age and had worked ali his adult life with an ambulance service, as a pipefitter, with a
trucking company, as a janitor, security, [%¥10] and as a foreman. He had taken and passed physical examinations for many of
these positions, and on November 22, 2005, was totally pain free without any physical symptoms or restrictions.

The Petitioner described an injury to his mid-back in 1994 which caused him to miss 1 day of work, see the company doctor on oniy 1
otcasion, and feturned to work the day following the accident with no restrictions and no symptoms thereafter. The Petitioner did not
file 2 work injury claim and had no back or other pain and symptome as a result of this incident, On November 22, 2005, the
petitioner was completely free of back, hip or leg pain and symptorms and was able to fully perform his work duties.

On November 22, 2005, the Petitioner was using a mechanical holst to move heavy steel plates, standing with his left hand on the
hoist control box and his right hand steadylng the load, He tripped over a pallet which had been laft in his work area and fell, twisting
his back, but did not fall to the ground. The Petitioner had immediate low back pain which had not been presant before this incident.
He continued working the 90 minute remaining on his shift and in the evening at home, took Ibuprofen and [*11] applled an ice
pack for his low back pain, The Respondent does not dispute that the Petitioner sulfered a work injury on November 22, 2005.

The Petitioner workad the following day, November 23, 2005, with low back pain and the presence of some left leg pain, He declined
medlical traatment at this time with the axpectation that his symptoms would subside, He did network the next day, November 24,
2008, Thanksgiving Day.

On November 25, 2005, the Petitioner requested a referral to the Respondent’s Medical Department; however, the Medical
Department was closed following Thanksgiving. He worked with his continuing low back and leg symptoms on November 25 and
Movermnber 26, On November 28, 2005, he had a kidney stone which caused back paln but this problem lrnmediately resolved,

On Hovember 28, 2005, the Petitioner went to the Respondent’s Medical Department to see the company doctor for his work related
back and leg pain and symptoms. He was not abie to see the company doctor, as requested, until December 22, 2005, The company
doctor referred the Petitioner Lo DMH Cotporate Health/SHORE where he was evaluated, received physical therapy, and given home
exercises. The Petitioner was returned [*12] to his regular duties but worked with the low back and leg symploms which had been
present since hils work accident on November 22, 2005. The Petitioner did not work during the period January 31, 2006, through June
29, 2006, due to a work prebiem, not related to his work Injury,

In February 2006, the Fetitioner sought medical treatment for his continuing symptoms at Doctors Femity Practice, and coincldentaliy,
was examined by the Respondent's company doctor, Dector Fahey, who prascribed Ipuprofen and Flexeril for the Petitioner's
symptoms, On March 9, 20086, the Patitioner saw his family physiclan, Doctor Scribner, for his back and ieg paln described in his
November 22, 2005, work injury and continuing low back pain which

radiates Into his left hip (Petitioner's Exhiblt 3, p 1), Doctor Seribner prescribed Ultram and ordered physical therapy and an MR}
which was performed Aprit 27, 2008, and showed anterior disc buiging at the L5-51 spine lavel (Petiticner's Exhibit 4, p. 1), Doctoer
Scribner referred the Patitioner to the St. Mary's Hospital Paln Treatment Center, Doctors Furry and Fancher, for further evaluation
and treatment.

The Petitioner first saw Doctor Fancher at the St. Mary’s T¥137 Hospital Pain Treatment Center on May 24, 2006, and gave an injury
nistory that on November 22, 2005, he slipped twisting over a pallet and had onssat of pain (Petitioner's Exhibit 6, p. 1; Petidoner's
Exhibit 1% - Dr. Furry dep, p. 8). He then began a long sertes of both diagnostic and therapeutic treatment including:

06/05/086 - Lumbar epldural steroid injection

06/14/06 - Facet joint injections L4-5, L5-S1 on left, L5 nerve root block

06/27/08 - Medial branch blocks 14, L5, 51

07/26/06 - Radicfrequency L4-5, S1 (left)

01/22/07 - Transforaminal epidural sterold injections L5-51
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01/29/67 - L5-S1 Transforaminal steroid injectlons (identified pain generators as L5-51 nerve root)
04/09/07 - Radiofrequency 14, 5, S1 (left)

0604707 - Transforamminal epidural sterold injections L4-35 (left)

09/21/07 « Radiofrequency 14, 5, 51 (left)

Docter Furry testified that each of the procedures reduced the Petitloner's back and leg pain; however, symplems always returned,
Doctor Furry further testified that a5 a physiclan who specializes in pain management, his goal is long Lerm reduction in pain and
symptoms, While each procedure was effective, especially In reducing back paln, no long tertn benefit [¥14] was obtained for the
Petitioner. Doctor Furry's final diagnosis was low back pain coming from facet joinls and radicular pain in the left leg {Petitiones’s
Exhibit 19 - Dr, Purry dep, p. 20},

On June 11, 2007, Doctor Furry recommendad a neureskimulator spinal implant based upon the Petitionar's diagnostic studies and
treatment which had oniy provided teraporary relief of symptoms. Protoce! requires that a patient undergo a psychol egical evaluation
to determine if the patient is a good candidate for the stimuiator implant. On September 19, 2007, the Petitioner was seen by
Stephen Rathnow, 2 licensed clinical psychologist, who reported to Doctor Furry that "Despite depressive symptoms, there does not
seem to be & reason to deny Mr. Manlay a trial with the spinal cord stimulator” (Petitioner's Exhiblt 18, pp. 9-10). Also, protocol
requires & brial stirmulator implant before a permanent stimulator is implantad.

In January 2008, Doctor Furry referred the Petitioner to Dr. Chy for a surglcat consuitation as a freatment eption. Doctor Pencek, @
neurcsurgeon, also reviewed the Petitioner's case, and both Docters Chu and Pencek recommended against surgery as treatment for
the Petitioner.

Doctor [*18] Furry also reviewed an EMG performed December 19, 2006, by Doctor DeviescHoward and noted Doctor
DeviescHoward's comment that the EMG testing showed subtie abnormaiities which support a diagnosis of radicular pain and that
Doctor DeviescHoward suspecied & S1 nerve root distribution problem (Petitioner's Exhibit 19 - Doctor Furry dep, p. 21).

On February 14, 2007, at the Respondent's request, the Petitioner was examined by Dr. Cliver Dold, a neurosurgecn, and gave an
injury nistory that on November 22, 2005, he was "plcking up plates with hoist - caugiit foot and twisted - immediately el low back
pain® (Petitioner's £xhibit 8, p. 1), Doctor Dold opined that the Petitioner has chronic back and leg paln commencing with his
November 22, 2005, injury (Petitioner's Exhibit &, p. 9).

The Petitioner testified that on July 29, 2008, Doctar Furry fmplanted a trial stimulator and that he had a significant, 89 percent,
reduction in his hip and leg pain which had been continucus since his November 22, 2005, accident, Therefore, with this good result,
on August 27, 2008, Doctor Furry implanted a permanant neurestimulator.

The Petitioner tastified that before the Implant stimulator he had constant [*¥16] left hip and leg pain, even with no activity, After the
stimulator was implanted, his left hip and Jeg pain was reducad by 80 percent, he had no paln when inactive, and only maderate paln
with activity such as extended walking, Before the stimuiator Implant, he took Oxycentin twice dally and Darvocet ence dally for pain;
after the Implant, he takes Oxycontin only once daily and no Darvocetl. Before the implang, he coutd only watk a brief tirme 10-15
minutes, before the onsel of severe hip and leg pain which was disabling; after the Implant, he can walk 45-60 minutes and then only
experience moderate pain snd no leg pain. .

Doctor Furry opined that the Petitioner's work injury on November 22, 2005, is the cause of the symptoms, paln and problems which
he treated (Petitioner's Exhibit 15 - Dr, Furry dep, pp. 42-43).

The Petitioner submitted to an independent medical exam performed by Doctor Graham on September 4, 20077 Doctor Graham
testified that the Petitioner's cornplaints of low back, hip and leg pain are symptoms of radi cular pain caused by impingement of a
nerve root. Algo, that a twisting of below back Can cause injury to the low back, spine and surrounding tissues {Respondent's

Exhibit [*17] 1 - Dr. Graham dep, p. 28). He furthar testified that procedures used by Doctors Fu rey and Fancher, not including the
spinal stimuiater Implant, are recoghized treatments which he uses in treating patients, that the results fotlowing the medial branch
block on June 27, 2006, does indicate that the face! joints are pain generators (Responde nt's Exhibit 1 ~ Dr. Graham dep, p. 39).
However, he testified that whether & patient reports reduced pain following a protedure is not necessarnly a valid test as to the
effectiveness of the procedure. His explanation was not persuasive, (Respondent's exhibit 1 - Dr, Graham dep, p. 44) He further
testified that the fact that the implant stimulator caused rellef of symptom s is “immaterial” (Respondent's Exhibit 1 - Dr. Graham dep,
ap. 50, 52-53}%

In formulating opinions that the Petitioner’s condition of ill-being is not causally related to the Novembar 22, 2005, work accident,
Doctor Graham assumed inaccurate facts, including that the Petitioner had radiofrequency treatments on July 9, 2007, and repealed
soon after on July 26, 2007 (Respondent's Exhibit 1 - Dr. Greham dep, p.20). In fact, the Petitioner had radiofrequency treatmants on
iy 26, [*18] 2006, April 9, 2007, and September 21, 2007, He also stated that the Petitioner did not have a proper psychol ogical
evaluation in preparation for the stimulator implant by a psychi atrist or psychologist but only was avaluated by a social worker
(Respondent’s Exhibit L ~ Dr. Graham dep, p. 23). In fact, the Petitioner was evaivated for this procedure by a licensed clinical
gsychologist, Stephen Rathnow, who approved the stimulator implant procedure. The Arbltrator finds that Doctor Graham’s opinion a%
to causal connection and the appropriateness of the spinal stimulator Implant are not credlible.

The Respondent does not dispute that the Petitioner suffered a work Injury to his back on November 22, 2005, and in fact, the
petitioner's condition was regularly reviewed by the Respondent's Medical Gepartment and doclor. Progress Notes decumenting the
Petitioner's attendance and evaiuation at the Respondent's Medicai Department from his first examination on December 22, 2005,
following the accldent were regutarly sent to the Respondent's Worker's Compensation Department for review (Petitioner's Exhibit 25,
pp. 915}, The Progress Notes, at ne time, indicate that the Petitfoner's condition [*18] Is not work releted. From inftial treatment
on May 24, 2006, through treatment on June 18, 2007, all charges for treatrment by Doctors Furry and Fancher &t the St. Mary's
Hospital Pain Treatment Center were pald as "Caterpiflar Workers' Comp” (Pett tioner's Exhibit 23, pp. 575

The Petitioner received a letter from the Respondent dated July 1, 2007, indicating, for the first time, that the petitioner's medical

condition is not related to his November 22, 2005, injury (Petitioner's Exhibit 26), However, prier to July 1, 2007, the Petitioner had
last been seen by the Respondent's doctor on February 7, 2007; there is no indication in this medical record on this date that the

hitps:/fwww. lexis. com/research/retrieve?ce=& pushme=1&tmpFBSel=all&totaldocs=&tag... 172172610



Search - 105 Results - "temporary partial” Page 5 of 7

Petitioners condition is not work related. Doctor Graham's opinion on causal connection was not re ndered untit after the Independent
Medlcal Exam on Septembar 4, 2007, No cther physician, including the Respondent's doctors, or any medical person has indicated
that the Petitioner's condition {5 not work related.

The Petitioner was examined by Respondent's physician, Doctor Rothmarn, on July 9, 2007, i the Respondent's Medical Department.
There is no indication in the record for this visit that the Pelitioner's condition [#207] is not work related and the record was sent to
the Respondent's Worker's Com pensation Department, as usuzl. On that date, the Petitioner asked Doctor Ruthman why the
Respondent was now cons! dering his condition to be "non-work retated"; the doctor responded that he had no idea why the
patitioner's condition was now being considered a non-work related injury.

The Respendent does not dispute that the Patitioner injured his back in a work accident on Novernber 22, 2005, and paid for
treatment of accidental injurles through June 2047, The Petitioner, in reports to his doctors and In testimony, gave a consistent
history of his accident, The Respondent asseris that the Petitiones's written report of accident dated November 25, 2005, states he
rerumbled” when his foot caught on a pallet causing lower back discomfort {Petitioner's Exhibit 24) and does not indicate he “twisted"”
hie back, The Arbitrator finds that this is a “distinction without a difference” and is not Inconsistent with the Petitloner's report of
injusy.

" poctor Fuiry credibly testified that the Petittoner's condition is related to his November 22, 2005, accldent and injury. The Arbitrator
finds that there is 8 causal connection [+21] between the Petitioner's undisputed work accident on November 22, 2008, and his
congition and treatment as docu mented by testimony and reports recelved inte evidence.

IN SUPPORT OF THE ARBITRATOR’S DECISION RELATING TO (G} WHAT WERE THE PETITIONER EARNINGS, THE
ARBITRATOR FINDS THE FOLLOWING FACTS:

The findings of fact stated above are adopted and incorporated by reference here,

petitioner testified that the hourly rate of pay was $ 15.00 per hour. He further testifled that he worked overtime in the 52 weaks
praceding the injuty and that the overtime wag not mandatory. The average weekly wage Is § 651.00 based upon the Respondent’s
wage records (R, 2).

IN SUPPORT OF THE ARBITRATOR'S DECISION RELATING TO (J) WHETHER MEDLICAL SERVICES THAT WERE PROVIDED
TO THE PETITIONER WERE REASONABLE AND NECESSARY, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS THE FOLLOWING FACTS:

The findings of fact stated above are adopted and fncorporated by reference here.

The parties have stipulated that on November 22, 2005, the Petitioner sustained a work Injury to s back, and the Arbitrator has
found that the Palitioner's condition of ili-being as documented by hig testimony and medical reports received inko evidence [#22] is
causally related to his accidental injurles on that date.

The Arbitrator finds that the trestment which the Petitioner has received for his work Injurles ls reasonabie and necessary and further
finds that the bilis for said treatmeant totaiing $ 153,800,668, as shown on petitioner's Exhiblt 23, shall be paid by the Respondent, a
list of said bills attached to the Regquest for Hearing (Arbitrator's Exhibit 1.

$N SUPPORT OF THE ARBITRATOR'S DECISION RELATING TO (K) WHAT AMOUNT OF COMPENSATION IS DUE FOR
TEMPORARY PARTIAL DISABILITY AND TEMPORARY TOTAL DISABILITY, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS THE FOLLOWING
FACTS:

The findings of fact stated above are adopted and incorporated by reference here.

The Respondent agraes that the Petitioner sustained an accidental work injury 5o his back on November 22, 2005, The Respondent
accepted the Petitioner’s condition resulting from his wark accident as work refated until July 1, 2007, The Arbitrator has found that
the Petitioner's condition and treatment are causally related to his work accident on November 22, 2005,

The Petitioner worked without physician imposed restrictions from date of accldent, November 22, 2005, untll January 31, 2006,
During the [*23] period January 31, 2008, through June 29, 2006, the Petitioner did not work due to a problem, not related to his
work injury. When he returned to work on June 30, 2006, his family physiclan, Dr. Kenneth Scribner, imposed work restrictions duet)
the Petiticner's work related condition. At the Respondent's request and on a Respondent medical restriction form, Dr. Seribner
ordered no overtime work, no lifting over 20 pounds, no bending over 30 [degrees}, no standing over 4 hours, ne climbing 3 or mere
stairs, no reaching more than 10 times per hour and no jarring of back or budy. These restrictions were transmitted to the
Respondent and are a part of the Respondent's medical record for the Petitioner {Petiticher's Exhibit 25). The Respendent did not
dispute Doctor Sertbner's work restrictions and now does not di spute that the rastrictions were reasonable and necessary. In fact, the
Petitioner was examined on freguent occasions by Respondent’s dectors who also imposed worlk restrictions as Included in
respondent's medical record for the Petitioner {Petitioner's Exhibit 25).

When the Petitioner returned to work, he was assigned to "rehab® because of his work restrictions ang performed very £*24] few
duties, The Petitioner was paid his regular wage during his initial period In "rahab,” but on April 18, 2007, his hourly wage was
reduced to § 11.75/hour because he continued Lo be assigned to trahab” due 2o hig work restrictions, The Respondent does not
dispute that on April 18, 2007, the Petitioner’s hourly wage was reduced to $ 11.75/hour, The Respondent agrees that the Petitloner's
average weekly wage is $ 651.00.

The Petitioner contipued to work in "rehab" until January 18, 2008, when he was advised by the Respondent that hig time allotment in
rehab" had expired and that he could not return to work for the Respondent until his work restrictions had been eliminated, The
Respondent does not dispute that the Petitionar was marred in such way from active work with the Respondent. The Petitioner has
recelved non-work related disabillty benefits from the Respondent totaling $ $,983.36 since January 18, 2008,

The Petiticner is due tempbrary partial disabiiity benefits for the 39 3/7 week period, April 18, 2007 - January 18, 2008, when the
petitioner worked in "rehab” with a reduced wage. Temporary partial disability benafits due the Pefitioner are calculated as follows:

Regular [*25] Wage:
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& 551.00/wik (AWW) X 39 3/7 wks = § 25,668.00

Rehab Wage:
$ 11.75/hr % 40 hrs/wk x 39 3/7 wks = 18,531.43

Difference: § 7,136.57

Temporary Partial Disability Due:
4 7,136.57 x 2/3 =% 4,757.71

The Respondent terminated the Petitioner's active employment 60 January 18, 2008, and he has not received any temporary total
disability benefits for the period January 19, 2008 - Novernber 24, 2008 (the date of arbitration hearing), a total of 44 3/7 weeks, The
petitionar's average weekly wage Is § 651.00. Temporary total disabitity benefits due to the Petitioner for said pericd are calculated as
follows:

¢ 651.00/wk x 2/3 x 44 3/7 wks = § 19,282.00
In summary, the Arbitrator finds the Petitioner is due benefits as follows:

Temporary Partial Disability: $ 4,757.71
Termporary Total Disability: § 19,282.00

$ 24,039.71

The Respondent is entitled to an 8(j) credit for § 9,983,356 in disability benefits paid. After said credit, the Arbltrator awards
temporary partial disability and temporary total disabillty to the Petiticner In the amount of $ 14,056.35,

On August 27, 2608, Doctor Furry implanted & stimulator in the Petitioner's spine, and the Petitioner's work restrictions continue; the
Respondent [%26] prevents the Petitioner from returning to work with these restrictions. The Respondent shall pay temporary total
disability benefits to the Petiticner at the rate of § 434.00 per weel Lntil, at jeast, the Petitloner attains maximum medical
improvement.

IN SUPPORT OF THE ARBITRATOR'S DECISION RELATING TO (L) WHETHER PENALTIES OR FEES SHOULD BE IMPOSED
UPON THE RESPONDENT, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS THE FOLLOWING FACTS:

The findings of fact statad above are adopted and incorporated by reference here,

The Petitioner filed & Petition for Penalties under Sections 13(1), 18(k) and for an award of Section 16 Atlornay Fees alleging that the
Respondent failed to pay temporary partial disability and temporary total disability to the Petitioner.

The Respondent does not dispute that the Petitloner sustained a work injury to his back on Novemn ber 22, 2005, nhor does the
Respondent dispute that the Petitioner’s physlcian-impoged work r estrictions caused the Petltioner to be assigned to "rehab” with a
pay reduction, or that the Petitioner's active employment with the Respondent was terminated on January 18, 2008, The Arbitrator
has found that the Petitioner's condition requiring work restrictions is [%27] causally refated t¢ his November 22, 2008, work
accident.

On April 18, 2007, while the Petitioner was assigned to "rehab,” the Respondent agrees that his average weekly wage, $ 651.00, was
reduced to $ 470.00/week (§ 11.75/hr % 49 hrs). On July 20, 2007, the Petiticner's counsel made & demand upon the Respendent to
pay temporary partial disabiiity benefits to the Petitioner (Petitioner's Exhibit 27, p. 1), The Respondent refused to pay any such
benefits, even though the Respondent had paid the petitioner's freatment bills as work related until June 2007,

The Respondent accepted the Petitioner's condition and treatment a5 related to his November 22, 2005, work injury until June 2007.
The Arbitrator also notes that no medical evidence or opinion existed in June 2007 or on 3uly 1, 2007, when the "denial” latfer
(Pialntiff's Exhibit 26) was sent by the Respondent to the Petitioner that the Petitioner’s condition was not work related. The
Raspondent's own records from its Medical Department continuausly refer to "workers compen sation,” and on July 9, 2007,
Respondent's physician, Dr. Ruthman, stated to the Petitioner that he had no idea why the Respondent was now considering his
condition [*¥28] to be non-work related.

The Respondent's July 1, 2007, letter 1o the Petitioner did not expiain or state any evidence as to the reasoh his condition 15 now
being treated as nori-work related. It was not until September 2007 when Doctor Grahar performed an IME that the Respondant
obtained any opinion that the Petitioner's condltion is not work related. The Arbitrator has found that Doctor Graham's opintons on
causation are not credible,

The Respondent terminated the Petitioner's "rehab" assignment and ali active employment on January 18, 2008, stating that he
would not be atlowed to return to work wntil his physical restrictions were removed; this Is not disputed by the Respondent. All work
restrictions arose due to the Petitioner's November 22, 2005, work injury, The Respondant has refused to pay TTD benefits to the
petitioner; TTD due to the Petitioner for the pericd January 18, 2008 - November 24, 2008 (the date of arbitration hearing) Is §
19,282.00. The Petitioner has only received the Respondent’s group disabllity benefits avatlfable to any employee during periods of
disability.

The Arbitrator has found that the Respondent owes the Petitioner temporary partial disability benefits [#29] and temporary total
disabifity benefits, after 8(j) credit, in the total amount of § 14,056.35. The Arbitrator finds that the Respondent’s fallure 1o pay such
penelits to the Petiticner is unreasonable.

The Supreme Court has established a test of “objective ressonablenass” to determine whether 19(k) Penalties should be awarded. In
Board of Education of the City of Chicago vs. Industrial Commission, 93 1li.2d.1 {442 N.E.2d881, 65 Ii.Dec.300) 1982), the Court
stated, "Thus, it is not good enough to merely assert nonest ballef that the employee's claim is invalid or that his award Is not
supported by the evidence; the employer's belief is "honest" only if the facts, which 3 reasonable person in the employer's positlon
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woutd have, wouid justify It." 66 Ii.Dec. at.p. 304,

The burcen of proving the reasonableness of its conduct is upon the Respondent. Whan & delay has occurred in the payment of
Workers' Compensation benefits, the employer has the burden of justifying the deiay. City of Chicago vs. Industrial Commisgion, 63
M.26.99, (345 N.E.2d477) 1976).

Penalties under 19(k) are awarded to the Petltioner in the amount of § 7,028.18 being 50% of the [*30] benefits payable as of
Novernber 24, 2008,

On July 20, 2007, the Petitloner made a written demand upon the Respondent for payment of temporary partial disability Foliowing
the Petitioner's pay reduction on April 18, 2007 (Petitioner's Exhibit 27, g, 1). The Respondent did not explain the reason for the non-
payment of benefits and only made the condusory written statement to Petitioner on July 1, 20607, that his injuries were now
considerad not work related (Petitioner's Exhibit 28). This concluslon was made without any supporting medical basis or opinion and
after the Respondent had treated the Petitioner's condition as work related for 15 months. The Respondent has falled to pay
compensation to the Petitioner for the perlods Aptil 18, 2607 - January 18, 2008 {temporsry parttal disabllity) and Januery 19,
2008 - Novemnber 24, 2008 {temporary totel disability), a total of 314 days. The Arbitrator awards the Petltioner penalties under 15(1)
in the amount of $ 5,420.00 belng $ 30.00 per day x 314 days.

pursyant to Section 16, the Arbitrator awards atforneys' fees to the Petitioner in the amount of $ 3,289.64 being 20% of the penaities
awarded herein.

CONCURBY: MOLLY C. MAGON
DISSENTBY: MOLLY C. MASGN
DISSENT: PARTIAL [#31] CONCURRENCE AND DISSENT

1 disagrae with the majority's decislon {o vacete the Arbitrator's award of ternporary partial disabliity benefics, Whila 1t is true that
Dr. Furry released Petitlonar to full duty as of April 16, 2007, he did not release Petitionar from treatment, By June of 2007, he was
recomimending a spinal cord stimulater. Once Dr. Furry made this recommendation, Pelitloner could have claimed temporary total
disabitity, since his medical condition was no longer stable {Ereeman. Ynited Coal Mining Company. v, Indusirial Commission, 318
HLARRL3d 170, 175 (Sih [ist. 20000). but he continued working, having been assigned fo light "rehad" duly by Respondent. After
Respondent leamed of the recommendation, it reacted by reducing petiioner's wages. Contrary to the assertions made by
Respondent in its Statement of Exceptions and at oral arguments, petitioner filed a grievance concerning this reduction. 7, 52,
Respondent continued to pay Petitioner at a tower rate until January 18, 2008, when Fetitioner was told that the only "rehab” job
avallable was one that exceeded restrictions imposed by Respondent's own physician. T, 63-54. Respon dent had reasons, [¥321 and
probably good ones, for Himiting Petitioner's dulies but should not have also limited his earnings.

I respectfully dissent.
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2009 5il, Wrk. Comp, LEXIS 1176, * o8 (w0 2-
GIOVANMNA DIPASQUALE, PETITEONER, v. 1.C. PENNEY, RESPONDENT,
NG: 07WC36440
ILLINQIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF KANE
2009 1, Wrk, Comp. LEXIS 1176

October 7, 2009
CORE TERMS: pain, cervicai, shoulder, etbow, arbitrator, syndrome, right shoulder, medication, Ibs, temporary, sensatlon, chronic,
rotator, cuff, jewelry, therapy, symptoms, surgery, muscle, nerve, tear, aem, partial disabliity, degenerative, diagnosis, dlagnoses,
pulling, vedial, doctor, finger
JUDEES: Marlo Basurte: James F. DeMunne; David L, Gore
OPINION: [*1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review under § 18{b} having been flied by the Petitioner and Respondent herein and notice given to all parties, the
Comimission, after considering the issues of temporary total disabliity, causal connection, medical expenses, prospective medical,
evidence issues, temporary partial disability and being advised of the facts and law, affirms and adopts the Decision of the
Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made & part hereof. The Commisston further remands this case to the Arbitrator for further
proceedings for a dete rmination of & further amount of temporary Lotal compensation or of compensation for permanent disabiity, if
any, pursuant to Thomas v. Industrial Commission, 781024 327, 399 N.E.2d 1322, 3510 Dec. 724 (1980). ‘

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED 8Y THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the Arbitrator flied April 7, 2009 ig nerely afirmed and
adopted.

(T 1S FURTHER QRDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case ig remanded to the Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with
this Decision, but only after the later of expiration of the time for fillng 2 written [*2] request for Susmimons to the Circuit Cowrt hasg
expired without the filing of such 2 written request, or after the time of compi etion of any judiclal proceedings, if such a written
request has been filed.

1T 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 19{n) of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shail have credit for alf amounts paid, if any, to or on behalf of
Petitioner on account of said accidental injury,

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Circuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of § 2,700.00. The probable cost of
the record to be filed as return to Summons is the sum of § 35,00, pavable to the Iliinols Workers' Compensation Commission In the
form of cagh, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission,

DATED: OCT 7 2009

ATTACHMENT:

TLLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 18(h) ARBITRATION DECISION

AR Application for Adiustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Nolive of Hearing was malied to each party. The malter was
heard by the Honorable J. Kinnaman, arblirator of the Comimission, In the city of Geneva, [*3] IL, on March 13, 2009 After
reviewing all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby maies findings on the disputed Issues checked below, and attaches
those findings to this document.

RISPUTED ISSUES

¥. Is the petitionar's present cendition of iil-being causally related to the injury?

N. Other TPD, future medical

FINDINGS

. On March 6, 2007, the respondent J,C.Perney was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.
. On this date, an employeg-employer relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent.
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. On this date, the petitioner did sustain injuries that arose out of and in the course of employment.

. Timely notice of this accident did given to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitioner earned $-37,454.04; the average weekly wage was § 720.27.
. At the time of injury, the petitioner was 43 years of age, married with 1 children under 18.

. Necessary medical services have not been provided by the respondent.

. To date, $ 16,326.12 has been paid by the respondent for TTD and/or maintenance henefits,

ORDER

. The respondent shall pay [*4] the petitioner temporary total disability benefits of § 480.18 /week for 34 weeks, from 3/7/07
through 10/30/07, as provided in Section 8{b) of the Act, because the injuries sustzined caused the disabling condition of the
petitioner, the disabling condition is temporary and has not yet reached a permanent condition, pursuant to Section 19({b) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay & 3,584,372 for medical services, as provided in $Section 8(a) of the Act.
. The respondent shall pay $ 0 in penalties, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act,

. The regspondent shall pay $ 0 in penaities, as provided in Section 19(1) of the Act,

. The respondent shall pay § 0 In attorneys’ fees, as provided in Section 16 of the Act.

. In no instance shall this award be & bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additienal amount of temporary totai
disability, medical benafits, or compen sation for a perm anent disability, if any.

Respendent shali pay the petitioner temporary partial disability benefits of $ 348.35/weel for 17-3/7 weelks from
6/1/08 through 9/30/08 as provided in Section 8(a ) of the Act Respondent has paid § 7,148.59 in TPD benefits for the
period [*5] from 2/10/08 through 5/31/08.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a parly files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the dedislon of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commisgion reviaws this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of
Arbitrator shall accrue from the date Usted below to the day before the date of payment; however, If an employee’s appeal results in
either no change or 2 decrease in this award, interest shatl not acorue.

Signature of arblirator
April 3, 2009

Date

APR 7 2009

On March 6, 2007 Petitioner stipped on ice and feli on her right side a5 she was on her way to work. She had pain in her entire right
upper body. She has been a fine jewelry salesperson for more than five years. Accident is not In dispute.

She went o Good Shepherd Hospltal after work that same day, There she reported failing on her right etbow and the gradual onset of
severe shoulder pain. The paln extended down to her wrist, X-rays of the right elbow were negatlve for a fracture or distocation,
Vicodin [*#6] and five days rest were prescribed, PX1.,

petitioner saw Or. Stamelos on March 7, 2007. His office note of that date does not Include any exam findings. He dlagnosed pain
with internal derangement and prescribed injection therapy, medication and no work, On March 19, 2007 he wrote she had an AC
separation, right arm pain and the fow back was tght, An MRI was done March 22, 2007, 1t showed a full thickness tear of the
supraspinatus tendon with mild retraction of the muscle and a possibie tear of the superior horh of the glenocid labrum and miid
capsular hypertrophy of the acromiogiavicular joint, On April 8, 2007 Dr. Stamelos wrete that petitioner neaded a rotator cuff repair.
His impression was adhesive capsulitis, bursitis, tendonitis, impingemant syndrome and rotator cutf tear of the shoulder. On Aprit 23,
2007, the doctor thought Petitioner might be depresses. She also needed surgery for a full thickness rotator cuff tear, PX3,

Petitioner saw Dr. Freedberg on May 31, 2007. He noted a referral from Dr. Radice whe had been overseeing her therapy. Based on
his examination findings and the MRI, Freedberg dlagnosed traumatic right rotator cuff tear and healed right radial head fracture.
[¥71 On lune 29, 2007, he did arthroscoplc surgery of the right shoulder, debriding the labrum, repairing the rotator cuff, resecting
the distal ciavicle and performing an anterlor acromioplasty with insertlon of platelel gel concentrate, She was doing very well with
minimal complaints when she saw Dr. Freedberg on July 5, 2007, On Aug. 2, 2007, Dr, Freedbery wrote that Petitioner had been
trying to do exercises. She stated she faft muscles pulling, that her hands were stiff and she was unable to make a fist and that her
sutures were sticking out of the portal, "This young fady is the patlent that continues to verbalize without listening." Her exam was
“pitlful", She had almost no motion of the shoulder but argues that the motion was okay. He started therapy immediately, crdered
and ERMI device and showed her & home exercise program. He demonstrated the Codman’s exercises but concluded: "There is no
question that we have been run nto big trouble If she does nat work hard and do everything that has been asked of her. 1 truy lit 2
fire under her today. She understands there Is an impending disaster If she continues this course.” PXZ,

Petitioner testified she became displeased with Dr. [*8] Freedberg and returned to Dr, Stamelos. On Aug. 13, 2007, his dlagaoses
were adheslve capsulitis, bursitis, tandonitis and Impingement syndrome of the shoulder. An EMG/NCV was done Aug. 22, 2007 by
Dr. Naveed but did not indicate any clearcut evidance of mononeuropathy or cervical plexepathy. A right shoulder MRI at
Blocmingdale Open MRI on Aug. 23, 2007 showed free fluid in the subacromial subdeltoid bursa and thinnlng and irtegularity of the
supraspinatus tendon suspicicus for retear, There were alse degenerative changes of the acromiociavicular joint and a thickenad
coracohumeral ligament which appeared to be a new finding. A cervical MRI the same day showed cervical spondylosis and a smali
right sided disc herniation at C5/6, On Sept. 10, 2007, Dr. Stamelos noted Petitioner's differences with Dr, Freedberg he thought she
was about 60% better and that PT was heiping. He gave her an injection that day. On Oct. 1, 2007 he wrote that she had a C5/6
merniation on the right In addition to her right shoulder pain. She complained PT was not heiping. He referred har to Dr. Pupllio, a
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neurcsurgeon. A cervical MRI on Oct. 9, 2007 showed disc bulges and degenerative changes at C3/4, C4/5 i8] and C5/6. On Oct.
185, 2007, Dr. Stamelos compared the two cervical MRIs, opining there was a possibie worsening of har condition. There was a
hernlated disc at ©5/6 that was caused by the accident of March 6, 2067 “but it has been progressing and becoming more
symptomatic after the shoulder surgery.” He thought PT could pessibly help the C-spine. The shoulder was better, but very weak, She
was given an injection. Petitioner saw Dr. Pupilio on Oct, 23, 2007, He reviewed her history, noting she was in an abduction brace for
about five weeks after her surgery. When she came out of the brace and underwent PT she developed a pain syndrome with burning
dysesthesta along the right deltepectoral area and clavicle and a chronie pain and puliing sensation in the arm when she tried to
move, Me thought the MRIs showed degenerative dfsc disease which was chronic and not acute. On exam her cervical range of metion
was normal. There was no tenderness over the uinar groove, no Tinel's sign, no dysarthria, good facizl nerve function. She had
hyperpathic sensation to {ight touch and pin-tike sensation in the right finger in the right pectoral, deltoid and ¢lavicwlar areas. There
was slight hyperpathic [#107 sensation on the right index finger. Muscle strength and reflexes in the extrernities were symmetric,
Dr. Pupilic's diagnosis was complex regional pain syndrome, He did not believe Petitioner's pain was from her chronic cervical disc
problem. He recommended & stellate gangiion block. On Ok, 29, 2007, Dr. Stamelos added cervical syndrome Lo his diagnoses, He
noted her complaints started after her surgery, He released her to work light duty, not to exceed 5 ibs. lifting, pushing or puliing and
no work wilh the right hand or arm at all. He continued these restrictions on Nov. 19, 2007 but aisc restricted Petitionerto 5 hours of
work every other day. He also referred her to Dr, Diesfield for evaluation of RSD. On Dec. 3, 2007, Dr. Stamelos wrote that
petitioner's condition had plateaued. He again restricted her from working more than 5 hrs, every other day. He alse wrote
prescription for more therapy, ah EEG and MRIs of both the brain and C-spine, P¥3.

petitioner saw Dr. Diesfield on Dee. 32, 2007, He noted that her pain was constant and associated with wealmess, On examination
there was guarding of the right shoulder, tenderness to palpation in the supraclavicular region at the brachial [*11] plexus, allodynia
and dysesthesla of the arthroscopic scars, decreased right hand grip and Incomplete fiexion of the fingers. There was decreased range
of motion of the right sheuider and cervical spin. Hig impression wag post surgical deconditiong and neuralgia of the right shoulder
with scar peuralgia, supraciavicular brachial plexopathy and C3-4-5-6 herniated discs. He administered a peripheral nerve scar
neurafgla Infiltration and supraclavicular brachial plexus block, He thought "a large faclor in her cornplex pain syndrome is coming
from the 3 herniated cervical discs” and that it-likely occurred at the time of her fall but was masked by her shoulder pain and elbow
fracture. She was given pain medication, An EMG/NCY was done and showed hypocsth etic dysfunction at the right C2,C3 and €6
nerves with hyperesthesia of the ieft C7 radial nerve and bilateral C8 uinar nerve. In a letter dated Jan. 23, 2008, Dr. Diesfield wrote
the EMG/NCV was necessary to formulate a dizgnosis and treatment plan, PX3.

patitioner continuad to see Dy, Stamelos in 2008. The restrictions on her working hours continued. Her diagnoses varied and included:
whiplash (1/2/08), reflex sympathetic dystrophy (RSD) [*12] (1/16/08}, lateral epicondylitis and medial elbow pain (2/18/08). On
March 3, 2008, Dr. Stamelos wrote that "working causes anxiety, pain, and inability to function,” She seemed o have RSD and a
severe inappropriate pain syndrome. But "she is markedly improved" desplte "very little support and cooperation by the insurance
carrier for the work-related injury.” PX4.

Fetitioner saw Or. Carroll at Respondent's request on May 16, 2008, His report indicates he reviewed 429 pages of records. On
axamination he found no obvious RSD. There was full range of motion in the cervical spine with no tenderness or radiculitls, The left

- shoulder was normal. She had 90 degrees of Torward flexion and abduction on the right, The impingement sign was positive, There
was discomfort to palpation. In the elbow, there was full range of mation with same discomfort and possible inflammation around the
olecrancn on the radial side. He mede no findings regarding the right forearm, wrist, hand or fingers, Neurologic testing revealed no
radial, median or uinar nerve compression. Sensation was intact in each hand, There was no atrophy in the muscles of the upper
extremity. Muscie function of both hands was intact. [*13] Grip strength was 40 Ibs. on the right and 30 Ibs. on the ieft, He
reviewed her elbow x-rays and concluded the right elbow injury had healed, He thought she had an injury to her right rotator cuff
injury causaily related to her accident on March 6, 2007, Her treatment had been timely, reasonable and necessary and related to the
accident, She has residual chronic pain. Madication was appropriate as was home therapy. He was concerned that further surgery to
the shoulder might have greater risks than benefits, He thought she could work light duty lifting no more than 5 Ins, to the chest level
or above and § to 10 {bs. to the waist, He suggested an FCE and thought she would then be at MMI after that evaluation. RX1.

Dr. Stamelos continued to see Petivioner, continuing her restrictions, noting she had RSD. On June 23, 2008 he noted that sha wag
going Lo stop taking hydrocodone and start ibuprofen and on Aug. 18, 2008 he wrote that he would reduce her medication and detox
her. However, in his Dec. 15, 2008 note, Dr. Stamelos wrote that Petitioner had a permanent condifion and needed medication. As of
Jan. 21, 2009 Dr. Stamelos was prescribing Hydrocodone, Ranitidine (Zantac), Zolpidem [*14] {Ambien), Amitriptciine and Lyrica.
PX4.

An FCE was done on Sept. 30, 2008 and showed Petitioner could 1ift in the light physical demand category, 2C ibs. occasionally, and
rhat aerobic capacity testing was conslstent with madium work for 8 hrs, RX2.

Respordent had Petitioner examined by Dr. Kenowitz en March 4, 2009, On examination her neck was supple and not tender, Cervical
range of motion produced some trapezius tightness on the right. The extremities were without tactile allogynla, pitling edema, or
signs of chronic stasis dermatitis, Palpation of the clavicie produced radiation into the arm. Alcohol sensation was slightly less on the
right extremity. Shoulder range of motion was nearly full. Elbow and wrist range of motlon was normal. Reflexes were + 1 and
symmetric, Dr. Konowitz” dlagnosis was shouider injury with subseguent repair and postoper ative frozen sh ouider, she had a mikd
brachloplexopathy which the doctor opined was consistent with a fall and subseguent trauma. She alse had cervical degenerative disc
disease that was not causing her arm symptoms. Her cervical symptoms were resolving. He recommended treatment with Cymbalta
ang Trileptal and the discontinuation of [*15] Lyrica. He thought she could incresse her worldng hours once Cym balta and Trileptal
were initiated and that eventuaily she shoufd be able to work 40 hours & week. He found ne glinical Indication of RSD. RX3,

Petitioner has been working part time stnge june 1, 2008, She has averaged 15 hours a week, but sometimes it's 8 hours and
sormetimes It's @ hours. On March 6, 2007, the accident date, she was paid § 10,25 per hour plus commigsion, When she became 2
part time employee her hourly rate was $ 8.00 plus commission, Her commisslon was reduced from 5% when she was full time to
1.5% as a part time amployee, Full ime employees take turns opening and closing the store which invelves putting Jewelry out in
cases in the morning and putling them back at night. The jewelry goes into cases and the eases go into bins which may weight 20 to
30 Ibs. You need both hands to do that job, PX9 includes coples of her pay checks. The check of June 20, 2008 shows her regular
hourly rate-and the various commission payments she earned, Including a commission for opening credit card accournts and for
instailing watch batterfes. On crogs-examination Petitioner testified that Respenda nt always accomm odated [*167] Dr. Stamelos'
restrictions on the hours she worked of 5 hours a day, 3 days a week.

Leslie Powers Is the fine jewelry supervisor for Responden t. She sets schedules, sets goals, dees selling and supervises the area,
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Petitioner reports to her, A full tme employes works 35 hours. She now works 15 hours a week every other day, Tuesday, Thursday
and Saturday. She has hours available to schedule Pelitioner as a fuli ime employee. There hasn't been a reduction In empioyee
tours. Jewelry associates work on Sunday but Petitioner has requested not to for personal reasons, On cross exarmination, Powers
restified Petitioner asked not to work Sundays before her accldent. She was accommodated because Petitioner was her best
salesperson. Petitioner hasn't been scheduled for 35 hours & week due to her doclor's notes,

petiioner notices It's hard for hier to have her Fight 3rm in a fixed position for long, Tt locks up and hurts from the neck down. It's the
elbow that locks. The fingers swell. She also has pain in the left arm, but not the shoulder. She feels pain in her negk, If she turns to
the right, the pain shoots. She takes Lyrica twice a day, Vicodin for pain and amitriptoiine. She testifiad [#17] she wanted to have
the three MRIs prescribed by Dr. Stamelos.

petitioner offered the following medical bilis: § 1,469.92, Dr. Stamelos (PX8); $ 1,746.70, Pain Management Center {PX7); $ 367.70,
Dr. Pupilio (PX10), 2 total of § 3,584,32, The amounts claimed are consistent with the medical fee schedule, sec. 8.2 of the AcL,
Respondent's only dispute was to Hability.

The Arbltrator concludes:

1. Petitioner's right shoulder condition is causally connected to her undisputed accident of March 6, 2007, This is based on
her credible testimony about the onset of her symptoms in the hours following the fali, the records of Good Shepherd
Hospital and Dr. Freedberg and the causal connection opinlons of Dr. Carroll and Dr, Kohowitz. Dr. Pupillo agreed
petitiones's symptoms were due to her cervical condition. Dr. Stamelos' diagnoses varied from appointment to
appotntment and were rarely supported by any examination findings; his opintens are not credible. Based on the findings
documented in ali the doctors' records, Petitloner deveioped a chronic pain syndreme related to her injury, However, the
opinlon of Dr. Konowitz that the findings do not support a dizgnosls of RSD/CRPS is more credible [*18] than the
opinions of Drs. Diesfield and Puplilo, Her condition reached permanency on Sept. 30, 2008 when the rFCF, established she
could perferm light duty work, Dr, Stamelos' records show her condition had stabitized and Dr, Carroll opined she would
he at MM! foilowing the FCE,

7. petitloner is entitled to temporary partial disability benefits of § 348.34 for the period from June 1, 2008 through
Septa 36, 2008, a period of 17-3/7 weeks when her condition became permanent, The parties agreed she was entitled to
TTD from March 7, 2007 through Oct, 30, 2007. In additlon, Respondent paid temporary partial disabllity benefits from
feb. 20, 2008 through May 31, 2008, Petitioner sought TPD benefits from June 1, 2008 through Feb, 21, 2009, It is not
clear why Respondert paid TPD only through May 31, 2008 since Dr. Carroll said he expected her to come to MMI after
the FCE. The significance of Feb. 21, 2009 is even less clear. The TPD benefit is caiculated as foliows: § 3,655.81 {gross
earnings 8/1/08 through 9/20/08) « § 491.80 (taxes withheld 6/1/08 through 9/20/08) = § 3,164.01/16 weeks (6/1/08
through 9/20/08) - $ 197.75. ¢ 720.27 (AWW pre-accident, ARBX1) - § 197.75= 4 522,52 x2/3=§ [¥19] 348,35,

3. patitioner is entitled to relmbursement for medical expenses of $ 3,584,32 for the bills of Dr. Stamelos, Dr. Pupltio and
the Pain Management Center pursuant to sec. B(a) and 8.2 of the Acl, This is based on Dr. Carroll's opinion that all of
petitioner's medical treatment to the date of his exam, May 16, 2008, had been reasonable and necessary.

4. Petitioner failed to prove she is entitied to any specific future medical care. There is no preser ption for [hree MRIs by
Or, Starnelos. Howaver, she takes a number of prescription medications snd Dr, Konowity thought she needed continued,
though different, medications related to her restduat pain syrptoms.
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CONNIE ZAREMBSKI, PETITIONER, v, TCF BANK, RESPONDENT.

M0 08 WC 03840

TLLINQIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF TLLINOIS, COUNTY OF WI'NNEBAGO
2009 Il wrk, Comp. LEXIS 1029

QOctober 19, 2009
CORE TERMS: arbitrator, collection, temporary total disability, temporary, medicat care, return to work, doctor, partial disability,
effective, medication, therapy, modities, lending, appointment, spreadsheet, co-worker, permanent disability, notice, supplemental
renort, leave of absence, ability to work, written request, door to deor, conversation, accupational, performing, scheduled, partaking,
disorder, coming
JUDGES: Molly C. Masen; Yolaine Bauphin
OPINION: [¥1}
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review under § 19(b) having been filed by Petitioner herein and notice given to al} parties, the Commission, after
considering the issues of causal connection, temporary total disability, and prospective medical care, and being advised of the facls
and law, maedifies, clarifles, and corrects the Decision of the Arbirator as stated beiow and otherwise affirms ang adopts the Decision
of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, The Commission further remands this case to the Arbitrator for

further proceedings for a determination of a further amount of temporary total compensation or of compensation for permanent
disability, if any, pursuant to Thomas v. Indusirial Commission, 78 TiL2d 327, 399 N.E.2d 1322, 35 Ii. Dec, 794 (1980).

After considering the entire record, and viewing the video {RX5), the Commission modifies the award of temporary total disability
benefits, In the order section of the Decision, the Arbitrator prdered temporary total disability benefits for 11 1/7 weeks (from
November 1, 2607 through November 17, 2007 and from February [*2} 27, 2008 through Aprii 27, 2008). The Arbitrator also
awarded Petilioner temparary partial disability benefits from November 18, 2007 through February 26, 2008,

With regard to the period of temporary total disability awarded from February 27, 2008 through April 27, 2008, the Arbitrator found
that the period of temporary total disability began when Dr, Geiger (Petitioner's treating doctor) suggested a three month leave of
absence, However, the evidence showed that Or. Geiger took Petitioner off work beginning March 6, 2008, not February 27, 2008.
This is aiso consistent with Petitioner's testimony that Dr. Geiger took her off again in March. (PX1, T.24) The Cornmission raodifies
the sward of temporary tatat disabliity so that it begins on March 6, 2008,

The Arbitrator awarded Petitioner temporary tota! disabliity benefits through April 27, 2008 basged upon Dr. Hariman's {Respondent’s
Section 12 examiner) opinlon that as of March 18, 2008, Petitioner was capable of full-time work without any direct client contact
dealing with collection work, Petitioner was asked to return to work and did so on April 28, 2008. She worked only three days that
week, The Arbitrator found thet Petitioner did [*3] not engage in collection calis and was not askead to leave the office, Petitioner
testifled that there was nothing she was askad to do that was contrary Lo the restrictions given by Dr. Hartman. Despite that,
Petitioner simply stopped ceming to work as of May 1, 2068 and was subseru ently terminated.

The Arbitrator further found that Dr. Stillings {Petitioner's Section 12 examiner} opined on May 15, 2008 that Petitioner could
continue working full duty without any direct client contact, The doctor believed Petitioner was properly regtricted from making or
partaking in any collection calis, and deor to door calls in the community. The Arbitrator noted Dr. Stiillngs’ supplemental report
suggesting that Pelitioner be restricted from any direct client contact within the bank or outside of the bank for the purpose of
coliections or any ather occupational function, The Arbitrator placed little significance on the report in light of the fact that the doctor
did not see Petitioner again; did not review additional medical recorts; and wrote the report at the request of Petltloner's altorney.
The Arbitrator noted further that Petitioner was never asked to have any direct cient contact; and thaet {%4] Petitioner remained in
the office, and prepared a spreadsheet. The Arbitrater noted there wag no dispute that Petitloner could return to work per the
apinions of Dr. Hartman and Dr. Stillings and that both doctors suggested a return to weork would speed up her recovery. The
Arbitrator concluded that there was nothing about the job offered by Respondent on April 28, 2008 that was inconsistent with the
opinton of Dr, $tillings or Dr. Hartman,

petitioner offered no documentation to show she looked for em ployment. She simply testified she looked at a website. The Arbitrator
concluded that Petitioner did not sustain her burden of proving she was unable to work.

The Commission views the evidence differently and extends the perlod of temporary total disability after her termination from the
bank through May 15, 2008, The evidence shows that en April 22, 2008, Respondent sent Petitioner a letter offering her a job in her
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previous position as a Branch Lending Manager, with accemmodations for her restrictions. (RX4) Petitioner returned to work and the
job provided was in stark contrast to what she was offered. Petitioner testified that she worked eight hours on April 28, 2008. She
went Lo her [*5] office and called Chad Loucks, her direct supervisor, to asi him what to do. He did not return her call, She satin
her office all day and could hear others talking about collections. {T.28,29} The next day, Petitioner went to work and called Chad
Lotucks agaln. He did not return her ¢all, and agaln Petitioner sat in her office all day long, listening to conversations regarding
coliections. (T.30,31) On the third day, Petittoner went to work and finally spoke to Mr. Leucks, Me said he did not know she was
returning to work and he did not have anything for her to do that did not invoive collections. Petitioner sat in her office again and did
one spread sheet for Tom Torossian (the divisional manager). {T.14,32,33) Also, that day, Petitioner had conversaltions with Mr.
Torossian and was asked If she could handle working. He was generally concernad and told her she was not dolng herself any good by
belng at work. After the conversation, Petitionar falt emotional and left work at Tem's suggestion. (T.34,35) In the Commission's
view, Respondent's job offer was a sham and did not amount to a good faith offer within Petitioner's restrictlons. Since Respondent
was unable to provide Petitloner [#8) with a true job within her restrictions, Respondent is obligated to continue paying temporary
total disability Denefits,

Gn May 15, 2008, Petltioner returned to see Dr. Stiltings and he felt she could work with restrictions. In the Commisgion’s view, as of
May 15, 2008, it was incumbent upon Petitioner to look for work within those restrictions including contacting Respondent to see if
there was 3 job within those restrictions. Petitioner failed to prove entitlement to temporary total disability benefits beyond May 13,
2008. Basad on the above, the Commission finds that Pelitioner was temporarily disabled for 12 2/7 weeks from Novernber 1, 2007
through November 17, 2007 and from March 6, 2008 through May 15, 2008. The Commission aiso modifies the tamporary total
disability rate from § 1,179.49 to $ 1,164.37, the applicable maximum rate in effect at the tme of the sccident. The Commission
notes that the Arbitrator also awarded Petitioner temporary partial disability from November 18, 2007 through February 26, 2008,

With regard to prospective medical care, the Arbitrator found that Petitioner had not yet reached maximum medical improvement and
was In need of additional medical care [#7] as recommended by Dr. Hartman. The Decision {acked an order ordering Respondant to
provide prospective madical care. The Commilssion hereby orders Respondent to provide prospective medical care consistent with the
Arbitrator's Decision,

IT IS THEREFORE QRDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Deciston of the Arbltrator filed on October 8, 2008 is hereby modified and
corrected as stated herein and is otherwise affimed and adopted.

1T IS FURTHER QRDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to Petitionar the sum of § 1,164.37 per week for a period
of 12 2/7 weeks, that being the period of tem porary total Incapacity for work under § 8(b), and that as provided In § 19(b) of the Act,
this award in no instance shall be & bar to a further hearing and determination of a further amount of temporary total compensation
or of compensation for permanent disabillty, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to Petitioner temporary partial disabllity pursuant te
Section B(a) for the period of November 18, 2007 through February 26, Z008.

T 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Regpondent pay to Petitioner the sum of § 640,00 for medical expenses under &
8(a) of {¥8] the Act.

1T 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanded to the Arbitrator for further proceedings conslstant with
this Decislon, but only after the latter of expiration of the time for filing & written request for Summons fo the Clreult Court has
expired without the filing of such a written request, or after the time of compietion of any judicial proceedings, if such a written
request has been fied,

17 1S FURTHER ORDERED 8Y THE COMMISSION that Respondent provide Petitioner with prospective medical care in the form of
therapy {including cognitive behavioral therapy) and medication consistent with Dr. Hartman's opinlons.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 19(n} of the Act, if any.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shail have credit for slf amounts paid, including but not limitad to
the sum of § 18,032.4%, to or on behalf of Petitioner on account of sald accldental injury.

The probable cost of the record to be filed as a return to Summons if this cause is removed to the Circult Courtis the sum of § 33,00,
payable to the Iilincis Workers' Compensation Commission In the form of cash, check (*8] or money order therefor and deposited
with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATEDR: OCT 19 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION NOTICE OF 18(b} DECISION OF ARBITRATOR

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed In this matter, and & Notice of Hearing was malled to each party. The matter was
heard by the Honorable Petar Akemann, arbitrater of the Commission, In the ¢ity of Rockford, ot August 22, 2008. After reviewing all
of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked batow, and attaches those findings to
thig dacurnent,

DISPUTED ISSUES

F. Is the petitioner's prasent condition of ifl-belng causally related Lo the injury?

1. Were the medical services that were provided Lo pelitioner reasonabie and necessary?

K. wWhat amount of compensation is due for temporary total disability?

N, Other Prospective Medical

FINDINGS OF THE ARBITRATOR:

. On October 31, 2007, the respondent TCF Bank was operating under and subjecs to the provislons of the Act,
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. O this date, an employee-employer relationship existed betwean the petitioner and respondent,

. On this date, the petitioner sustained injuries [*10] that arose out of and In the course of employment.

. Timely nolice of this accident was given (o the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitioner earned $ 91,999.96, the average weeldy wage was § 1769.23
. At the time of Injury, the petitioner was 32 years of age, marrled with one child under 18,

. Necessary medical services have not been provided by the respondent,

. To date, $ 18,032.41 has been paid by the respondent for TTD and/or maintenance benefits.

ORDERS OF THE ARBITRATOR

. The raspondent shall pay the petitioner temporary total disability benefits of $ 1,179.49/ week for 11-1/7 weeks, from 11/1/2007
through 11/17/2007 and agaln from 2/27/2008 through 4/27/2008 (Plus TPD from L1/18/2007 through February 26, 2008}, as
provided In Section 8(b} of the Act, because the Injurles sustained caused the disabling condition of the petitioner, the disabling
condition 1s temporary and has not yet reached a permanent condition, pursuant to Section 18(b) of the Act,

. The respondent shall pay $ 640.00 for medical services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act.
. The raspondent shall pay $ 0 in penalties, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act.

. The respondent [¥13] shall pay § 0 in penalties, as provided in Section 12(1) of the Act.

, The respendent shall pay $ 0 in attornays' fees, as provided in Section 16 of the Act,

. In no instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of temporary total
disability, medical benefits, or compensation for & permanent disability, If any.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS UNLESS a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after recelpt of this decision, and perfects
a review in accordance with the Ack and Rules, then this decision shali be entered as the decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, Interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Declsion of
Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, If an emplovee's appeal results in
either no change or a decrease In this award, interest shall not accrue.

Arbitrator Peter Akemann

October 3, 2008

OCT 8 2008

In support of the arbitrator's findings under {F) Causal Cohnection; the arbitrator finds the fellowing facts:

The petitioner, Connie Zarembski, was employed by TCF Bank as & [*12] branch lending manager. She managed & three person
jending office. As it was a lending office, collection work dealing with tha loans was not generaliy part of her job, There was a
separate collections office for TCF Bank. However, on October 31, 2007, she was sent out in the field Lo make a collection call on 2
tate mortgage payment. She, along with a co-worker, while on the collection call, In an apartment building, were robbed by two
Individuals, The petitioner's purse was forcibly taken from her, She, along with the co-worker, were asked to lig down on the floor
tace down and ot move, After the robbery, the assatlants fled the area. After fying face down for several minutes, the petitioner and
her co-worker rah out of the apaitment complex and drove to a nearby restaurant and called the police.

The petitioner was initizlly seen at a walie-in clinic in Morsay, linols, She was treated for brisises on both arms along with a scrape.
She followed up with her primatly care physician, Dr. Coates, who is afflliated with the Rockford Hea ith System. She was seen with
difficulty sleeping and recurrent thoughts of the event. Dr. Coates was concerned about post-traumatic stress and, thus,

referred [*13] the petitioner for counseéling.

The petitioner began seeing Dr. Geiger, & clinical psychiatrist, on November 12, 2007. She was provided a scripl for medication and
advised to see a social work, Bruce Person for therapy. Her treatment with Dr. Geiger and dMr. Person has been fairly consistent since
the initial visit,

Immediately foflowing the assault, the Petitioner begen losing time from work. She remained off work for saverai weeks. Effective
November 18, 2007 and continuing through February 22, 2008, the petitioner worked anywhere from 2-5 hours per day in the
lending office. She was essentially performing her usual Job. $he was not asked to perform any collection work. This was not a
problem as collection work was not part of her regular job, She continued to work in this capadity through March 6, 2008 when Dr.
Gelger suggested a 3-month “medical leave of absence."

The petitioner was scheduled to see Dr. Martman for an independent medical evaluation on February 2¢, 2008. She did not attend the
appointment as she indicated that she did not recelve Umely netice of the examination, The examination was rescheduted for March
18, 2008, This examination wag attended. Dr, Hartman felt it {*14} was in the petltioner's best interests to return to gainfut
employment He recommeanded the petitioner return to work without any direct client contact concerning coltection work. He
suggested that she not be sent on cotlection calls.

Consistent with Dr, Hartman's opinion, the Petitloner was offered a position with TCF in the branch office. The petitioner returned to

work effective April 28, 2008. She worked through April 30, 2008 without having to make any cotlection calls, $he testified that she
simply did almost nothing around the office. She testified that she compieted one spreadsheet that she was asked to prepare. There
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was no problem with the spreadsheet. It was prepared satisfactorily and up to business sta ndards.

The Petitionar's job remained avaitable subseguent to April 30, 2008. However, the Petitioner simply stopped coming in to work, The
petitionar testified that there was nothlng about the job she was offered and performing that was inconsistent with the opinion of Dr,
Hartman regarding her ability to work.

Dr. Stillings saw the petltionsr, at the reguest of her attorney. Dr. Stillings agreed with Dr. Hartman that the Petitioner was capable of
full time employmant. He [*15] diagnosed posttraumatic stress disorder, chronic and severe, along with major depressive disorder,
single episode, moderate to severe, With regard to work, Dr, Stiliings' Initial report included the fotlowing language, "Ms. Zarembskl is
able to continue working full duty without any direct client contact., She ls restricted from making collection calls, partakiag in
conference coliection calls, or making door to door ¢ oflection calls in the community.” Dr, Stillings opinred that this would speed the
pelitioner's recovery and assist in her treatment protecol. He felt she could be a very productiva employee within these restrictions.
The job offered the Petitioner on April 28, 2008 was consistent with that restriction,

In 5 supplemental report dated July 28, 2008, Dr. Stillings changed his opinion regarding the petitioner's work status without having
seen the petitioner again. The letler was prepared in response Lo a requast from counsel, In the subsequent report, Dr, Stillings
suggested that the petitioner is restricted from any direct client contact within the hank or outside the bark. The report suggests this
was for the purposes of collections or any other accupational functions, [*163 There is no stated basis for this change as the
petitloner was not seen again nor was any additional records or tests provided. There is reported justification for the change.
Regardless, the job offered the Petitioner on April 28, 2008 was rot inconsistent with this opinion regarding the Petitioners work
status.

At the time of trizl, the petitioner was continuing with some cegnitive and behavioral thevapy with Bruce, the sociai worker. $he was
sesing Dr. Gelger on a more limited basis, She was taking medication Induding Zoloft, Xansx, and Clonazepam.

ANALYSIS

The petitioner testified thal she did not have issues with regard to pest traumatic stress disorder or depression prior to October 31,
2007, There is no question that she suffered a compensable accident at work when she and & co-worker were accosted by two
assallants. She felt that her life was in danger at the time. Subsequent to the work accident, the petitioner sought immaediate medical
treatment not only for bruises to her upper extremity but also for psychiatric issues faced as a result of the injury.

The Arbitrator finds that the petitioner's condition of ill-being causally related to her work accident of Qctober [*17]
31, 2007.

In support of the arbitrator's findings under {K) Temporary Total Disabliiity; the arbitrator finds the following facts:

The petitiongr began losing work immedlately following the accident She was authorized off of work completely from November 1,
2607 through Novembper 17, 2007, Effective November 18, 2007 and continuing through February 27, 2008, the petitioner worked
anywhere from 2-5 hours per day. She recelved femporary partial disability compensation as she was earning {ess than her
ordinary wage. There is no dispute regarding benefits up through February 22, 2008,

Subsequent to February 27, 2008, the petitioner wes advised to remain off of work by Dr. Geiger. Dr. Geiger on February 27, 2008
suggested a 3-month leave of absence. Other than a divarce being finalized, there s nothing significant in Dr. Geiger's records to
suybstantiate the change.

A Section 12 examination was arranged with Br, David Hartman on behalf of the insured. The initial examination was scheduied for
February 20, 2008,

The Arbitrator finds that the petitioner did not receive appropriate notice of that appointment Accordingly, a suspension
of benefits at that time would not be appropriate [*18] .

Due to the confusion regarding the scheduling of the appointment, the Respondent scheduied an appointment with Dr, Hartman for
March 18, 2008.

The petitioner attended the evaluation with Dr. Martman on March 18, 2008. Dr. Hartman offered an opinion that the petitioner was
capable of working fult ime withaut direct client contact dealing with collection warik.

Consistent with the opinion of Dr. Hartman, restricted work was offered to the petitioner, The petitioner was advised that full ime
work without performing mortgage coliection visits in person would be avatlable. The petitioner was asked Lo return 1o work effective
Monday, Apri 28, 2008,

Effective Monday, April 28, 2008, the petitioner did return to work for TCF Bank, She worked for three days during that week, During
those three days, the petitioner was not asked te deal In any way with cotlection calis. She was not asked to lzave the office £o make
in person collection calls, In additlon, she was never asked to contact any clients of TCF Bank regarding collection activily. This is
confirmed by the petitioners' testimony that there was nothing that she was asked {o do that was in contradiction to the restrictions
suggestad [¥19] by Dr. Hartman.

Desplte the above, the petitioner simply stopped coming to work as of May 1, 2608, Ulimately, the Petitioner's employment
relationship was terminated as the Petitioner was away from work oo long,

To address the Petitloner's ability to work, the petitioner was evaiuated, at the request of her attorney, by Dr. Wayne Stillings, a
neuro-psychologist praclicing in St. Louls, Missouri. Dr. Stillings prepared a seven page report following his examination and review of
records, He alsc administered a number of tests, some of which had been administered by Or, Hartman. On Page 7 of his report, Dr.
Stilings addressed his comments regarding the petitioner's ability to work, e stated the folowing, "Ms. Zarembski Is able to continue
worklng full duty without indirect client contact. She s restricted from making collection calls, partaking In conference collection calis,
or making door to door collection calls in the community.” The Arbitrator finds that there is nothing about the iob offered on April 28,
2008 that was Inconsistent with the opinicn of Dr. Stiliings. OF course, Dr. Stillings' opinion was not avalilable at that time.

hitps://www.lexis.com/research/retrievefcc=&pushme=1&tmpFBSel=all&totaldocs=&tag... 1/2 1/2010



Search - 105 Results - "temporary partial” Page 5 of 5

Dr. Stiliings prepared a supplemental report [*201 at the request of Petitioner’s counsel dated July 28, 2008 more than almost two
and a haif months after the original report. It was not prepared foliowing any review of addittonal records or an additional evatuation
of the petitionar. Accordingly, the Arbitrator places fitte significance on this report. In the report, Dr. stillings suggests that the
petitioner is restricted from any direct client contact within the bank or outside the bank for purposes of collections or any other
occupational functions, Regardless of the veracity of this report, the Arbitrator finds there is nothing inconsistent with the job offered
to the petitioner in April of 2008 with those restrictions. At no time was the petitionar asked to condu ¢t any direct client contact, Al
she did wag rematn In her offlce and prepare a spreadsheet.

Margover, there is no dispute between the petitionar's expert and respondent’s experts regarding the petitioner's ability to returm to
work, In fact, both Dr. Hartman and Dr. Stillings suggest that it would be beneficial to the petitioner and speed her recovery. Since
nher terrination from TCF Bank, the petitioner offered no documented evidence to support th e fact that she has [*21] looked for
employment of any kind. She suggested that she periodically has checked one website looking for work, No other efforts were made
to find employment.

It Is Aok enough that the petitioner received benefits due to the fact that she did not work. Rather, the petiticner must prove that she
was unalde to work. In this case, the petitioner failed to sustain her burden.

The Arbitrator finds the petitioner entitled to temporary tokal disability benefits from November 1, 2007 through November 17, 2007,
He finds the petitioner entitied to temporary partial disability benefits from November 18, 2007 through February 27, 2008. The
Arbitrator finds the petitioner entitied to temporary total disability benefits from February 23, 2008 through Aprii 27, 2008.
Theraafter, no benefits would be due and owing this petitioner as she was not temporarily totally disabied.

In support of the arbitrator's findings under {J) Medical Payments; the arbitrator finds the following facts:

The petitioner offered into evidence Exhibit # 3, an alleged unpald medical bill from Gelger Psychiatric Care. The invoice concerned
vreatment rendered from Aprii 28, 2008 through May 9, 2008, Consistent with [*¥22] the recommendations of Dr. Geiger and D,
stiliings, the Arbitrator finds this medical treatment reasonable and necessary and related to the work accident, Accordingly, the
invoice In the amount of § $40.00 is awarded. Payment should be made pursuant to the Medical Fee Schedule directly to the
petitioner, Upon payment to the petitioner, the respondent Is absolved of liability regarding that biil.

per stipulation of the parties, if any portion of this biill was placed in fine for paymaent and not refiected in the statement offered into
avidence, the respondent Is to receive a credit for those payments.

in support of the arbitrator's findings under (0O} Prospective Medical treatment; the arbltrator finds the foliowing facts:

The Arbitrator finds the petitioner has not vet reached maximum madical Improvement She is stilf in nead of therapy and prescription
moedication for her condition. This is consistent with the opinions of all physiclans who have treated and evaiuated the Pelitioner.

with regard to specific treatment, the Arbitrator finds the opinicns of Dr. Hartman most dispositive on this issua. With regard to
prospective medical care, the Arbitrator finds his recommendations [#23] for treatment and medication moest appropriate and
awards care consistent with his opinion.

DISSENTBY: NANCY LINDSAY

DISSENT: | respectfully disagree with the Majority's Declsion finding that Petitionet is entitled to an award of tempotary total
disabillty benefits through May 15, 2008, I believe the Arbitrater correctly determined that temporary total disability benefits should
have ended on April 27, 2008, Respondent's job offer was not @ sham and it was done in good faith, Petitioner was provided with a
sultable position, was not required to interact with customers, and was paid her regular satary. She left the job on May 1, 2008 of her
own accord. Mo one in a supervisory position over Petitioner teld her Lo go home on May 1, 2008, The doctors wanted Petitioner to
work. The doctors felt she was capabie of working, Respondent offered her a job consistent with her restrictions. She was offered a
"true job” but did not really give It a chance. Petitioner fafled to prove she could not work after April 27, 2008, not May 15, 2008, For
this reason, 1 dissent.
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2009 I, Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 1025, * O Wee 1sH
JOSEFA AMARO, PETITIONER, v. WEBER-STEPHENS, INC., RESPONDENT.
NO:! 05 W 9412
JLLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOILS, COUNTY OF MCHENRY
2009 Hi. wrk. Comp. LEXIS 1025

Qctober 21, 2009
CORE TERMS: arbitrator, fracture, paln, sacral, temporary, partial disability, opined, temporary tolal disability, recommended,
doctor, treating, physical therapy, return to work, pregnancy, secondary, coceyx, re gular, causally, symptoms, lumbar, nendispiaced,
i-being, hrs, deconditioning, diagnosis, pregnant, delivery, strain, returned to work, dysfunction
JUDGES: Pauwl W, Rink; Nancy Lindsay
OPINION: [%1]
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW
Timely Petition for Review under § 1%(b) having been flled by the Petitioner herein and notice given to alf parties, the Commission,
after considering the issues of temporary total disability, temporary partial disability, penalties under § 19(k}) and § 19() of the Act
and attorneys' fees under § 16 of the Act and being advised of the facts and law, clarifies the Arbitrator's decision as to temporary
permanent disability award and affirms and adopts the Decislon of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made & part hereof, as
to all other Issues, The Commission Further remands this case to the Arbitrator for further proceedings for a detersination of a further

amount of temporary total compensation or of compensation for permanent disability, if any, pursuant to Themas.v. Industiial
Comnission, 78 11.24. 327,309 N.E. 2401322, 35 I, Dec, 794 (18980).

The Commission notes that the Arbitrator found Petitionsr entitied to an award of § 2,301,%2 in temporary partial disability
beneflts. The Commission finds that the Arbltrator found Petitioner entitied to temporary partial disability [*2] benefits from June
27, 2006 through August 31, 2006 and from October 3, 2006 through October 23, 2006, the dates to which Petitioner stipulated on
the request for hearing form. The Arbitrator calcuiated these benefits pursuant to § 8{(a) of the Act explaining that Petitioner was
entitled to temporary partial disabiity benefits equal to 2/3 of the difference between the average amount she would have earped
in the full performance of her job dutles In the occupation she was engaged In at the time of the accident and the net amount which
she garned in the modified job provided by the Respondent or any job in which she was working.

IT 1% THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to the Petitioner the amount of $ 2,301.92 in temporary
partial disebility benefits under § 8(a) of the Act.

[T 15 FURTHER QRDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Declsion of the Arbitrater fited September 17, 2007 is hereby affirmed and
adopted.

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case is remanded to the Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with
this Decision, but only after the fater of expiration of the time for filing a writien request for Summong to the Circuit Court has
expired [¥31 without the fling of such a written request, or after the {ime of compietion of any judicial proceedings, if such a written
request has been filed,

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner interest under § 19(n) of the Act, if any.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED 8Y THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credit for all amounts paid, if any, to or on beh alf of
Petitioner on account of sald accidental injury.

Bond for the removal of thig cause to the Circuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at the sum of $ 42,500.00, The probable cost of
the record to be filed as return to Summons 1g the sum of $ 35,00, payable to the Nlinols Workers' Compensation Commisgsion in the
form of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATER: GCT 21 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 19(ls) ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed te each party. The matter was
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heard by the Honorabie Richard A Peterson, arbitrator of the Industrial Commission, in the cities of Woodstock an d Chicago, on July
tiand 24, [#4] 2007, After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues
highlighted below, and attaches those findings to this document,

DISPUTED 1SSUES

F. Is the petitioner's present condition of il-being causally related to the injury?

1. Were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary?

K, What amount of compensation is due for Temporary Total Disabillty?

L. Shouid penalties or fees be imposed upon the respondent?

FINDINGS

. On January 19, 2005, the raspondent, Weber-Stephens, Inc., was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.
. On this date, an employec-employer relationship ¢l exist between the petitioner and responde k.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain injuries that arose out of and in the course of employment.

. Timely notice of this accident was given to the respondent.

. In the year preceding the injury, the petitioner sarned § 22,141,08; the average weekly wage was 4 425,79,
. At the time of Irury, the petitioner was 31 years of age married with -2- children under 18,

. Mecessary medical services have been provided [¥5] by the respondent,

. To date, § 19,252.24 has been paid by the respondent on account of this injury.

ORDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner Temporary Totat Disabliity benefits of $ 283.86/week for 41 3/7ths weeks, from January 19,
2005, through January 31, 2005, February 3 through 7, 2005; May 9 through July 27, 2005; January 11 through June 18, 2006; and,
September 1 through October 2, 2006, and total temporary partial disability benefits equal to § 2,301,90, as provided in Section 8
{b) of the Act, because the Injurles sustained caused the disabling condition of the petiticner, the disabling condition is temporary and
has not yet reached a permanent condition, pursuant to Section 19(b) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ 35,331.90 for medical services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act.
. The respondent shall pay § -0- in penzities, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act,
. The respondent shall pay § -0~ in penalties, as provided in Section 19{1) of tha Act.

in no instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of Temporary Total
Disability, medical benefitg, or compensation for a permanient disability, [*6] if any.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Uniess a party files a Petition for Review withln 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Comimisston,

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest of 4-13% shall accrue from the date listed below to
the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal results in elther no change or a decrease in this award,
interast shall not accrue,

Signature of arbitrator
September 18, 2007
Date

SEP 19 2007
FINDINGS OF FACT

At the time of the hearing, Petitioner was thirty-four years of age, approximately 5 feel 2 {nches tal! and weighed 150 Ibs. Petitioner
started working for Respondent, Weber-Stephens, Inc., on an assembly line putting grilis together. Her job required her to stand for 8
Fours but she did have two breaks of 10 minutes and a half-hour break for lunch. She bent over frequently and carried the assembled
grilis to place on a line that was In front of her and behind her. The height of the line was at or just below her waist.

On January 1%, 2005, Petittoner had arrived In [*7] the company parking tot and exited her vehicle when, while walking to her
building, she sitpped on ice and fell to the ground. This occurred about 5:30 a.m. Petitioner struck the rear part of her back, Petitioner
did not start work but did not appear st the focal emergency facility untli about two hours later, The hospital recerds document her
injury and an x-ray of Petitioner's coccyx showed a possible nondispiaced fracture. The nursing notes from that visit also Indicated
that Petitloner advised the nurse her “lower back® aches. Petltioner was referred for an orthopedic evaluation. (Pettx1)

The next day, Petitoner consulted with Dr. Timothy Petsche at Fox Valley Orthopedics. He noted her compliaints of pain directly in the
area of the cocoyx. He found mild tenderness in the tssues of the butiocks, Hls assessment of her condition was a ¢oceyx fracture, On
that date, January 20, 2005, he recommended that she stay off work for a w eek and a half, to return to work on January 31 without
restrictions. Petitioner returried to work on February 1, 2005, She worked that day and the next. Petitioner returned to Dr. Petsche on
Fabruary 7, 2005. Dr. Peteche noted that Petitioner's previous symptoms [¥8] were mainly in the sacrum, but since then has
developed pain mainly in the low back that radiates down the thighs He diagnosed & healing coccyX fracture and a lumbal strain. He
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referred har to physical therapy. Dr. Patsche also referred her for physicat therapy, She returned to work on Fabruary 8, (PetEx2)

petitioner recelved physical therapy for the rear of her back at Cosport Physl cat Therapy from February 22, 2005 through May 9,
2005, The diagnosis on the CeSport Physical Therapy treatment records is lumbar strain / coceyx fracture. (PetEx3) Therapy did not
significantly help her pain.

After therapy, Petitiorier returned to Dr, Petsche on March 7, 2005, His office note of that date contains the diagnoses of healing
cocoyx fracture and "persistent symptoms secondary to lumbar strain.” In the Pian section of the report Dr. Petsche wrote:

%
"again, I have explained to the patient [that] 1 think her symptoms are directiy related to the jumbar strain and I do not
think they are related to the coceyx fracture. .."

Petitioner had a lot of patn in the lower part of her back especially when she needed Lo stand for a long time and carry anything. Dr.
patsehe released Petitioner for [*97 light duty consisting of no Jifting over 10 Ibs, no repetitive bending and no work for more than 4
hrs/day. Dr. Petsche's offlce note of March 7, 2005 also mentions the fact thal Petitioner was pregnant as of that date.

Petitioner was seen by Dr, Petsche on May 9, 2005 and was taken off-work by him at that time. The Fox Valffey Orthopaedic Institule
Physician Report of that date gives the expected duration of disability as "at least until after delivery of baby." He indicated her prior
work restrictions were for her low back injury, although Petitioner was pregnant which Dr. Petsche noted on May 10, 2005, Dy,
Petsche also recommended an MRI; but, it could not be performed because of her pregnancy, On May 16, 2005, Dr. Pefscthe noted
that Respondent could ne longer accommeodate Petitioner, On July 11, 2005, Respondent contacted Dr, Petsche's office requesting the
doctor to release Petitioner Lo return to work, After consulting with Patitioner, Dr. Petsche did refease Petitioner for rull duty on July
27, 2005, (PelEx?)

On August 26, 2005, Petitionar contacted Dr. Petsche advising him that she is in severe pain; that she was working eight hours and
she cannot continue. Dr. Petsche advised [*10] Pelitioher to contact her ob-gyne, {PetEx2)

Petitioner changed treating doctors when, on October 13, 2005, she was seen by Mark A, Lorenz, M.D, of Hinsdale Crthopaedic
Assoctates, S.C. On that date Dr. Lorenz's diagnosis was "Hairline sacral fracture secondary Lo a fall with some decenditioning
secendary to the fracture and to the pregnancy.” (PetEx4). Dr. Lorenz epined that, once Petitioner delivers her baby, he wouid
recommend a back renab program. On Ocgtober 16, 2005, Petitionsr dativered her baby. (PetEx4}

After the delivery of her baby Pelitioner resurned medical treatment to her low back with a January 11, 2006, office visit with Dr.
Lorerz. This was the second time that Dr. Lorenz had seen Petitioner, Petitioner advised Dy~ Lorenz that her employer wanted her at
full duty or off duly. He kept Petifioner off-work and recomm ended further physical therapy. In his "Work Status Report™ of January
11, 2006, Dr. Lorenz gives Petitioner's dlagnosis as status post sacrai fracture. His target regular-duty return fo work date in that
report is one month later, Dr. Lorenz noted that Petitioner stili had pain and recommended she be off work until additionat physical
therapy completed, {PetEx4) [*11] Petitloner attended physical therapy at ATI from January 19, 2006 through ¥May 5, 2006.
(PetExS) On February 15, 2008, Dr. Lorenz dlagnesed Petitioner with and “chronic back pain® and referred her ko Dr. Kirincic, also of
Hinsdale Crthopaedics, for conservative care.

Petitioner first saw Dr. Klrineic on Mareh 14, 2006. Dr. Kiringc recommended work hardening, then injections to Petitioner's low back.
Dr. Kiragie dingnosed myofascial pain syndrome, referred pain from previous healed sacrai fracture, abdominal Dlastasis and
deconditioning secondary to recent pregnancy. Br. Kirincic administered a trigger point injection. Dr. Kirincic aiso prescribed Petitioner
remain off work. On April 10, 2008, Dr, Kirincle noted the injection did not help much; recormended Petitioner finish physical therapy
and start a work hardeniag program and prescribed a lumbar corset, (PetEx4)

Patiioner attended work hardening from May 9, 2006 through Jun 9, 2008, On June 12, Dr. Kirincic neted that Petitioner had
difficuley with profonged standing/walking and lifting over 30 ibs. In her June 12, 2006 Work Status Nole, Dr. Kirincic gives
Petitioner's diagnasis as a healed sacral fracture. She returned Petitioner [*12] to light duty wosk for four hours per day from Juhe
27 through August 31, 2006. PetEx4, On June 26, 2008, Dr, Kirincic noted Petitioner's pain increaged with she return to work but
continued her on 4 hrs per day. {PetEx4)

On July 18, 2008, Petitioner attended a Section 12 examination with Dr. 3. Scott Player, at Respondent's request, In his report of that
date Dr, Player found that Petitioner suffered a nendisplaced fracture through the third sacral segment because of the silp-and-fall
accident of January 19, 2005, He opined that a nondisplaced sacral fracture should heal within three to six months following the injury
event, and that therefore Petitioner reached maximum medical improvement from the January 1% incldent ne later than July 16,
2005. Dr. Player opined that theve I a causal connection between the nondisplaced fracture through the 3rd sacral segment and her
worl injury. Dr. Player also opined that because Petitioner developed lower back pains Dr. Player noted that Petitloner's lower back
paln did not experience any low back pain untii the first week of February 2005, "on or about the time she also became pregnant”. He
alse epined that, the low back condition was related [¥13] o Petitioner's pregnancy and there i no causal connection between her
injury and her fower back complaints, Dr, Plaver apined that Petitioner was at MMI for her sacral fracture on July 16, 2008, and that
she could have returned to work full duty for the sacral fracture on June 1%, 2005, (RespEx1)

Two days after the examination, Petitloner returned to see Dr. Kirincic who recommended an MRI of her lower back and pelvic area.
Br. Kirlncic continued Petitioner on 4 hrs per day. Petitioner underwent an MRE of her lower back and of her sacrum. The MRI of her
lumbar spine showed minimat L5-51 disk bulging and minimal L5-$1 retrolisthesis, The MRI of the sacrum showed no evidence of
acute sacral fracture, On August 7, 2006, Dr. Kirincic made a diagnosis of myofasciat paln syndrome, deconditioning, history of healed
hairline sacral frecture, abdominal Dlastasis, deconditioning due to pregnancy and fatigue probably related o taking care of multiple
children at home. Dr, Kirincic also recommended she advance stowly to regular duty on a graduated basls (6 hrs for 2 weeks then 8
hrs). {PetExd)

O August 31, 2006, Dr, Kiringic hoted that Petitioner had worked regular duty since August 22, 2006 [*14] but, because she was

bending over for a prolonged period of time, her back pain flared. Dr. Kirincic found that Petitioner had positive L-S1 joint testing and
recommended she receive chiropractic treatment, Dr. Kirincic referred Petitloner to David A. Reminskl, D.C.
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On September 6, 2006, Petitioner presented with D D, Rominski, a chiropractor, Petitioner received treatment from Dr. Rominski
from September 8, 2006 through Decemnber 11, 2006, {PetExg) The history Petitionar reported to the Chiropractor was that "she
slipped and fell white working and landed on her buttock. As a result of this fail she has severe pain in the low back with numbness in
the tegs.” Chiropractor Rominsii's reports 4o not reference any medical treatment records, Hig history comes solely from Petitioner,
He treated Petitioner until December 11, 2006,

During this time period Petitioner was restricted from work stating on September 6, 2006 but allowed to refurn on restricted duty on
October 3, 2006. {PetEx4 and §) Petitionar was in 2 fot of pain in her lower part of her back when she stood for a long time at work or
when she bent over. Petitioner worked her reguiar job for four days as an assembler after Dr, [#157 Kirincic released her for regular
duty on Qctober 23, 2008, (PetEx4)

petitioner returaed to Dr. Rominski on October 27, 2006 complaining that she had to do 2 lot of fifting and a lot of walking and
pending. {PelExg) Petitioner also returned to see Dr. Kirincic on December 12, 2006, Dr. Kirincic advised the client to return to work
reguiar duty and if unable to do so, to obtain an FCE. (PetEx4) Petitioner did undergo an FCE on January 11, 2007, The FCE indlcated
Petitioner put forth & conglstent affort and tested at the tight physical dema nd levei. The therapist opined that Petitioner's job Is at the
light to medium level (occasionally lifting over 50ibs). {PetExS)

Petitioner gave the light duty note, of Dr. Reminskl from Octaber 27, 2006, to her employer. No Hght duty was offered to Patitioner.
Petilioner was seen by Dr. Kirincic on December 12, 2006, In her chart note of that date Dr. Kirincic documented her Impression as:

Resolved sacroiliac joint dysfunction, thoracolumbar segmental dysfunclion, and healed sacral fracture from injury on
01/19/05. The patient had multiple other injuries from her deilveries with abdominal diastasis, fatigue, myofascial pain
syndrome, snd ongoing [*16] deconditioning,

Br, Kirlncic stated, in the Plan section of the December 12, 2006 note:

1 do not think her symptoms are related to ner initial work rejated Injury and she has recelved encugh treatment in the
past. We will provide her with healing and postural retraining. I have to suspect ongel ng complaints to gain secondary
penefits from her employer. ... (PetEx4)

Petitioner saw Dr, Kirinclc ona raore tima after the December 12, 2006 office visit, on January 23, 2007, after the FCE. Dr. Kirincle
opined that she may return to work with permanent restrictions of no lifting over 20 lbs, maximum 3 hrs standing per day, alowing &
5-10 minute change in position when standing for 30 minutes, maximum walking 3-4 hrs per day, no limit with sitting and may work
eight hours. Dr, Kirincic's Progress Note of that date included, under the heading Physical Examination, the entry:

Today, her SI joint testing was negative, She still has abdominal diastasis status post her baby delivery, fatigue,
myofascial pain syndrome, and poor core strength, but this 1s unrelated to her Inltial sacral nondisplaced fracture and 51
joint dysfunction. (PetEx4)

patitioner sent her restrictions to Respondent [#17] by facsimile the same day she saw Dr. Kirincic, Petilioner was advised she had
too many restrictions, Petitioner has not seen any doctors for thig injury since January 27, 2007.

At arbitration hearing, Petitioner complained of pain, She drove an hour to the hearing site and developad pain white sitting for that
period of time, She had paln in her lower back; and, If she sits for 45 minutes or stands for over two hours, her pain increases, She is
not on medication and has seen no other physiciang. Petitiongr completed the Sth grade in Mexico and cannot read, write or speak in
English very weil, Petitioner does not know how to use a computer.

Regpondent was Petitioner's first job ever in the United States. She did not complete an ESL class and she found her tast job through
a temp agency by filling out an application i English with the help of her husband,

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

IN SUPPORT OF THE ARBITRATOR'S DECISION RELATING TO F, I8 THE PETITIONER'S PRESENT CONDRITION OF ILL-
BEING CAUSALLY RELATED TO THE INJURY, THE ARBITRATOR CONCLUDES AS FOLLOWS:

On January 19, 2005, Petitioner slipped on Ice in Respondent's parking lot and fell to the ground. She went to the local

emergency [*18] room; the hospital records document her injury and an x-ray of Pelitionar's coceyx showed a pessible
nondisplaced fracture, The nursing notes from that vislt also indicated that Petitioner advised the nurse her “lower back” aches. The
next day, was treated by Dr. Petsche. Petitioner returned to Dr. petsche on February 7, 2008, Dr. Petsche noted that Petitioner's
previous symptoms were mainiy in the sacrum, but slnce then has devetoped pain mainly in the low back that radiates down the
thighs He diagnosed a healing cocoyx fracture and a lumbar strain. By then, Petitloner was also pregnant. Petitioner received physicai
thevapy and then discontinued treatment during her pregnancy.

petitioner changed treating doctors when, oh October 13, 2005, she was seen by Dr. Lorenz. On that date Dr. Lorenz's diagnosis was
"Hairline sacral fracture secondary to a fall with some deconditioning secondary fo the fracture and to the pregnancy.” Dr, Lorenz
referred Petitoner to Dr. Marie Kirincic. Dr. Kirincic treated Petitioner for resolving sacral fracture and for other conditions resulting
from her pregnancy. 8y October 23, 2008, she opined that Petitioner had *...resolved left SI joint testing. Healed [*19] sacral
fracture from injury on 01/19/05..." On December 12, 2006, she opined that Petitioner had “...Resvived sacroi hac joint
dysfunction...had multiple other injuries from her deliveries... do not think her symptoms are related to her Initlal work injury and
she has received enough treatment in the past...I have to suspect ongoing complaints to gain secohdary benefits her employer..she
wants to do is work four hours reguiar duty and have the rest four hours pald by her, employer... in view of her exam and negative
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rasting In the past, { am piacing her on regular duty..." On January 23, 2007, Dr. Kirlnclc released Petitioner with restrictions but
noted that Petitioner's lirnitations were "...unrelated to her initial sacral nondisplaced fracture and SI joint dysfunction.”

petitioner did not report a lumbar strain for almost 3 weeks until she was pregnant. There was disagreement arnongst the treating
and examining dockors as to what extent her (ow back preblems were asseciated with her fall and with her pregnancy. The Arbitrator
conciudes that Dr. Kirincic, Petitloner's treating dector, is credible. She reported problems related Lo Petitioner's work Injury until
Gctober 23, 2006, she [¥2DF then found Petitioner's problems on and after that date to be related to her delivery. Petitioner's
motivation of secondary gain raises acditional credibility questions concerning her original reports of low back pain. However, her
treating doctors provide enough evidence o counter the opinion of Dr. Player that her injury related condition had rescived by Jly
16, 2006. Accordingly, the Arbitrator concludes that Petitioner's condition of ifi-being until October 23, 2006, was causally connected
to her work related injury of January 13, 2005; but, Petitioner's conditlon of ili-being after October 23, 20086, is not caysally related to
her work related injury.

IN SUPFORT OF THE ARBITRATOR'S RECISION RELATING TO J, WERE THE MEDICAL SERVICES THAT WERE PROVIDED
TO PETITIONER REASONABLE AND NECESSARY, THE ARBITRATOR CONCLUDES AS FOLLOWS:

The Arbitrator, concluded above that Petitioner's condition of ili-being through October 23, 2006, was causally connectad to her work
related injury of January 19, 2005; but, Petitioner's condition of 1li-being after October 23, 2006, Is not causally related to her work
related injury. The Arbitrator therefore concludes that the treatiment provided to [*21] Petitioner from January 19, 2005, through
October 23, 2006, for her sacral, coccyx and lower back complainés was both reasonable and necessary, Respondent Is ordered to pay
the outstanding medical expenses in accordance with the fee schaduie as follows:

Reference Code: Providen Aliowed Charged-Fee Schedule
21314~97750 $ 28,201.54  No applicable code modifiers.
(AT1}
99213 $ 855 $ 082.18
(Hinsdale}
99214 $ 548 4 124.69
99204 $ 223 $ 208.86
99243/25 $ 234 $215.72
72220 & 354 $ 136.97
20552 $ 202 $212.54
72190 $ 209 § 170.04
72148 $ 4,054 $2,010.19
107047114 $ 555 No applicable code modifiers
99283 § 214 § 218.231
{Conner}
97014 $ 420 4 36.84
{Rominski)
95203 $ 1%0 $ 141,70
72010 5135 $ 155,87
98941 $ 1120 % 50.07
95851 $ 225 t 85.02
97530 $ 1539 % 47.23
97110 $ 1566 $ 58.61
989840 $ 750 $ 40.62
9711259,
59090,
97910,
97035,9921225 % 1880 No applicable code modifiars

Reference Code: Amount Due:

21314-97750 $ 28,901.54
99213 $82.18
99214 $ 124.69
°9204 % 208.86
G9243/25 § 215.72
72220 $ 136.97
20552 $ 212.54
72190 $ 170,04
72148 % 2,010.19
307047134 4858
99283 $ 218.21
97014 $ 36.84
99203 § 14170
72010 § 15587
98941 $ 50.07
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95853 £ 85,02
97530 $47.23
97110 $ 58.61
98940 $ 40,62
$711259,

39050,

$7010,

97035,9921225 $ 1880

[#22] The total amount of medical expenses owed by Respenden € equals $ 35,331.90.

IN SUPPORT OF THE ARBITRATOR'S DECISION RELATING TO K, WHAT AMOUNT OF COMPENSATION IS BUE FOR
TEMPORARY TOTAL DISABILITY, THE ARBITRATOR CONCLUDES AS FOLLOWS:

The parties stipulated that Petitioner was temporarily and totally disabled intermittently from January 20, 2008 through July 16,
2005. (ArbEx1) Additionally, Petitioner is claiming temporary Lotal disablliity from July 17, 2005 through July 27, 2005; January i1,
2006 through Jung 19, 2006; September 1, 2006 through October 2, 2006, Gctober 27, 2006 through November 14, 2006 and
January 23, 2607 through the date of hearing of July 11, 2007,

The medical records indicated that Dr. Timothy Petsche, one of Petitioner's treating physicians, did not release Petitioner Lo retwrn o
work untl July 27, 2005. {PetEx2) No other medical evidence exists that contradicts this release prior to that date. On January 11,
2006, Or. Mark Lorenz opined that Petitioner should remain off work while physical therapy Is completed. (PelExd) Physical therapy
and work hardening were not com pleted until June 9, 2006, (PetExS} On june 12, 2006, Dr. Kirincic recornmended Petitioner {#23]
return to work regular guty but only four hours per day. Petitioner testified she returned to work on June 20, 2006, Again, no other
medical avidence contradicts these restrictions of off work during thig period,

On August 31, 2006, Dr. Kirincic released Petitionar to modified duty staring on September 1, 2006, (PelEx4) Petitioner's unrebutied
testimony indicated Respondent could not accomimodate these restrictions. Therefore, Petittoner remained off work until she returned
to work partlal hours on October 3, 2006, By this date, Dr. Player had already opined that Petitloner could return to work regular duty
on July 18, 2006. (RX # 1)) The Arbitrator concludes that the opinions of Dr. Kirincic are more compatibie with the symptoms and
condition of Petitioner. Petitioner's unrebutted testimony is that Respondent could not accom medate her restrictlons once again on
October 27, 2008 through November 14, 2006, However, the Arbitrator has concluded above that the opinton of Petitioner's treating
doctor, Dr. Kirincic is credibla and that Petitionar's condition of ill-being after Qctober 23, 2008, Is not causally related to her work
related Injury.

On January 23, 2007, Dr. Kirincic prescribed [*24] Petitioner permanent work restrictions. (Pet€x4) Again, Petitioner's unrebutbed
testimony indicated that no accommodation of these restrictions has been provided by Responden t through the date of hearing.
However, the Arbitrator has concluded above that the opinion of Petitioner's treating doctor, Dr. Kirincic is ¢redible and that
patitioner's condition of ill-being after October 23, 2006, is not causally related to her work related injury,

Based upon all of the above, the Arbitrator finds that Petitioner is entitled (o recelve 41 3/7ths weeks of temporary tota) disablilty for
the following pericds:

January 19 through 31, 2005; February 3 through 7, 2005, May @ through uly 27, 2005; Janvary 11 through June 19,
2006; and, September 1 through October 2, 2008

petitioner is alse clalming temporary partial disability for the period from June 27, 2006 through August 31, 2006 and Oc¢tober 3,
2006 through Oclober 23, 2006 for a period of twelve weeks.

“When the employee is working light-duty on a part-time basis or fuli-time basis and earns less than he or she would be
earning if employed in the full capacity of the job or jobs, then the employee shall be entitled to temporary

partial [#257 disabillty benefits. Temporary partial dizability banefits shall be equat Lo two-thirds of the difference
hetween the average amounk that the employee would be able to earn in the full performance of hig or her duties in the
accupation in which he or she was engage atl the time of accldent and the net amount which he or she is earning in the
modified job provided to the empioyee by the employer or In any othet job that the employee is working." 820 ILCS
305/8(2).

Here, Dr. Kirincic opined on June 12, 2006, that Ms, Amaro could return to work with a restriction of working only 4 hours per day.
(PetExd) Petitioner submitted wage records to substantiate her claim for tesmporary totat disability or tempotary partiat disability.
(PetExS) The Arbitrator has reviewed the records submitted and concudes as follows:

From june 27 through August 31, 2006, a perlod of 9 and 2/7ths weeks, petitioner earned § 11.15 per hour. The total gross amount
that she would have been earned if she worked 490 hours would equal § 4,192.40, Based upon the pay stubs submitted, the total net
@arned by Petitioner during this period equaled § 1,691,32. Calculating 2/3rds of {%267 Uhis difference equals § 1,667.38. (PetEx9)

From October 3 through 23, 2006, a period of 2 and 6/7ths weeks, petitioner carned $ 11.15 per hour, The total gross amount that
she would have earned If she worked 40 hours per week wouid equal $ 1,427.20. Based upon the pay stubs submitied, the total net
earned by Petitioner equaled § 475,39, (PetEx9) Calcutating 2/3rds of the difference between the gross amount that could have been
earned and har net amount, equals $ 634.54. Thus, the total temporary partial disability benefits owed Petitioner equal § 2,301.92.

Respondent is entitied to a credit of $ 19,233 which shall be applied against all ternporary total disability and temporary partiai
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disability benefits owed Petiticner.

patitioner claimed to be entitied to vocational rehabifitation and continuing maintenance. The Arbltrater has concluded above that her
condition of ill being after October 23, 2006, 1s not causally related to her work relatad injury. Therefore, the Arbitrator concludes that
that any Inabillty for Petitioner to obtaln employment as lucrative as that which she enjoyed prior to January 19, 2005 Is not related
to the accidental injuries of that date. Petltioner is therefora [#27] not enfitled to vocational rehabliitation benefits at Respondent's
expense,

IN SUPPORT OF THE ARBITRATOR'S DECISION RELATING TO L, SHOULD PENALTIES OR FEES BE IMPOSEDR UPON THE
RESPONDENT, THE ARBITRATOR CONCLUDES AS FOLLOWS:

Recause of Petitioner's not reporting complaints of low back pain for 3 weeks until she was pregnant, there was disagreement
amongst the treating and examining doctors as to whether her low back pain was related te her injury or to her pregnancy, The
Arbltrator concludes that there was reason for this disagreement and that Respondent was not unrgasona ble in relying of the opinien
of Dr, Player. Petitioner's own treating doctor, Dr. Kirincic, expressed concern that Petitioner was reporting pain complaints for
secondary gain reasons; thus Respondent was even more reasonable in its reliance on Pr. Plaver and belief that Petitioner had
recovered from her work related injury. The Arbitrator notes that Respondent has paid Petitioner temporary total disability benefils in
excess of the amounts to which she has subsequently proven herself entitied, Petitioner bhag not shown Respondent to be dilatory in
the payment of benefits in this case whatsoever. The Arbitrator [*28} therefore finds that no penaities or fees should be Imposed
upon Responde nt i this case,

CONCURBY: MOLLY C. MASON
DISSENTBY: MOLLY C. MASON

DISSENT: 1 agree with ail aspects of the Arbitrater's and majority's findings other than those relating ro causation, temporary totat
disability and penaities/fees,

I weuld have found that Petitioner established causation through December 12, 2006. I alse would have awarded additional
temporary total dissbifity benefits from October 27, 2006 through Novermnber 14, 2006 and additionat temporary partial disability
venefits from Movember 15, 2005 through December 12, 2006. The Arbitrator and majority relied on Dr, WKiringic in evaluating
causation and finding that Petitioner reached maximum medicel improvement on Oclober 23, 2006 but the doctor's note of th at date
reflects that she recommended that Petitioner underge additional care with her chiropractor, Dr. Rominskl. PX 4. itis clear that Dr,
Kirindc recornmended this care due to Petitioner's persistent sacral tenderness and Respondent never disputed the sacral Injury,
petitioner continued seeing Dr. Reminski and also attempted to resume full duty per Dr. Kirincic but quickly developed increastng
symptoms, which prompted Or. Rominski [*29] to impose restrictions on October 27, 2005, Respondent was unable to
accommodate these restrictions. T, 32, It was not untii November 14, 2006 that Dr, Reminski modified the restrictions to aliow
petitioner {0 begin working four hours per day. PX 6. Petltioner worked on this basis thereaftar until December 12, 2006, when Dr.
Kiringic refeased her to full duty. PX 4,

1 also would have awarded Section 19(k) penalties and attorney fees on those awarded medical expenses refating to treatment
rendered prior to December 12, 2006, Respondent lacked a reasorably objective basis for re!ying on its Section 12 examiner, Dr.,
Piaver, In refusing to pay sald expenses. Dr. Player found causation only as to the sacral fracture but based this finding on the
incorrect assumption that Petitionar did not complain of lower back pain untli approximately three weeks after her undisputed fali of
January 15, 2005, RX L. Petitioner's records show that she complained of lower back pain at the Emergency Roorn on the day of her
fall, PX 1. Dr. Player's finding that Petitioner reached maximum medical improvement on either June 19, 2005 or July 16, 2005
{tnexplicably, his repoit states both dates) is In conflict [*3@] with the treating records. In my view, the physicians who treated
Petitioner over ah extendad period were in & better position to comment on causatlon and treatment than Dr. Player, who saw
Petiticner once.

I respectfully dissent.
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IAMES WUTTKE, PETITIONER, v, ALDI, RESPONDENT.

NQ, 07 WC 10783
ILLINOTS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF [LLINOIS, COUNTY OF WILL
2009 I, Wrk, Comp, LEXIS 1024
October 21, 2009

CORE TERMS: arbitrator, doctor, ankle, feet, recommended, pain, surgery, temporary total disabiity, foot, temporary, Hi-being,
causally, nerve, ultrasound, crush, medical care, recommend, maximum, causal connection, gainful empleyment, medical evaluation,
right fool, recommendation, neuropraxia, bilateral, neuritls, scan, permanent disability, modifies, current condition

JUDGES: Nancy Lindsay; Molly C. Mason; Yolalne Dauphin
OPINION: [*1}
DECISION AND QPINION ON REVIEW

Timely Petition for Review under § 19(b) having been filed by Petitioner herein and notice given to &l parties, the Commission, after
considering the issues of causal connection, temporary Lotal disability, medical expenses, and prospective medical care, and being
advised of the facts and law, modifies and corrects the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts
the Decision of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, The Commission further remands this case to the
arbitrator for further proceedings for a determination of a further amount of temporary total corpensation or of compensation for
permanent disability, it any, pursuant te Thomas v Indusitlal Commission, Z78.11L.24.327,.398 N.£.2d 1322, 35 llL.Dec. 794 {1980).

After consldering the entire record, the Commission modifies the Arbitrator's Decision with respect to causal connection, temporary
total disability, and prospective medical care, With regard to the issue of causal connection, the Arbltrator found that Petitfoner’s
complaints of ankie pailn were not related to the [#2] accldent of August 4, 2006. The Arbitrator found that the accident resiited in
crush injuries to both feet which had resolved to the point where he could return to gainful employment. The Arbitrator rurther stated
that Dr, Komanduri deferred recommendation of treatment o Dr. Varge and Dr. Holmes who both found that Petitioner was notin
need of any surgery. Based upon the foregoing, the Arbitrator concluded that Petitioner's current condition of ili-being is not causally
refated to thhe accident of August 4, 2006. However, the Arbitrator did not distinguish between Pelitioner's condition of ill-being of his
fzet and the afleged ankle complaints. While the Commission agrees with the Arbitrator that Petitioner fafled to prove that nis current
ankle condition of ll-being is causally related to the work accident and that Petitioner does not need surgery to his left ankle, the
Commission finds that Petitioners current bilateral foot condition of lll-beihg is causally related to the accident of August 4, 2006.
Furthermore, the Commission finds that Petitioner's condition in his feet had not yet stabilized as of the date of the hearing and that
Petitioner is entitled to prospective medical I¥31 care for the condition of his feet as recommended by Dr. Holmes.

Or. Hoimes, Jr., examined Petitioner pursuant to Section 12 of the Act on November 15, 2007, In conjunction with his exam, the
doctor took a history, reviewed medical records and performed a physical examination. Petitioner indicated an electric pallet jack ran
over both of his feet on August 4, 2006, Petitioner was seen in the emergency room the same day and was dlagnesed with a Lisfranc
injury fo his right foot. (RX10, pp. 8,9) Petitioner told Dr. Holmes that he had biiateral foot complaints, The doctor's physical exam
revealed that Petitioner had some atrophy In the lefl calf. Both ankles were stable, his feat had good color, turgor and were
neurovascul arly Intact. Petitioner complained of patn in the dorsum of the right foot in the vicinity of the Lisfranc area. He complained
of & sporadic, burning sensation in his ieft foot which was aggravated by activities such as walking, climbing, standing, running, and
going up and down stairs. Dr. Holmes testifiad that the areas of complaints of pain had nothing to do with the ankle. The doctor noted
thal Petitioner did not complain of any ankle paln, X-rays of the feet and [¥4] ankie were negatlve and there was no evidence of
disuse or sympa thetic madiated pain syndrome, {RX 10, p.10-15).

Dr. Holmes was of the opinion thal, as a result of the accident, Petitioner sustained contusions of both feat and post-contusion
neuritis (an injury to the nerves as a result of a local crush Injury). Dr. Holmes testified that Petitioner did not need a bread umbrelia
of care including surgery or shoe modification, but testified he had made suggestions for care on page 8 of his written report. (RX10,
p.17) Dr. Hotmes testified that Petitioner might benefit from a Udoderm patch or an RS4 stimulator (stmilar to a TENS unlt), both of
which are used for & number of weeks, not a lifetime. The doctor testified that it would not be unreasonabile to obtaln an EMG to see if
there are other issuas concerning the nerves. The docter explained that the condition of neuritis usually resolves after a period of up
to two years, Petitioner had not recelved treatment for his condition, The doctor explzined that there are additional treatment
modalities not elucidated at the time of hig examination, The treatment should be started and then one can get a better idea to
predict how soon over [*5] time the symptoms will resolve. (RX10, pp.16-19, 21-23) Dr, Holmes disagreed with Dr. Kemanduri's
recommendations for treatment, While Dr. Komanduri noted multiple areas of pain in Petitionar's fool, including the ankie joint, Dr.
Holmes noted inconsistencles in the greas and that Petitioner had no ankle joint complaints when he examined him. (RX 10, pp.27,
28, 20}, The doctor expiained that the fact Petitioner felt relief after Dr. Komandrui injected hls feet Is 2 good sign that he will
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improve with the modalities discussed during his depasition. (PX10, pp.32, 33) petitioner was capable of full duty work with no
restrictions, Petitioner had no objective parameters of a dysfunctional foot, no atrophy, swelling, joint dysfunction, or arthritis, The
doctor explained that the nerves invoived are not intrinsic to the function of the foot. The nerves invoived are sensory nerves. (RX10,
o 17, 253,

patitioner was also examined by Dr. Armen Keiikian on March 13, 2007 pursuant to Section 12 of the Act. Dr. Kelikian noted
petitionar's chlef complaint was to both his feet, right more than left, Like Dr. Helmes, Dr. Kelikian felt Petitioner suffered from
nevropravia following the accident, The [#6] doctor also felt that Petitioner had type 2 complex reglonal pain syndrotne. He
anticipated maximum medical improvement within about two months and anticipated a return ©o gainful employment after an FCE
was performed. He further stated, "This is not a reflex sympathetic dystrophy or in any way typifies one, but just a contuslon from
the crush injury." The doctor noted the only objective finding was numbness which was subjectively based on the testing the doctor
performed. Al x-rays were normal. Dr. Kelikian felt there was no evidence of any Lisfranc injury or fractures, but a crush injury to the
foot. The MRI was essentially unremarkable except for a qua stionable peroneus brevls tear. The doctor recommendad an ultrasound
and the use of medication such as Lyrica and Neurontin, Dy, Kelikian indlcated Petitloner's prognesis was excellent and Petitioner
shouid be at maximurn medical improvement in about twe months, The doctor saw no reasen why Petitioner could not return to
gainfut employment with no restzictions. The docter suggested a functional capacity evaluation and felt that care should be managed
by a pain spacialist. On June 15, 2007, Or, Kelikian authored a second report after [*7] review of the ultrasound which was
performed subsequent to his initial report, Dr. Kelikian noted that the uitrasound was normal and did not show a tendon tear or ankie
impingement, The MRI scans In the past were 2lso normal and did not reveal anything to justify arthroscoplc surgery to the ankle. Dr.
Kelilkian indicated that he felt Petitioner did not have an intraarticular problem or ankle joint problem. The doctor confirmed that
Petitioner's condition should be managed by a pain specialist at this polnt. (RX13, RX 14)

petitioner was seen by Dr. Vargo for a sacond opinion on December 20, 2006. Dr. Vargo made a diagnesis of chronic regional pain
syndrome post-contusion and recommended Lreatment. The doctor hoted that the bone scan performed shortly after the injury was
essentialiy negative in these areas. (PX8) Petitioner was alse seen by Dr. League on February 2, 2007, or. League conciuded that
Petitioner had ne mechanical injuries in his feet or ankles. The doctor Telt Petitioner had nerve hypersensitivity in his bilateral lower
extremitles as a result of hig crush Injury. Or, League recornmended referrat to 2 paln spaclalist, {RX7)

The Commission concludes that other than br. Komandurl, [*8] all the doctors essentially agreed that Petitioner sustained crushing
injuries to his feet which resuited in a nerve injury. Dr. Holmes and Dr, Kelikian agreed that Petitioner is suffering from neuropraxia.
Al the doctors agre ed that Petitioner was in need of speciatized care for his bilateral foot cendition, The Commission notes that Dr.
Hotmes authored a written report after examining Petitioner on November 15, 2007, and referenced the report when discussing
trreatment options during his deposition, The report, however, was not admitted into evidence. Thus, the enttre range of treatment
options discussed by Dr. Holmes is not entirely known, In any event, Petitioner has not received the type of care recommended by Dr.
Holmes,

Based on the above, the Commission finds thalt Petitioner's current conditions of ill-being in his left and right feet are causally related
to the accident, The Commission affirms and adopts the findings of the Arbitrator that Petitioner's current ankle condition of lli-being
of Is not causally related to the accident and that Petitioner does not need surgery £ his left ankie. However, the Commissien
concludes that Petitioner has not yet reached maximum medical [*8] improvement and is in need of additional medical care for his
condition of neuropraxia in his feet as recommended by Dr. Holmes, inciuding a possibie Lidogerm patch, RS4 stimulator, and an
EMEG. Depending on Petitionet’s response (o treatment, Dr. Holmes testified that there are additional treatment modatities that could
be used, The Commission notes Dr. Halmes® tastimony that Petitioner had not received treatment for the diagnosis of neurits,

In keeping with its findings on causal cennection, the Commission further medifies the Arbitrator's Deciston regarding the award of
temporary total disability benefits, The Arbitrator awarded temporary total disabllity benefits from August 5, 2006 through September
18, 2006 and from Qctober 9, 2006 through January 5, 2008 {a period of 68 5/7 weeks), The Arbitrator noted that as of January 5,
2008, Dr, Helmes found Petitioner capable of returning to work full duty. The Arbitratoy found that in three and one half months,
Petitioner only losked for twenty jobs, what amounted to an inadeguate Job sea reh, The Arbitrator also found that the restrictions
placed on Petitioner were not related to the accident. Lastly, the Arbitrator found thiat Petitioner [%107 did not offer any tastimony as
to the wages he earned during the time he worked part-time for Respondent from Septermnber 19, 2006 through October 8, 2006, The
Arbitrator concluded that he, therefore, could not calculate an award of temporary partial beneflts during this peried.

in the Commission's view, Petitioner was temporarily totally disabled for a {otal perlod of 83 4/7 weeks. That perlod inciudes the
period for which the Arbitrator awarded temporary total disabifity (August 5, 2006 through September 18, 2006 and October 8, 2006
through January 5, 2008), The Commission also finds that Petitioner was temporarlly totally dgisabled from January 6, 2008 through
April 19, 2008, a period of 14 6/7 weeks. This additional period of temporary totally disabitity is based on the Commission's finding
vhat Petitioner is in need of additional treatment and his condition has not yet stabilized. Petitioner has not yet reached maximum
medical improvemeant.

On Aprii 20, 2008, Petitioner testified he found a job at “Just Tires®. He earng $ 440,00 per week. (T.7-9, 32) The parties stipulated
that while emploved by Respondent Petitioner's average waekly wage was § 821.81. The Commisslon finds that, [#11] In addition
to temporary total disability, Petitioner is entitled to temparary partial disabiilty beginning on April 20, 2008 and ending on June 24,
2008, the date of the arbitration haaring, a period of 8 2/7 weeks at the rate of 4 254.54 per week (2/3 x (821,81 - 440,00)).

Finally, the Commisslon makes one minor correction with respect to the Arbitrator's Decision so that the Order portion of the Decision
conforms to Responden £'s stipulation, The Arbitrater's Decision (on the next to last page, fivst full paragraph) Indicates Petitioner went
off work on October 19, 2006, The parties stipulated, ahd the Order reflects, that Petitloner went off work on October 9, 2006. The
Commission hereby corrects the Arbitrator's Deciston to refiect October 9, 2006, 35 the beginning date for the second pericd of
temporary total disability.

T IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Arbitrator's Decision filed on $eptember 3, 2008 is modified and corrected
as stated herein and afl else is otherwise affirmed and adopted.

IT 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to Petitioner the sum of $ 547 .88 per week for a period of
83 4/7 weeks, that being the period of temporary [#12] total incapacity for work under § 8(b). In additlon, Respondent shall pay to
Petiticner the sum of $ 254,54 per week for & period of 8 2/7 weeks, that being the pertod of temporary partial incapacity for work
under Section 8(a). In addition, as provided In § 18(b) of the Act, this award in no instance shell be a bar to & further hearing and
determination of a further amount of terporary total compensation or of compensation for permanent digability, if any.
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IT 15 FURTHER ORDERED &Y THE COMMISSION that Respondent provide Petitioner with prospective medical care as recom mended by
Dr, Holmes for the treatment of his iefl and right feet including, but not limited to, a Lidoderm patch, RS4 stimulator, and ah EMG.
Respondent Is arderad to pay for Pelitioner to attend one visit with Dr. Holmes to formulate @ current treatmeant plan and to provide
for the treatment recommended by Dr. Holmes, (RX10, pp, 18, 23).

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanded to the Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with
this Decisicn, but only after the tatter of expiration of the time for filing a written request for Summons to the Circuit Court has
explired without the filing 1*137 of such a written request, or after the time of completion of any judiclat proceedings, if such a
written request has been filed.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner. Interest under § 19(n) of the Act, if any.

1T 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSICON that Respondent shall have credit for all amounts paid, including, but not limited to $
45,940.82, to or on behalf of Petitioner on account of said accidental Injury,

gond for the removal of (s cause to the Circult Court by Respondent, s hareby fixed at the sum of § 2,300.00, The probabie cost of
the record to be filed as return to Summons is the sum of $ 35.00, payable to the Liinois Workers' Com pensation Commission in the
form of cash, check or money order therefor and deposited with the Office of the Secretary of the Commission.

DATED: OCT 21 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINGIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 19(h) ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to each paity. The matter was
heard v the Honerable Leo Hennessy, arbitrator of the Cormmission, In the city of Joliet, on 6/24/2008. After reviewing [*141]
al] of the evidence presented, the arbitrator lereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked befow, and attaches those findings
to this document.

DISPUTED ISSUES

F. Is the petitioner's present condition of ill-being causally related to the injury?

3. Were the medical services that were provided lo petitioner reasonable and necessary?

K. What amount of compen sation is due for te mporary total disabitity?

L. Should penaities o fees be Imposed upon the respendent?

N. Other future medical

FINDINGS

. On 8/04 /20086, the respondant Aldi, Inc, was operaling under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-employer relationship oid exist between the petittoner and respondent.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustain injuries that arose out of and in the course of emplayment.

. Timely nolice of this accident was given to the respondent.

. In'the year preceding the injury, the pelitioner earned § 42,734.12; the average weekly wage was § 821.81.

. AL the time of Injury, the patitioner was 26 years of age, marrfed with 5 children under 18,

. Necessary medical services have [¥15] been provided by the respondent.

. To date, $ 45,940,82 has been pald by the respondent for TTD and/or maintenance benefits.

ORDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temporary total disabllity benefits of § 547,88 /week for 68-5/7 weeks, from 8/05/2006
through 9/18/2006, and £10/09/2006 through 1/05/2008, as provided In Section 8(b) of the Act, because the Injuries sustained
caused the disabling condltion of the petitioner, the disabling condition Is temporary and has not yet reached a perntanent condition,
pursuant to Section 19{b) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ 0 for medical services, as provided In Section 8(2) of the Act.

. 'The respendent shail pay § 0 in penaities, as provided in Section 18(k) of the Act,

. The respondent shall pay $ 0 in penaities, as provided in Section 18{)) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay § 0 in attorneys’ fees, as provided in Section 16 of the Act.

. In no instance shall this award be a bar to subseguent hearing and determination of an additional amount of temporary total
disability, medical benafits, or compen sation for & permanent disability, If any,

RULES REGARDING APPEALS [*16] Unless a party files a Petitfon for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and
perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest of 1,.89% shall accrue from the date fisted below 10
the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal results in either no change or & dactease In this award,
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interest shall not accrue,
Signature of arbitrator
8-18-08

Date

SEP 3 2008

FINDINGS OF FACT

The patitioner testified that on August 4, 2006, he was employed by the respondent as & store manager-trainee, On that date, a
forklife ran over his feet. The left foot was ruh over by the wheel and the right one was under the fork, His foot was run over twice
when they backed the forkiift up to get It off his feet, and ran over his foot a second Hime. He continued to work that day for three or
four hours. After that, his wife drove him to the hospital. AL the hospital, he was given pain medicatlon and crutches, He began
treating with Dr. Komanduri, Dr, Komanduri put him in a walking boot and cast and prescribed [*17]1 medicine, physical therapy,
and an injection. The lagt time he saw Dr. Komandurl was in January 2008. The doctor at that fime was recommending surgery. He
alco atiowed him £o return to work with restrictlons of no lifting greater than 20 pounds, no climbing, squatting or kneeling. At one
polnt, he did return to Aldi's within those restrictions, hewever he only worked for six weeks. Aldi told him they could not
accommodate hls restrictions for more than six weeks. He I able to perform his job for Aldi's, however they will not take him back
with restrictions. He began looking for another job in February 2008, From that time until Apris 28 2007, when he began his current
employment, he applied for approximately 20 jobs.

or. Komandurl recommended a second opi nion. He gave the petitioner his choice of seeing either Dr. Varge or Dr. Holmes, The
petitioner elected to have & second opinion with Dr. Varge. Dr. Vargo did not recommend any surgery. The pelitioner was sent to Dr.
Holmes for an independent medical evaluation, who also did not recommend any surgery, On January 17, 2007, Dr, Komanduri
released him from care stating there was essentially nothing on the MRI or bone scan to warrant [*18] further care or treatment,
and he was considered at maximum medical iImprovement. The petitioner then returnad te Dr, Komandusf on April 30, 2007, at which
time Dr. Komandutl's freatment recommendations changed and he began recommanding the surgery, Of the six doctors seen by the
petitioner, Dr. Komanduri is the only one to recommend sutgery. All the othar doctors feels that conservative care would be
appropriate.

The petitioner returned to work for Just Tires on April 28, 2008, and continues to work there through the present. That job involves
standing on his feet, waliing and sitting,

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

In support of the arbitrator's decision whether or not the petitiener's present condition of ill-being is caugally related to the injury, the
arbitrator finds the following facts:

The petitioner began treating with Dr. Komanduri after the accident. On December 13, 2006, Dr. Komanduri recomimendad that the
petitionar seek a second opinlon with either Dr, Hotmes or Dr, Varge. {Respondent’s Exhibit 2). The petitioner elected to be seen by
Dr. Vargo, and was seen by her on December 20, 2006, After that examinatlon, Dr, Vargo found that she saw no indication of
permanent structural [*19] damage and did note thare was a possibility of nerve damage from which it would take 12 to 18 months
to recover. She felt that he may actually achieve full recovery in this regard. (Respondent's Exhibil 3} The petitioner was then seen by
Dr. League on February 2, 2007, Dr. League found no mechanicai injuries in the petitioner’s feet or ankles. X-rays were taken and
there was no indication of any Injuries to his fest. Dr. League did not feal surgery was appropriate, (Respondent’s Exhibit 7) The
petitioner was referred to Dr. Chinthagada by Dr. League. He saw Dr. Chinthagada on February 8, 2007. After examination, Dr.
Chinthagada felt that no surgery was recommended, that the petiticner needed conservative care, The petitloner was seen by Dr,
Kelikian on March 13, 2007. Dr. Kelikian felt that the petitiener had neuropraxia and recommended an uitrasound. He did not fee! that
surgery was needed. {Responde nt's Exhibit 13} Dr. Kelikian ordered an uitrasound, which was performed on Febreary 22, 2007,
{Resperdent's Exhibit 9) His review of the ultrascund showed only an asymmetrical extension of the left perongous bravoes muscle
and no tear or acute problems, There was also no evidence of any [¥20] ankle impingement. (Respondent's Exhibit 14) The
pelitioner Was then seen by Dr. Holmes for an independent medical evaluation. Dr. Helmes' diagnosis was contusion of both feet and
post-concussion neurltis. He could find ne objective findings to support th e subjective complaints. {Respondent's Exhiblt 10} br.
Holmes recomimended conservative care for sl to seven weeks, (Respondent’s Exhibit 10} Dr. Holmes In his testimony did state that
the history given to him was taken by the physicians assistant or nurse, and he went over the history with the patiant, He specifically
restified he measure the petitioner's calf, ankle and right foot, and tested the stability of the ankie. He then drew on the petitioner's
fgot the areas of pain being complained of by the petitioner, and specifically put a red dot over the exact spot of the pain.
{Respondent’s Exnlbit 1) The doctor noted that the area of paln is not related in any way to the ankle (Respondent’s Exhibit 10) He
stated he would not recommend the treatment recommended by Dr. Komanduri. {Respondent’s Exhibit 10} He also noted that at no
time during the examination or the taking of the history did the pegitioner complain of ankle pain. {Respondent's f*21]1 Exhibit 10)

Based upon all the medica! evidence, the arbitrator finds that the petitioner's compiaints of ankle pain are not related to the accident
of August 4, 20086, involving the petitioner's foot. The arbitrator finds that the pelitioner suffered a crush njury to hig left fook and
right foot, which has resolved to the polint that the petitioner can return to gainful empioyment. Dr. Kemanduri deferred
recommendation of treatment to Dr. Vargo and Dr. Hoimes who both found that the petitioner was not in need of any surgery. Based
upon this, the arbitrator finds that the petitioner's current condition of ili-being Is not causally retated to the accident of August 4,
2006,

In support of the arbitrator's decision regarding were the medical services that were provided to petitioner reasonable and necessary,
the arbitrator finds the following facts:

The petitioner did not put any medical bills into evidence, therefore the arbitrator findg that ¢he petitioner is not entltled to an award
of any medical bilis.

In support of the amount of compensatien due for tem porary total disability, the arbitrator the following facts:
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The pelitioner was off worl from August 5, 2008, through September [*22] 18, 2006, then returned to work parf-time from
September 19, 2006, through October 8, 2006. The petitioner then went off work on O ctober 19, 2006, and was paid temporary total
disability benafits for that time through January 5, 2008, It was al that time that he was provided with a copy of Dr, Holmes'
independent medicat evaluation, which found that the petitioper was capable of returning to work fuli duty. The petitioner testified
that in three-and-a-half months he only looked for 20 jobs. The arbitrator does not find that this was an adequate joir search. The
arbitrator also finds that the restrictions placed on the petitioner are not refated to the accident of August 4, 2006.

The petitioner did not offer any testimony as to what wages he was earning during the time he was working part-time from
Seprember 18, 2006, through October 8, 2006, for the respondent. Based upen that, the arbitrator is incapable of awarding the
petitioner any temporary partiai disability paymaents,

After review of the medical records and the petitioner's testimony, the arbitrator finds that the petitioner is entitled to temporary totat
disabliity benefits from August 5, 2006, through September 18, 2008, and [*23] then again from October 8, 2006, through January
5, 2008,

In support of the arbitrator's dedision regarding whether or net penaltes and fees should be Imposed upon the respondent, the
arbitrator finds the following facts:

The petitioner is requesting penalties for non-payment of temporary tetal disability benefits, As the arbitrator has found that the
petitioner's current condition of 1i-being Is not causally related to the accident of August 4, 2006, the petitioner i3 not entitled to
penalties for the non-payment of temporary total disability benefits. Dr. Komandurl, the petitioner's treating physician, recommended
a second opinton with Dr. Holmes, The petitioner was seeh by Dr. Holimes for an independent medical evaluation, and Dr. Holmes feit
that the petitioner coutd return to wark fuli duty, That examination was done on November 15, 2607. Temporary total disabllity
penefits were paid through Jenuary 5, 2008, Based upon this, the arbltrator finds that the petitioner is not entitied to penalties
against the respondent.

In support of the arbitrator's decision regarding whether or not the petitioner Is entitled to future medical benefits, the arbitrator finds
the following facts: [%24]

The petitioner has been seen by six doctoers. Dr. Komanduri is the enfy one to recorm mend surgery, Dr. Komandurl recomimended that
the petitioner seek a secend oplnlon with either Dr, Varga or Dr, Hoelmes, The petitioner was seen by both for a second opinion, and
nelther of those doctors recommended surgery. In January 2007, Dr. Komandurl stated that there was nothing on the MRI or bone
scan to warrant further care or treatment. Based upon the testimony of the medical experts in this case, the arbitrator finds that the
surgery recommended by D, Kemandurl is not related to any accident arising out of and in the course of petitioner's employment on
August 4, 2006,
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2009 1. Wrk. Comp. LEXIS 949, * @4 W qiYy
DYIAN MCBRIDE, PETITIONER, v. STATE OF ILLINGIS-LUDEMAN DEVELOPMENT CENTER, RESPONDENT,
NG: 06 WC 28019
TLLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
STATE OF ILLINOIS, COUNTY OF COOK
2009 11l Wrk. Comp, LEXIS 949
September 15, 2009

CORE TERMS: settlement, partial disabllity, temporary, overtime, loss of use, arbltrator, right hand, earning, time period, fracture,
distal, partial loss, permanency, radius, wrist, average weekly wage, full capacity, tight duty, calculation, underwent, one-year,
totaled, sorew, amount of credit, amount of money, present value, body part, subtracting, amputation, calcuiated

JUDGES: Kevin W. Lambotn; Barbara A. Sherman; Paul W, Rink
OPINION: [*¥1}
DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

Respondent appeals the Decision of Arbitrator Hagan, filed September 24, 2008, finding that Petitloner sustained accidental injurles
arising out of and In the course of her e mployment on June 13, 2606, awarding termporary partial disability benefits of § 3,781.88
for the perfod from June 18, 2006 through October 1%, 2006 and further finding that Petitioner suffered permanent partial disability to
the extent of 45% loss of use of her right hand under § 8(e) of the Act, less a credit of 32.3 weeks, for a net award of 59.5 weeks.
The Commission, after considering the issues of causal connection, temporary total disability, calculation of credit and permanency,
and being advised of the facts and law, alfirms and adopts the Dedsion of the Arblfrator, which Is attached hereto and made a part
hereof,

When considering the issue of calculating the amount of credit Respondent s entitled to for pricr settlements received by Petltioner,
the Commission reviewed § 8(e)17 of the Act which states that:

“(i}n computing the compensation te be paid to any empioyee who, before the accident for which he clalms compensation,
had before that tme sustained an injury [#2] resuiting in the loss by amputation or partial joss by amputation of any
meamber, including hand, arm, thumb or fingers, feg foot or any toes, such loss or partial loss of any such member shall
be deducted from any award made for the subsequent fnjury. For the permanent loss of use or the permanent partlai loss
of use of any such member or the partial logs of sight of an eye, for which compensation has been paid, then such loss
ghalt be taken into consideration and deducted from any award for the subsequent injury.” 820 1LC% 305/8(e) 17 (2007},

On review, Respondent argued that credit shall be caloulated by subtracting the percentage of the present vaiuz of the injury minus
the percentage of the credit Respondent has from prior Injuries to the same body part, In support of its argument, Respondent cited
General Molors.Corp.y. Industrial Coramission, 62 I.2d 198,113 (1975), in which the Iilinois Supreme Court agreed with the Circult
Court that the employer was entitled to a credit for & previous settleraent, but reversed the Circuit Court's decision finding that the
credit was Himited to the amount of money {*31 pald in the prior settlement, However, neither § 8(e)17 of the Act or General Motors
state that credit shall be calculated by subtracting the percentage of the present value of the injury minus the percentage of the
credit Respondent has from prior injuries to the same body part. (Emphasis added.)

In 2002, the Appellate Court in Keil.y. Industrial Commission, 331 ILApD.3d. 478, 481.(2002), explained that § 8{e)17 of the Act:

“does not restrict the Commission as to how 1t should determine the proper amount of credit. Instead, it requires only
that the Commission take the prior loss Into consideration and deduct it from any subsequent award. This gives the
Cornmisston the necessary fexibliity to address each situation on @ case-by-case basis in order to achleve the remedial
purpose of the statute while achieving a resuit that Is just and eguitable."

In Isaacs v. Lndustrial Cormnmission, 138 1LApp, 3d.392,.395 {1985), the Appeliate Court explained that "[cJredits which operate as
partial exceptions £0 the liabilities created by the Act should, therefore, be narrowly construed where granted and not be extended
{*4] by implication uniess necessary to accomplish the purpose of the Act.”

As noted by Patitioner in her brief, since General Motors was declded, the lllinois Workers® Compensation Act was amended and the
maximum number of weeks payabie for loss of use of the hand has been increased from 190 waeks to 205 weeks. Under Petitioner's
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prior settlement, Petitioner received 17% loss of use of the hand totaling 32.3 weeks. If the Commission were Lo award credit of 17%
{oss of use of the hand under the current Act, Respondent wouid recelve a credit for 34,85 weeks even though Petitloner was naver
patd that amount, It would be Inequitable to provide Respondent with a credit for 2.55 weeks of compensation that Petitioner never
received, Therefore, the Commission finds that the appropriate means of determining the prior amount of credlt, congistent with the
humane and remedial purpeses of the Act, Is to award Respondent credit for the amount of weeks actually paid Petitioner and nol the
percentage of loss provided for in the prior settiement,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the Arbitrator entered on September 24, 2008, is affirmed and
adopted.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED [*5] BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent shall have credit for il amounts {Jaid,‘ if any, to or on
behalf of the Petitioner on account of sald accidental injury.

DATED: SEP 15 2009

ATTACHMENT:

ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION ARBITRATION DECISION

An Application for Adfustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and & Nofice of Hea ring was mailed to each party. The malter was
heard by the Henorable Kathleen A. Hagan, arbitrator of the Comrmission, In the clty of Chicage, on July 15, 2008. After reviewing
all of the evidence presented, the arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed issues checked below, and attaches those findings
to this document.

PISPUTED ISSUES

l.. What is the nature and extent of the injury?

0. Other Is petitioner entitled to tempaorary partial disability benefits? What is proper catcitiation of credit for prior
settlements.

FINDINGS

. On June 13, 2008, the respondent State of Iilineis was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

. On this date, an employee-emplover relationship did exist between the petitioner and respondent.

. On this date, the petitioner did sustaln {*6] injurles that arose oul of and Is the course of em ployment.

. Thnely notice of this acctdent was given to the respondent.

. 1n the year preceding the injury, the petitioner earned $ 28,629.12; the average weekly wage was § 550.56.

. At the time of Injury, the petitioner was 52 years of age, singfe with 1 children under 18,

. Necassary medical services have been provided by the respondent.

. To date, $ O has been paid by the respondent for TTD and/or maintenance benefits,

ORDER

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner temperary partial disability benafits of § 3,781.88 for the time paried from G6/19/06
through 10719706, which is the perled for which temporary partial disabilisy for which compensation is payable.

. The respondent shall pay the petitioner the sum of § 330.04/week for a further period of 59,95 weeks, as provided in Section B{e}
of the Act, because the injuries sustained caused foss of use of the petitionar's right hand to the extent of €5% thereof {92.25
weeks), less a credit of 32.3 weeks, for & net award of 59.95 weeks.

. The respondent shal pay the petitloner compensation that has accrued 7] from 6/19/06 through 7/15/08, and shall pay the
remmainder of the award, If any, in weekly payments.

. The respondent shall pay the further sum of § 0 for necessary medical services, as provided in Section 8(a) of the Act.
. The respondent shall pay $ 0 in penalties, as provided in Section 19(k) of the Act.

. The respondent shall pay $ 0 in penaities, as provided in Sectlon 19(_I) of the Act.

. The respondent shail pay $ 0 In attorneys' fees, ag provided in Section 16 of the Act,

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petifion for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decigion sha¥ be enlered as the decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decisicn of
Arbitraler shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if an empioyee’s appeat results in
elther no change or 2 decrease In this award, interest shall not accrue.

Signature of arbitrator

Kathleen A. Hagan

September 24, 2008
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Date
Attachment to Arbitration Decision

[*8} Dvylan McBride vs. State of 1L - Ludeman Development Center
06WC028018

L. What is the nature and extent of the Injury and proper caiculation of credit for prior settlements?

The Petitioner is emploved by Respondent as a mental health technician. Her job duties include assisting mentally disabled individuais
with activities of dally living. On June 13, 2008, while exiting a residence, the Petitioner slipped and fell, injuring her right hand and
arm. She was taken by ambulance to St James Hospital, where x-rays revealed a dorsally dispiaced right distal radius fracture, an
impacted fracture of the distai radius with dorsal angulation, and fracture of the styloid process of the uina (Pet, Ex. 1). Petitioner
underwent surgery by Dr, Davis, who noted a widely displaced right distal radius fracture. He performed an open reduction intarnal
fixation of the right distal radius fracture with Acumed-Acu-1.0OC plate with two 3.5 CM cortical locking screws, one 3.5 MM cortical
screw, and six distal lecking screws (Pet. Ex. 1 and 3).

The Petitioner then underwent a course of occupationat therapy at St. James Hospital approximately two timas per week (Pel. Ex, 2).
The treatment consisted of exercise, [¥8] soft tissue massage, iontophoresis, meist haat, icing, eryotherapy and home exercise. The
patitioner underwent occupational therapy from July 12, 2006 through September 21, 2006 for twenty-two visits (Pet. 8, 2).

When last seen by Dr. Davis on September 26, 2006, slight decreased grip on the right was noted; as well as right wrist tender to
paipation, some tenderness to palpation and some tendernass to extension of the right wrist. Dr. Davis prescribed ice as needed and
to take Tylenol as needed, He also noted probabie cubital tunnet syndrome and reieased Petitioner to full duty as tolerated. (Pet Ex.
). The Petitioner returned o work on a full duty basis on October 26, 2006.

At arbitration, the Petitioner credibly testified as to stiffness about her right wrist, particularly in the morning and after work, There is
sometimas throbbing every day. There is sometimes swelllng, particulariy if doing something physical, which occurs once every two
weeks, The range of maotion is good, except when her wrist is stiff. She has difficulty pinching and gripping with heavy iterns. She
continues to do hom e exercise as well as use heat and ice. She no fonger notes numbness, Based upon the foregoing, [¥10] the
Arbitrator awards Petitioner 45% loss of use of her right hand.

The Respondent introduced evidence of Petitioners two prior workers’ compensation settlements. In case 00 WC 068669, the
petitioner received a settlemnent for 12% loss of use of the right hand for a fracture, which totaled 22.8 weeks of permanency {Resp,
Ex. 1). In case 02 WC 029191, Petitioner recelved a net settlement of 5% loss of use of the right hand, representing 2 totat of 17%,
less a credit for the prior 12% settlement. This was for 9.5 weeks of permanency. (Resp. Ex. 2) The total number weeks of
permanency received by the Petitfoner was 32.3 weeks, and the Arbitrator awards Respondent a credit for those weeks against the
current award of 45% loss of use of the Petitioners right hand (92.25 weeks) for a net award of 59.95 weeks.

. Is Petitioner entitled to temporary partial disability benefits?

The Petitioner testified that prior ko her accident on June 13, 2006, she regularly worked voluntary overtime, Tn the pay perods for
the one-year prior to the date of the accident, she worked overtime ih all but obe of those pay periods, ag Is aise evidenced in the
wage records from Respondent (Pet. Bx. 43, and [*11] summarized below. After Petitioner was Injured and only able to return to
fight duty work, her duties ware limited to doing paperwork and she was unabte to perform the normal duties assisting the mentally
disabled residents. She was therefore unabile to perform the fuli capacity of her job and unable to earn any overtime during the time
period For which she worked light duty from June 19, 2006 through October 19, 2006, which is a period of 17-4/7 weeks,

Section 8(a) of the Hinois Workers' Compensation Act provides that when an employee is working light duty and earning [ess than he
or she would be earning if empioyed in the full capacity of her job, the employee should be entitled to temporary partial disability
benefits of 2/3 of the dilference between the average amount that the employee would be able to earn In the full employment of her
duties in which she was engaged at the time of the accident and the net amount which he or she is earning in the modified job. 820
ILCS 305/8(a).

In the one-year period prior to the date of Petitioner’s accident; It ig stipulated that petitioners average weekly wage was §
28,629,12. In the ohe-year time [*12]1 perlod prior to the date of Petitioner's injury, she had evertime earnings of § 9,548.07 or §
183.62 per week 85 is summarized below.

During the tme pericd for which temporary partial benefits are soughl, the Petitioner's net earnings for the weeks ending July 1,
2006 through October 1, 2006 totaled § 6,266.45. The Petitioner's gross earnings during that period, without overtime, totaled §
9,368,560, The average overtime earnings that Petitioner wouid have made of § 183,62 durlng that time perjod would total §
2,570.00. The amount of mohey that the Petitionar would have made in the fult capacity of her job would be the gross wages of §
9,368.60 plus the overtime earnings of § 2,570.00, for a tetal of § 11,939.28. The net eamings for that same time period pursuant to
Section 8(a) wowd be § 6,266.45, leaving a difference of § 5,672.83. The Petitioner Is entitied to 2/3 of that figure as temporary
partia! disability, which totais $ 3,781.88.

The Arbitrator notes that Section 8(a) of the Act regarding temporary partial disability places none of the average weekly wage
limitations found in Section 10 of the Act regarding overtime, nor does i{ limit overtime to straight-time rate.

[#¥13] Pylan McBride vs. State of Illincis-Ludeman Development Centar
Case No, DBWC028019

LIGHT DUTY EARNINGS

Pay Period Ending Bate Net Gross Average
Overtime

7/1/G6 % 987.53 4 1,434.80 ¥ 367,24

7/16/06 4 888.44 § 1,295.00 $ 367.24
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8/1/08
8/16/06
9/1/06
9/16/06
10/1/06
Tota!
Plus Overtime

Less Net Earnings

Temporary Partial
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& §94.80
$ 894,80
4 886,32
¢ 857.15
$ 857.15

$ 6,266.45

$ 1,304.00
4§ 1,304.00
$1,292.00
¢ 1,304.00
$ 1,434.80
$9,368.60

$ 2,570.68

$11,939.28

% 6,266.45
$ 5,672.83

times 2/3
4 3,781.88

§ 367.24
$ 367.24
4 367.24
$ 367.24
$ 367.24
$ 2,570.68
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